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Number: 1049/VP-HHVN Hanoi, July 10th , 2025
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To: Hanoi Stock Exchange
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. Organization name:
Stock code: MVN
Address: No. 1 Dao Duy Anh, Phuong Mai, Dong Da, Hanoi
Contact phone: 024.35770825
Email: cbtt@vimc.co
Website: vimc.co
. Information disclosure content:
Vietnam Maritime Corporation— JSC (“VIMC”) announces Resolution
No. 294/NQ-HHVN dated July 9th, 2025, issued by the Board of Directors of
VIMC regarding the 2025 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders (Attached
file).
3. This information has been published on the VIMC's website on July10th,
2025 at vimc.co
We hereby commit that the information published above is true and take
full legal responsibility for the content of the published information.
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AUTHORIZED PERSON
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- As above;

- Board of Directors;

- Board of Control;

- General Director;

- Person in charge of CG;
- Save: Office. L 01.




AGENDA

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS 2025
VIETNAM MARITIME CORPORATION — JSC (VIMC)

Time: Half day, from 08:30 AM on July 9th 2025

Venue: 3rd Floor Conference Hall, Ocean Park Building,

No. 1 Dao Duy Anh Street, Phuong Mai Ward, Dong Da District, Hanoi City
Format: In-person meeting

Time

Content

08h00 - 08h30

Reception of delegates/shareholders, verification of shareholder
eligibility

08h30 - 08h45

Announcement of shareholder eligibility verification results

08h45 - 09h00

Opening of the General Meeting, introduction of delegates

09h00 - 09h15

Approval of the Meeting Rules and Regulations

09h15 - 09h25

Introduction of the Presidium of the Meeting; Introduction of the
Secretariat; Approval of the Vote Counting Committee

09h25 - 10h45

Trinh bay céac ndi dung nghi sy:

1.Report of the Board of Directors (BoD) on 2024 operations, 2020-2025
term review, orientation for the 2025-2030 term, and business plan for 2025.
2.Report of the Supervisory Board (SB) on the appraisal of financial
statements, business results, and performance of the BoD and CEO of VIMC
in 2024.

3. Self-assessment report of the SB and Supervisors on performance in 2024,
2020-2025 term review, 2025-2030 orientation, and activity plan for 2025.

4. Audited financial statements of VIMC for the year 2024.
5.Proposal on profit distribution and dividend payment for 2024.
6. Business and investment plan of VIMC for 2025.

7.Remuneration fund implemented in 2024 and remuneration and salary plan
for the BoD and SB in 2025.

8. Selection of the audit firm for the 2025 financial statements of VIMC.
9.Election of members to the BoD and SB for the 2025-2030 term.
10. Approval of the registration for change of VIMC’s legal representative.

10h45 - 11h00

Discussion and voting on the presented matters

11h00 — 11h05

Report on the vote counting results

11h05 — 11h25

Approval of the Meeting Minutes and Resolution

11h30

Closing of the General Meeting

Toa nha Trung t8m Thuong ma Hang hai Ouce 13 (OCEAN PARK |
7 561 B8 Duy Ach, Phuong Maw, DAng Da, Ha NGi

= 02435770025-29

&3 0243677085060

> Info@ume.co

& wenwvinic (¢




SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM
Independence - Freedom - Happiness

Ha noi, 09 July, 2025

REGULATIONS ON ORGANIZING THE 2025 ANNUAL GENERAL
MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS OF VIETNAM MARITIME
CORPORATION -JSC
Based on the Enterprise Law No. 59/2020/QH14 dated June 17, 2020;
Based on Law No. 03/2022/QH15 dated January 11, 2022;
Based on the Securities Law No. 54/2019/QH14 dated November 26, 2019;
Based on Decree No. 155/2020/ND-CP dated December 31, 2020, issued by the
Government, detailing the implementation of certain provisions of the Securities
Law;
Based on Circular No. 116/2020/TT-BTC dated December 31, 2020, issued by the
Ministry of Finance, guiding certain corporate governance regulations applicable to
public companies under Decree No. 155/2020/ND-CP,
Based on the Charter of Vietham Maritime Corporation - JSC; Based on the internal
corporate governance regulations of Vietnam Maritime Corporation - JSC;
Based on Resolution No. 124/NQ-HHV N dated 11/4/2025 of the Board of Directors
of Vietnam Maritime Corporation - JSC regarding the plan to organize the 2025
Annual General Meeting of Shareholders of Vietnam Maritime Corporation — JSC.
CHAPTER I:

GENERAL PROVISIONS
Article 1. Scope and Subjectsof Application

1. This Regulation governs the convening and administration of the 2025
Annua Genera Meseting of Shareholders of Vietnam Maritime Corporation - JSC
(“the Meeting”), conducted through in-person attendance and electronic voting
procedures.

2. This Regulation sets forth the specific rights and obligations of
shareholders, shareholder representatives, and other participants in the Meeting, as
well as the conditions, procedures for convening the Meeting, and voting
mechanisms for resolutions within the Meeting’s authority.

3. Shareholders, shareholder representatives, and other organizations or
individual s participating in the Meeting shall be responsible for complying with the
provisions of this Regulation.



4. Matters concerning the organization of the Meeting that are not explicitly
detailed in thisRegulation shall be governed by the provisions of the Enterprise Law,
the Charter of VIMC, and the internal corporate governance regulations of VIMC.

Article 2. Interpretation of Terms

1. In this Regulation, the following terms shall be construed as follows:

1.1 "Vietham Maritime Corporation - JSC" (hereinafter referred to as
"VIMC") is the parent company within the parent-subsidiary corporate structure,
operating under the Joint Stock Enterprise Registration Certificate dated August 18,
2020.

1.2 "Genera Meeting of Shareholders® ("GMS"') refers to the Generd
Meeting of Shareholders of VIMC.

1.3"Board of Directors' ("BOD") refers to the Board of Directors of VIMC.

1.4 "General Director" refers to the General Director of VIMC.

1.5 "Shareholder" refersto any individual or entity holding at |east one share
of VIMC, listed in the Register of Shareholders entitled to attend the GMS or duly
authorized to represent a shareholder.

1.6 "Electronic Voting" refers to the process by which Shareholders or their
authorized representatives cast their votes using the Electronic Voting System at the
GMS in accordance with the provisions of this Regulation.

1.7 "Authorized Representative' refers to an individual authorized by a
Shareholder to attend the GM S and exercise Shareholder rights in compliance with
legal regulations, VIMC’s Charter, and this Regulation.

1.8 "Access Credentials' comprise a unique login username and password
issued by VIMC to each Shareholder.

1.9 "Electronic Voting System Opening Time" refers to the point at which
Shareholders or their authorized representatives can access the system, review
M eeting documents, and begin voting on agendaitems requiring approval.

1.10 "Electronic Voting System Closing Time" refers to the moment when
online access to the system is restricted, and voting functionalities are disabled, as
announced by the Meeting Chairperson.

2. Terms, phrases, and concepts not explicitly defined in this Article shall be
interpreted based on their specific context within this Regulation and in accordance
with VIMC’s relevant regulations and applicable laws.

Article 3. Conditions for Convening the M eeting

The General Meeting of Shareholders shall be convened when the attending
shareholders represent more than 50% of the total voting shares, as per the list of
shareholders entitled to participate in the Meeting.

Article 4. Forms of Participation in the Meeting
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A shareholder shall be deemed to have participated and voted at the General
Meeting of Shareholders in the following cases:

1. Attending the Meeting in person and casting votes through the electronic
voting system;

2. Delegating authority in writing to another individual or organization to
attend and vote via the e ectronic voting system. The written authorization may be
sent directly to the Meeting or transmitted through the authorized representative;

3. Submitting voting ballots to the Meeting via mail, fax, or email.

CHAPTERIII:

RIGHTS AND OBLIGATIONS OF SHAREHOLDERSAND
PARTICIPANTSIN THE MEETING

Articleb. Shareholders Rightsin the Meeting (Article 18 of the Charter)

1. Shareholders and authorized representatives of institutional shareholders
may attend the Meeting in one of the forms specified in Article 4 of this Regulation.
In cases where an institutional shareholder does not have an authorized
representative in accordance with Clause 2 and Clause 4, Article 14 of the Enterprise
Law, they shall delegate another individual or entity to attend the Meeting.

Shareholders holding less than 10% of total ordinary shares may authorize a
maximum of one (1) representative to attend the Meeting.

Shareholders holding from 10% to |ess than 50% of total ordinary shares may
authorize a maximum of three (3) representatives.

Shareholders holding 50% or more of total ordinary shares may authorize up
to five (5) representatives.

If an institutional shareholder appoints multiple authorized representatives,
the number of shares allocated to each representative must be clearly specified. In
the absence of such allocation, the total shares shall be equally divided among all
authorized representatives.

2. Shareholders or their authorized representatives attending the Meeting shall
receive public notice regarding the content and agenda of the Meeting.

3. Information necessary to access the electronic voting system, including
login credentials, passwords, and other identification factors (if applicable), shall be
provided to shareholders or authorized representatives upon their physica
attendance at the Meeting. If a shareholder requests a reissue of login credentials,
the Organizing Committee shall notify them either in person or via email/telephone,
based on shareholder information provided by the Vietnam Securities Depository
and Clearing Corporation.



4. Shareholders and authorized representatives have the right to discuss and
vote on al matters within the authority of the Meeting, in accordance with VIMC’s
Charter, the applicable Enterprise Law, and relevant legal provisions.

5. Shareholders, institutional representatives, or authorized individuals
arriving after the Meeting has commenced are entitled to register immediately and
subsequently participate in discussions and voting. The Chairperson is not required
to pause the Meeting to accommodate late arrivals, and the validity of prior
resolutions shall remain unaffected.

Article 6. Obligations of Shareholders Attending the General Meeting
(Article 19 of the Charter)

1. Shareholdersor their authorized representatives attending the M eeting must
bring the following documents: a. The officia invitation to attend the Meeting. b. A
valid identity document, such as a national identification card, citizen identification
card, or passport. c. A written authorization in cases where attendance is del egated.
The authorization document must bear complete signatures and seals (if the
shareholder isalegal entity or organization). If the authorizationis further delegated,
the attendee must also present the origina authorization document from the
shareholder or theinitial authorized representative (if not previously registered with
VIMC).

2. Shareholders or their authorized representatives may officialy attend and
vote in the Meeting only after registering with the Shareholder Eligibility
Verification Committee. Upon registration, they will receive login credentials, a
password, or a QR code to access the electronic voting system.

3. Upon entering the meeting room, shareholders and their representatives
must adhere to designated seating arrangements as directed by the Meeting
Organizing Committee.

4. During the Meeting, shareholders and their representatives must follow the
instructions and direction of the Chairperson, respect the resolutions passed,
maintain decorum, and avoid causing disruptions.

5. Private conversations and mobile phone usage are prohibited during the
Meeting. All mobile devices must be turned off or set to silent mode.

6. Shareholders and their representatives are required to attend the Meeting
from commencement to conclusion. If a shareholder or representative must leave
due to unavoidable circumstances, they must use their login credentials or other
identification factors (if applicable) to access the electronic voting system and
participate in voting on resolutions remotely.

Article7. Chairperson and Presidium
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1. The Presidium of the General Meeting consists of five members. the
Chairperson and four other members. The Chairperson of the Board of Directors of
VIMC serves as the Chairperson or may authorize another member of the Board of
Directors to preside over the Genera Meeting of Shareholders. To support the
Chairperson, the Presidium includes four additiona members who participate in
managing the General Meeting of Shareholders.

2. Powers of the Chairperson of the General Meeting of Shareholders

a. Implement necessary measures to conduct the meeting in an orderly and
proper manner, in accordance with the approved agenda, reflecting the will of the
majority of attendees.

b. Require all attendees to undergo security checks or other legal and
reasonabl e security measures.

c. Reguest competent authorities to maintain order during the meeting; expel
individuals who do not comply with the Chairperson’s authority, intentionally
disrupt order, obstruct the normal proceedings of the meeting, or fail to comply with
security inspection requirements.

d. Postponethe General Meeting of Shareholders, provided the quorumismet,
for amaximum of three working days from the scheduled commencement date, and
only under the following circumstances:

. The meeting venue does not have adequate seating for all attendees.

o Communication facilities at the venue do not ensure shareholders
participation, discussion, and voting.

. Attendees disrupt the meeting, posing arisk to fair and lawful proceedings.

3. Duties of the Presidium

a. Oversee activities of the General Meeting of Shareholders according to the
approved agenda.

b. Guide delegates and the General Meeting in discussing the scheduled
topics.

c. Present drafts and conclusions of essential matters for voting.

d. Announce the closing time for electronic voting on the system to enable
shareholdersto exercise their rights.

e. Address issues raised by the General Meeting. f. Resolve arising matters
during the course of the General Meseting.

Article 8. Secretariat of the General Meeting

1. The Secretariat of the General Meeting consists of one Head and one
member, appointed by the Chairperson of the General Meeting.

2. Duties of the Secretariat of the General Meeting:

a. Accurately and truthfully record the proceedings of the General Mesting.
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b. Recelve and register shareholders requests for discussions, compile
shareholders’ opinions throughout the General Meeting, and submit them to the
Presidium.

c. Prepare the minutes of the meeting and draft the resolution of the General
Meeting of Shareholders.

d. Assist the Chairperson in announcing information related to the Genera
Meeting and notifying shareholders in accordance with legal regulations and the
Charter of VIMC,

e. Perform other duties as requested by the Chairperson of the Genera
Mesting.

Article 9. Shareholder Qualification Review Committee

1. The Shareholder Qualification Review Committee for the General Meeting
is established by the Board of Directors of VIMC and consists of three members: a
Head and two additional members.

2. Duties of the Shareholder Qualification Review Committee:

a. Veify the digibility and status of shareholders and shareholder
representatives attending the meeting.

b. The Head of the Shareholder Qualification Review Committee reports to
the General Meeting of Shareholders on the status of shareholder attendance. If the
meeting has sufficient shareholders and authorized representatives present,
representing over 50% of total voting shares, the General Meeting of Shareholders
may proceed.

c. Participate in vote counting for other matters before the establishment of
the Vote Counting Committee.

Article 10. Vote Counting Committee

1. The General Meeting of Shareholders elects one or more individuals to the
Vote Counting Committee upon the recommendation of the Chairperson of the
meeting.

2. Duties of the Vote Counting Committee:

a. Announce principles, regulations, and guidelines for the voting process.

b. Verify electronic voting results, compile the voting outcome, prepare a
summary report, announce the voting results, and submit the report to the
Chairperson for approval.

c. Inform the Secretariat of the General Meeting about the voting results.

d. Hand over vote-counting reports and all voting ballots (if applicable) to the
organizing committee of the General Meeting of Shareholders.



e. Review and report to the General Meeting any violations of voting
regulations or complaints regarding the voting results.

f. Perform other tasks as requested or assigned by the Chairperson.

CHAPTER I11:
CONDUCTING THE GENERAL MEETING

Article 11. Agenda of the General Meeting

1. The agenda and content of the General Meeting must be approved by the
General Meeting during the opening session.

2. In the event of any changes to the meeting agenda that was sent along with
the notice of invitation to shareholders, such changes must be unanimously approved
by the General Meeting.

Article 12. Discussion at the General M eeting

1. Discussions shall take place only within the stipulated time and be limited
to matters presented in the agenda of the General Meeting.

2. Only shareholders or their authorized representatives may participate in the
discussion. Shareholders who wish to express opinions must submit discussion
content to the Secretariat for transmission to the Presidium or log in to their meeting
account to send discussion content. The Secretariat shall arrange shareholder
discussion topicsin the order of registration and forward them to the Presidium.

3. Shareholders must raise their hands when they wish to speak or discuss and
may only do so upon approval by the Presidium. Each shareholder’s speaking time
shall not exceed three minutes, and their remarks must be concise and avoid
repetition.

4. Based on the discussion content of shareholders, the Chairperson or a
designated member shall respond to shareholders’ inquiries.

Article 13. Voting on Matters at the General M eeting

1. General Principles:

1.1. The General Meeting of Shareholders shall discuss and vote on each issue
in the agenda. VVoting is conducted electronically.

1.2. Shareholders may vote in favor, against, or abstain on matters presented
for voting at the General Mesting.

1.3. Matters included in the agenda shall be approved if shareholders holding
more than 50% of the total voting shares of attendees vote in favor, except in cases
specified in Clauses 1 and 5 of Article 29 of the VIMC Charter. 1.4.
Shareholders registering to attend after voting has commenced may participate in
voting on subsequent matters but cannot vote on already concluded matters. The
validity of previously decided matters remains unchanged.



1.5. All complaints or inquiries regarding voting and vote counting (if any)
must be resolved by the Presidium before the meeting minutes are announced.

2. Electronic Voting Process:

2.1. Shareholders access the voting system using their account or scan a QR
code per the guidelines in this regulation.

2.2. Shareholders select one of three options: "Approve,” "Disapprove,” or
"No opinion" for each voting matter.

2.3. Only shareholders registered to attend the General Meeting up to the
voting deadline are eligible to vote electronically.

2.4. Shareholders confirm their votes for the el ectronic system to record them.

2.5. Shareholders may modify their votes but cannot revoke them. The system
will register only the final vote at the end of each voting session.

2.6. Once the voting system closes, shareholders cannot amend their votes.
The recorded results are final and cannot be disputed.

3. Voting Timeframe:

3.1. Shareholders may vote from the opening of the General Meeting until the
voting deadline. Amendments must be made before voting closes.

3.2. To ensure continuity, shareholders may vote on the agenda, the Vote
Counting Committee, and the Meeting Regulations upon logging in. The deadline
for these votes will be announced at the meeting's commencement.  3.3. Voting
results are recorded when shareholders submit their electronic votes. Any disruption
in connectivity affects only pending votes, not those already cast.

3.4. Before voting concludes, shareholders may only view their individual
votes. After voting concludes, the overall results are announced by the Presidium or
the Vote Counting Committee.

4. Validity of Votes. A valid vote is one submitted by a shareholder or an
authorized representative who selects an option and completes submission. If a
shareholder logs in successfully but does not select an option, it is considered a
refusal to participate in that particular vote. Votes of non-participating shareholders
are excluded from the total vote count.

5. Shareholder Responsibility: Shareholders must ensure the confidentiality
of their provided access accounts and use them responsibly for voting per
regulations.

Article 14. Announcement of Voting Results

1. The Chairperson or the Vote Counting Committee shall announce the
voting results immediately after vote counting is completed.

2. Voting results for each item on the agenda shall be disclosed, including the
percentage of votesin favor, against, and abstentions.
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3. Thefina voting outcome is officially recorded in the meeting minutes and
serves as the basis for approving resolutions of the General Mesting.

4. Shareholders may not dispute the voting results after they have been
officially announced and recorded in the minutes.

Article 15. Adoption of Resolutions
1. The minutes and resolutions of the General Meeting must be read and
approved before the meeting is adjourned.

2. The minutes and resolutions of the General Meeting shall be publicly
disclosed and posted on the official website of VIMC in accordance with regulations.
CHAPTER IV:

IMPLEMENTATION PROVISIONS
Article 16. Implementation Provisions
1. This regulation consists of four chapters and 16 articles and takes effect
immediately upon approval by the 2025 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders
of Vietnam Maritime Corporation - JSC.

2. The Presidium is responsible for conducting the Genera Meeting in
accordance with the provisions of this regulation.

3. Shareholders, shareholder representatives, and other participants in the
General Meeting are required to comply with the provisions of this regulation.

ON BEHALF OF GENERAL MEETING SHAREHOLDERS

CHAIRPERSON

Al

Le Anh Son




VIETNAM MARITIME SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM
CORPORATION-JSC I ndependence - Freedom - Happiness

Number: 284/BC-bHDBCD Hanoi, 8th July 2025

REPORT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
On the 2024 Operational Results, 2020-2025 Term; Operational
Directionsfor the 2025-2030 Term, and 2025 Operational Plan

To: 2025 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders
Vietnam Maritime Corporation - JSC (VIMC)

- Based on the Charter of Vietham Maritime Corporation - Joint Stock
Company (VIMC) and relevant legal regulations, the VIMC Board of Directors
(BOD) respectfully reports to the General Meeting of Shareholders on the 2024
Operational Results, the 2020-2025 Term, and the Operational Orientation for
the 2025-2030 Term, along with the 2025 Operational Plan asfollows:

|. 2024 OPERATIONAL RESULTSOF THE BOD

1. Operationa Status of the BOD in 2024

- The BOD of the Corporation consists of 05 members, including the
Chairman of the BOD, a BOD member cum Genera Director, and 03 other
BOD members. There were no changes in BOD membership in 2024.

- The BOD operates on the principles of collectivity and mgjority decision-
making, effectively fulfilling its rights and obligations as stipulated by the
Enterprise Law, VIMC’s Charter, internal corporate governance regulations, the
BOD’s operational regulations, and other relevant provisions. It has performed
well in supervising the Executive Board’s management activities. The BOD
works with a high sense of responsbility and transparency in corporate
governance, fulfilling its role effectively and proposing numerous solutions
while making timely and sound decisions.

- The BOD collaborates with the VIMC Supervisory Board to strengthen
monitoring, management, and direction functions in implementing the plans and
tasks set by the General Meeting of Shareholders, ensuring compliance with
legal regulations and VIMC’s Charter.

- The BOD creates favorable conditions for the Supervisory Board to
perform its duties, providing complete information and documents related to
BOD activities and inviting them to attend all BOD meetings and other
necessary meetings. Timely feedback from the Supervisory Board regarding
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VIMC’s and the BOD’s operations is acknowledged and promptly incorporated
into the issuance of Resolutions, Decisions, and implementation processes.

* BOD Mestings, Resolutions, and Decisions:

- BOD meetings were convened and conducted in accordance with the
procedures stipulated by the Enterprise Law, VIMC’s Charter, and internal
corporate governance regulations. The Supervisory Board and the Standing
Committee of the Party Committee were invited to attend as per coordination
regulations. Meeting invitations, dossiers, and documents were fully provided to
BOD members, the Supervisory Board, and the Party Committee’s Standing
Committee for reference and study as required. Meeting agendas
comprehensively covered topics related to VIMC’s operations, complied with
current regulations, and were actively discussed, thoroughly evauated, and
carefully deliberated by BOD members to propose the best directions and
solutions for VIMC. Minutes of BOD meetings were fully recorded, ensuring
compliance with legal formalities.

- The Resolutions and Decisions issued by the BOD during meetings align
with legal regulations, the Charter, VIMC’s internal management regulations,
and the General Meeting of Shareholders’ resolutions, as well as the approved
business strategies and plans.

- Additionaly, the BOD holds meetings, exchanges discussions, and
participates in briefings with the Executive Board, as well as meetings/sessions
with subsidiaries. It chairs/co-chairs important meetings and conferences rel ated
to VIMC’s business operations and governance to ensure timely updates and
flexible, appropriate direction.

- In 2024, the BOD held 05 meetings, with 100% attendance from all
members. Outside of meetings, the BOD sought written consensus from
members to issue Resolutions and Decisions approving matters under its
authority. In 2024, the BOD issued 213 Resolutions and 83 Decisions.

* Performance Results of Individual BOD Members

- In 2024, BOD members were assigned specific tasks under Decision No.
62/Qb-HHVN dated February 09, 2021, on the Assignment of Dutiesto VIMC
BOD Members, based on the principle of leveraging each member’s strengths to
foster democracy and collective intelligence for the most effective fulfillment of
the BOD’s responsibilities. Throughout the term, BOD members proactively
performed their duties, fully participated, and voted on matters within their
authority. They collaborated well in leading, directing, and managing the
Corporation, achieving high consensus and unity within the BOD regarding
decisions on the Corporation’s goals, strategies, orientations, and key tasks.
BOD members monitored, supervised, and urged the Executive Board to
implement resolutions from the General Meeting of Shareholders, the BOD, and
higher authorities, while actively exchanging, discussing, and providing input in
their assigned fields.



- In 2024, the BOD’s action plan was issued under Resolution No. 10/NQ-
HHVN dated January 10, 2024. By year-end, most tasks had been completed.
Some unfinished items due to objective reasons were carried forward to the next
year.

- Specific duties of each BOD member under Decision No. 62/Qb-HHVN
dated February 09, 2021, are as follows:

1.1Mr. Lé Anh Son — Chairman of the BOD

- Fulfills and complies with the rights and obligations of a BOD member
and Charman as stipulated in the Enterprise Law, VIMC’s Charter, internal
corporate governance regulations, and other relevant provisions. Successfully
completes tasks assigned by the BOD regarding his areas of responsibility and
supervises the operations of assigned units/departments.

- Oversees overall operations, organizes the implementation of the BOD’s
duties and authorities, and represents the BOD in handling daily management
and operational matters in accordance with the Enterprise Law, VIMC’s Charter,
BOD’s operational regulations, and related legal documents.

- Areas of responsibility: Directly oversees, directs, and supervises:

+ Strategy development, long-term development plans, and annual business
plans.

+ Enterprise restructuring, organizational structure, and personnel management.
+ Emulation, rewards, and disciplinary actions.

+ Finance and accounting.

+ Ingpection, auditing, internal control, complaints, denunciations, and anti-
corruption/waste prevention.

+ Innovation and IT management.

+ Shareholder relations and communications.

+ Coordination with the Party Committee, Trade Union, and other corporate
organi zations.

1.2Mr. Nguyén Canh Tinh — BOD Member, General Director

- Fulfills and complies with the rights and obligations of a BOD member as
stipulated in the Enterprise Law, VIMC’s Charter, internal governance
regulations, and other relevant provisions (in addition to performing the rights
and duties of the Genera Director). Successfully completes tasks assigned by
the BOD and supervises assigned units.

- Directly manages VIMC’s business operationsin line with the objectives
and plans approved by the General Meeting of Shareholdersand implements
resol utions/decisions issued by the BOD.

1.3Mr. Nguyén Dinh Chung — BOD Member

- Fulfills and complies with the rights and obligations of a BOD member as
stipulated in the Enterprise Law, VIMC’s Charter, internal governance
regulations, and other relevant provisions. Successfully compl etes tasks assigned
by the BOD and supervises assigned units/departments.
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- Areas of responsibility: Monitors, supervises, and strengthens direction on
matters under the BOD’s authority related to port operations and maritime
services.

1.4 Mr. B4 Tién Btic — BOD Member

- Fulfills and complies with the rights and obligations of a BOD member as
gtipulated in the Enterprise Law, VIMC’s Charter, internal governance
regulations, and other relevant provisions. Successfully compl etes tasks assigned
by the BOD and supervises assigned units/departments.

- Areas of responsibility:

+ Monitors and strengthens direction on issues related to internal management
regulations.

+ Oversees enterprise bankruptcy procedures and maritime legal compliance.

+ Assists the Chairman in inspection, auditing, complaint resolution, and anti-
corruption efforts.

1.5 Mr. Bd Hung Duong — BOD Member

- Fulfills and complies with the rights and obligations of a BOD member as
stipulated in the Enterprise Law, VIMC’s Charter, internal governance
regulations, and other relevant provisions. Successfully completes tasks assigned
by the BOD and supervises assigned units/departments.

- Areas of responsibility: Monitors, supervises, and strengthens direction on
matters under the BOD’s authority related to maritime transportation operations.
I mplementation Status of Inspection/Audit Recommendations

« Regarding transactions with related parties:
There were no reported transactions between VIMC, its subsidiaries, or
companies in which VIMC holds a controlling interest of 50% or more of
the charter capital, and members of the Board of Directors (BOD) or their
related persons.

The total value of transactions between VIMC and companies where aBOD
member serves as the Manager was 136 billion VND, detailed asfollows:

Company | Relationship | Transaction Transaction Total Value
name with BOD Period Details (VND)
2024 Purchase of 5,484,647,853
goods/services
Mr.  Nguyen Sales of
Dana Port Dinh Chung — 2024 goods/services 1,246,133,600
9 BOD of VIMC, 2022
JSC : :
Chairman  of | (Resolution No. Dividend
BOD 45/NQ-DHDCD 103.950.000.000
dated payment
09/04/2024)
Mr. Do Tien Sales of
Vosa Duc — BOD of 2024 goods/services 1,480,010,646




VIMC, 2024 Purchase of 1,178,705,580
Chairman  of goods/services
BOD 2024 Dividend 23,029,881,600
payment
31/12/2024 Receivables 20,039.871
31/12/2024 Payables 357,798,600
GRAND
PR | 136.747.217.750

2. Results of the Implementation of the Tasks Assigned by the 2024 General
Meeting of Shareholders
2.1 The 2024 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders

In 2024, the global situation continued to evolve in a complex and
unpredictable manner. Following difficulties caused by weather conditions and
external factors, business and production activities showed positive changes and
regained growth momentum similar to the pre-pandemic period. EXxports
remained a highlight, with most key export categories achieving high growth.
As aresult, demand for cargo transportation via seaports increased significantly,
creating opportunities for businesses in the sector. Ocean freight rates
experienced growth due to the recovery in demand and external factors such as
regiona conflicts and drought conditions at the Panama Canal.

However, Vietnam's maritime industry is facing intense competition from
international enterprises, especially in the context of Vietnam’s entry into the
EU-Vietnam Free Trade Agreement (EVFTA). Clearly recognizing the
challenges and difficulties, the Board of Directors closely followed the contents
of Resolution No. 229/NQ-DHDCD dated April 16, 2024, assigned by the 2024
Annua General Meeting of Shareholders. The Board developed an Action
Program, implemented focused and decisive directions with specific solutions,
and achieved the following results:

(i) Business Plan Tar gets
The 2024 Annua General Meeting of Shareholders of VIMC set the following
targets:

« Totd revenue: VND 2,415 hillion

« Pretax profit: VND 935 billion

The actual results achieved in 2024 were as follows:

. Parent company: Revenue reached VND 3,155 hillion (131% of the 2024
target). Pre-tax profit reached VND 1,353 bhillion (145% of the 2024
target).

« Consolidated figures. Revenue reached VND 19,235 billion (143% of the
2024 target). Pre-tax profit reached VND 3,153 hillion (115% of the 2024
target).

(if) Investment Activities




The 2024 Annua Genera Meeting of Shareholders of VIMC set the following
investment targets:

« Tota investment capital for 2024 projects. VND 436.7 billion, including
VND 199.6 hillion for ongoing projects and VND 237.1 hillion for new
projects.

« Tota financial investment capital: VND 1,208 hillion.

« Investment in two bulk carriers with atotal capacity of 38,000 DWT and
total investment of USD 72.6 million.

. Increase the charter capital of contributed-capital enterprises, reduce
VIMC’s ownership ratio in 7 enterprises.

« Divest or reduce capital in 9 contributed-capital enterprises (3 ongoing
cases, 4 as per the 2024 plan, and capital contribution through stock value
in 2 enterprises).

| mplementation resultsin 2024:

The parent company carried out investment activities totaling VND 151.4
billion (equivaent to 35% of the plan). The main reason for not fully achieving
the investment target was due to policy and regulatory obstacles related to
bidding procedures. As a result, the parent company was unable to implement
the investment project for 2 bulk carriers (approximately VND 178 billion) and
some other projects remained incomplete as planned.

Regarding Capital Investment Plans:

In 2024, VIMC carried out capital investments in enterprises as follows:

(i) Completed the capital contribution to establish VIMC Container
Transport Joint Stock Company (VIMC Lines). At the same time, VIMC
finalized the procedures for contributing capital to VIMC Lines in cash and
assets (a batch of container shells, investment capital in VIMC Dinh Vu and
Vimadeco) in accordance with regulations.

(ii) Invested in establishing VIMC - Aries Maritime Services Joint
Venture Company Limited.

At the VIMC-wide level, the total planned investment capital for 2024
was VND 4,471 billion. The actua investment reached VND 3,077 billion (69%
of the plan). In 2024, VIMC's investment activities were actively promoted, with
key projects largely progressing as scheduled, specifically:

Port Operations Sector:

() Project for Construction of Container Terminals No. 3 and No. 4 at Hai
Phong International Gateway Port (Lach Huyen Port area, Hai Phong City): On
April 1, 2025, the opening of Berth No. 3 at Lach Huyen Port was announced.
The entire project is expected to be completed in 2025.

(i1) Project for the International Transshipment Port in Can Gio District,
Ho Chi Minh City: In 2024, VIMC coordinated closely with Saigon Port and
relevant ministries to supplement the project documentation. On January 16,
2025, the Prime Minister issued Decison No. 148/QD-TTg approving the
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investment policy for the Can Gio International Transshipment Port Project.
VIMC/Saigon Port is continuing to coordinate with partners to complete
investment preparation procedures and has been selected as the project’s
investor, aiming to commence construction in 2025.

(iii) Lien Chieu Port Construction Project in Da Nang: VIMC cooperated
with Da Nang Port to initiate investment proposal procedures and accelerated
cooperation with international partners to develop a plan aligned with the new
investment direction of the Da Nang City People's Committee.

L ogistics Sector:

Efforts were ramped up to develop logistics infrastructure projects in
various regions, with several important milestones achieved, such as the
approval of investment policy for the Ninh Giang Inland Waterway Port Project,
and the launch of Dong Pho Moi Dry Port (ICD Lao Cai) in Lao Cai Province.

Maritime Transport Sector:

With a strategic focus on fleet rguvenation and development of modern,
high-specification vessels, including container ships, maritime transport
enterprises invested in several new vessels after many years of limited fleet
development. Alongside vesseal disposal, this marks significant progress. Going
forward, VIMC will continue investing in rejuvenating and expanding its
container fleet to lay the foundation for integrated logistics services
development.

Capital Increasein Subsidiaries and Affiliates:

VIMC completed charter capital increases for Vinaship JSC and Vietnam
Sea Transport and Chartering JSC. Procedures are underway to increase charter
capital in other subsidiaries and affiliates as planned.

Capital Divestment:

VIMC completed divestment from Sesco in February 2024 and plans to
continue divestment procedures from Transvina, Vinabridge, and SHC.

(iii) Development of VIMC’s Medium- and Long-Term Strategy and Plan

Based on the Restructuring Plan for the 2021-2025 period approved by
the 2023 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders, and additional amendments
approved by the 2024 Annua General Meeting, VIMC developed an action plan
to implement the outlined contents. Simultaneously, VIMC formulated its
Development Strategy for 2021-2030, with a vision to 2035, and its 5-year
Business and Investment Plan for 2021-2025, as approved by Resolution No.
349/NQ-HHVN dated August 18, 2023, and Resolution No. 323/NQ-HHVN
dated June 7, 2024, of the Board of Directors.

To implement this, VIMC’s Board of Directors established a Steering
Committee and strategic planning teams, and coordinated with international
consultants to formulate solutions and deploy the approved Development
Strategy.

(iv) Profit Distribution



Implemented in strict accordance with the 2024 Annual General Meeting
of Shareholders’ resolution.

(v) Selection of Independent Auditor

UHY Auditing and Consulting Co., Ltd. was selected as the independent
auditor for VIMC's 2024 financial statements, ensuring quality and cost-
effectiveness in compliance with legal regulations and shareholder-approved
criteria.

(vi) Implementation of 2024 Salary and Remuneration Fund for the Board
of Directors

Sadlaries, allowances, and operational costs for the Board of Directors
were executed in accordance with the 2024 AGM resolution and VIMC’s
interna regulations. In 2024, the total remuneration and salaries for Board
members amounted to VND 6,609 million. Specific expenses are disclosed in
the audited 2024 financial statements of VIMC.

2.2 Extraordinary General Meeting of Shareholders on July 22, 2024

Following Resolution No. 380/NQ-DHDCD issued by the Extraordinary
General Meeting of Shareholders on July 22, 2024, the Board of Directors of
VIMC issued Resolution No. 381/NQ-HHVN dated July 23, 2024, and directed
the implementation of the approved contents, specificaly:

(i) Added new businesslinesto VIMC's scope of operations;

(i) Amended and supplemented VIMC's Charter;

(i11) Added new items to VIMC’s 2024 investment portfolio.

The CEO organized the implementation in compliance with current legal
regulations.

[I. SUMMARY OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS ACTIVITIES
FOR THE 2020-2025 TERM

The 2020-2025 period has been marked by unprecedented and highly
chalenging developments for the global economy. The COVID-19 pandemic,
which broke out in early 2020, caused a mgjor shock, disrupting global supply
chains and severely impacting production, trade, and service activities.
Widespread lockdowns and socia distancing measures pushed many economies
into recession.

Vietnam demonstrated remarkable resilience during the COVID-19
pandemic, maintaining positive economic growth in 2020 and recovering
strongly in the following years. The Government took decisive actions to control
the pandemic, support businesses and citizens, and promote trade and
investment. Politicaly, Vietnam maintained stability, creating favorable
conditions for economic development. Continued international integration and
participation in free trade agreements (FTAS) opened up many new
opportunities for trade and investment.

However, Vietham was not immune to the negative impacts of the global
economic context, especially supply chain disruptions and rising inflation. The
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maritime sector faced similar challenges from global factors. Nevertheless, with
its geographical advantages and the growth of import-export activities,
Vietnam's maritime industry maintained its growth momentum. Vietnamese
seaports continued to receive upgrades, and maritime transport capacity was
improved.

It can be said that the 2020-2025 term saw the VIMC Board of Directors
operating in a complex environment, heavily affected by externa factors.
Evaluating the Board’s performance requires consideration of these difficulties
and opportunities, as well as VIMC’s responsiveness and adaptability to market
fluctuations.

1. Operations of the Board of Directorsduring the 2020-2025 Term

On August 13, 2020, VIMC held its inaugural General Meeting of
Shareholders (GMYS), officially converting its business model from a one-
member limited liability company to ajoint stock company. At thisfirst GMS, a
Board of Directors consisting of 5 members was elected, including the Chairman
of the Board, the General Director (also a Board member), and three other Board
members. There were no changes in Board composition throughout the 2020
2025 term.

The Board operated on the principle of collective decision-making, voting
by majority, and fulfilled its functions, rights, and obligations in accordance
with the Law on Enterprises, VIMC’s Charter, internal corporate governance
regulations, the Board’s operational regulations, and other relevant legal
provisions and company policies. The Board worked with a high sense of
responsibility and transparency in managing a listed company, fulfilling its role
effectively, proposing many solutions, and making timely, sound decisions.

The Board also worked in coordination with VIMC’s Supervisory Board
to enhance oversight, management, and direction in fulfilling the goals set by the
General Meeting of Shareholders, while ensuring compliance with lega
regulations and VIMC’s Charter.

2. Business Perfor mance Results for the 2020-2025 Period

During the 2020-2025 term, the VIMC Board of Directors clearly
recognized the chalenges and difficulties and closely adhered to the annual
resolutions of the General Meeting of Shareholders. The Board developed action
programs, provided strong direction, and implemented appropriate business
solutions, achieving the following results:

Revenue (VND billion) Profit before tax (VND billion)
Actual / Actual /
Y ear Panned | Actual Planned Panned Actual Planned
2020 -
- 0
(August 631,88 653,12 103% 55,5 111726
December)
2021 1.368 1.824 133% 0,983 230 234%
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Revenue (VND billion) Profit beforetax (VND billion)
Actual / Actual /
Y ear Panned Actual Planned Panned Actual Planned
2022 1.691 2.417 143% 240 653 272%
2023 2.024 2.067 102% 310 357 115%
2024 2415| 3.156,6 130% 935| 1.3535 144%

In 2020, VIMC operated under the joint-stock company (JSC) model for the first
time, facing numerous difficulties and challenges. The recorded loss of VND
1,117.36 billion was due to adjustments and the inclusion of cost factors related
to asset allocations and provisions for outstanding assets and debts from the
previous period as a state-owned enterprise, in accordance with equitization
regulations. In subsequent years, with the close direction of the state ownership
representative agency and relevant authorities, and the decisive leadership of the
Board of Directors and Executive Board, VIMC consistently achieved and
surpassed business targets, with continuous growth in revenue and profit. By
2023, VIMC had fully cleared accumulated losses and was able to pay dividends
to shareholders.
3. Investment Performance for the 2020-2025 Period

After a long period of limited development investment due to resource
constraints and a focus on restructuring, VIMC—thanks to improved business
results—has now oriented its development strategy towards expanding port and
logistics infrastructure, with a focus on deep-water ports and internationa
transshipment ports. The company is also investing in fleet modernization and
technological innovation to support business operations and contribute to the
successful implementation of Vietnam’s Sustainable Maritime Economic
Development Strategy to 2030, with avision to 2045.
3.1. Investment in Port Infrastructure

With a strategic focus on investing in new seaport infrastructure locations,
developing deep-water ports for large vessels, and upgrading existing
infrastructure while expanding deep investments to enhance port capacity,
VIMC has implemented key projects:

(1) Upgrading and expanding Berth No. 1 at Quy Nhon Port;

(ii) Constructing Berths 3 and 4 at Lach Huyen Port;

(iii) Proposing the International Transshipment Port Project in Can Gio;

(iv) Proposing the development of two initial berths at Lien Chieu Port.3.2.
Investment in Maritime Transport

To rguvenate its fleet and develop a modern, high-tech container fleet, VIMC
and its subsidiaries have recently acquired several new vessels after many years
without investment. This was accompanied by the disposal of outdated vessels.
Going forward, VIMC will continue investing in fleet renewa and container
shipsto create afoundation for integrated logistics services.
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3.3. Investment in Maritime Services
To develop an integrated logistics service chan, VIMC has focused on
expanding ICDs (Inland Container Depots) in key economic zones:
« (i) Ninh Giang Inland Waterway Port Project (Hai Duong): Approved for
investment and selected as the investor.
. (il) Logistics Service Center in Hoa Vang District, Da Nang City: Project
has broken ground.
« (ili) Research and development of logistics centers and ICDs in key areas
such as Binh Dinh, Tay Ninh, Lach Huyen (Hai Phong), etc.
4. Cor por ate Governance Reform
Alongside its transition to a new operating model, VIMC has adopted advanced
and modern governance methods. Its development strategy was advised by
international consultancy Roland Berger, implementing best international
practices such as:
. Strong decentralization and delegation of authority,
Flexible yet centralized business management centered on customer
needs,
Continuous improvement (Kaizen),
Transparent, competitive recruitment and appointment processes,
Attractive salary and bonus policiesto attract talent,
. Strong IT applications, etc.
VIMC'’s governance model follows the "123 Principle":
. 1 SYSTEM: A unified, efficient, flexible business system adaptable to
change, with consistent standards applied across all subsidiaries.
« 2 CENTERS: (1) Customer-centric; (2) People-centric. These principles
underpin the company’s cultural foundation.
. 3STRATEGIES:
1. Develop and expand deep-water ports,
2. Build and grow the container fleet and maritime/logistics services
based on digital technology,
3. Establish an efficient resource management system.
1. ORIENTATION FOR THE 2025-2030 TERM
In the 2025-2030 term, the VIMC Board of Directors will continue
implementing the company’s development strategy for 2021-2030, with avision
to 2035. Key strategic directions include:
1. Strong Investment in Port Infrastructure, Logistics, and Fleet
Development
« Focus on port and logistics infrastructure projects, including deep-water
ports, international transshipment ports, and ICDs in key economic zones.
. Invest in new-generation ships with advanced technica features,
especially container ships.

11



2. Build a Flexible, Customer-Oriented Business Modd to Accelerate
Breakthroughs

. Develop integrated service packages combining port operations, shipping,
and automated |ogi stics with seamless connectivity.

« Promote multimodal transport and tech-based logistics services to
improve efficiency, reduce logistics costs, and add value for customers.

« Deploy aCRM system to enhance customer management and expand into
new markets. Innovate service style to increase responsiveness.

. Standardize operational procedures to boost productivity and optimize
costs. Integrate advanced management technologies like ERP to control
costs and increase transparency.

. Continue resolving outstanding financial issues, restructure debts of
subsidiaries, and propose mechanisms to reduce guarantee obligations and
improve financial health.

. Review and optimize capital, assets, and land resources across the group
to create an efficient internal support mechanism that boosts revenue,
reduces costs, and maximizes shareholder value.

3. Focused Cor porate Restructuring to Streamline Operations

VIMC will continue strategic restructuring, prioritizing underperforming
subsidiaries, addressing long-standing issues, and building a streamlined,
flexible operating model suitable for the new devel opment phase (2025-2030).
4. Expand I nter national Cooperation in Business and | nvestment

. Seek and connect with experienced, capable, and financialy strong
partners and strategic investors for key VIMC projects (e.g., ports,
container fleet, logistics chains).

« Strengthen cooperation with major global and regional ports and shipping
lines to develop international routes and logistics services integrated with
VIMC’s port system.

5. Promote Technology Transfer, Digital Transformation, and Green
Transition

« Apply automation technologies, core software solutions, 10T, blockchain,
cloud computing, etc., to fully digitize and optimize operations.

. Build abig data warehouse to ensure accurate, timely system-wide data.

« Apply Al technologies to leverage data and support (semi)automated
business operations, opening new business models.

« Use renewable energy, reduce carbon emissions, and comply with
international sustainability standards.

6. Enhance Human Resour ce Quality and Cor porate Culture

. Develop high-quality human resources through comprehensive reform in
recruitment, talent attraction, training, succession planning, and
competitive compensation.
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. Foster a strong corporate culture that reflects VIMC’s identity and
promotes a positive working environment, boosting performance and
adaptability in afast-changing market.

II.BOARD OF DIRECTORS OPERATIONAL PLAN FOR 2025

The year 2025 is a particularly important and pivotal year, marking the
conclusion of the implementation of the 5-year Business and Investment Plan
for the 2021-2025 period and the VIMC Restructuring Scheme for 2021-2025.
The VIMC Board of Directors sets forth the following operationa plan:

1. Finance/ Customers

Achieve a least 100% of the approved financial targets through the
following solutions:

. Enhance efficiency in market development and terminal/yard operations;
promote the container cargo handling chain; optimize dry bulk fleet
operations.

. Expand revenue and profit growth surrounding core business activities:
promote integrated logistics, container cargo, agricultura products, and
steel.

. Control fleet and container handling costs at ports.

. Invest in expanding capacity for the seaport system, container fleet, dry
bulk and ail tanker fleets.

2. Learning and Development / I nter nal Processes

Promote sustainable growth in 2025 and beyond through the following
measures:

. Establish an environment that fosters sustainable growth in 2025: a

culture of discipline and efficiency.

« Define the 2025 Transformation Actions and the 2025-2035 Transition
Roadmap.

This concludes the 2024 Performance Report, the Summary of Operations for
the 2020-2025 Term, the Strategic Directions for the 2025-2030 Term, and the
Board of Directors’ Operational Plan for 2025, respectfully submitted to the
General Meeting of Shareholders for review and approval.

Recipients: ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
- As above; '
- Supervisory Board,;

- Member of BOD;

- Office, Interna Audit Dept;
- Save: Office, COB, GS.
HTO02
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VIETNAM MARITIME SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM
CORPORATION - JSC | ndependence - Freedom — Happiness

No: 285/BC-bHBCDb Ha Noi, 8th July, /2025

SUPERVISORY BOARD REPORT
ON THE MONITORING RESULTS OF PRODUCTION AND BUSINESS
ACTIVITIES, SUPERVISION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND
THE GENERAL DIRECTOR OF VIETNAM MARITIME
CORPORATION - JSC IN 2024

To: 2025 Annua Genera Meeting of Shareholders
Vietnam Maritime Corporation - JSC (VIMC)

Based on the Enterprise Law No. 59/2020/QH14 dated June 17, 2020;
- Based on the Securities Law No. 54/2019/QH14 dated November 26,
2019, and Law No. 56/2024/QH15 dated November 29, 2024;
- Based on Government Decree No. 155/2020/ND-CP dated December 31,
2020, detailing the implementation of certain provisions of the Securities Law;
- Based on Circular No. 116/2020/TT-BTC dated December 31, 2020, of
the Ministry of Finance guiding certain provisons on corporate governance
applicable to public companies under Decree No. 155/2020/ND-CP;
- Based on the Charter of Vietham Maritime Corporation - Joint Stock
Company (VIMO);
- Based on the internal corporate governance regulations of VIMC,
- Based on the operating regulations of VIMC’s Supervisory Board;
- Based on Resolution No. 229/NQ-DHDCD dated April 20, 2024, of the
2024  Annua Genera Meeting of  Shareholders of  VIMC;
- Based on the separate and consolidated financia statements of 2024 of the
Corporation, audited by UHY Auditing and Consulting Co., Ltd.;

The Supervisory Board of Vietnam Maritime Corporation - Joint Stock
Company (VIMC) respectfully reports to the 2025 Annua General Meeting of
Shareholders (AGM) on the results of its supervision and inspection of VIMC’s
business operations, and the activities of the Board of Directors and the General
Director of VIMC asfollows:

PART I. INSPECTION AND SUPERVISION RESULTS
|. Operational Characteristicsof VIMC

Vietnam Maritime Corporation (VIMC) operates under Business Registration
Certificate No. 0100104595, originally issued by the Hanoi Department of
Planning and Investment on July 7, 2010, with the 8th amendment dated May



24, 2024. Since August 18, 2020, the Corporation officially transitioned to
operate under ajoint stock company model.

« Charter Capita as of December 31, 2024: VND 12,005,880 million,
equivalent to 1,200,588,000 shares.

. Paid-in Capital as of December 31, 2024: VND 12,005,880,000,000 (of
which, state capital in VIMC is VND 11,942,133 million, controlling 99.469%
of charter capital. According to Official Dispatch No. 1661/VPCP-DMDN dated
February 28, 2025, from the Government Office on transferring the state capital
ownership representation rights, VIMC is under the management of the Ministry
of Finance as the state capital owner representative).

o VIMC’s shares, under the ticker symbol MVN, have been registered for
trading on the UPCoM market since October 18, 2018.

Governance Structure:
. Board of Directors:
o Mr. Lé Anh Son — Chairman
o Mr. Nguyén Canh Tinh — Member
o Mr. Dd Tién DPuc — Member
o Mr. Nguyén Dinh Chung — Member
o Mr. B Hung Duong — Member
. Executive Board:
o Mr. Nguyén Canh Tinh — General Director
o Mr. Pham Anh Tuan — Deputy General Director
o Mr. Lé Quang Trung — Deputy General Director
o Mr. Nguyén Ngoc Anh — Deputy General Director
« Supervisory Board:
o Mr. Luong Dinh Minh — Head
o Mr. Pham Cao Nhué — Member
o Ms. Phan Thi Nhi Ha — Member
. Legal Representative: Mr. Nguyén Canh Tinh — General Director
Businesss Activities:
VIMC’s core activities include maritime transportation services, seaport
services, and maritime services.
Organizational Structure:
VIMC consists of the Head Office and 6 dependent accounting units, namely:
« VIMC Shipping Company;
« VIMC Haiphong Warehouse Company;
« VIMC Maritime Human Resources Company;
« VIMC Specialized Maritime Project Management Board,;
« VIMC Branch in Haiphong;
« VIMC Branchin Ho Chi Minh City.



As of December 31, 2024, VIMC has invested capital contributions in 35
enterprises with a total contributed capital of VND 10,932.45 million,
categorized as follows:

. By Control Rights:
(i) 18 subsidiaries with contributed capital of VND 10,511.44 million. The
number of subsidiaries decreased by one compared to the beginning of 2024 due
to divestment from Maritime Development JSC and VIMC Dinh Vu Port JSC,
converting the capital contribution to VIMC Container Transport JSC with
99.956% control.
(ii) 13 joint ventures and associates with contributed capital of VND 403,834
million.
(iii) 4 other investments with contributed capital of VND 17,179.3 million.

. By Business Sector:

0 Seaport sector: 14 companies with capital contribution of VND

9,414,928 million.

0 Maritime transport sector: 9 companies with capital contribution of
VND 1,184,854 million.
0 Maritime services sector: 6 companies with capital contribution of

VND 284,595 million.
0 Other sectors. 6 companies with capital contribution of VND 48,075

million.

Il. Results of Supervising the Activities of the Board of Directors
(BOD)
. On April 20, 2024, the Board of Directors successfully convened the
Annual General Meeting of Shareholders for 2024. The meeting issued
Resolution No. 229/NQ-BDHDCD dated April 20, 2024, assigning the BOD and
the Supervisory Board (BKS) of the Corporation to implement the resolution.
. The VIMC Board of Directors consists of 5 members, including one
member who concurrently serves as the General Director and 4 full-time
members. From the start of the term on August 13, 2020, through the end of
2024, there have been no changes in the BOD membership. The Board has
operated in accordance with its functions, duties, and powers as stipulated in
VIMC’s Charter, internal governance regulations, and current laws.

. The Supervisory Board has monitored the governance activities of the
BOD, participated in BOD meetings, and reviewed the Board’s resolutions,
decisions, and internal regulations issued by the BOD.

. Building on the effectiveness achieved in 2023 under Resolution No.
11/NQ-HHVN, early in 2024 the BOD convened and issued Resolution No.
10/NQ-HHVN on January 10, 2024, regarding the 2024 Action Program of the
BOD of VIMC. The program’s objectives are to continue implementing the
tasks stated in the Dai Lai Action Declaration and uphold the principle of “1
SYSTEM, 2 CENTERS, 3 STRATEGIES” to concretize tasks, continue
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innovating operational methods, proactively adapt, and act decisively and
efficiently, in line with the Government’s 2024 operational theme: “Discipline
and responsibility; Proactive and timely; Accelerate innovation; Sustainable
efficiency.” This serves as the guiding principle for the Board’s directives and
organizational implementation throughout 2024. The plan is based on approved
long-term strategies including:
(1) The VIMC Restructuring Scheme 2021-2025;
(i) The Development Strategy 2021-2030, vison to 2035;
(iii) The 5-year Business and Investment Plan 2021-2025.

«  Throughout 2024, the BOD closely followed the business plan approved
by the 2024 General Meeting of Shareholders and directed the Executive Board
accordingly. The BOD operated as a full-time body, making collective
decisions, and delegating specific responsibilities to members according to
operational areas.

o The Board maintained close oversight of the Executive Board’s
management based on the achievement of targets and timelines set in Resolution
No. 229/NQ-BDHDCD dated April 16, 2024, and Resolution No. 10/NQ-HHVN.
The supervison covered four key areas. Financial management, Customer
relations, Internal processes, and Learning & Development. The Board regularly
organized reviews to evaluate progress and propose directions for upcoming
periods to ensure fulfillment of the planned objectives.

« In 2024, the BOD proactively adapted to changes in the business
environment and maximized VIMC’s potential. To enhance operational
efficiency, VIMC focused on expanding market share, building infrastructure,
technology, and human resources foundations for new market/customer
development. The Board ensured continuous market monitoring to secure
revenue and profit effectiveness, strengthened investments with emphasis on key
projects in port infrastructure, logistics, and fleet development.

. The Board pushed for strong corporate governance reforms, applying
advanced and modern governance principles aligned with international best
practices; vigorously adopting information technology; developing high-quality
human resources; and increasing cohesion among VIMC’s subsidiaries to build
a comprehensive service chain. This was done with a proactive approach to
integration, joint ventures, and linkages based on the Development Strategy
2021-2030 with vision to 2035, the Business and Investment Plan, and the
VIMC Restructuring Scheme 2021-2025.

« In 2024, the BOD held 5 meetings and many consultations with the
Executive Board and subsidiaries. It received 219 proposals from the Executive
Board and issued 213 Resolutions and 83 Decisions, focusing on business
operations, debt restructuring, capacity improvement in two joint venture ports
(SSIT, CICT), restructuring Saigon Port linked with container and bulk cargo
operations at joint venture ports, restructuring and financial control of
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underperforming enterprises, investment projects at Lach Huyén Berths 3 & 4
(Hai Phong Port), Quy Nhon Port Berth 1, speeding up procedures for deep-
water port projects at Can Gio and Lién Chiéu, amending and strengthening
internal regulations, personnel work, procurement, asset liquidation, and voting
guidance for subsidiaries at their shareholder meetings.

« In 2024, dl BOD members actively performed their assigned duties,
attended meetings fully, contributed opinions, and voted on matters within their
authority. The Board members cooperated well in leadership, direction, and
management of the Corporation, achieving strong consensus and unity on
decisons regarding key policies, strategies, orientations, and important
corporate tasks.

[11. Results of Supervising the Activities of the General Director

The Executive Board consists of 4 members: 1 General Director and 3
Deputy General Directors. The Executive Board promptly issued Decision No.
02/Qb-HHVN dated January 2, 2024, on the assignment of tasks between the
Genera Director and the Deputy General Directors.

The Supervisory Board monitors the Executive Board through supervision
and inspection of the implementation of the 2024 Business Plan, as approved by
the 2024 General Meeting of Shareholders and by Resolution No. 10/NQ-
HHVN dated January 10, 2024, of the Board of Directors. Supervision of the
Executive Board is conducted regularly during briefings and by participating in
meetings between the Executive Board and subsidiary units. The Executive
Board has strictly implemented the Board of Directors’ resolutions and
decisions, directing relevant departments to carry out full and timely execution.
It always complies with the directives of the Board of Directors, internal
regulations, the Corporation’s Charter, and applicable laws.

In 2024, the Executive Board received and implemented 223 resolutions
(including 10 from 2023 carried over). Among these, 215 have been completed,
and 8 resolutions are still in progress and will continue into 2025. These include:

(1) Resolution No. 345/NQ-HHVN dated September 24, 2021, on the
Digital Transformation Strategy |mplementation Program for 20212025, vision
to 2030.

(2) Resolution No. 283/NQ-HHVN dated May 14, 2024, regarding the
divestment plan of the Corporation’s capital at Vietnam Container Handling
Company Limited (VNB). The Corporation announced the auction of its
contributed capital at VNB on December 6, 2024, with the auction expected to
be held on December 27, 2024. However, the externa auction sale was
unsuccessful. At the Board of Directors meeting No. 120/NQ-HHVN dated
April 10, 2025, the Board requested the Corporation’s capital representative at
Vinabridge to: "Add the following agenda at the 2025 Members’ Council
meeting: Assess business and investment needs; research and develop a plan to
increase charter capital, including considering reducing the Corporation’s
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ownership ratio at Vinabridge to 36%. Report the capital increase plan to the
Corporation.”

(3) Six resolutions are in progress following their timelines, such as
Resolution No. 323/NQ-HHVN dated June 7, 2024, on the Development
Strategy 2021-2030, vision 2035; and the 5-year Business and Investment Plan
2021-2025.

(4) Resolution No. 411/NQ-HHVN dated August 28, 2024, on organizing
activities to celebrate the 30th anniversary of the Corporation’s establishment
(April 29, 1995 — April 29, 2025).

(5) Resolution No. 431/NQ-HHVN dated September 13, 2024,
authorizing approval of the final settlement of the completed project “New
construction of 12,500 DWT dry cargo vessel Vinalines Freedom No. 1/KH2006
(code HL15).”

(6) Resolution No. 465/NQ-HHVN on approving the capital divestment
plan of the Corporation at Transport and Trading Service Joint Stock Company.

(7) Resolution No. 546/NQ-HHVN dated December 20, 2024, from the
Board meeting on December 19, 2024, on evaluating Party members in 2024.

(8) Resolution No. 559/NQ-HHVN dated December 27, 2024, on the
2025 Business and Investment Plan of the Vietnam Maritime Corporation — JSC.

Continuing to strengthen control over the effectiveness of 2024 business
activities both at the Corporation and its subsidiaries, the Executive Board
closely monitored completion of regulations, rules, and procedures suitable to
practical conditions. The Board delegated more authority to lower levels while
ensuring compliance with the law, and regularly updated, developed, and
amended interna regulations for submission to the Board of Directors. As of
December 31, 2024, VIMC has 80 active internal regulations, including 5 issued
by the Corporation’s Party Committee, 1 by the Supervisory Board, 46 under the
Board of Directors’ authority, and 28 under the General Director’s authority.
The internal regulatory system is regularly reviewed and updated annually based
on the “VIMC Internal Regulations Issuance Plan” issued by the Board.

To improve efficiency, ensure quality, and minimize risks in business and
management operations from the parent company to subsidiaries, development
of Standard Operating Procedures (SOPs) is actively promoted, organized
through contests and innovation registrations. In 2024, ... SOPs were issued
focusing on four groups. Business and customer processes, Core business
operations, Resource management and development, and Risk management and
compliance assurance.

he General Director and Executive Board strictly comply with relevant
laws, follow the Board’s directives, internal regulations, and the Corporation’s
Charter in corporate governance and business management. The Executive
Board has effectively fulfilled its operational management role aligned with the
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Board’s objectives and guidance. Based on the 2024 Action Program, the
Executive Board promptly implements measures to resolve difficulties in
business activities, decisively assigns and directs the Deputy General Directors
and specialized units to concretize the action plans.

Ensuring compliance with state regulations on labor, working
environment conditions, collective labor agreements, and other employee rights.

Regarding shareholders, VIMC has essentially fulfilled disclosure
obligations to shareholders, partners, and stakeholders according to the
Securities Law No. 54/2019/QH14 and related documents. However, in 2024,
there were delays in disclosing information related to the transfer of VIMC’s
capital contribution from Vimadeco to VIMC Lines.

Unit: Billion dong

2024 Comparision (%)
Actual
Actual Actual202
Content 2023 Plan Actual 4/ 2024/
Plan2o24 | Actud
2023
Output (million 5,62 3.8 5,27 139% 94%
tons)
Tota revenue 2.067,26 2.415 3.156,7 131% 153%
- Net revenue
from sales and 1.468,72 1.640,92 112%
services
- Fnancia 546.6 540,45 99%
income
- Other income 51,94 975,33 1.878%
Total expenses 1.709,98 1.480 1.803,2 122% 105%
Profit before tax 357,28 935 1.353,54 145% 379%

The main revenue of the Parent Company’s business activities primarily

comes from the maritime transportation sector, partly from building leasing,
financia activities (dividends/profit sharing from investee companies), and
severa other activities.

Specificaly:

- The Parent Company’s total revenue in 2024 was VND 3,156,702 million,
an increase of 31% compared to the plan and 53% compared to the same period
last year. Among this:



Net revenue in 2024 reached VND 1,640,919 million, up 12% compared
to the previous year, mainly due to the Company expanding into coal trading
services. The revenue structure is as follows:

- Transportation: VND 1,081,135 million, accounting for 65.9% of total
revenue, but decreased by 15.5% compared to the same period;

- Office and warehouse leasing: VND 142,620 million, accounting for
8.7%, increased by 13.7%;

- Coadl trading: VND 401,034 million, contributing significantly to revenue
with an increase of 849.6%;

- Port operations and maritime services. VND 7,636 million, down 37.9%;

- Other services: VND 8,494 million, down 13.5%.

Financial revenue was VND 540,455 million, dightly down 1.1%
compared to the previous year, mainly due to a 22.4% decrease in dividends and
profit sharing (equivalent to VND 93,549 million) and a 14.8% decrease in
interest income from deposits and loans (equivalent to VND 13,867 million).
Additionally, VIMC recorded gains of VND 29,503 million from divestment
activities during the year.

- Other income in 2024 was VND 975,328 million, a significant increase of
1,778% (equivalent to VND 923,390 million) compared to the same period last
year, mainly from interest debt relief aa VDB under Government Decree
78/2023/ND-CP dated November 7, 2023, amounting to VND 377,745 million,
and gains from revaluation differences of contributed capital assets totaling
VND 468,537 million.

- Tota expenses in 2024 were VND 1,803,166 million, up 5% compared to
the same period last year. Specificaly:

- Cost of goods sold was VND 1,448,034 million, up 5%. While net
revenue from sales and services increased by 12%, gross profit in 2024
increased by 20% compared to the previous year.

- Administrative expenses were VND 222,773 million, up 7% (equivalent
to VND 14,109 million) compared to last year, mainly due to increases in
outsourced service costs by 26% (VND 4,371 million), other cash expenses by
21% (VND 7,688 million), and labor costs by 8% (VND 10,684 million).
Meanwhile, depreciation expenses decreased by 8% (VND 1,054 million) due to
some fixed assets being fully depreciated. Additionally, there was a reversal of
provision amounting to VND 5,955 million in 2024 (compared to a provision
expense of VND 3,394 miillion last year).

- Financial expenses were VND 107,309 million, up 21.2% (equivalent to
VND 18,796 million) compared to last year. This increase was mainly due to
interest expenses rising by 10.4% (VND 2,204 million) because of penalty
interest on VDB loans (although the penalty interest was fully eliminated under
Decree 78/2023/ND-CP, effective November 7, 2023), and foreign exchange
losses increasing sharply by 251.8% (VND 53,210 million). Furthermore,
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provisions for financial investment losses decreased by 80.6% (VND 35,999
million) due to reassessment and re-provision of investments in VIMC Hau
Giang, Vinabridge, Transvina, SP-PSA, and VIMC Dinh Vu.

- Profit before tax in 2024 was VND 1,353,536 million, 3.8 times higher
than the previous year and 45% above the annua plan (mainly due to interest
debt relief of VND 377,745 million and revaluation gains of contributed capital
of VND 468,537 million). Among this, the General Office’s business activities
made a profit of VND 1,042,340 million, and VIMC Maritime Transport
Company earned VND 309,342 million.

According to the above business results, the Parent Company in 2024 has
completed and exceeded the assigned targets in both revenue and profit before

tax.

(2) Consolidated Business Results:

So sanh
Actu | Actu
INDICATOR UNIT | Plan 2024 Az‘ggj' al al
2024/ | 2024/
Plan | Plan
2023 | 2024
Sea transport volume fhousan 19.398,
d tons 15,887.4 3| 93% | 122%
Cargo throughput volume Thousan 145.270
dtons | 1237484 9| 127% | 117%
Total revenue of the Billion 25.879,
cor por ation VND 18.599,0 6 | 138% | 139%
) Billion
Consolidated revenue VND 134472 | 19375 | 139% | 144%
Shipping Billion
VND 5.0425| 97322 | 161% | 193%
. Billion
Port Operation VND 67413 | 7.937,7 | 122% | 118%
Logistics Billion
VND 1.397,3| 1.5434 | 100% | 110%
Internal revenue elimination (1.216,1
(583,6) ) | 149% | 208%
Total pre-tax profit of the
cor por ation 3.609,3| 4.901,5 | 190% | 136%
. ) Billion
Consolidated pre-tax profit VND 2736,0| 3.152,7 | 148% | 115%
Shipping Billion
VND 8136 | 8236 262% | 101%
. Billion
Port Operation VND 15561 | 1.9733| 112% | 127%
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Billion

Logistics VND 42,7| 74,7 110% | 175%

* Sea Transport Volume: 19.4 million tons, equivaent to 93% of the same
period last year and 122% of the 2024 target.

- Volume decreased by 7% year-on-year due to the disposal of 13 out of 57
vesselsin 2024, while only one vessel was added. In addition, 14 ships
underwent scheduled dry-docking and repairs.

- Despite this, the volume still exceeded the plan by 22% thanks to VIMC’s
strong directive measures encouraging subsidiaries to intensify chartering
activities. Volume from chartered-in vessels reached 2.2 million tons,

* Port Throughput Volume: 145 million tons, equivalent to 126% of the same
period last year and 117% of the 2024 target.

Container throughput reached 6.2 million TEUs, 127% of the same period and
119% of the plan.

The strong growth in the Port Segment outpaced the national average due to:

- Consistent implementation of synchronized measures to maintain and
expand markets and market share.

- Capitalizing on regional port congestion while actively boosting
marketing and customer care efforts, which led to the addition of multiple new
container services.

- Most ports recorded growth in throughput compared to both 2023 and the
2024 plan. Strategic cargo types such as containers, animal feed, steel, wood
chips, and wood pellets saw strong growth at Saigon, Da Nang, Quy Nhon ports,
and especialy at joint-venture ports, which achieved 38% growth.

- Hai Phong Port’s container throughput remained flat year-on-year and
reached only 96% of the 2024 target due to a shift in shipping servicesto Nam
Dinh Vu Port after the latter completed its channel dredging to 8.5 meters. Hal
Phong Port has yet to receive dredging approval.

* Revenue: VND 18,208 billion, 130% year-on-year and 135% of the 2024
target.

Breakdown:

Consolidated revenue from the Sea Transport Segment exceeded the plan by
VND 4,155 billion, including:

- VIMC Shipping: +VND 83 billion (commercia revenue up VND 312
billion, revenue from restructuring up VND 104 billion, vessel disposal revenue
down VND 359 hillion).

- Vosco: +VND 3,280 hillion (commercia revenue up VND 2,355 hillion;
other revenue up VND 500 billion; operational revenue up VND 317 billion;
vessel sales up VND 156 billion).

- Bisco: +VND 238 hillion from operationa revenue.

- From July 2024, VIMC Lines’ revenue of VND 479 billion was included
In the consolidated results.
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Consolidated revenue from the Port Segment exceeded the plan by VND 617
billion, with key contributors including:

- Hai Phong Port: +VND 472 billion (increase in operational revenue and a
one-time compensation of VND 202 billion for the relocation of Hoang Dieu
Port).

- DaNang Port: +VND 90 hillion.

- Saigon Port: +VND 85 billion (higher operational and financial revenue).
- Expanded non-stevedoring services including logistics and alternative
import/export methods significantly contributed to revenue and profit growth:
DaNang Port (VND 230 hillion), Nghe Tinh Port (VND 25 billion), Cam Ranh
Port (VND 49 hillion). Hai Phong Port provided logistics services for 19% of
container throughput at Tan Vu Port, and Quy Nhon Port’s forwarding services
exceeded 1,000 TEUSs.

Consolidated revenue from the Maritime Services Segment exceeded the plan by
VND 53 hillion as all units met or surpassed revenue targets. An additional
VND 37 hillion was recorded from the Ca Lan Port Logistics Service Project by
VIMC Logistics.

However, operationsin this segment remain challenging:

- Core businesses continue to decline with no significant breakthroughsin
new service devel opment.

- Warehouse and vehicle fleets, as well as logistics infrastructure, remain
underdevel oped in both capacity and service quality.

- L ogistics revenue remains limited, heavily reliant on outsourced services.
- Customer base lacks diversity and is dependent on legacy clients. Low-
margin services and inefficiencies persist, especially in fleet operations and bad
debts.

- Limited capital restricts investments in capacity and service upgrades,
outsourcing continues to form amajor part of service delivery.

- Thereis still no complete supply chain connection across North—Central—
South (transport—ports-services) due to the lack of specialized fleet development
and logistics infrastructure investment.

- Maritime service units are not well integrated within the VIMC
ecosystem, hindering the development of a competitive end-to-end logistics
service chain.

* Profit: VND 3,510 billion, 165% year-on-year and 128% of the 2024 target.
Breakdown:

« Consolidated profit of the Sea Transport Segment fell short of the plan by
VND 8.8 billion due to lower-than-expected vessel disposal profits at
VIMC Shipping (VND 103 billion realized vs. VND 462 billion planned).

. Consolidated profit of the Port Segment exceeded the plan by VND 357
billion:

o Hal Phong Port: +VND 260 billion
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o Quy Nhon Port: +VND 45 hillion
o Saigon Port: +VND 23 hillion
o DaNang Port: +VND 10 hillion
« Consolidated profit of the Maritime Services Segment exceeded the plan
by VND 20 billion, primarily due to VIMC Logistics. Vosa’s profit fell
short by VND 8 billion due to a VND 15 billion provision expense.
2. Monitoring Results on the Implementation of Resolution No. 229/NQ-
DHDCD dated April 20, 2024 of the 2024 Annual General Meeting of
Shareholders
2.1 Implementation of 2023 Profit Distribution
In accordance with Resolution No. 229/NQ-DHDCD dated April 16, 2024, of
the 2024 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders, on May 7, 2024, the Board
of Directors (BOD) of VIMC issued Resolution No. 272/NQ-HHVN on
implementing the AGM resolution of the Vietham Maritime Corporation — JSC,
which stipulated the 2023 profit distribution plan as follows:
Total after-tax profit allocated: VND 140,250.98 million, of which:
- Development Investment Fund: VND 42,075.29 million
- Bonus and Welfare Fund: VND 50,673 million (including 55% to the
Bonus Fund: VND 27,870 million, and 45% to the Welfare Fund: VND
22,802.85 million. VIMC has allocated these funds to dependent units according
to the CEQ's decision No. ...)
- Management Bonus Fund: VND 1,176.12 million
- Dividend payment: On July 16, 2024, the BOD issued Resolution No.
372/NQ-HHVN on the 2023 dividend payout. The dividend was declared at
0.39%, equivalent to VND 46,326.57 million, paid to shareholders on October
10, 2024 (State shareholders received VND 46,080.59 million; other
shareholders received VND 246 million).
2.2 Asset Liquidation Plan
Ship Sales:
According to the 2024 ship sale plan, VIMC proposed to sdll 5 vessels: Green,
Glory, and Galaxy. The liquidation of Tay Son 1 and Tay Son 2 has been halted.
As of now, the plan has not been fully completed. In 2024, VIMC successfully
liquidated the Green vessel as planned, with revenue of VND 103 billion. The
Galaxy vessel (renamed Dai An) will be sold in 2025, and the Glory vessel has
not yet been liquidated.
Other Asset Liquidation:
10 cars no longer in use were liquidated, generating VND 1.08 billionin
revenue.
2.3 Investment Plan
According to the 2024 investment plan approved by the AGM, the tota capital
ISVND 436.7 billion, including VND 199.6 billion for ongoing projects and
VND 237.1 billion for new investments.
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In 2024, the parent company carried out investmentstotaling VND 151.4 billion
(35% of the plan). The main reason for the low execution rate was the regulatory
bottlenecks related to state-owned enterprise investments in maritime vessels,
which prevented implementation of the dry bulk ship investment project
(planned VND 177.8 billion).

All key projects of VIMC in 2024 were actively promoted, with the following
results:

(i) Construction of Container Terminals No. 3 and No. 4 at L ach Huyen,
Hai Phong International Gateway Port:

As of the reporting date, total disbursed capital reached VND 2,635 billion out
of atotal investment of VND 6,946 billion (37.9%). Thisis akey project, and
VIMC/Hai Phong Port prioritized resources to expedite progress. The company
accel erated construction packages, equipment installation, and port
announcement procedures to ensure the project enters operation in Q1/2025 and
Is fully completed within 2025.

(ii) Can Gio International Transshipment Port Project in Ho Chi Minh
City:

In 2024, VIMC coordinated with Saigon Port and relevant ministries to finalize
project documentation. Most regulatory procedures related to the investment
approval have been resolved. Specificaly:

« On May 22, 2024, the Prime Minister approved Decision No. 442/QD-
TTg to revise the national seaport system planning for 2021-2030, with a
vision to 2050.

« Asof December 6, 2024, the Ministry of Planning and Investment
submitted Appraisal Report No. 10120/BCBKHDT to the Prime Minister
for investment policy approval (2nd submission).

In 2025, VIMC and Saigon Port plan to complete pre-investment procedures and
be selected as project investors.

(iii) Lien Chieu Port Development Project in Da Nang:

In 2024, VIMC strengthened cooperation with internationa partnersto align
with the new investment orientation of Da Nang City People’s Committee.

2.4 Development of VIMC’s Medium- and L ong-Term Strategies and Plans
Based on the 2021-2025 Restructuring Plan approved at the 2023 AGM (with
amendments approved in 2024), VIMC developed an action plan to implement
the approved contents. Additionally, in 2024, VIMC updated the Devel opment
Strategy for 20212030 with avision to 2035 and the 2021-2025 Business and
Investment Plan (according to Resolution No. 323/NQ-HHVN dated June 7,
2024).

To implement the plan, VIMC’s BOD established a Steering Committee and
strategy teams, working with international consultants to develop solutions and
implement the approved strategy.

2.5 Capital Investment Activities
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According to the 2024 Capital Investment Plan approved by the AGM, VIMC
made the following capital investments:

. Completed investment and capital contribution to establish VIMC
Container Transport JSC (VIMC Lines): On May 10, 2024, VIMC
Lines received its business registration certificate. VIMC contributed
capital in cash and assets (container shells, investment valuein VIMC
Dinh Vu, Vimadeco). VIMC Linesis currently stabilizing business
operations.

« Capital contribution to establish VIMC - Aries Maritime Services Joint
Venture Co., Ltd.: VIMC has submitted the investment proposal and is
awaiting issuance of the investment certificate and enterprise registration.

2.6 Capital Increasefor Subsidiaries

VIMC completed capital increases for Vinaship JSC and Vietham Sea
Transport and Chartering Company JSC. Procedures are underway to
increase capital at Hai Phong Port JSC, Can Tho Port JSC, etc.

2.7 Divestment

VIMC completed divestment from SESCO in February 2024. It plansto
continue divesting from Transvina, Vinabridge, and SHC.

2.8 Closure of Branches

VIMC developed a plan to shut down VIMC Container Transport Co., Ltd., a
VIMC branch, and submitted it for approval. On September 29, 2023, the BOD
issued Decision No. 378/QD-HHVN to close this branch. VIMC is now
finalizing procedures to settle taxes, cancel the branch’s tax code, and deregister
business operations.

2.9 Enterprise Dissolution

VIMC is continuing dissolution procedures for Vinalines Dong Do Ship Repair
Co., Ltd.

2.10 Bankruptcy Proceedings

Currently, two companies have been declared bankrupt by court decisions: Ca
Mau Company and Falcon Company. Two other companies have filed for
bankruptcy and their cases are being handled by the courts: Vinashinlines and
Maritime Materials Import-Export Company.

2.11 Loan Guarantees

a) Projects with loans guaranteed by VIMC at VDB (Vietham Development
Bank) as of December 31, 2024:

Don vi: Triéu déng

Net Value

Vessel Name Outstanding | Overdue Outstanding Interest  Interest Rate (%) Credit Contract of
Principal Principal 9 Collateral

Assets
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Ili’rr]itr?::?pqe{l | nthe):?alst V_}_/ietrhr:]n Overdue _Iligrar?] Iac;rt]tjrr?tc)t/
Debt Date

Total 302.163 302.163 784.872 | 784.872 70.345
I Inlaco SG 0 0 48.613 48.613 2.198
1 Thanh Thuy - 13.401 13.401 3,00 3.9 ye;ri T7/2015 851
2 Aguamarine - 35.212 35.212 6,60 9,9 yee:llri T3/2017 1.347
I Vitranchart 193.517 193.517 374.008 | 374.008 0
1 | ViénPong 3 0 0 15.692 15.692 3,0 3,9 ye;ri T6/2015 0
2 | Vién Dong 5 6.860 6.860 28453 | 28.453 6,6 9,9 ye;ri T1/2020 0
3 VTC Dragon 99.372 99.372 132.165 | 132.165 6,6 9,9 yeeﬁ T11/2020 0
4 vTC 87.285 87.285 197.698 | 197.698 7,8 11,7 12 T11/2021 0

Phoenix years

0 9,0 13,5

11 Dong Do 17.600 17.600 197.646 | 197.646 68.147
1 | Dong Ba 17.600,00 17.600,0 65.706 | 65.706 7,8 11,7 ye;ri T6/2021 0
2 bong Phu 0 0,0 131.940 | 131.940 9 135 ye;ri T11/2021 68.147
IV | OSTC 91.046 91.046 164.605 | 164.605 0
1 Hong Linh 81.025 81.025 145.792 | 145.792 11,7 135 yea:llrg 0
3 Ngoc Son 10.021 10.021 18.813 18.813 3,0 yea:llrg 0

2.11. Guarantee Obligations and Intra-Group Lending

a) Guarantee Obligations:
In 2024, VIMC's total guarantee obligations decreased by VND 634 hillion,

including:
A reduction of VND 122 hillion due to debt repayment;

A reduction of VND 512 hillion due to interest/penalty interest write-offs.
The guarantees provided by VIMC to its subsidiaries have significantly declined

compared to previous periods.
To manage guarantees:

VIMC strengthened the monitoring of cash flow and business operations

of guaranteed subsidiaries.

It requested periodic (monthly, quarterly, semi-annual) reports on
outstanding loans, guaranteed liabilities, and payments made on such

|oans.
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« VIMC aso instructed and supported enterprises in restructuring debts to

reduce VIMC’s guarantee obligations.
For instance:

« The loan guaranteed for Vitranschart a8 ACB Bank was successfully
restructured, and VIMC’s guarantee obligation was officially released.

« For the remaining shipbuilding-related guarantees at VDB (Vietham
Development Bank), VIMC and the related enterprises are awaiting
VDB’s debt resolution mechanism to implement debt restructuring and
reduce VIMC’s guarantee obligations.

Specific case of Falcon (Gold Falcon and Diamond Falcon vessels):

The guarantee amounting to VND 334.46 billion for Vietham Oil and Gas

Transportation JSC (Falcon) at VDB has been removed from VIMC’s

monitoring list. Falcon officialy ceased operations on October 18, 2022,

following Bankruptcy Decision No. 1886/2022/Qb-TBPS issued by the

People’s Court of Ho Chi Minh City.

However, Clause 5.6 of Article 5 in the decison dates

"If the Vietham Development Bank (VDB) - SGD Il requests the Vietham

Maritime Corporation (VIMC) to fulfill its debt payment commitment on behalf

of Vietham Oil and Gas Transportation JSC (as stated in Official Letter No.

211/CV-TCKT dated March 10, 2006), such request will be considered and

resolved in a separate legal case in accordance with the provisions of civil

procedure law (if requested by the involved parties)."

b) Intra-Group Lending:

As of December 31, 2024, VIMC has outstanding loans to four subsidiaries:

1. Can Tho Port JSC — VND 33.58 hillion

- Repayment due by end of 2027.

- Initial interest rate: 4.5%/year; 2024 rate: 3.4%lyear.

- Future interest rates adjusted per agreement but not exceeding the average

deposit rate of Vietcombank, Vietinbank, BIDV, and Agribank.

- Secured by Can Tho Port’s assets and receivables from economic

contracts, valued at approx. VND 65.73 billion.

2. VIMC Hau Giang One Member Limited Liability Maritime Services Co.,
Ltd. — VND 6.5 hillion

- Loan purpose: land use fee payment during land use extension at Song

Hau Industrial Park — Phase 1.

- Interest rate: 6%/year.

- Repayment due by December 31, 2024, or upon receipt of proceeds from

the transfer of a 21-hectare land plot.

- Unsecured |oan.

- The company is still in the process of completing procedures for the land

transfer.

3. SP-PSA International Port Co., Ltd. — USD 4,950,000
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- Shareholder loan agreement dated August 26, 2008, corresponding to

VIMC’s 15% stake in the company.

- Interest rate: SOFR (Secured Overnight Financing Rate).

- Repayment upon request from PSA Vietnam Pte Ltd.

4. CICT (Ca Lan Internationa Container Terminal Co., Ltd) — USD
12,620,866.40

- Based on a debt purchase agreement signed between VIMC, SSA

Holdings International, and the original lenders.

- Part of the financial restructuring plan approved at the Extraordinary

General Meeting of Shareholders on July 22, 2024.

Debt Collection Monitoring:

« For Can Tho Port: regular submission of cash flow and repayment plansis
required; the company has been repaying principal on time as per
agreements.

o For SP-PSA: the loan is funded via PSA Vietnam’s capital; after debt
restructuring in 2021, SP-PSA will begin repayments in 2025.

. For VIMC Hau Giang: due to financia difficulties, VIMC (as the 100%
owner) approved loan extension; both parties continue to reconcile
principal and interest regularly.

Conclusion: In 2024, all intra-group loans were closely monitored by VIMC to
ensure timely and full recovery.

2.12. Appointment of Independent Auditor for FY 2024

On May 30, 2024, VIMC's Board of Directors issued Official Letter No.
310/HHVN-TKTH, approving the appointment of UHY Auditing and
Consulting Co., Ltd. as the auditor for VIMC’s standalone and consolidated
financia statementsfor FY 2024.

The appointment complies with legal regulations and aligns with the criteria
approved by the General Meeting of Shareholders, ensuring quality, efficiency,
and cost-effectiveness,

2.13. Approval of 2024 Sdary and Remuneration Fund for the Board of
Directors and Supervisory Board

o Tota headcount as of December 31, 2024: 730 employees, down by 126

from the beginning of the year (856 employees). Breakdown:
o Management: 11
o Technical/Professional: 210
o Operational: 491
o Support staff: 18
. Employee reduction reasons:
o Saeof VIMC Green vessd (reducing 81 seafarers),
o Transfer of 48 employees from VLC Container Center to VIMC
Container Transport JSC,
o Labor restructuring, retirements, resignations.
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Salary Fund for 2024:

- Complied with Decree No.
28/2016/TT-BLDTBXH.

- Full and lawful allocation and disbursement of salaries and remuneration
to employees and managers as per internal regulations.

- On March 31, 2024, the VIMC capital representative submitted Report
No. 82/BC-NDPD to the Commission for the Management of State Capital
(CMSC), proposing:

Final settlement of 2023 salary and remuneration fund, 2024 or and Salary plans
- On April 15, 2024, CMSC approved the proposal via Document No.
689/UBQLV-TCCB.

- Following the 2024 General Meeting of Shareholders of VIMC (Parent
Company), the Board of Directors issued Resolution No. 244/NQ-HHVN dated
April 25, 2024, approving the final 2023 fund settlement and 2024 plan.

- VIMC’s 2024 salary fund covers its head office and four dependent units:
VLC, VMSC, VIMC Hal Phong, and the Project Management Board.

- On April 25, 2024, the Genera Director issued Officia Letter No.
703/HHVN-TCNS, implementing Resolution No. 244/NQ-HHVN regarding the
salary fund for dependent units.

- On December 27, 2024, the VIMC capita representative submitted
Report No. 560/BC-NDD, presenting the 2025 business and investment plan.
Appendices 20 and 21 detailed labor and salary data for 2024, including for
managers, supervisory board, and staff, for CMSC’s approval.

Key figure:

- Actua average monthly sadary in  2024: VND 25.19
million/person/month, reaching 109% of the planned level (planned average
sdary: VND 23.11 million/person/month), based on actua business

53/2016/ND-CP and Circular No.

performance.
Average Salary
(million
VND/person/month
No Unit Total Salary Fund (million VND) )
Cash Flow Cash Flow Y ear
Accounting | Plan 2024 | Accountin | Year 2023 2024
2023 g 2024
1 |VLC 137.719 156.749 17,60 | 23,04
2 | VMSC 4.218 4.767 11,34 | 13,70
3 | VIMCHP 1.800 2.305 1250 | 14,78
4 | VIMCPMU 4.364 4.067 22,15 | 2259
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VIMC head office
including VIMC’s
Trade Union 54.589 61.739 32,04 36,49

Including the salary
fund difference of
VIMC’s Trade Union 3.190 3.291 15,64 15,24

Total Employee
Salary Fund 202.690 236.554 229.626 19,79 | 25,01

Total Salary Fund of
the Board of
Directors, Executive
Board, and
Supervisory Board 9.409 11.880 12.949 77,12 | 98,10

Board Members’
Remuneration 185 216 235 15,42 19,62

IV | remuneration fund of

Total salary and

the Parent Company 212.284 248.650 242.811

Salary and Remuneration Fund of the Board of Directors (BOD) and
Supervisory Board (SB) in 2024:

The BOD consists of 04 full-time members and 01 part-time member (a
BOD member concurrently serving as the General Director). The SB consists of
03 full-time members.

- Tota sdary fund: VND 12,949 million; average salary: VND 98.1
million/person/month. Specifically:

o BOD sdary fund: VND 10,197.2 million.

o SB sdary fund: VND 2,752.0 million.
- Remuneration fund for the part-time BOD member: VND 235.44
million/year. Average remuneration: VND 19.62 million/person/month.
- Distribution has been carried out in accordance with VIMC's Regulations
on salary, remuneration, and bonuses for Managers and the Supervisory Board.
V. Financial Statements Audit Results
1. Comments on the Financial Statements
The Supervisory Board has audited VIMC's 2024 Financial Statements and
concurs with the findings, as follows:
- The standalone and consolidated financial statements for 2024 were
audited by UHY Auditing and Consulting Co., Ltd., an audit firm approved at
the 2024 Annual General Meseting.

. For the 2024 Standalone Financial Statements:

The auditor made the following emphasis of matter:

“We would like to draw the reader’s attention to the following:

- In Note 12: The Corporation is recording its investment in Quy Nhon Port
JSC under the "Investment in subsidiaries' item (code 251) of the standalone
balance sheet at a value of VND 415.46 billion. This amount was transferred to
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Hop Thanh Investment and Minerals JSC (Hop Thanh Company) under a share
transfer agreement. As of December 31, 2024, the parties are still negotiating
and reviewing Hop Thanh’s legal interest in the investment period in Quy Nhon
Port JSC.
- In Note 35.3: In accordance with Decree No. 126/2017/ND-CP dated
November 16, 2017 of the Government on the equitization of state-owned
enterprises and one-member limited liability companies, at the time of
conversion to a joint-stock company, the Corporation must finalize tax
settlements and other obligations with the tax authority and request approva
from the representative agency of the State owner for the value of State capital,
proceeds from equitization, payments for redundant labor, and equitization
expenses. The Corporation has completed tax finalization. For the remaining
items, dossiers have been submitted and are awaiting approval. As such, datain
the accompanying standalone financial statements may change depending on
decisions from competent authorities.
The above matters do not affect our unqualified audit opinion.”
The Supervisory Board agrees with the auditor’s opinion that:
“In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all
material respects, the financia position of Vietnam Maritime Corporation — JSC
as at December 31, 2024, and the results of its operations and cash flows for the
year then ended, in accordance with Vietnamese Accounting Standards, the
Vietnamese Enterprise Accounting Regime, and relevant legal regulations.”
For the Consolidated Financial Statements:
The auditor expressed a qualified opinion:
1. At Hai Phong Port JSC — a subsidiary of the Corporation:
As of December 31, 2024, Hai Phong Port recorded assets at wharves 04, 05 and
the container yard at Chua Ve Port under "Tangible fixed assets' (code 221) on
the consolidated balance sheet, with an original cost of VND 279.7 hillion and a
net book value of VND 142.14 billion. These assets were financed via "Long-
term borrowings and finance leases' (code 338) totaling VND 342.1 hillion.
These are assets of the Hai Phong Port upgrading project (Phase 1), invested by
the Ministry of Transport using Japanese ODA and counterpart funds from the
Government.
As required by the Ministry of Finance, Hai Phong Port made provisional
payments to the State Budget related to this project, including:

« Depreciation (2014-2018): VND 44.8 billion

« Accrued loan interest: VND 149.3 billion
According to Resolution No. 71/NQ-CHP dated June 12, 2020, Hai Phong Port
stopped depreciating and accruing interest for these assets starting January 1,
2020, pending official management decisions.
On June 8, 2023, Hai Phong Port sent Document No. 1674/CHP-TCKT to the
Ministry of Transport proposing continued management and operation of the
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aforementioned assets per the Prime Minister’s instruction in Document No.
2313/TTg-KTN dated December 25, 2013.
The Ministry of Transport responded with Document No. 10882/BGTVT-TC
dated September 28, 2023, proposing amendments in a draft decree to allow the
handover of these maritime infrastructure assets to Ha Phong Port for
management and operation (not lease).
On December 24, 2024, the Government Office issued Notification No. 569/TB-
VPCP stating that transitional provisions would not be included in the new
decree and that the Ministries of Transport and Finance must urgently propose a
solution.
Once officially approved, Ha Phong Port will update its financial statements
accordingly.
On December 27, 2024, following Resolution No. 168/NQ-CHP, Hai Phong
Port’s Board of Directors approved the continuation of depreciation for the said
assets starting from the proposal by the General Director in Report No.
4882/CHP-TCKT dated December 25, 2024.
As of the audit report issuance date, no officia decison has been made
regarding management of the aforementioned assets. Therefore, the auditor
could not determine the impact on the consolidated financial statements for the
period from January 1, 2020 to December 31, 2024.
Moreover, the Ministry of Finance requires a review of Hai Phong Port’s
equitization process, as the findization of state capital valuation has not been
approved. Once official decisions are made regarding debt and repayment plans,
necessary adjustments will be made.
The auditor is unable to assess the impact of these matters on the
consolidated financial statements.
2. At Bien Dong Shipping One-Member Co., Ltd. — a subsidiary of the
Corporation (“Bien Dong”):
a. Discrepancy in loan balances with Shipbuilding Industry Finance Co., Ltd.
(VFC):
- According to VFC’s confirmation, loan and interest balances related to
the 1,730 TEU V22 container vessel project exceed Bien Dong’s records by:

o As of 01/01/2024: USD 28,667,314.77 (principal) and USD

59,208,393.37 (interest)
o As of 31/12/2024: USD 28,667,314.77 (principal) and USD
63,541,824.47 (interest)

- Bien Dong had transferred these debts to Bach Dang Shipbuilding Co.,
Ltd. as per ahandover agreement dated August 5, 2015.
- The auditor could not obtain sufficient audit evidence for the opening
balances, transactions, and closing balances related to these debits.
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Therefore, the auditor cannot determine whether adjustments are necessary or
what the impact might be on the consolidated financial statements. (See Notes
20 and 24)

b. Recognition of differences in loan obligations assumed from Vietnam Debt
and Asset Trading Corporation (DATC):

-Before 2017, Bien Dong followed guidance in Official Letter No. 751/BTC-
TCDN dated September 17, 2015 from the Ministry of Finance: differences
between origina loan values and amounts assumed from DATC were
recognized as increases in State capital.

-From 2018 to 2021: These differences were recognized in the profit and loss
statement in line with Vietnamese Accounting Standards.

From 2022 to 2023: Bien Dong applied multiple guidance documents
including Circular 46/2021/TT-BTC. Differences were again recognized as
increases in State capital.

Had Bien Dong consistently applied the accounting standards, then on the
consolidated balance shest:

- As of 01/01/2024: " Asset revaluation reserve" (code 416) would decrease
by VND 2,166.24 billion; "Undistributed post-tax profit* (code 421) would
Increase by the same amount.

- As of 31/12/2024: Same adjustments as above.

Additional Emphases from the Auditor in the Consolidated Financial Statements
(Pages 7-9):

- Note 1.5 — Group Structure: Quy Nhon Port JSC, a subsidiary, is
consolidated. On the parent company's books, the investment is recorded at
VND 415.46 billion — the amount paid to Hop Thanh per share transfer
agreements. As of 31/12/2024, lega ownership matters are still under
discussion.

- Note 2.1 — Basis of Consolidation: Several subsidiaries and associates
show material uncertainties about their going concern status, yet their financials
are prepared on a going concern basis.

- Note 11 — Financia Investments. Saigon Port JSC, a subsidiary,
contributed 600 meters of wharf (K6-K10) to Ngoc Vien Dong Investment and
Development Co., Ltd. at a value of VND 300.001 billion, representing a 5.6%
ownership stake.

Saigon Port has not been able to collect the financia statements of Ngoc Vien
Dong Company from 2021 to the present. However, the capital contribution
assets, which consist of more than 600 meters of wharfs from K6 to K10 at the
Nha Rong - Khanh Hoi Area, are still being managed, exploited, and operated
by the Company. Ngoc Vien Dong Company commits to bearing al arising
costs related to the management and use of the land associated with the State as
per the Memorandum of Agreement dated August 31, 2017, between Ngoc Vien
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Dong Company and Saigon Port. The General Director Board of the Corporation
assesses that this investment has not suffered any impairment in value,

- As presented in Note 17 — Construction in Progress, the “Construction
Investment Project of Cai Cui Port Phase I’ was initiated in 2002 with an initial
estimated investment of VND 230.3 billion; the “Construction Investment
Project of Cai Cui Port Phase II” was started in 2009 with an initial estimated
investment of VND 829.8 billion. The investments in these two projects have
been prolonged beyond the initial schedule and are still incomplete. Can Tho
Port Joint Stock Company — a subsidiary of the Corporation — is continuing to
invest in order to complete and put the project components into business
operation.

- As stated in Note 19 — Taxes and Payables to the State:

Saigon Port has provisionally calculated the payable costs related to land
lease fees at the Nha Rong - Khanh Hoi Port Area up to the time the Company
signed an agreement with Ngoc Vien Dong Urban Development Investment
Limited Liability Company (“Ngoc Vien Dong”) (the project investor of the
Nha Rong - Khanh Hoi Port Area) according to the Investment Policy Decision
No. 6815/QD-UBND dated December 29, 2016, issued by the People's
Committee of Ho Chi Minh City. At the date of preparing the consolidated
financia statements, Saigon Port is still working with the tax authorities
regarding the basis for calculating the land |ease fees payable.

Saigon Port has provisionally paid land lease fees and land taxes for the
period from 2015 to 2020 at Tan Thuan Port 1, Tan Thuan Port 2 (Tan Thuan
Dong) following the notification from the Tax Department of District 7 — Ho
Chi Minh City. As of the date of preparing the consolidated financial statements,
the Company continues to work with the District 7 Tax Department and relevant
authorities regarding the basis for these land lease payments.

- As presented in Notes 22(3) and 22(4) — Other Payables and Accruals:
Saigon Port has received advance capital from the State Budget and Ngoc Vien
Dong Urban Development Investment Limited Liability Company to invest in
the construction project of Saigon — Hiep Phuoc Port, managed by Saigon —
Hiep Phuoc Port Joint Stock Company — a subsidiary of Saigon Port. This
project is still under construction.

- In Notes 22(6) — Other Payables and Accruas and 24(1) — Loans and
Financial Leases, the Hau Giang Shipbuilding Plant Project of Hau Giang
Maritime Service One Member Limited Liability Company has been
permanently suspended according to the Prime Minister’s official letter No.
403/TTg-KTN dated March 29, 2012. Regarding the capital invested in this
project, the Company is recognizing restructuring interest rates pursuant to
Government Resolution 107/NQ-CP dated October 10, 2017. However, the
lenders/financiers including Vietnam Shipbuilding Industry Finance Company
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Limited (VFC) and Vietnam Shipbuilding Industry Corporation (SBIC) have not
yet restructured the debt as prescribed in the Resolution.
- As stated in Notes 24(2) — Loans and Financial Leases and Note 7 —
Recelvables from Loans: As of December 31, 2024, the Corporation’s
consolidated financial statements reflect a receivable from SP-PSA International
Port Limited Liability Company ("SP-PSA") with a principal amount of USD
4,950,000 (at the parent company — Corporation) and USD 11,880,000 (at
Saigon Port), and also reflect a loan to PSA Vietnam Pte., Ltd (“PSA Vietnam”)
with the same amount under the shareholder loan agreement dated August 26,
2008, corresponding to a 15% ownership ratio of the Corporation and 36% of
Saigon Port Joint Stock Company in SP-PSA International Port LLC. At the
time of preparing the consolidated financia statements, the Corporation and
Saigon Port are still negotiating with the parties to finalize a contract appendix
and the basis for calculating interest receivables and payables accordingly.
- As noted in Note 37.3 — Other Information, under the provisions of
Decree No. 126/2017/ND-CP dated November 16, 2017, on the conversion of
state-owned enterprises and one-member limited liability companies wholly
owned by the State into joint-stock companies, at the official time of conversion,
the Corporation must complete tax finaization, payables to the State Budget
with the tax authorities, and submit for approva the valuation of the State
capital at the official conversion time, finalize proceeds from equitization, pay
severance benefits for redundant employees, and equitization expenses. The
Corporation has completed tax finalization. For the remaining contents, the
Corporation has completed dossiers and is submitting them to competent
authorities for approval. Therefore, the figures in the accompanying
consolidated financial statements may change according to the opinions of the
relevant authorities.
Except for the issues mentioned above, the Supervisory Board agrees with the
opinion of the UHY audit firm regarding the Corporation's consolidated
financial statements for 2024: “Based on our audit results, except for the effect
described in the section ‘Basis for Qualified Audit Opinion,” the consolidated
financia statements fairly and reasonably present, in all material respects, the
consolidated financial position of Vietnam Maritime Corporation as of
December 31, 2024, as well as the consolidated business results and cash flows
for the financia year ended December 31, 2024, in accordance with Vietnamese
Accounting Standards, Vietnamese Enterprise Accounting Regime, and relevant
legal regulations for the preparation and presentation of consolidated financia
statements.”

2. Evaluation of some financial indicators

2.1. At the Parent Company level
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Based on the data from the 2024 audited separate financia statements of
the Corporation, the Supervisory Board has prepared the following summary
table:

* Assets and Equity situation as of December 31, 2024

Unit: Million dong

1/1/2024 31/12/2024

| ndicator Value Ratio (%) Value RE;?)O
Total assets 13.777.616 100 | 14.412.914 100
Current assets 2.511.356 18,2 2.222.671 15,4
Non-current assets 11.266.260 81,8 12.190.243 84,6
Total liabilities and equity 13.777.616 100 | 14.412.914 100
Liabilities 1.631.485 11,8 1.011.422 7,0
Current liabilities 1.469.927 10,7 832.935 5,8
Non-current liabilities 161.558 1,2 178.487 1,2
Owner’s equity 12.146.131 88,2 13.401.492 93,0
Contributed capital 12.005.880 87,1| 12.005.880 83,3
Development investment fund 0,0 42.075 0,3
Undistributed retaned | 440051 10| 1.353537 9,4
earnings

Assessment of the appropriateness of the asset and capital structure:

- Total assets as of December 31, 2024, amounted to VND 14,412,915
million, an increase of VND 635,298 million, equivalent to a 4.6% increase
compared to the beginning of the year.

Current assets totaled VND 2,222,671 million, accounting for 15.4% of
total assets, a decrease of VND 288,685 million compared to the beginning of the
year.

Non-current assets totaled VND 12,190,243 million, accounting for 84.6% of
total assets, an increase of VND 923,983 million compared to the beginning of the
year.

- The main asset structureis as follows:

Long-term financia investments amounted to VND 10,671,792 million,
representing 74.0% of total assets. This is the value of VIMC’s equity investments
in enterprises, revalued at the time of determining the enterprise value for the
parent company’s equitization.

Fixed assets amounted to VND 944,114 million, accounting for 6.6% of
total assets. The largest asset in this category is the parent company’s fleet, with
an origina cost of VND 5,491,924 million and a net book value of VND
4,888,581 million as of December 31, 2024.
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Held-to-maturity investments were VND 1,324,907 million, accounting for
9.2% of total assets.

Cash and cash equivaentstotaled VND 322,931 million, representing 2.2%
of total assets.
- Capita structure as of December 31, 2024, included:

Liabilities of VND 1,011,422 million, accounting for 7% of total capital;

Owner’s equity of VND 13,401,492 million, accounting for 93% of total
capital (with contributed capital of VND 12,005,880 million and undistributed
post-tax profit of VND 1,353,537 million). Since 2021, VIMC has been profitable
and has fully offset the losses incurred in 2020. As of December 31, 2024,
owner’s equity exceeds the owner’s invested capital.

Some basic financial indicators for 2024:

I ndicator Unit 01/01/2024 31/12/2024
Liquidity Ratios:

qurall solvency (Total payment Lin 8,44 14.25
ability)

qurent ratio (Current payment Lin 171 267
ability)

quf;k ratio (Quick payment Lin 171 267
ability)

Debt Ratios:

Totd liabilities/ Total assets % 11,8 7,0
Total liabilities / Owner’s equity % 13,4 7,5
Profitability Ratios: 2023 2024
Net profit after tax / Net revenue % 243 82,5
Net profit after tax / Total assets 0

(ROA) Yo 2,6 94
Net profit after tax / Owner’s 0

equity (ROE) /o 29 10,1

The liquidity ratios of VIMC as of December 31, 2024, all recorded significant
growth compared to the beginning of the year:

« The overal solvency increased sharply from 8.44 times to 14.25 times,
indicating that VIMC has a strong ability to ensure payment of both short-
term and long-term debts.

« The current ratio and quick ratio both increased from 1.71 times to 2.67
times, demonstrating an improved capacity to pay off short-term
liabilities.
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The debt ratios of VIMC decreased compared to the beginning of the year,
reflecting the company’s proactive repayment of debts, which led to a decline in
total liabilities and simultaneously helped increase owner’s equity.
In the past three years, VIMC has focused on repaying principal and interest to
the Vietnam Development Bank (VDB), and as of December 31, 2024, the
company has fully completed the repayment of principal debt.
Profitability ratios of VIMC in 2024 increased significantly compared to the
previous year. This increase was mainly due to more efficient business
operations, resulting in higher profits.
Regarding receivables management:
a. Situation of accounts receivable:

Unit: Million dong

At 01/01/2024 At 31/12/2024
I ndicator : Ratio
0
Value Ratio (%) Value (%)
|. Short-term receivables 273.883 59,3 365.712 40,8
Short-term receivables from
customers 127.491 27,6 222912 249
Short-term advances to suppliers 61.406 13,3 73.091 8,2
Short-term loans receivable 13.216 2,9 13.216 15
Other short-term receivables 363.047 78,7 339.784 37,9
Proylson for doubtful short-term (292.706) 634 (284.780) 318
receivables
Missing assets pending handling 1.429 0,3 1.429 0,2
Il. Long-term receivables 187.600 40,7 531.071 59,2
Long-term loans receivable
153.331 33,2 471.101 52,5
Other long-term receivables
34.305 7,4 59.970 6,7
Provision for doubtful long-term 0.0 0
receivables (36) ’
Total receivables (=1 +11) 461.483 896.783

The total recelvables as of December 31, 2024, amounted to VND

896,783 million, an increase of VND 435,300 million, equivalent to a 94.3%
rise compared to the beginning of the year. Among these, short-term receivables
were VND 365,712 million, up 33.5% (equivaent to VND 91,829 million)
compared to the start of the year, mainly due to an increase in other receivables.
Long-term receivables amounted to VND 531,071 million, increasing by
183.1% from the beginning of the year, due to an increase in long-term loan
receivables.
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Thetotal bad debts as of December 31, 2024, of VIMC was VND 297,407
million. VIMC has provisioned VND 284,780 million for doubtful receivables
in accordance with Circular No. 48/2019/TT-BTC dated August 8, 2019, issued
by the Ministry of Finance. The provision mainly covers receivables from
Vinalines Nha Trang (VND 104,165 million), Bach Dang Shipbuilding
Company (VND 49,239 million), Vosco (VND 70,704 million), and Denmar

Company (VND 16,658 million).
b. Situation of payables:

Unit: Million dong

Tai 01/01/2024 Tai 31/12/2024
Unit: Ratio ,
Million dong I ndicator Value (%) Value Ratio (%)
|. Short-term payables 1.469.926 90,1 832.935 82,4
Short-term payables to suppliers 120.658 7,4 77.415 7,7
Short-term advances from customers 2.937 0,2 22.165 2,2
Taxes and amounts payable to the 598 01 923 01
State
Payables to employees 64.790 40 79.638 7,9
Short-term accrued expenses 23.767 15 5.845 0,6
Short-term unearned revenue 4.204 0,3 3.236 0,3
S.ho.rt.-tlerm loans and financial lease 240,671 148 i 0.0
liabilities
Other short-term payables 1.011.976 62,0 620.649 61,4
Bonus and welfare funds 25 0,0 23.064 2
[1. Long-term payables 161558 9,9 178.487 17,6
Other long-term payables 40.679 2,5 52.010 51
Long-term Joans and financial |ease 120879| 7.4 126477 125
liabilities
Total payables(l +11) 1.631.484 | 100,0 1.011.423 100,0

The tota liabilities as of

December 31, 2024, amounted to VND

1,011,423 million, a decrease of VND 620,061 million, equivalent to a 38%
reduction compared to the beginning of the year. Among them:

Short-term liabilities: VND 832,935 million, accounting for 82.4% of
total liabilities, decreased by VND 636,991 million compared to the beginning
of the year. Within the short-term liabilities structure: payables to suppliers
amounted to VND 77,415 million, payables to employees amounted to VND
79,638 million, and other short-term payables were VND 620,649 million
(mainly interest payable to VDB of VND 492,078 million), ...

Long-term liabilities: VND 178,487 million. Among these, long-term
loans and borrowings were VND 126,477 million (loan from PSA Vietnam).
2.2. Consolidate
Unit: Million dong
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1/1/2024 31/12/2024

| ndicator Value Ratio (%) Value Ratio (%)
Total Assets 27537463 100| 30.424.971 100
Short-term Assets 11.965.376 435| 13.250.276 436
Long-term Assets 15.572.087 52,4 | 17.174.694 56,4
Total ~ Liabilities and |,/ £a7 4ea 100| 30.424.971 100
Equity
Liabilities 12.168.959 4472 | 13.008.273 42.8
Short-term Liabilities 7.417.142 309| 8.099.991 26,6
Long-term Liabilities 4.751.817 16,8 4.908.282 16,1
Owner’s Equity 15.368.504 523| 17.416.698 57.2
Contributed Capital of the| ., e aq 446| 12.005.880 395
Owner
grr(‘)‘?: ts”'b“ted After-tax | 5a9 781 596.829 2.0

- VIMC'’s consolidated total assets as of December 31, 2024, amounted to
VND 30,424,971 million, an increase of VND 2,887,508 million compared to
the beginning of the year. The main asset components are as follows:

Fixed assets totaled VND 9,100,520 million, accounting for 29.9% of
total assets—the largest component—including high-value items such as the
shipping fleet, port systems, warehouses, equipment, and vehicles.

Short-term financia investments were VND 5,138,580 million, making
up 16.9% of total assets. These are time deposits with terms from 6 months to

under 12 months.

- Capital sources as of December 31, 2024, increased by VND 2,887,508

million compared to the beginning of the year, including:

Liabilities of VND 13,008,273 million, accounting for 42.8% of total

capital.

Owner’s equity of VND 17,416,698 million, representing 57.2% of total
capital, including VND 12,005,880 million in contributed capital and VND
596,829 million in undistributed after-tax profit.

Key financial indicators and operating efficiency:

I ndicator Unit | 01/01/2024 31/12/2024
1. Liquidity Ratios:
+ Current ratio Lan 1,6 1,6
+ Quick ratio Lan 1,5 1,6
2. Quick ratio
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+ Debt to Total Assets % 44,2 42,8
+ Debt to Equity % 79,2 74,7
3. Debt to Equityloi

- Net Profit after Tax / Net Revenue % 13,3 155
- Net Profit after Tax / Owner’s Equit % 11,1 18,1
- Net Profit after Tax / Total Asset % 6,2 8,6

VI. Implementation Status of Recommendations from Inspections,
Examinations, and Audits by Competent State Authorities
1. Implementation of the State Audit Office of Vietham (SAV)
Recommendations
Implementation status of the SAV’s recommendations on the audit of
financia statements and activities related to the management and use of state
capital and assetsin 2021.
In 2023, VIMC continued to send official letters No. 494/HHVN-TCKT
dated March 31, 2023, and No. 2134/HHVN-TCKT dated December 28, 2023,
to the SAV - Sector VI to report on the implementation of the recommendations
stated in Notification No. 759/TB-KTNN dated December 14, 2022, and other
audit result notifications of the SAV at 11 audited units regarding the audit of
financia statements and activities related to the management and use of state
capital and assetsin 2021 to date. Specifically:
1.1. Regarding the recommendation to adjust accounting data and 2021 financial
statements:
VIMC and its subsidiaries have completed the adjustments in accounting books
and re-prepared the 2021 financia statements.
1.2. Regarding the financial handling recommendation requiring VND 56,194
million to be paid to the State Budget:
VIMC and its subsidiaries have completed the required payments.
1.3. Regarding recommendations for strengthening financial and accounting
management, including:
« Use of cash and cash equivalents;
« Recelvables management;
« Payables management;
« Fixed assets management and utilization;
. Sdary and salary-related deductions management;
« Revenue and expenditure management;
« Fulfillment of obligations to the State Budget;
« Procurement management of materias, goods, assets, and outsourced
Services,
. Inventory management;
« Financia investment management.
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VIMC has issued official documents to urge compliance, has regularly
supervised, and requested the relevant companies to report their implementation
results.

1.4. Regarding the Issues Identified in the Audit Report:

The Corporation has implemented corrective actions as per the Meeting
Minutes dated March 27, 2023, regarding the review and implementation of the
conclusions stated in Notice No. 759/TB-KTNN dated December 14, 2022, and
Notice No. 1133/TB-KTNN dated December 27, 2022, issued by the State Audit
Office of Vietnam (SAV).

As of the current reporting period, the Corporation has basicaly
implemented the recommendations of the SAV.

2. Implementation of Recommendations by the Commission for the
Management of State Capital at Enterprises (CMSC)

VIMC’s Board of Supervisors (BOS):

In response to Official Letter No. 2128/UBQLV-CNHT dated September
19, 2024 regarding comments on the H1/2024 Financia Supervision Report of
VIMC, the BOS issued Officia Letter No. 1579/BC-HHVN.BKS dated
September 30, 2024.

Following Official Letter No. 953/UBQLV-CNHT dated May 17, 2024
regarding comments on the 2023 Financial Supervision Report, the BOS issued
Official Letter No. 852/HHVN-BKS dated May 24, 2024.

State Capital Representative at VIMC:

In implementation of Official Letter No. 2881/UBQLV-CNHT dated
December 12, 2024, regarding the implementation of Conclusion No.
419/KLTTCP dated November 13, 2024 by the Government |nspectorate,
VIMC held a review meeting as per Plan No. 553/KH-HHVN dated December
23, 2024, and issued meeting minutes on December 26, 2024.

In response to Official Letter No. 2714/UBQLV-CNHT dated November
20, 2024, on financia supervision results for 2023, VIMC, as well as six other
relevant enterprises (including: the parent company, Saigon Port JSC, Hai Phong
Port JSC, Da Nang Port JSC, Vietnam Maritime Agency JSC, SP-PSA, SSIT,
and CMIT), have implemented the recommendations stated in the letter and are
in the process of finalizing the report to the State Capital Owner on the
implementation status.

3. Implementation of Recommendations from Other Competent Government
Authorities (Inspection, Audit, Supervision)

VIMC has directed its departments and subsidiaries to implement the
recommendations made by various government inspection, audit, and
supervisory bodies. Specifically:

Hanoi Tax Department:

Based on Decision No. 42947/Qb-CTHN-TTKT1 dated July 26, 2024,
VIMC underwent atax audit.
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Following the Tax Audit Minutes dated December 31, 2024, the final
conclusion was issued under Conclusion No. 69902/KL-CTHN-TTKT1, and the
penalty decision was issued as Decision No. 69903/Qb-CTHN-TTKT1-
XPVPHC on the same day.

The total amount payable to the State Budget was VND 4,078,180,313,
consisting of:

Ineligible land rental reduction for 2021: VND 1,295,136,216

Administrative penalty for incorrect VAT declaration: VND 510,618,444

Underpaid VAT: VND 2,059,289,219

Late payment interest as of December 30, 2024: VND 213,136,434

VIMC has fully settled the above-mentioned amount by January 10, 2025,
and implemented measures to recover amounts from individuals responsible for
issuing invalid invoices.

Ministry of Finance (MoF):

In accordance with Conclusion No. 1134/KL-TTr dated December 6,
2019 by the Ministry of Finance Inspectorate regarding compliance with
financia, accounting, and tax regulations, VIMC previoudy reported progress
via

Official Letter No. 406/HHVN-TCKT dated February 28, 2020

Official Letter No. 1772/HHVN-TCKT dated October 31, 2023

Report No. 404/BC-NDD dated August 15, 2024 on H1/2024 financial
supervision

As of now:

09 out of 12 recommendations have been completed, and

03 out of 12 arein progress, specificaly:

i. Requesting Vietnam Shipping JSC (Vosco) to finalize settlement with
Bach Dang Shipbuilding Co., Ltd. and Nam Trieu Shipbuilding Co., Ltd.
regarding the construction of Lucky Star, Blue Star, and Vosco Sunrise.

ii. Addressing long-standing debts related to the Vinashin Atlantic vessel
and the Green Sea vessel’s repair costs.

lii. Resolving issues at Hai Phong and Saigon Ports concerning land use
plans and proper land rental calculation in accordance with the Law on Tax
Administration (temporary booking of VND 40.2 hillion at Saigon Port and
VND 19.7 billion at Hai Phong Port remains unresol ved).

Government Inspectorate:

Per Official Letter No. 2881/UBQLV-CNHT dated December 12, 2024,
regarding Conclusion No. 419/KL-TTCP on the restructuring of SOEs and land
repurposing from business use to residential development during 2011-2021 at
the Ministry of Transport:

VIMC has implemented 4/5 items, and

1/5 is ongoing: finalization of equitization at Hai Phong Port LLC and
Saigon Port LLC.
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1/2 additional recommendations is ongoing: instructing Saigon Port to
collect VND 4,515 million in late payment penalties from Trung Thuy Lancaster
Co., Ltd. related to project transfer at 430 Nguyen Tat Thanh, District 4, HCMC.

Following Official Letter No. 1420/TTr-P5 dated November 29, 2023,
from the Ministry of Transport on the implementation of Concluson No.
1566/KL-TTCP dated September 17, 2018, concerning the equitization of Quy
Nhon Port:

VIMC has completed 5/6 recommendations, and

1 recommendation is still being implemented.

The Board of Supervisors (BOS) will continue monitoring and urging the
completion of pending recommendations and will report the status to
shareholders at the upcoming Annual General M eeting.

VII. Assessment of Coordination among the Board of Directors, the
Chief Executive Officer, and the Supervisory Board

The Supervisory Board maintained close coordination with the Board of
Directors, the CEO, and the Executive Management Team in performing its
assigned functions and duties. The Board of Directors and the CEO created
favorable conditions for the Supervisory Board to carry out its responsibilities
effectively. The Supervisory Board was provided with complete and timely
information and documents related to the Corporation’s operations, and was
invited to attend all meetings of the Board of Directors as well as other relevant
meetings.

Most of the Supervisory Board’s timely comments and recommendations
regarding the operations of the Board of Directors, the CEO, and the Executive
Management Team were acknowledged and reflected promptly during the
formulation and implementation of resolutions and decisions.

The effective coordination among the Board of Directors, the CEO, and
the Supervisory Board contributed significantly to improving the efficiency of
capital and asset utilization, as well as enhancing the effectiveness of inspection,
supervision, and risk management within the Corporation.

VIII. Report on Transactions Related to Members of the Board of
Directors, the CEO, and Other Executives

In 2024, the Corporation did not enter into any contracts or transactions
involving members of the Board of Directors, the CEO, or other key executives.
PART IlI. PROPOSALS AND RECOMMENDATIONS FROM THE
SUPERVISORY BOARD

To successfully fulfill the tasks in 2025 and enhance the operational
efficiency of the Corporation, the Board of Supervisors would like to submit the
following proposals and recommendations:

Equitization Settlement Work:
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We respectfully request the Ministry of Finance to promptly approve the
financia settlement at the time of the official transition to a joint-stock company
for the Parent Company — Vietnam Maritime Corporation (VIMC). This will
serve as the basis for the handover between the state-owned enterprise and the
joint-stock company.

Financial Oversight & Business Performance Improvement:

The VIMC Board of Directors (BOD) should continue implementing strict
financia control measures and improve the operational efficiency of subsidiaries
showing signs of financial instability.

Divestment should be carried out for planned enterprises at the most
optimal time to maximize efficiency.

Many VIMC subsidiaries have large receivables and significant deductible
VAT balances, leading to capital being tied up and reduced fund utilization
efficiency. The BOD should take strong measures to recover debts and
implement solutions to reduce deductible VAT amounts.

Compliance with Audit & Inspection Recommendations:

The VIMC BOD and Executive Board should continue implementing and
reporting on the progress of recommendations made by the State Audit,
Government Inspectorate, Ministry of Finance Inspectorate, and conclusions
from other authorized state agencies.

The above is the 2024 Supervisory Activity Report of the Board of
Supervisors, submitted to the 2025 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders for
review and approval.

Recipients: ON BEHALF OF THE SUPERVISORY BOARD
- As above; HEAD-QF-FHE SUPERVISORY BOARD
-VIMC BOD; s CaN /

- Members of the Supervi
Board (for implementation);
- Save: Office of the BOS, Of
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VIETNAM MARITIME SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM
CORPORATION - JSC I ndependence - Freedom — Happiness

No: 286 /BC-bHDCD Ha Noi 8th July,/2025

SELF-ASSESSMENT REPORT
ON THE PERFORMANCE OF DUTIESBY THE SUPERVISOR AND
THE SUPERVISORY BOARD IN 2024, ORIENTATION FOR ACTIVITIES
IN 2025

To: 2025 Annua General Meeting of Shareholders
Vietnam National Shipping Lines—JSC (VIMC)

Pursuant to:

« Law on Enterprises No. 59/2020/QH14 dated June 17, 2020;

« Law on Securities No. 54/2019/QH14 dated November 26, 2019; Law No.
56/2024/QH15 dated November 29, 2024;

« Decree No. 155/2020/ND-CP dated December 31, 2020 of the Government
detailing the implementation of several articles of the Law on Securities,

« Circular No. 116/2020/TT-BTC dated December 31, 2020 of the Ministry of
Finance guiding severa regulations on corporate governance applicable to
public companies under Decree No. 155/2020/ND-CP;

« The Charter of Vietnam Maritime Corporation — JSC,;

. Theinternal corporate governance regulations,

. The operating regulations of the Supervisory Board of Vietham Maritime
Corporation — JSC,;

« Resolution No. 229/NQ-DHDCD dated April 16, 2024 of the 2024 Annual
General Meseting of Shareholders of VIMC;

The Supervisory Board (“SB”) of Vietnam Maritime Corporation — JSC hereby
reports to the General Meeting of Shareholders on the activities of the Supervisory
Board in 2024 and directions for activitiesin 2025, as follows:

1. Activities of the Supervisory Board in 2024

1.1. Composition of the Supervisory Board
The Supervisory Board for the 2020-2025 term consists of 03 members:

1. Mr. Luong Dinh Minh — Head of the Supervisory Board

2. Mr. Pham Cao Nhue — Member of the Supervisory Board

3. Ms. Phan Thi Nhi Ha — Member of the Supervisory Board
Since the beginning of the term, there have been no personnel changesin the
Supervisory Board.



1.2. Performance of duties in 2024
As assigned by the General Meeting of Shareholders, the Supervisory Board has
carried out monitoring of the activities of the Board of Directors (BOD), the
Executive Board, and reviewed the production and business activities of VIMC.
During its inspections and supervision, the Supervisory Board maintained honesty,
prudence, professional ethics, and did not obstruct business operations of VIMC or
its subsidiaries.
« In 2024, the Supervisory Board held 09 meetings, with at least one meeting per
quarter as required by the Company Charter. The SB also regularly exchanged and
assessed issues related to the management and operations of VIMC to support its
control responsibilities.
o Monitored the implementation of VIMC’s 2024 business and service plan
targets through reports and regular monthly, quarterly, and annual meetings with
the Executive Board.
« Supervised compliance with the 2024 General Meeting’s Resolutions, the
VIMC Charter, State laws, internal regulations, resolutions, and decisions of the
BOD and Executive Board.
. Prepared reports as requested by the mgor shareholder — the State Capital
Management Committee (CMSC), such as opinions on periodic reports from the
State capital representative at VIMC, comments on financial supervision reports
for 2023 and the first half of 2024.
. Supervised financial indicators, preservation and development of capital;
investment projects and their efficiency; implementation of financial regimes,
profit distribution, and use of funds.
. Supervised the implementation of directives/recommendations from the Owner
(CMSC), and from inspection, audit, tax authorities, and other competent agencies,
including conclusons from the Ministry of Finance Inspectorate and the
Government I nspectorate.
« Oversaw implementation progress of the VIMC Restructuring Scheme for
20212025, Development Strategy to 2030 with vision to 2035, and the 5-year
Production & Investment Plan 2021-2025, ensuring compliance with approved
timelines.
- Based on supervision and inspection, the SB provided recommendations to the
BOD and Executive Board to enhance control, minimize risks, ensure legal and
internal compliance, and improve operational effectiveness for VIMC and certain
subsidiaries (as per the 2024 AGM -approved plan).
« Contributed to revising, supplementing, and reviewing the internal governance
documentation system of VIMC.
« Through reviewing proposals from the Executive Board, BOD resolutions, and
internal regulations, and attending BOD meetings and working sessions between
the Executive Board and subsidiaries, the SB offered opinions to support BOD and
management decision-making.
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« Additionally, the SB appraised the 2023 audited financial statements and the
unaudited financial statements for the first half of 2024; monitored asset inventory
in compliance with the Accounting Law (noting that the Inventory Committee has
yet to complete the reporting and processing of results as of 0:00 January 1, 2024);
appraised the salary fund plans for management and staff at the Parent Company;
inspected business performance, cost and debt management in certain dependent
units.

- mplete the reporting and processing of results as of 0:00 January 1, 2024);
appraised the salary fund plans for management and staff at the Parent Company;
inspected business performance, cost and debt management in certain dependent
units.

In 2024, the SB participated in 12 audit-supervision missions: 5 led by the SB

and 7 with SB members participating in Executive Board-led missions. SB-led
teams included collaboration with professional departments from VIMC’s Office,
improving both the quality and depth of audits. Observations and
recommendations helped audited units make timely business decisions.
Specificaly:
(1) 5 missions led by the SB (approved by the 2024 AGM): VIMADECO, VIMC
Logistics JSC, Cam Ranh Port JSC, Da Nang Port JSC, Bien Dong Shipping LLC,
and indirect supervision of Vietnam Container Operation Co., Ltd.
(2) 7 joint missions with the Executive Board per Official Letter No. 304/HHVN-
KTNB dated March 11, 2024, at: Saigon Port, Hai Phong Port, Can Tho Port, Nam
Can Port, Hau Giang Maritime Services, CPI, and VOSA.

The Supervisory Board has strictly followed its 2024 work plan approved by
the General Meeting, in accordance with the resolutions and actual conditions, and
exercised its rights and responsibilities under the Enterprise Law and VIMC
Charter. It maintained strong coordination with the BOD, CEO, and Executive
Board, fulfilling all required supervison reports. SB members acted with
independence, prudence, and commitment to the interests of shareholders and
VIMC.

1.3. Evaluation of SB members' performance
. All members performed with high responsibility, demonstrated professiond
capacity, conducted independent and objective inspections, and reported on the
truthfulness and compliance of financial statements and business activities.
. Regularly exchanged and provided candid feedback to the BOD and
Executive Board when detecting errors or risks.
. Complied with al legal regulations, the Charter, and SB operating
regulations.
. Carried out all assigned tasks serioudly, objectively, and effectively through
teamwork and independent work.
. Actively contributed valuable input to the BOD/Executive Board,

successfully completing 2024 assignments.
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1.4. Salaries, remuneration, and operating expenses of the SB in 2024
Salaries and remuneration for SB members were paid in accordance with company
policy and in compliance with the Company Charter and Enterprise Law No.
59/2020/QH14. In 2024, al three SB members worked full-time, thus no
remuneration was incurred. Total salary paid to SB members was VND 2,854
million.
SB operating expenses were in accordance with the internal spending regulations
of VIMC.
2. ORIENTATIONS FOR ACTIVITIESIN 2025

In accordance with the rights and responsibilities of the Supervisory Board as
stipulated in the Law on Enterprises, the Charter of VIMC, and the tasks assigned
by the 2025 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders, the Supervisory Board has
developed a detailed activity plan for 2025 to be submitted to the General Meeting
for approval. The plan focuses on the following key supervisory and inspection
activities:
. Prepare a report evaluating the 2020-2025 term and set out directions for the
2025-2030 term.
. Monitor the implementation of 2025 business and production targets
assigned by the General Meeting of Shareholders.
. Supervise the phased implementation of VIMC’s Restructuring Plan for the
2021-2025 period; the Development Strategy for 2021-2030 with a vision to
2035; and the 5-year Business and Investment Plan for 2021-2025, ensuring
adherence to approved timelines and objectives.

. Examine and evaluate VIMC’s quarterly, semi-annual, and annual financial
statements for 2025.
. Monitor financia indicators; the preservation and development of capital;

the execution and efficiency of investment projects, and the implementation of
financia policies, profit distribution, and use of funds.

. Inspect compliance with State laws, regimes, and policies. Review the
progress in developing internal corporate regulations, policies, and procedures.

. Supervise the legality, rationality, transparency, and prudence of the Board
of Directors and the CEO in exercising ownership rights and managing business
operations.

. Work with capital representatives at companies where VIMC holds stakes
and with the Supervisory Boards of those units to assess business performance,
internal control systems, and supervision practices.

. Monitor compliance with the Charter of VIMC and adherence to State lega
regulations, as well as the directives of the Board of Directors and CEO.

. Evaluate the performance of the Corporation’s internal control system.
Propose recommendations to improve the effectiveness of the interna control
framework.



. Monitor the performance of the Internal Audit Department to strengthen
internal oversight at the Company.

. Participate in inspection and supervision teams of the Supervisory Board.
According to the 2025 plan, ingpections will focus on VIMC’s capital
representatives at the following companies: Vietham Shipping Joint Stock
Company; Vinaship Joint Stock Company; Hai Phong Port Joint Stock Company;
Nghe Tinh Port Joint Stock Company; Quy Nhon Port Joint Stock Company; and
VIMC Lines.

. Collaborate with inspection and supervision teams of the Executive Board
and Internal Audit Department to review business operations at VIMC’s member
companies.

. t VIMC’s member companies.

. Coordinate with relevant authorities and inspection teams to supervise
business management at the Corporation and follow up on the implementation of
conclusions and recommendations from audits, inspections, and other regulatory
bodies.

. Carry out other tasks of the Supervisory Board as prescribed by the current
Law on Enterprises.

. Stay updated on newly issued policies and regulations, and participate in
training courses to enhance professional qualifications.

(Detailed 2025 activity plan attached to thisreport)

This concludes the self-assessment report on the performance of the
Supervisory Board and its members in 2024, along with the proposed orientations
for 2025. The Supervisory Board respectfully submits this report to the General
Meeting of Shareholders for consideration and approval.

Recipients: ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD OF
- As stated above; SUPERVISORY
- Members of the Board of Directors;

- Supervisory Board,
- Archives: Office, BOS Dept.

Luong Dinh Minh
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NoO Content / Task Content / Task Content / Task Content / Content / Task
Task

A Regular Duties
Monitor the implementation of the 2025 business

1 targets assigned by the 2025 General Meeting of VIMC Regular 2025
Sharcholders’ Resolution.
Monitor the implementation of business targets, term-
based plans, and the 5-year plan for 2021-2025.

2 VIMC Regular 2025

3 Attend meetings as required by the Supervisory 2025
Board’s responsibilities.
Prepare and submit periodic reports in accordance

4 with regulations. 2025
Evaluate the performance of the Corporation’s Regular

5 interna control system and make recommendationsto | \/|pmc 2025
enhance its effectiveness.
Supervise the performance of the Internal Audit Regular

6 Department to strengthen oversight at the company. X' '\C/:_C Internal 2025

udit




Examine and monitor the legality, rationality, Regular
honesty, and prudence of the Board of Directors and
the General Director in executing ownership rights BOD, Executive
7 : : ) 2025
and managing business operations. Board
Supervise the management and administration of Regular
business operations by the Board of Directors and BOD. Executive
8 Executive Board of VIMC in accordance with the law | g o v 2025
and VIMC’s Charter.
Monitor financial indicators; preservation and Regular
development of capital; implementation and
9 effectiveness of investment projects; compliance with | VIMC 2025
financial regulations, profit distribution, and use of
funds for 2024 and 2025.
Inspect and supervise the implementation of Regular
10 concl U’Sl ons and regommendatpns maqle by the VIMC 2025
owner’s representative, inspection bodies, and
auditorsat VIMC.
Perform other duties as prescribed in the VIMC Regular
11 Supervisory Board’s Operating Regulations, the VIMC 2025
Charter, and the current Enterprise Law.
B
| Thematic Supervision — Q1 2025
Supervise the inventory of assets and the handling of Participate in direct According to
inventory results as of 00:00 on January 1, 2025. . inventory counting; . g
Head office, . ) the unit’s
1 - Inventory minutes; Report .
VIMC shipping . inventory
on post-inventory ,
. schedule:
handling results.
Appraise the actua salary fund for managers and Approval through the
2 employees at the Parent Company in 2024 and the Head office General Director’s March 2025

planned salary fund for 2025.

proposal; Resolution of
the Board of Directors.




Review and provide feedback on VIMC’s audited

Approval through audited

financial statements for the 2024 fiscal year financial statements, audit A.f ter the Separate : financial
: . . . audited 2024 | statements include the
(including both the separate and consolidated | Parent Company minutes, management : ) o,
3 . . . : financia Corporation’s  Office
financial statements). — Corporation letters, audit contracts, .
and related statementsare | and its  dependent
i issued accounting units.
documentation.
[ First Quarter of 2025
Approval through
financial statements, After the
. , : Parent Company reports from the capital audited 2024
1 Appraise the separate Q1 2025 Financial Statements | _ Corporation and | representative, and reports financial
of VIMC. L U
subsidiaries from the Corporation’s statements are
Supervisory Board at the issued
units.
Inspect the organization and management of business The Board of
operations; evaluate the internal control system; Supervisors shall
assess financial management, financial condition, and o _ conduct inspections or
accounting organization; check compliance with Direct inspection at the collaborate with
2 VIMC"s decisions angl ‘di.r.ectives and the performance Vinaship subsidiaries May 2025 relevant
of duties and responsibilities by VIMC’s capital departments/divisions
representatives at subsidiaries. within VIMC's
: : : management
[ Inspection period: Fiscal year 2024. framework
[
Inspection of the organization and management of Direct inspeptipn a the The , Board of
business operations; assessment of the internal subsidiaries Supervisors - shall
control system; evaluation of financial management, conduct inspections or
financial situation, and organization of accounting collaborate with
3 work; inspection of compliance with decisions and Nghe Tinh Port June2025 | relevant

directives of VIMC and the performance of rights and
obligations of VIMC’s capital representative at the
unit.

Inspection period: Fiscal year 2024.

departments/divisions
within VIMC's
management
framework




Inspection of the organization and management of
business operations; assessment of the internal
control system; evaluation of financial management,
financial situation, and organization of accounting

Direct inspection at the
subsidiaries

The Board of
Supervisors shall
conduct inspections or
collaborate with

4 work; inspection of compliance with decisions and Haiphong Port June 2025 relevant
directives of VIMC and the performance of rights and depar_tments/d|V|§| ons
obligations of VIMC'’s capital representative at the within VIMC's
unit. management
Inspection period: Fiscal year 2024. framework
[11 Third Quarter of 2025

Inspection and evaluation of the Corporation’s

iometon loodogy sten (o Otsvation, e

. ' _ : evaluation based on BOS of VIMC sndl
1 management; access control management; computer | Head office July 2025
o ) records, documents, and perform

network security; management of business software reports

usage; data backup and storage activities, eports.

implementation status of I T-related projects, etc.).

Inspection of the organization and management of

business operations, evauation of financia

management, capital preservation and devel opment; . 2 N
2 | compliance with directives from VIMC. VIMC branchin | Kiém tra tryc ticp taidon | 5,0 5555 | BOSOf VIMCsnall

Haiphong vi perform

Inspection period: Fiscal year 2024 and the first half

of 2025.

Inspection of the organization and management of

business operations; evaluation of financial

management, capital preservation and development;

5 compliance with directives from VIMC. VIMC Directinspectionatthe | . | BOSof VIMC shal

warehousing subsidiaries y perform

Inspection period: Fiscal year 2024 and the first half
of 2025.




Appraisal of VIMC’s 2025 semi-annual financial

Parent Company

Approva through
financial statements,
reports from the capital

After the Q2 2023

4 — Corporation and | representative, and reports | August 2025 | Financial Report was
statements. ol AU )
subsidiaries from the Corporation’s issued
Supervisory Board at the
units.
Inspection of the organization and management of
business operations; assessment of the internal The Board of
control system; evaluation of financial management, Supervisors  shall
financial situation, and organization of accounting conduct inspections or
work; inspection of compliance with VIMC’s Direct inspection at the September collaborate with
5 decisions and directives and the performance of rights | Quy Nhon Port subsidiaries 2005 relevant
and obligations of VIMC’s capital representative at departments/divisions
the unit. within VIMC's
Inspection period: Fiscal year 2024 and the first half management
of 2025. framework
1V Q.IV 2025
Direct inspection at the
Inspection of the organization and management of subsidiaries The  Board of
business operations; assessment of the internal Supervi sors shall
control system; evaluation of financial management, conduct inspections or
financial position, and the organization of accounting collaborate with
1 Vosco October 2025 | relevant

activities; inspection of compliance with VIMC’s
decisions and directives, and the performance of
rights and obligations of VIMC’s capital

Inspection period: Fiscal year 2024 and the first
half of 2025.

departments/divisions
within VIMC's
management
framework




Direct inspection at the
Inspection of the organization and management of subsidiaries
business operations; assessment of the internal

control system; evaluation of financial management,

financial position, and the organization of accounting

The Board of
Supervisorsjoined the

S ; : . - November . .

2 activities; inspection of compliance with VIMC’s VIMC Lines 2025 inspection team  of
decisions and directives, and the performance of VIMC's  Board of
rights and obligations of VIMC’s capital Directors
Inspection period: Fiscal year 2024 and the first
half of 2025.

Approval through
financial statements,
Parent Company reports from the capital November following the issuance

3 Appraisal of VIMC’s 2025 Q3 financial statements. — Corporation and | representative, and reports of the Q3 2025

L U 2025 . )
subsidiaries from the Corporation’s Financial Report
Supervisory Board at the
units.
Review of components of
Evaluation of the effectiveness of the Corporation’s | Parent Company the internal contral December E valuation of the
4 : . system at the Parent internal control
interna control system. — Corporation 2025 , .
Company of the system's operations
Corporation.
Note:

Theinspection timelinein thisplan istentative; the specific schedule will depend on arrangements and
coordination with therelevant departments.




VIETNAM MARITIME SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM
CORPORATION - JSC | ndependence - Freedom — Happiness

No: 287/TTr-bHDBCDb Ha No, 8th July, 2025

SUBMISSION
Approval of the 2024 Audited Financial Statements

To: General Meeting of Shareholders
Vietnam Maritime Corporation - JSC

Pursuant to Law on Enterprises No. 59/2020/QH14 dated 17/6/2020;

Pursuant to Law on Securities No. 54/2019/QH14 dated 26/11/2019;

Pursuant to Decree No. 155/2020/ND-CP dated 31/12/2020, detailing the
implementation of severa articles of the Law on Securities;

Pursuant to Circular No. 116/2020/TT-BTC dated 31/12/2020 of the
Ministry of Finance guiding corporate governance applicable to public companies
under Decree No. 155/2020/ND-CP;

Pursuant to the Charter of Vietnam Maritime Corporation - JSC (“VIMC”);

Pursuant to internal corporate governance regulations of Vietham Maritime
Corporation - JSC,

Pursuant to audited separate and consolidated financia statements by UHY
Auditing and Consulting Co., Ltd.

The Board of Directors of VIMC respectfully submits to the Generd
Meeting of Shareholders for approval of the following contents:

1. Separate Financial Statements 2024

Separate Financial Statements 2024 were audited by UHY Auditing and
Consulting Co., Ltd. The auditor’s opinion is as follows:

“In our opinion, the accompanying separate financial statements present
fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Vietham Maritime
Corporation - JSC as of December 31, 2024, and its financial performance and
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Viethamese Accounting
Sandards, the Vietnamese Enterprise Accounting System, and applicable legal
regulations”.

Summary of key indicators from the 2024 audited separate financial
Statements:

Currency units: VND



A | Balance sheet At 31/12/2024 At 31/12/2023

| | Assets 14.412.914.827.217 | 13.777.616.310.724
Current assets 2.222.671.378.674 | 2.511.356.461.711
Non — current assets 12.190.243.448.543 | 11.266.259.849.013

Il | Equity 14.412.914.827.217 | 13.777.616.310.724

1 | Liabilities 832.935.182.928 | 1.631.485.332.118
Owners’ equity 13.401.492.275.760 | 12.126.130.978.606

B | Income Statement 2024 2023

y | Grossprofit from goods sold and 102.885.206.483 |  87.655.450.723
services rendered

p | Netrevenuefrom goods sold and 393.406.540.554 |  316.318.324.070
services rendered

3 | Accounting profit before tax 1.353.536.982.178 357.283.201.651

4 | Net profit after tax 1.353.536.982.178 |  357.283.201.651
Cash Flow Statement 2024 2023

1 | Net profit before tax 1.353.536.982.178 357.283.201.651

, | Cesh flows from operating 205.778.519.391 2.929.683.033
activities

4 | Cash flowsfrom investing (97.957.522.738) | 392.017.304.702
activities

g | Cesh flowsfrom financing (286.998.125.997) |  (66.812.514.027)
activities

g | Netincrease/(decrease) incashand | 179177 199344y | 329.034.473.708
cash equivalents

; | Cashand cash equivalentsat the 480.875.972.938 |  149.475.735.653
beginning of the year

g | ©a5h and cash equivalents at the 322.930.807.932|  480.875.972.938
end of the year

2. Consolidated Financial Statements 2024
Consolidated Financial Statements 2024 were audited by UHY Auditing and

Consulting Co., Ltd.

The Independent Audit Report states:
“]. Hai Phong Port - a subsidiary of the Corporation




At 31/12/2024, Hai Phong recorded under the item “Tangible fixed assets”
(code 221) on the consolidated balance sheet for the assets related to berths No. 04,
05 and the container yard at Chua Ve Port, with a total original cost of VND 279.7
billion and a net book value of VND 142.14 billion The funding source for the
formation of these assetsisrecorded under the lineitem “Long-term borrowingsand
finance lease liabilities” (Code 338) on the balance sheet, with a corresponding
amount of VND 342.1 billion. These assets are part of the Phase Il Project for
Renovation and Upgrading of Hai Phong Port, which was invested by the Ministry
of Transport, financed through Japanese ODA loans and counterpart funds fromthe
Government of Vietnam.

As required by the Ministry of Finance, Hai Phong Port has temporarily paid
into the State Budget several amounts related to the aforementioned project,
including: depreciation of the assets associated with Berths No. 04, 05 and the
container yard at Chua Ve Port for the period from 2014 to December 31, 2018,
totaling VND 44.8 billion; and provisionally accrued interest expenses totaling VND
149.3 hillion.

In accordance with Resolution No. 71/NQ-CHP dated June 12, 2020 of the
Board of Directors, Hai Phong Port has ceased depreciation and discontinued the
recognition of interest expenses from January 1, 2020 for the assetsrelated to Berths
No. 04, 05 and the container yard at Chua Ve Terminal, pending official approval of
the asset management plan for these assets. At 8/6/2023, Hai Phong Port hasissued
Official Letter No. 1674/CHP-TCKT to the Ministry of Transport, proposing a plan
to continue being assigned the management and operation of Berths No. 04, 05 and
the container yard at Chua Ve Terminal, in accordance with the guidance set out in
the Prime Minister’s Official Dispatch No. 2313/TTg-KTN dated 25/12/201. The
Ministry of Transport issued Official Letter No. 10882/BGTVT-TC dated 28/9/2023
to the Ministry of Finance, providing comments on the draft Decree on the
management, use, and operation of maritime infrastructure assets (intended to
replace Decree No. 43/2018/ND-CP dated 12/3/2018). In this letter, the Ministry of
Transport proposed to include additional provisionsin thetransitional clauses of the
Decree, so that, if the proposal is approved, it would resolve the issue of asset
management by allowing Hai Phong Port to be assigned the management and
operation of Berths No. 4 and 5 at Chua Ve Port (instead of leasing the assets). At
24/12/2024, the Government Office issued Notification No. 569/TB-VPCP on the
conclusion regarding the reception and explanation of comments from Gover nment
members on the draft Decree regulating the management, use, and operation of
inland waterway infrastructure assets. Accordingly, the Deputy Prime Minister
agreed not to include transitional provisions in the Decree regarding maritime
infrastructure assets formed from State capital, and assigned the Ministry of



Transport and the Ministry of Finance to urgently report on the proposed resolution
plan. Upon official approval by the competent authorities of the management and
operation plan for Berths No. 4 and 5, the container yard at Chua Ve Port, and the
equipment package, Hai Phong Port will be responsible for updating the relevant
data initsfinancial statements. At 27/12/2024, pursuant to Resolution No. 168/NQ-
CHP, the Board of Directors of Hai Phong Port approved the policy to resume
depreciation for Berths No. 04, 05 and the container yard at Chua Ve Terminal, in
accordance with the proposal of the General Director presented in Report No.
4882/CHP-TCKT dated 25/12/2024.

As of the issuance date of this audit report, no decision has been made by the
competent state authority regarding the form of management for Berths No. 04, 05
and the container yard at Chua Ve Terminal of Hai Phong Port Joint Stock Company.

In addition, the Ministry of Finance has requested a review of the equitization
process of Hai Phong Port, given that the finalization dossier for the valuation of
Sate capital at the time of equitization has not yet been approved by the competent
authorities. Upon official approval by the regulatory bodies of the debt financing
and repayment plan, Hai Phong Port will make the necessary adjustments (if any) to
itsfinancial statements.”

2. Bien Dong Shipping One Member Limited Liability Company - a subsidiary

of the Corporation

- Regarding the discrepancy in loan principal balances and outstanding
borrowings payable to Shipbuilding Industry One Member Limited Liability
Company

As disclosed in Notes 20 and 24 to the Consolidated Financial Statements
according to the independent confirmation received from Shipbuilding Industry One
Member Limited Liability Company ("VFC"), the outstanding loan principal and
interest receivable from Bien Dong Shipping One Member Limited Liability
Company ("Bien Dong") related to the 1,730 TEU Container Vessel V22 Project
exceeded the figures recorded in Bien Dong’s accounting books at 01/01/2024 by
USD 28,667,314.77 and USD 59,208,393.37, respectively; and at 31/12/2024 by
USD 28,667,314.77 and USD 63,541,824.47, respectively. The discrepancy is
attributable to Bien Dong having transferred the principal and interest payable to
VFC to Bach Dang Shipbuilding One Member Limited Liability Company (*Bach
Dang") pursuant to the handover minutes signed with Bach Dang at 05/08/2015.
Based on the audit procedures performed, we were unable to obtain sufficient and
appropriate audit evidence regarding the beginning balances, movements during the
year, and ending balances of these borrowings and related interest expenses.



Accordingly, we are unable to determine whether any adjustments might be
necessary to these items or the potential impact, if any, on the accompanying
consolidated financial statements (refer to Note 20).

- Regarding the recognition of the discrepancy between the principal and
interest payable to credit institutions and the amount of debt acknowledged by the
Company with Vietnam Debt and Asset Trading Corporation (DATC)

Prior to 2017, Bien Dong applied the guidance under Official Letter No.
751/BTC-TCDN dated 17/9/2015 issued by the Ministry of Finance (“Official Letter
7517) regarding the accounting treatment of the difference between the book value
of debts and the amount of debt acknowledged with the Vietham Debt and Asset
Trading Corporation (DATC). Accordingly, the difference between the amount of
debt recognized by Bien Dong with DATC and the principal and interest payable to
credit institutions was recorded as an increase in the Sate capital at Bien Dong.

From 2018 to 2021, Bien Dong adopted the applicable provisions of the
Vietnamese Enterprise Accounting Regime. Accordingly, the difference between the
amount of debt acknowledged by Bien Dong with DATC and the principal and
interest payable to credit institutions was recognized in the income statement for the
year.

From 2022 to 2023, Bien Dong applied the guidance under Circular No.
46/2021/TT-BTC dated 23/6/2021, Official Letter No. 751/BTC-TCDN dated
17/9/2015, Official Letter No. 5883/BTC-TCDN dated 08/5/2017, and Official Letter
No. 1440/BTC-TCDN dated 08/02/2021 issued by the Ministry of Finance.
Accordingly, the difference between the amount of debt acknowledged by the
Company with the Vietnam Debt and Asset Trading Corporation (DATC) and the
principal and interest payable to credit institutions was recognized as an increasein
the State capital at Bien Dong.

If Bien Dong had consistently applied the provisions of the Vietnamese
Enterprise Accounting Regime in recognizing these items, the "Asset Revaluation
Reserve" (Code 416) on the consolidated balance sheet as at 01/01/2024 would have
decreased by VND 2,166.24 billion, and the "Undistributed Post-Tax Profit" (Code
421) would have increased by the corresponding amount. Smilarly, as at December
31, 2024, the" Asset Reval uation Reserve' (Code 416) would have decreased by VND
2,166.24 billion, and the "Undistributed Post-Tax Profit" (Code 421) would have
increased accordingly.”

Regarding the qualified opinion related to the accounting treatment at Hai
Phong Port Joint Stock Company: this matter arises from objective circumstances,
as the handling plan for the assets of Berths No. 4 and 5 and the container yard at
Chua Ve Port has not yet been approved by the competent authorities. Thisissue



has been disclosed in the Company's financial statements since its conversion to
ajoint stock company (from 01/07/2014).

Regarding the qualified opinion related to the accounting treatment at Bien
Dong Shipping One Member Limited Liability Company: the auditor did not
express a qualified opinion on Bien Dong's accounting records. The qualification
relates solely to theinconsi stency in accounting policy application across different
years during the equitization process and the implementation of the restructuring
plan for conversion into ajoint stock company. The current accounting practices
of Bien Dong remain compliant with the relevant legal regulations.

A summary of selected indicators from the audited consolidated financial

statements for the year 2024 is as follows:

Currency units; VND

A | Balance sheet At 31/12/2024 At 31/12/2023

| | Assets 30.424.970.632.989 | 27.535.428.729.284
Current assets 13.250.276.250.627 | 11.963.612.942.094
Non — current assets 17.174.694.382.362 | 15.571.815.787.190

Il | Equity 30.424.970.632.989 | 27.535.428.729.284

1 | Liabilities 13.008.273.019.746 | 12.169.113.677.699
Owners’ equity 17.416.697.613.243 | 15.366.315.051.585

B | Income Statement 2024 2023

y | Crossprofitfromgoodssoldand |, o1 405 501188 | 2.403.014.876.794
services rendered

o | Shareof profitorlossof associates | o0 151883 | 153835930153
and joint ventures

3 | Netrevenuefromgoodssoldand | 796 106 018,078 | 1.780.363.893.364
services rendered
Accounting profit before tax 3.152.648.526.287 | 2.126.014.151.227

5 | Net profit after tax 2.629.828.754.343 | 1.701.819.140.313

C | Cash Flow Statement 2024 2023

1 | Net profit before tax 3.152.648.526.287 | 2.126.014.151.227

5 | Cashflows from operating 2.798.128.629.518 | 2.066.041.757.855
activities

4 | Cnflowsfrominvesting (2.206.074.606.952) | (1.244.736.019.469)
activities

5 | Cashflowsfromfinancing (124.661.281.820) | (417.919.181.174)
activities




g | Netincrease/(decrease) in cash and 467.392.740.747 403.386.557.212
cash equivalents

7 | Cashand casnh equivalents at the 2771448217598 | 2.384.234.648.554
beginning of the year

g | Cashandcashequivalentsatthe | 5505 615 146283 | 2.771.448.217.598
end of the year

The Board of Directors proposes that the General Meeting of Shareholders
in 2025 approve the Standalone Financial Statements and the Consolidated
Financia Statements for the year 2024 that have been audited.

Recipients: ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD OF
- As stated above; REGKORS CHAIRMAN

- Members of the Board of Directors, O\

- Supervisory Board;

- Archives: Office, Finance &
Accounting Dept.
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STATEMENT OF THE BOARD OF GENERAL DIRECTORS

The Board of General Directors of Vietnam Maritime Comporation — Jeint Stock Company (heremafter
referred o0 as “the Corporation™) prescats this report together with [ts Consolidated Financial Statements
fior the fiscal year ended as 3131 December 2024,

BOARD OF MANAGEMENT, BOARD OF GENERAL DIRECTORS AND BOARD OF
SUPERVISORS

Members of the Boerd of Management, the Board of General Directors and the Board of Supervisors
of the Corporation who held office during the fiscal year ended 31 December 2024 and up to the
date of this report ane as follows:

Board of Management

Mr. Le Anh Son Chairman

Mr. Nguyen Canh Tioh Membar

Mr. Do Tien Duc Member

Mir. Mguyen Dich Chung Member

Mr. Da Hung Duong Member

Board of General Directors

Mr. Mguyen Canh Tinh General Directn

Mr. Pham Anh “[uan Deputy General Dvirector

Mr. Le Quang Trung Deputy Geweral Director

Mr. Nguyen Ngoe Anh Deputy General Director
Legal Hepresentativi

The legal representative of the Corporation for the fiscal year ended 31 December 2024 and to the
date of this report is Me. Nguyen Canh Tink - Genesal Uirecter.

Board of Supervisors

Mr. Luong Dinh Minl Chief Supervisor

Mz, Phan Thi Nhi Ha Member

Mr. Phem Cao Nhue Member

Chief Accountant

Mr. Le Duy Duong Head of Finance and Aceounting Department
ATUDITORS

The suditers of UHY Auditing and Consulting Company Limited kave audited the Consolidated
Financial Statements of the Corporation for the fiscal year ended 31 December 20124,

EVENTS AFTER THE BALANCE SHEET DATE
The Board of Genera! Directors confirms that, there have been no significant events occurring after

the balance sheet dete which would require adjustments to or disclosures 10 bx made in the
Consolidated Financial Statements.



i

'&1':-—:'
'__.-"'
€

£ 3 X
if i_-,'lu"-'ﬂ'HH [¥]

VIETNAM MARITIME CORPORATION = 1SC
No. | Dao Duy Anh, Phueng Mal Ward, Dong Lia District, Hanoi

STATEMENT OF THE BOARD OF GENERAL DIRECTORS (CONT"D)

THE BOARD OF GENERAL DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY

The Board of General Dircctors of the Corporation s responsible for prepering the annual
consalidated finencia! siztements that give a true and fir view of the consolidated financial position
as of 31 December 2024, consolidated results of operstions and consclidated cash flows of the
Corporation for the vear ended 31 December 2024. In preparing these consolidated financial
statements, the Board of General Directors s required fo:

s Design and implement an effective internal control svstem to mitigate the risk of material
misstatement duc to fraud or errors in the preparation of the consolidated financial statements;

s Comply with Vietnamese accounting stendards, the Vietmnamsse accounting system for
enterprises and the relevant statulory requirernents applicable to financial reporting;

s Select suitable accounting policies and apply them consistently;
Make judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;
Stato whether applicable accounting principles have been followed, subject to any material
departures disclosed and explained in the consolidated financial statements;

» Prepare the consolidated finenciel statements on a going concern basis unless it is inappropriate
to presume that the Carparation will continue (s operation.

The Board of General Directors is responsible for ensuring that proper accounting records are kept,
which discloses, with reasonable accuracy at any time, the financial position of the Corporation and
to ensure thit the consolidated finencial statements comply with Vietnamese accounting, standards,
the Vietnamese Corporate sccounting system and the relevant statutory requirements. It is also
responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Corporation and hence for taking reasoneble sieps for
the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregulantizs.

The Board of General Directors confirms that the Corporation has complied with the above
requirements in preparing these consolidated fnancial statements,

APPROVAL OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Board of General Direciors has approved the atisched Consolidated Financial Stztements. These
statemeents provide ® true end fair view, in all materiol respects, of the consolidated fnuncial
position of the Corporation as at 31 December 2024, as well as its consolidated income statement
and its consolidated cash flow for the fiscal year ended as at 3] December 2024, in accordance with

Vietnamese Accounting Standards, the Viemamess Corporate Accounting System and related legal
regulations on the preparation and presentation of the Consolidated Financial Statements.

OTHER COMMITMENTS

The Boerd of General Directors commits that the Company has fully complied with its regulatory
disclosure obligations as stipulated in Circular No. 862020TT-BTC dated 16 November 2020
issucd by the Ministry of Finance on information disclosure in the securities market; Decrec Na.
1552000WND-CP dated 31 December 2070 issuwed by the Government and Circular Na.
1162020/ TT-BTC dated 31 December 2020 issued by the Ministry of Finance, which provide
auidelines on corporate governance applied to public companics| b—
Fartd, on behalf of Board of General Directors,
A
NG n'v._':."i

|3' HANG HAl - -
=T W e}
. i)

WYy ViEY
e B &
* -iclx_,\__' s A
¥o o i [Csnh Tinh
= Direetor

Hanoi, 03 March 2023

= AT



Uw AUDITING AND CONSULTING COMPAMNY LIMITED

No: 1462025/ UHY- BCKT

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REFORT
O the Consolidated Fimancical Statements of Vietmam Maritime Corporation - Jont Stock Company
For the fiscal year ended as ot 31 December 2024

To:  Shareholders, Board of General Directors and Board of Management
YVietnam Maritime Corporation — Joint Stock Company

We have sudited the scoompanying Consolidated Financial Statements of Vietnam Maritime
Corperation — Joint Stoek Company (hersinafter referred to as “the Corporation™) as prepared on 0.
Mlarch 2025 and set out an page 10 m 63, which eamprise the Consolideted Belance sheet a5 at 31
December 2024, the Consclidated Income Statement, the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement {or the
fiscal year then ended and the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

The Board. of General Directors® responsibility

The Board of General Directors of the Corporation is responsible for the preparation and fmir
presentation of the Copsolidated Financial Stmtements in sccordance with the Vietnamess
Accounting Standards, Vicmamese Corpomte Accounting Sysiem and related lepal repulations on
the preparation ond presentation of Conselidated Financial Stetements and for such internal control
ac the Board of General Directors determines necessary to ensure fhal the Consolidated Financial
Statements are free from material misstaternents, whether due to fraud or errer.

Auditers® responsibility

(ur responsibility is 10 express an opinion oo these Consolidated Finaneial Statements based on our
audit. We conducted our sudit in sccordance with Vistnamese Standards on Auditing, Thase
standards require that we comply with cthical requirements snd plan and pecform the audit fo obtam
reasonable assurance about whether the consolideted financial stalements are free [fom material
misstatement.

An audit invelves performing procedures to ohtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures
i1 the Consolidated Financial Statements, The selected procedures depend on the anditor's judgment,
including the wssessment of the risks of material misstsment of the Consolidated Financial
Statemerss, whether due to fraud or error. When sesessing these risks, the auditor considers the
Coperation”s internal control relevart 1o the true and fair preparation ond falr presentation of the
Consolidated Financial Statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate for the
aclusl sihiatien, but not for the purpoze of expressing an opinion on the effectivencss of the
Coporation's iremnal eontrol, The audit also includes evaluating the sppropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the Board of General
Directors, &s well as eveluating the overal| presentation of the Consolidared Financial Statements.

We believe that the gudit evidence we have obtained is sufficlent and approgriate to provide a basis
for our qualifisd opinion.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REFORT (CONT™D)

Basis for Qualified Opinion

I At Part of Hai Phang Jeint Stock Company — A subsidiary of the Corporarion (“Hai
Pirong Pon™)

As of 31 Decemher 2024, Hai Phong Port recognized assets related to Berths Ne, 04 and No. 05 and
the Chua Ve Port containar yard under the item "Tengible Fixed Assets™ (code 221) on the
Consolidated Balance Shest. These assets had a total hisworical cost of VND 279.7 billion and a ned
carrving amount ¢f VIND 14214 billion. The sources of funding for these asscts are rezorded under
"Long-term Borrowings and Finance Lease Liabilities” (code 338) on the Consolidated Balance
Sheet, with a corresponding value of VNI 342.1 hillion. These essets beleng te Phase 11 of the Hai
Phong Port Renovation and Upgrading Projeet, which was invested by Ministry of Transpon using
Jupanese ODA laans and the Government's counterpart funding,

At the requast of the Ministry of Finance, Hai Phong Port has temporarily remitted certiin amounts
related 1o the aforarentioned project into the State Budgel, these includ= Depreciation of asscts
related to Berthe MNo. 04 and Mo, 05 and the Chua Ve Port container yard for the period from 2014 1o
3] December 2018, totaling VND 44.8 billion, provisionally acerued interest expenses on loans
arnounting to VND 149.3 hillion.

In accordance with Resolution No. 71/NGQ-CHP dated 12 June 2020 of the Boerd of Directors, Hai
Phong Port has suspended depreciation and ccascd recognizing interest expenses from 1 Januery
2020 for assets related to Berths No. 04 and No. 015 and the Chea Ve Port container yard, pending
official approval of the mensgement plan for these assets,

On 8 June 2023, the Company issued Document No. 1674/CHP-TCKT to the Mimisiry of Transport,
proposing the continued assignment of Hal Phong Port to manage and operate Berths o, (4 and
Mo. 05 and the Chus Ve Port container yard, in line with the provisions of Document Ne. 2313/TTg-
"KTN dated 25 December 2013 issued by the Prime Minister.

On 28 Seprember 2023, the Ministry of Transport issued Document Mo, 10882/BGTVT-TC o the
Ministry of Finance for consultztion on the drefl Decree reguleting the menagement. use, and
exploitation of maritime infrastructure assets (intended to replace Decree No. 43/2012/NB-CP dated
12 March 2018). In this document, the Ministry of Transport propased addng trensitional provisions
to the Deeree to ensure that, if the proposal is approved, it would establish a menagement Framework
for these nssets, meaning that Berthe No.4 and Becths No.5 a1 Chua Ve Part weuld be remsferred to
Hai Phong Pont for managenent and operation (not far lease).

O 24 Decanber 2024, the Covernment Office issued Notification No. S6%TB-VPCP regarding the
comelusions om fesdback and explarations from Government Members conceming the Decree on the
management, use, end exploitation of (nlend waterway infrastructure assets. Accordingly, the
Deputy Prime Minister agreed that the Decree should not include provisions for transitional
hendling of maritime infrastructure assets formed from state capital end assigned the Ministry of
"Transport and the Ministry of Finance to urgently report on a handling plan.

Upon official approval from the relevant authorities regarding the management and operation plan
fiwr Berths No.4 and Berths No.5, the Chus Ve Pori contziner yard, and the equipment package, Hai
Fhong Port will be responsible for updating the financial report data accordmgly.

On 27 December 2024, pursumnt to Besolution No. 168/NQ-CHP, the Boand of Mimagement of Hai
Phong Port approvad the resumption of depreciation for Berths No-4 and Berths NoJ5, and the Chua
Ve Port container vard, as proposed by (he Genersl Director of Hai Thong Fort in Report No.
4882/CHP-TCKT dated 25 Diecenber 2024,
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INDEPENDENT ALDTTORS REPORT (CUNT L)
Rusis for- (Jualified Opinion (Cont'd)

Az of the issuance date of this audit report, there has been no decision from the state management
authorities regarding the management framework for Berths No.4 and Berths No.5 and the Choe Ve
Part contziner yard of Hai Phong Port. Therefore, we do not have sufficient besis 1o detormine the
costs related to the use of Berths Mo. (4, 05, and the container yard at Chua Ve Port of Hai Phong
Port from 01 January 2020 to 31 December 2024.

2. Additicnally, the Ministry of Finence alsc requested to a re-examination of the equitization of Hai
Phong Port (given that the final sectlement documents of the vajue of State capital at the time of
equitization of the Company have not been approved by the relevant authorities). When thene is the
official approval of the eguitizstion scitlement of the competent authonty about loans and repayment
plans, the Firancial Statements of Hai Phong Port will be adjust=d (if applicable).

We have nol been able to obtaint the necessary documents to assess the impact of all the sbove
issues on the Corporation's eonsolidated finencial statemnents (attached)

2 At Bien Dong Shipping Company Limited— A subsidiary of tie Corporation{Bien Dong)

Differences between the loan principal balance and the foan pavable 1o Viemam Shipbuilding
Finance Company Linmited(¥FFC)

Aceording to the independent confirmetion letter received from VFC, the recorded cutstanding Joan
principal and interest receivable from Bien Dong Shipping One-Membee Limited Lizbility Company
(“Eien Dong™) related to the 1730 TEU V22 Container Ship Project are higher than the emcunts
recarded in Bizn Dong’s books. As of 1 January 2024, these amounts were USD 28,667.314.77 end
IS0 56,208,393.37, respectively, and as of 31 December 2024, they were USD 28,657,314.77 &nd
USD £3,541 824 47, respectively.

The discrepenzy arises because Bien Dong transferred the principal dett and accrued loan mierest
payable to VFC ta Bach Dang Shiphuilding One-Member Limited Lizbility Company (Hach Dang)
according to the bandover minutes sigred on 5 Auguat 2015, with Bach Dang.

Through the audit procedures performed, we were unable to obtein sufficient and approprizte avdil
eviderce regarding the opening balance, transactions incurred during the period, and the closing
balance of these loan lishilities and interest expenses payable, Theretore, we are unable to detcrmine
whether any adjusmments are necessary for thess figures and the potential impact, if any, on the
accompany ing consalidated fmaneial statements {refer to Motes No. 20 and No. 24).

The recognition of differences between the princimal debt end inferest payable 1o credit instiutions
and the debr amows the Company essumed from Fiztnam Debr and Asset Trading Corporation
(DATC)

Befare 20117, Pien Dong applied the guidance from Official Letter No, 731/BTC-TCDN daled 17
September 2015, issued by the Ministry of Finane2 {Official Latter 751) regarding the accounting
treatment of the difference hetween the bock value of debt and the assumed debt value with DATC.
Ascordingly, the difference between the debt amount assumed from DATC and the principal debi
and intercst payable to credit institutions was recorded as an increase in the Stele 's equity in Bien
Duong,

il




INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT (CONT'D)

Basis for Qualified Opinion (Cont'd)

From 2018 to 2021, Bien Dong wansitivned to epplyun the regulations of the Viememese Corporcte
Accounting System, under which the difference between the amount owed to DATC and the
principal and interest payable to cradil institutions was recarded in the Income Statement for the

year.

From 2022 to 2023, Bien Dong applied the gridance set out in Cireular Mo, 46/2021TT-BTC datad
23 Juma 2021, Official Dispaich No. 73 1L/BTC-TCDI dated 17 Seprember 17 2015, Official Letter
No 5883BTC-TCON deted 8§ May 2017, and Official Letter No, [44VBTC-TCDN dated 8
February 2021, issued by the Ministry of Finance. Accordingly, the difference between the amount
owed to DATC and the principal and interest payable 10 credit institutions wos recorded as an
increase in the value of the Statz 's equity in Bien Dong.

If Bien Dong consistently spplies the regnlatons of the Vietnamese Corporate Accounting Syetem
in recerding these amounts, then in the Consolidated Talancs Sheet as at 1 January 2024, the item
“Differences upon asset revaluation™ (Code 416) decreases while the item “Undistributed eamings™
(Code 421) increases by VND 2,104.86 billion, As & 31 December 2024, the item “Diffarences
upon ssset revaluation” (Code 416) decreases and the llem “Undistributed sarmings” (Code 421)
increases by WND 2, 166.26 billion accordingly,

Qualified Opinion

[n our opinion. excent for the effects of the matters deseribed in the Besis for Qualified Opinion
paragraph, the Consolidatzd Financial Statements give & trus and fair view, in all material respects,
of the consolidated financial position of Vietmam Mantime Corporation — Jomt Siock Company as o
1] December 2024, its consclidated opemting results and its cash flows for the year then ended in
sccordance with the Viemamese Accounting Swundards, Viemamese Corporate Accourting System
and the related legal repulations on the preparation end presentstion of Cousolidated Financial
Soaferments.

Emphasis of Marters
We draw attention to the following matters disclosed in the Consolidated Financia® Statements:

- In Noie L& — Corporation stncre: The financial statements of Quy Mhon Port Jeint Stock
Company, a suhsidiary of the Corporation, have been consolideted into the Comporetion’s
consolidated finaneial statements. The eonsolidated financial stetements of the Corporation
reflect the investment value in this subsidiary as YIND 415.46 bllion. This is the amount the
Corporation has reimbursed to Hop Thach Isvestment and Mineral Joint Stock Company
(“Hop Thanh™) in sccordance with the terms of the share ownership transfer agraement.

As of 31 December 2074, the Corporstion ond Hop Thanh are still in the process of
discussions and evaluations regarding the legal investment bencfits of Hop Thanh during their
participation in Quy Nhon Port Joint Stock Company.

- InNote 2.1 — Basis for preparing Consalidated Financial Statements: The financlal statements
of certain subsidiaries end assocfees, which have besn consolidated into the Corporation’s
Consulidated Financial Statements, contoin significant uncertaintics that maise substantial
doubt about the ability of thess companies fo continue as going concerns. The Financial
Statements of thess entities have been prepared and presenced based on the assumption of
EDME COnGST.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT [CONT'D)

Emphasis of Matter (Cont'd)

= In Motz 11 — Finencial Investments, Saigon Port Joint Stock Company (Saigon Port}, a
subsidiary of the Corporation, has recorded an investment in the form of conteibuted capital
by assets, specifically a 600-metre-long wharf (K6, K7, K8, K5, and K10] at Nha Rong -
Khanh Hoi Porl, into Npoe Vien Dong Investment znd Development Company Limited
(“Ngoc Vien Dong Compeny™) with a contributed capital value of VNI 300,001,000,000
(equivalent to a 5.6% ownership interest). Saigon Port has not been able to obtain the
financial statements of Ngoc Vien Dong Company from 2021 to the date. However, the
contributed assets, comprising the over §00-metre-long whart from K6 to K10 at the Nha
Rong - Khanh Hoi area, remain under the management, operation, and commercial use by the
Company. Mgoe Vien Dong Company has commiiled to bearmg all costs related to the
management and land use obligations with the Staie, as stipulated in the agreement dated 31
August 2017 between Npoc Vien Dong Company and Saigon Pert. The Board of General
Directors of the Corporation assesses that this investment has not suffared any impairment.

- As presented in Note 17 — Construction in Progress, the investment and construction project of
Cai Cui Port Phase 1 commenced in 2002 with an initial estimeied investment of YND 2303
billion. The investment and construction project of Cai Cui Port Phase Il began in 2009 with
an initial estimazed investment of VNI 8298 billion. The implementation of these two
projects has exceeded the initially timline and remains incomplete. Can Tho Port Joint Steck
Company, a subsidiary of the Corporation, is continuing to myest i order to complete and put
the project components into operaticn for business activities.

- As presented in Note |9 — Taxes and other payables to the Staze:

+ Saigon Port has temporarily estimated the remaining Jand rental fees payable for the Iha
Rong - Khanh Hoi Port area up to the time the Company signed an agreement with Ngoc
Vien Dong Ushan Development Investment Company Limited (Ngoe Vien Dong - the
investor of the Nha Rong - Khanh Hoi Poct Project) under Investment Poliey Decision No.
681 5/QD-UBND dated 20 December 2016, issued by the People's Committee of Ho Chi
Minh City. As of the date of the consolidated financial statements, Saigon Porl is
continuing to work with the tax authorities to determine the basis for the lard rental and
land Lex obligations.

+ Saipon Port has made temporary peyments for land remtal and land tax for the period from
2015 wo 2020 at Ten Thuan ! and Tan Thean 2 Ports (Tan Thuan Dong), as per tho
notifization from the Distriet 7 Tax Deparment of Ho Chi Minh City. As of the date of
the consolidased fnancial statements, the Corpany is continaing to liase with the District
7 Tax Department of Ho Chi Minh City and relevant authoritizs to determine the basis for
these lond reatal obligations,

- As presentad in Note 22 (3) and 22 (4) — Other Payables: Saigon Pori has received capital
advances from the State Budget and Ngoc Vien Dong Urban Development Investment
Company Limited to invest in the construction project of Saigon Port — Hiep Phuoc, which s
managed by Saigon Hiep Phuoe Port Joint Steck Compeny, & subsidiary of Saigon Port. As of
no'w, This project remains] under constmiction.

- In Not= 22(A) — Dther Payebles and Note 24(1) — Borrowings and Finance Leases, as of now,
the Hau Giang Shipyard Project of Han Giang Maritime Scrvices Une Momber Limited
Liahility Company has been permanently discomtinued according te Official Lemner No.
403/TTg-KTN duted 29 March 2012 from the Prime Minister. Regarding the funding used for
this projeet, the Company is recognizing resructuring intercel besed on Hesolution 107/MC-
CP dated 10 October 2017 of the Government. However, the lenders‘advance providers,
including Vietnam Shipbuilding Finance One Member Limitad Lisbility Company (VFC) and
Vietnam Shipbuilding Industry Corporation (SBIC), have not vet restructured the debt as per
the sforementioned regelution.



INDEPENDENT AUDNTORS' REPORT (CONT'IY

Emphasis of Matter (Cont™d)

In Mote 24 [2) - Borowings und Finance Lesses and Nole 7 — Loan Receivables: As of 31
December 2024, the Conselidated Financial Stotements of the Corporation reflect a lean
recervable from SP-PSA Intemational Port Co., Lid ("SP-PSA") amounting to USD 4,950,000
(ar the Parcnt Company - the Corporation) and LISD 11,880,000 (at Saigon Port). AL the same
time, the financial statements also reflect a loan payable to PSA Vietnam Pe, Lid {"PSA
Vietnam™) for the same amoinits under the Sharehnlder Loan Agreement dated 26 Augnst
2008, comresponding i & capital contribution ratie of 15% fur the Corporation and 6% for
Saigon Port sl SP-PSA Inicrational Port Co,, Ltd. As of the peeparation dote of the
consolidated financial stements, the Corporation and Saigon Port are still in discossions with
the relevant partics to finalize the contract addendum and the besis for celculsting the interest
receivable and payveble aceordingly.

As stuted in Mote 37.3 — Other Information, sccording to Decres Na. 1265201 7TND-CP dated
6 November 2017 of the Government on the conversion of stafe-owned enterprises and ome-
member limited liuhility companies with 100% sate-ouwned charter capital into joint-stock
companics. 2t the time of officially converting into a joint-stock company, the Comaration is
required o (inalice 1axes, obligations payable to the State budget with the tax authoritics, end
submit the approval request to the state ownership representative agency regarding the value
of state capitel at the tme ol official conversion. Additionally, the Corporation must settle the
proceeds from equitization, pay for emplovee severance benefis, and cover equilwation-
related capenses. The Corporation hes completes tax Pnalization, For the remnining mafters,
the Corporation hos completed the documentation and is awaiting approval frem the
competent authorities. Therefore, the figures in the accompanying Consolidated Financial
Statements may change based on the opinions of the relevant suthorities

9

LN Trinh Thi Trang
Depuly General Director hudilor
Aunditor's Practicing Certificate Auditor’s Practicing Certificate
Mo 3660-2021-1132-] No4061-2022-1 12-1
Lo o Behial) of
UHY AUDITING AND CONSULTING COMPANY LIMITED
Hemiod, (13 March 2025
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VIETNAM MARITIME CORPFORATION - J5C

No.1 Dao Duy Anh, Phuong Mai ward,

Form No. B 01 - DN/HN

For the fiscal year

Dong Da Distriet, Hanoi ended 31/12/2024

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

As ar 31 December 2024

ASSETS Code Note 31/12/2024 01/01/2024
(Adjusted)
VND VYND
CURRENT ASSETS 100 13,250,276,250,627 11,963,612,942,094
Cash and cash equivalents e 4 3,255,012,146,283 2,771,448,217,598
Cash 111 1,867,525,795,383 1,522.178,429,592
Cash equivalents 112 1,387.486,350,900 1,249.,269.788,008
Short-term investments 120 5,138,580,323,941 5276,990,271,626
Held-to-maturity investments 123 11 5,138,580,323,941 5276,990.271,626
Current accounts receivable 130 3,607375,668,277 2,733,.306,403,113
Shori-term trade recaivables 131 5 1,744,869 889,828 1,503,172.355,537
Short-term advances to suppliers 132 6 904,476,701,248 723,497.121,304
Short-term loan receivables 135 7 203.408,000,000 £5,212.000,000
Other short-term receivables 136 B 1,114,081,771,535 783,375,660,069
Provision for short-term doubtful debts 137 9 (363,723,523,135) (346,213,562,598)
Shortape of assets awaiting resolution 139 4,262,828,801 £ 262 828 801
Inventorics 140 10 485,064,150,994 493,411,636,746
Inventories 141 689,383.741,794 697,865,520.396
Provision for devaluation inventories 149 (204,319,590,800) (204,453,892,650)
Other carrent asscts 150 764,243,961,132 688,456,413,011
Shori-term prepaid expenses 151 16 79,824,461,633 £8,853,920,088
Valued added tax deductibles 152 545,190,547,000 438,142, 458,714
Taxes and ather receivables from the 153 19 139,228,952,499 161,460,034,209

State budget

Wl

”

The accompanying noted are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements 10
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VIETNAM MARITIME CORPORATION - JSC Form No. B 01 - DNJHN

M1 Deo Doy Ank, Phuong Mai ward,

Forihe Gscal year
ended 3171272024

Dong Da DE;triEtl_Ha.]::-E

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET (CORTTY)
Az at 3 Decentber 2024

ASSETS Code MNote L0z L1204
{Adjosted)
VNI VND

NON-CUHRENT ASSETS 200 17,174,694,352,361 15,571,515,787,190
Leng-term reccivables 210 1,506,052,730,179 1,123,241,189,041
Lomg=tenm frade recoivallcs 211 3 03,509,714 .342 102 84 2,1 57,ETS
Long-term edvances to suppliers 212 6 24,653,398,581 24,653,798,58 1
Long-term loan receivables My 7 1,080, 764,677 466 BR3211,680,000
Oither long-term receivables 216 & 07 034,039,790 12,565,520.285
Provision for doubil long-term 219 9 - (36,567, 700)
Fized assets 220 9, 100,52 0,065,447 2,019,042,281,010
Tangible fixed pssets 221 12 §.401,808.865,120 8,196, 680,031,503

- ot 222 29 962 A41, 031 549 A0 225 381 313,294

= Avoumiiied depreciation 223 (21,350,832, 145,829) (22028701 283 34])
Finance lease asscts : 22 13 45,229, 712,513 48,144,234 401

- Cori 225 52200 437 Bid AR A 437 d4d

- Acewmuloied degraciction 226 (13,000,725, 331) {i0. 146,203 443)
Tntargible fxed esscts 227 14 553,481 467,814 £74.219,014,706

- Ciast 128 934 473 120,013 020 DAL 450 979

- Aecwemilaied amortiation 278 (250,951 652,/ 99) (255,762 466.270)
Tavestment properties 130 15 417,002,112,683 456,095 448,921
- Cast 3 RO, 560,573,617 799,763,848 418

- Accurnulated depreciation 232 (384,558,460,974) {141,658,392,497)
Loog=term assets in progress 40 17 3,528,272,652,993 2,514,340,409,174
Long-term waork in progress 241 39,141,302, 111 3E.937,780 457
Lang-term conctriction in progress 247 3,489,131 060,882 2475 402,619,717
Loog-term investments 250 210,497 150,565 2.029,159,377,540
[nvestments in joint-ventres, associates 252 11 1,840,307,819,163 1,641,806 308,629
Other long-term invesmments 253 1 395,572 409,607 411417655 641
Provision for lonz-tenn fimancal 254 1 (24,333,078,200) {24 064,587,030

mivestments

Dher long-term assefs 26D 402,249 670,495 4219 956,051,504
Long-termn prepaymenks 261 16 373,585,680,251 400,626,923 348
Neferred intome tax asschs 262 28,763,981,244 20.300,157 656
TOTAL ASSETS 270 30,424,970,63 2,559 27,535.428,719.284

The accompavying poied are an fefegral pord of these comsolidated nancial siglemerts 11



VIETNAM MARITIME CORFORATION - J5C Form Ne. B 01 - DINHN

N1 Dao Duy Anh, Phuang Mai ward, For the fiscal year
Dong Da Districr, Hanol B enided 31/12/2024
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET (CONT D}

Ax at 3] Pecamber M4
RESOURCES Code Mule AL 220N 0112024

(Adjusted)
VD YND
LIABILITIES 300 15,008,273,019, 746 12,160,113,677,699
Current linbilities 310 8,000,001 348 514 7.417,296,164,057
Shor-term frods payatle Jil 18 1. GUE (20,070, 726 1,072 565 703 663
Shor-term advancas fiom customerns 312 566,769,514 41.343,194,352
Taxes and other paysbles 1o the State 312 19 3049,516,290,210 297 996,021,254
budget
Pavable 1o employees ild fld T3T 666,407 S08 141,572,144
Shor-term acorued expenses 315 20 2,313, 842,000,507 2,13B 687,365,014
Short-term uncarned reverus 11y 21 15,249 417,363 19,997,232,312
Oither current payahles 318 22 1,542 820618819 Lal4230.911.311
Short-term loan end finance lease o M 1,280,673 986,345 1,496.330,731,754
obligations
Shori-term provisions 321 15, 100,000,000 16,01 8,000,000
Bomus and wellae flods X 142,954, 589,543 126085322271
Long-term liabilitics 350 4,908,281,671,222 4,751,817,513,642
Long-1enm &ccnsed expenses 233 20 13,862,563 322 14310813 D82
Long-ienn unsarned eyvenus 33 2 A T4 415,104 44,662,204,254
her long-term payables 37 I 2381,738 467 844 2,407 85,935,506
Long-term [cans and finance leass i3 M 1,399 529 582,841 1,792,085,060,787
obligations
Defarred @x lishilites ) 2 468,875,542, 109 493 573 493 083
OWNER'S EQUITY 400 17,416,697,613,243 15,366,315,051,585
Capitl 410 25 17,416,697 61 3,243 15366215,051,585
Share capital 411 12.005,880,000,000 12,006 880,000,000
« Cirdimary sharer with voling rights fila 12,005,880,000,000 12,005, 580, 000,000
Shars premium 411 745,029,357 10,945,029,557
Other cepital 414 T3.341,144,535 %2 963,829,693
Differences upon axel revaluation 416 (31,703,637,830,471) (3,190,407 B30.463)
Exchangs raw diferences 417 108,499 358,222 40,798, TIR 792
Investment and development funds 418 2,933,165,394,314 2,086,664,755,714
Orther resarves 420 g2 27503 9. 127504
[Undistributed samings 421 500, E1R 553,066 (241,969 636,062)
- Undisreibuted aarnings ocowmlated 4204 {1424, 185 80, T52) {f, 40, 282, 525379
ey fhe2 preloyr year end
. Undigribnred enrningy of the current 4215 2021004, 434,818 1162313199317
ear
MWon-controlling interest 439 4000 B3, 736,317 4 471330235850
TOTAL RESOURCES 440 30,424,070,632,080  27,835,428,729,284
Hanol, 03 Mareh 2025
Preparcr Head of Finance and =00 D ral Director

Accounting Departm ,.rf
v ThNe utrua ™ 2

'|
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Vu Thi Thanh Duyen Le Duy Duong !ﬂi‘!‘ﬂ Canh Tinh

The aecompanying noted are g inregral part of fhese -Euh.fﬂﬂn’:t-rm'ﬁmmim' EE—— 12
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YIETNAM MARITIME CORPORATION - JOINT Form Mo, B 02 - ONHMN
STOCK COMPANY For the fizzal year
Ma.1 Dao Duy Anh, Phuong Mai ward, ended 317127204
Dang Da District, Hanol

CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT
Far the fiscal year erded 31 Deceraber 2024

Items Code MNooe Year 20024 Year 2023

VD VN
Hoevenue from goods sold and services i} ] 27 16,969, 719,071,136 12 820,166,023.113
Revenus dedustions oz E.470,890,671 5. 140,652,716
Met pevenue from poods sold and 10 16,961,248, 180,465  12.815,019470,497
services renderead
Cowst of pooads sold 11 28 14,147,385,970,277  10,412,004,593 703
Crrogs profit from goods sold and 20 1,813,362, 2001, 188 2,403,014,876, 794
services rendered
Financial income 21 2o 56,580 652 53560 h54,51 0,287 475
Financial expenses 22 30 616,579,083,999 257,553,794,521
= I whick: Ieferes! expenser 23 371851 242,087 22 @77 736,237
Profit{loss) in joint-ventures, associates 24 235015248833 153;B359305,153
Selling cxpenscs 25 3l 138,213,204 379 138,049,421 642
General and adminstrative expenses 26 3z 1,343 ,354,790,9% 1,045,493 903 805
Net operating profit 30 1,796,420,018,078 1,780,363, 893 364
Crher income 31 33 1, 435448737979 484 540, B85 818
Other expenses P | 79,220,229,770 130,106,627 975
Profitloss) from other aetivities 4l L, 356,128,508 209 345,650,157 263
Accounting profit before tax 0 3L,152,648,526 287  2,126014,151,227
Current comporale inCome tEx expense 51 46,070 4012 800 427,040,443 445
Deferred tax expensafincome) a2 {23,250,630,856) 3,154,567 469
Net profit after tax (1] 1620 828 754,343 1,701 819,140,313
Wet profit after tax sttribuiable to 51 20721,0014 444 K18 1,162 313.199.317
shareholders of the parent
Het profit afier 1a% of non-controfling 62 608 814,309,535 530.305,940,505
muerest
Earning FPer Share ™ 35 1,683 068

Hamod, 13 March 2025
Preparer Heud of Finance and _151'”'1:5,;.! ral Director
Accounting llcplrl:n l,
¥ = fiwn g 1;\':;"“ ;
- (2] v ool —
W VIET pape L=
F;e;!} 'E_T d f,—:’.}f_,;ff
Vu Thi Thanh Duyen LeDuyDuong 0 o, iNgayen Canh Tinh

The accompanying noted ara an mtegral part of these comsoiiduted fliancial sifoments 13
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VIETNAM MARITIME CORFORATION - JOINT

Form No. B 09 — DN/HN

No.]1 Dao Duy Anh, Phuong Mai ward, ended 31/12/2024
Dong Da District, Hanoi
CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
((By indirect method)
For the fiscal year ended 31 December 2024
Items Code Note Year 2024 Year2023
YND VND
Cash flows from operating activities
Profit before tax 01 3,152,648,516,287 2,126,014,151,227
Adjustments for
Depreciation and amortization of fixed 02 1,525,135,144,321 1,317,079,959,847
assets and investment properties
Provisions 03 26,6089,582,157 (246,955,748,464)
Foreign exchange (gains)/losses arisen 04 (55,131,068,690) (32,704,482,287)
from revaluation of monetary accounts
Losses/(profits) from investing activities 03 (1.308,671,609,044) (611,684,852,217)
Interest expenses 06 372,851,242,087 202,077,736,231
Other adjustments 07 26,272,308,883 -
Operating profit before changes in 08 3,739,794,126,001 2,753,826,764,337
working eapital
Increase/decreasa in receivahles 09 455,843,676,906 196,137,602,937
Increasc/decrease in inventories 10 B,277,984,048 167,779,251,249
Increase/decrease in payables (not 11 (434,232,237,235) (287,772.220,054)
including acerued interest and corporate
income tax payablg)
Increase/decrease in prepayments 12 36,070.693,052 94,383,529.075
Interest paid 14 (217.231,080,187) (283,278,203,057)
Corporate income tax paid 15 (569,874,097,508) (377.463,564,339)
Other cash inflows from operating 16 32,320,000 -
activities
Other cash outflows from operating 17 (220,552,756,659) (197,571,402,293)
activitics
Net cash flows froim operating activities 20 2,798,128,629,518 2,066,041,757,855
Adjustments for
Purchase and construction of fixed assets 21 (3,090,639,324,854) (2,385,642,111,728)
and other long-term assets
Proceeds from disposals of fixed assets 22 246,150,504,689 095,187,760,339
and other long-term assets
Loans to other entities and payments for 23 (6,805,556,798,760) (8,186,708,335,70R)
purchase of debt instruments of other
entities
Collections from borrowers and proceeds 24 6,701,753,528,991 8,745,841,396,584
from sale of debt instruments of other
entilies
Equity investments in other entities 25 (332,099,038,458) (2,447,862,450)
Proceeds from sales of investments in 26 106,295,848,490 17.585,790.150
other entities
Interest and dividends received 21 368,021,672,950 471,447,342.944
Net cash flows from investing activities 30 (2,206,074,606,952) (1,244,736,019,469)

The aceompanying noted are an integral part of these consolidaied financial statements 14
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VIETNAM MARITIME CORPORATION - JOINT

STOCK COMPANY
M1 Dae Doy Anh, Phuong hai waed,
Liomg D District, Hano

Form No. B 09 - DN/HN

For the fiscal vear
ended 310122024

CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT (CONTD)

Iems

Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from borowings
Repayments of barrowings
Finance lease principal repayments
Dividends end profits paid
Net cash flows from fTnoncing acivitfes
MNet increase/decrease in cozh and cash
equivalents
Cazh and cash equivalents at the
beginning af the year
Effect of forsign exchange differences

{By tndfirect metho)
For the fiscal yeor ended 31 December 2024

Code Note Year 2024 Year 2023
VIND VNI

33 AT 408 442,708 353,321414.309

34 [54%,833,154,504) (557,972,094,150)

33 & I

36 (46,326,570,024) {212,268.501.333)

&0 (124 6657, 281, 824) (417,019,181, 174)
S0 467,392 740,747 403 386,557,212

(1] o ETT1LA458,217.595 284,234 648,554

61 16,171,187.938 (16,172,938,168)

T & 3,255,012,146,203 2,771 448217,50%8

Cazh and cash equivalents at the end of
the year

Hanoi, 03 March 2023

Preparer Head of Finance and S s neril Director
Accounting Ihpnrhl f )
'/ ThHG CONG 'nﬂ,:‘ \
Lﬁpﬁ/' - roionff :
e VIET NAM |2
me_)w crer
; N, e = ek r’ﬂ
Vu Thi Thanh Duven Le Duy Duong guyen Canh Tinh

The areompenyving aored are an integral part of these consolidated finarncial ralements 15
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VIETNAM MARITIME CORPORATHOIN —~ JOINT Form No. B 09 - DN/HN

ETOCK CONPANY For the fiscal year
Mo.| Dao Duy Anh, Phoong Mai ward, ended 31/12/2024
Dong Da Diistrict, Hanol

NOTES T0 THE CUNSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
{Thase motes are an dwteerad pact of end should be read in conanetion veiffy the cocampajing finanekl «forameniy)

1.

1.1

12

13

GENERAL TNFORMATION
STRUCTURE OF OWNERSHIF

Vietnam Maritime Corporaticn - Joint Stock Company was establishied under Decision No.
240TTg dated 29 March 1995, issued by the Prime Minister. On 29 September 2(Ki6, the
Corporation was converted {0 operste under » Parent Company - Subsidiary Company
model, in ascerdasce with Decision Mo, 216/2006/QD-TTg issved by the Prime Minister.
At the smne time, the Prime Minister issued Decision No. 2172006/QD-TTg on the
estzblishment of Viemem Maritime Corporation.

On 25 June 2010, the Prima Minister issued Decision No. 985QD-TTg approving the
transformation Vietnam Maritime Corporation into & one-member limited liability company
owned by the State.

Aspart of the restruciring project of Viemam Maritime Corperation, approved by the Prime
Minister, the Corporation carried ocul [inancisl settlment and enterprisc valuation for
equitizstion &t 31 December 2016. Oa 08 December 2017, the Minister of Transport issued
Decision No. 3402/0D-BOTVT, annoucing the enferprise value for the equitization of
Vietam Maritime Corporation — Parent Company. On 20 June 2018, the Prime Minisier
igsued Decicion No. 75 1/QD-TTg, approvig the equitization plan for the Corporation. On
18 June 2020, the State Capital Management Commitice at Enterprises issucd a Decizion Ne.
277/OF-UBQLY, ndjusting the charter capitsl scale and structure hased on the results of the
initial public olfering of Vietnam Maritime Corporation. The Corporstion succesiully held
the first General Meeting of Shereholders on 13 Angnst 2020 and officially ransitioned into
a Joint Steck Company on 18 August 2020,

The Corporation vperates under the Business Regisation Certificate No. 0100104595 first
issmed by the Department of Planning and Investme:nt af Hanoi City an 07 July 2010, As of
18 August 2020, the Cororation was issued its seventh Business Registration Cerificate,
officially trunsitioning Joint Stock Company with & chader cagital of WND
12,005,880,000,000.

The Corporatice’s headguarters is located at Occan Park Building, No. | Dao Duy Anh,
Pheong Mai Ward, Dong Da District, Haned Clty

PRINCIFAL BUSTNESS FIELD

Tha Comporation’s main business activities include coastal and ocean freight transporiation.,
inland weterway and road transportation, and supporting services r=lated fo transportation;
port and inland waterway fermina] operations; agency services, freight forwerding, logistcs,
warchousing, and storege of goods, as well as debt trading.

NORMAL PRODUCTTON AND BUSINESS CYCLES

The Corporation’s normal business cycle is within 12 menths.

STATEMENT OF COMPARABILITY IN THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Comparaiive Tigures are based on the audited Consolidated Financial Staemens for the
financial year ended 31 December 2023 and are fully comparable.

16



VIETNAM MARITIME CORPORATION ~JOINT

Form Ne. B 02 — DN/HN

ETOCK COMPANY For the fiscal year
Mol Dao Duy Anh, Phuong Mai ward, ended 31/12/2024
Dang Da District, Haow

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT'D)
(These aoves ave an intepral port of and vhowld Be sead In corfurciion with the aooampivping fmeacio! watemenys)

1.
1.5

No
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GENFRAL INFORMATION (CONT'D
CUORFOBATION'S STRUCTURE

The Corporaticn has subsidiarics whose financial statements are consolidared as of 31
December 2024, including:

Name of sebsidizries

Viet Nam Ocean
Shipping A peries
Corporation
Viemam Ocean
Shipping J5C
VIMC Logistics J5C
Cem Renh Port JEC

Vinaship J5C
Pert of Hai Phong J5C

MNghe Tinh Port JSC
Saigon Post J5C

a Wang Pord JRC
Viemum Containes
Operation Co.Lid
Vietmam Hi-Tech
Trensperiation Co.,Lid
Bien Dong Shipping
Ci Lid

Cai Lan Port Invesoment
I5C

Hau Giang Maritime
Scrviee One Member
Co. Lid

Can Tho Port ISC

Winalines Wha Trarg JSC
Cray Nhom Port 15C (i)

Cam Ranh Port Marime
Service JSC

[¥nk ¥u Port [nvestment
and Development IS
Hai Phong Port Tugboat
ard Tremsport J5C

Hoang Dien Port One
Member Co Ll

Hni Priong Port Medical
Certer One Member
s T

Haiphong Pod Operations
And Engineering Treining
Cine Member Co. Ltd

Flaee ol
catablishment

and operation
Hio Chi kinh

Hai Phong City

Ha Noi City
Khanh Hoa

Hal Phong City
Hai Phong City

Mghe An
Ho Chi Minh

a Meng City
Hai Phong City

Ha Mai City
Ha Noi City
Quang, Nich

Hau Tizng

Can Tho City

Khenh Hoa
Binh Dinh

Khanh Hoa

Hai Phong City
Hai Phong City
Hai Pheng City
Hai Phong City

Hai Phong City

Rate of
inieres

51.03%

31.00%%

50505
80.90%

51.00%
§2.56%

51.00%
A5 4 5%

T5.00%
&0.00%

34.00%
100,00
56, 584

| D000 %

9.01%

01.79%
5.01%

41.26%
47.21%
$5.54%
92,56
81563

02 56%

Rate aof

woring

rights
51.05%
51.00%

659
BDS0%%

00
92.56%

51.00%
65.45%

TS.00%
H0.00%

55.00%
100.00%
56 58%:
100005

g9.01%

91.7%%
153.01%

51.00%
51.00%
£0.00%
100.00%

1000003,

100.00%

Principal actlvitica
hMaritime servies

Sea transport service

Martime sarvice
Szaport and t2rminal
handling service

Sea fransport service
Seaport #nd t2rminal
handling service
Seaport and terminal
handling service
Seaport and teominal
handling service
Seaport service

Sea transport service

Seaport and epoinsl
handling service
Sea tramsport service

Seaport and terminal
handling service
Eeaport and Erminal
handling servioe

&eaport and tenminal
hendling service
Sea ransport service
Seaport and terminal
handling service
Marftime service
Seaport and terminal

kandling service
Maritlme service

Eeaport and terminzl
hand ling servies
Dich v kbhdm chia
biiak

Healih eare servicea
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT'D)
[There potes ard a0 imieprol port of and should be recd in confureion with the sccompamying finonciod pmramers)

Mo Name of subsidiarics Place of Rateof Rateof Frincipal activities
establishment interes  woling
and operation rights

24 Bai Gion Logistics RO Ho Chi Minth 48.52% T4.13% Maritlme service

as Sai Gon Hiep Phuoc Port Ha Chi Minh S0.26%  90.54% Seaport and terminal
JBC handling service

26 Sz=i Gon Port Techical Hao Chi Minh 41.44% 6331% Maritime service
Service Commercial J5C

27 8al Gon Port Maritime Ha Chi Minh 33.38%  51.00% Maritime service
Service and Trasport JAC

28 Sai Gon Port Stevedoring  Ho Chi Minh 34.51%  52.72% Maritime service
and Service JSC

pia VOSCO Manpower Supply  Hal Phong City 51.00%  51.00% Supply manpower
Orie Member Co.Lid

30 Hau Giang Port Service  Hau Giang 51.00% 51.00% Martime service
JSC

il Vinaship Maritime Service  Hai Phong City 51.00%  51.00% Moaritime service
Co. L

32 Ouy Whon Pon Logistics Cruw Whon 75.01%  7501% Maritime service
Eervices Co. Litd

33 VIMC Container Ha Mai 00,563  99.56% Seaportand terminzl
Transpart ISC (VIMC handling service
Lines) (ii)

34 Wictnam martime TP. Hii Phing S1.008  30.55% Maritime service
development joint stock
Campany

35 VIMC Dinhi Vi Porl JSC Hai Phong City 51.00% 50.55% Seaport and terminal

handling service

(i} In Sepiember 2015, the Corporation divested its capital in Quy Nhon Port Joint Stoek Company
(ONP) under & share transfer contract with Hop Thanh Investment and Mineral Joint Stock
Company (Hop Thanh). On 27 May 2018, [ollowing the Government Inspectorate’s conclusion on
the equitization of (NP, the dircetive of the Permmnent Deputy Prime Minister, and guidanee from
competent authorities, the Corporation signed contraet No. 012019 VNL-HT/CGCF with Hop
Thanh regarding the transfer of ownership of QNP sharss. On 29 May 2019, the trassfer of
ownership of 30,312,262 shares, equivalent 1o 75.01% of QNPs charter capital, to the Corparation
was executed through the Vietnam Sccurities Depository.

According to the contract, the towal ransfer value includes (1) the transfer amount and {2) the
investor’s legitimate interests, as follows:

- ‘The transfer amouat (1) was VND 415,156,027,500. This amount was paid by ths
Corporation to Hop Thanh on 27 May 2019 and was temporarily recorded as an investment
in (NP oa the date of ownership transfer.

- The investor's legitimate interests (2) represent the legal benefits that Hop Thanh & entitied
to during its investment, management, and operational period. The two parties agreed that
Hop Thanh would provide the basic and methodology for determining these benefits, which
the Corporation would review and submit ta the competent authorities for approval,
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STOCK COMPANY For the fiscal year
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT )

S

{These nofes are an inegre! parl gf sl should be read in conpuncifon witk the accomponying fauncial stafements)

1.

GENERAL INFORMATION (CONT'D)

1.5 CORPOBATION'S STRUCTURE (CONT'IY)

2.1

As gt 31 December 2024, the parties have not yet determined the valse {2) of the legal
benefits that Hop Thanh is entitied during the invesument, management and operation
period, Therefore, the Corporation has not yet paid this amount fo Hop Thanh and the
investment value has not been recorded in the separete finaneial statements

{ii) The compary was newly estahblished in the year according to the Enterprise Registration
Certificate No. 0110710348 issued by the Hanoi Depanment of Planning and |nvestment
on 10 May 2024, with a cherter capital of YND 1,015,000,000,000. As of 31 December
2024, all pasties have completed their copital contributions as per the business registration.

BASIS FOR PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND
FINAMCIAL YEAR

BASIS FOR PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTE

The consalideted financial satements for the financial year ended 31 December 2024 of the
Corporstion have been prepared based on the consolidation of the separate financiz!
statements of the Corparation and the finzncial stalements of its subsidiaries under the
Corporation’s control (the Subsidiaries), which have heen prepared for the financial year
ended 71 December 2024, Control @5 achieved when the Corporation has the ability
govern the financial and operational policies of the investes companies © obtain beneflis
from their activities.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries spply accounting policies consistent with those
of the Corporation. Where necessary, the financial statements of the subsidiaries ar
adjusted 1o ensure consistency in the aceounting policies applied by the Corporation and its
subsidigries, The financial statements of some subsidiarizs and essociates, including Bien
Dong Shipping One Member Limited Liability Company, Cal Lan Port Invesiment Taint
Stock Compeny, Hau Giang Maritime Services Une Member Limited Liability Compazy,
Vinalines Nha Trang Joint Stock Company, and Cai Mep Iniernational Fort Limited
Liability Company, contain svents indicating the presence of significant uncertninty, leading
lo substantial doubt abaut their ability to continue &5 a going concern, Thess concemns arise
from foctors guch as significant eccumuelated lnsses and short-term liabilites exceeding
short-term assets. Hawever, the financial statements of these companies have been prepared
under the going concem assumption for the purpose of consolidation into the Corporation's
consclidated financial statements, The Corporation's Beard of General Directors believes
that, given the ongoing aggressive restructuring of oan debts and the highly positive
developments in the maritime transportation market, the assumption of going concern for
thwe preparstion of these companies’ fnancial statements is appropriate.

Major balances, income, and expenses, including unrealized geins or losses arising from
intra-group transactions, heve been climinated in the consolidation process.

Non-controlling interests represent the porticn of profit or loss and net assets of subsidiaries

that gre not held by the Corporation. Thess are presenied scpacaicly in the consolidated
income statement and within the equity section of the consolidated balance sheet.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT'I))
FTbess wotes ave on integrsd port of eid should be read in conjuaciton wich the aecompaming o siafemeaty)

L.

12

il

BASIS FOR PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND
FINANCIAL YEAR (CONT'T)

APPLICABLE STANDARDS AND ACCOUNTING POLICES

The Corporation epplics Corporate Accounting System issusd under the Circular Na.
200°2014/TT-BTC dated 22 December 2014 by the Ministry of Finance, which was
amended and supplemented by Circular No. 53/2016/TT-BTC dated 21 March 2016 by (e
Ministry of Finence and follows Circular Noo 202/2014TT-BTC, which provides
guidelines for the preparation and presentation of the Consolidated Financial Staements.

The Consolidated Financial Statements are presented in Vietnamese Dong (VD)
following the historical cost principle and in complizoce with Vietnamese Aecounting
Stancdards, Vistnamese Corporate Accovmting Systern and related lagal regulations on the
preparation and presentation of Consolidated Financial Statoments,

FINANCIAL YEAR
The fiscal year of the Corporation hegins on 01 Jaruary and ends on 31 December. These

Consnlidated Fimancial Swtements have been preparcd for financial yesr ended 31
December 1024,

SUMMARY OF SIGNTFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The significant accounting policies adopted by the Corporation in the preparation of these
Consolidated Financial Statements are a3 {ollows:

ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

The preperation of the Consolidated Financial Statements in eocordance with Viemzmese
Accounting Standards requires the Board of Geperal Direciors o make estimates and
assumptions that sfTect the reported amounts of liabilities, pssets and disclosures of
contingent assets and liabilities at the reporting dite, and the reported amounts of revenues
and expenses during the financial year. Actual operating results may differ from these
cstimales and assumptions.

FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSACTIONS

Foreign currency tansactions are converted into Vietnamese Dang (VND) &t the scmual
exchange mie applicable on the transaction date. Exchange rate differences arising from
these transuctions are recognized as revenue or cxpense during the financial year.

Monetary items denominated in foreign currency af the end of the financial year are
translated using the exchange rate prevailing on the Statement of Financizl Position date, as
Follows:

- For sssets: The buving mate of the Commercial Hank whers the Corporation
regularly condocts transactions

. For liabilitiss: The selling rale of the Commercial Bank whers the Corporztion
regularly conducts frunsacticns.

Exchange rate differences erising from the revalustion of year-nd balaces, after offseltmg
increases and decreeses, are recognized as finencial income or financial expenses in the
cument year.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT'D)
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3.
33

35

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICLIES (CONT'D)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cach and cash equivalents include cash on hand, cash at banks and short-term investmenis
with an onginel maturity of 2o more than three months from the nvestment date, that are
highl Houid, readily convertible into known amounts of cash, and subject to an insignificant
risk of valuz Hactastion.

BUSSINESS COMBINATION AND GOODWILL

Business combinatirns ere accounted for wsing the purchase method. The cost of a business
comhination ineludes the fair value at the exchanpe date of the cxchanged assets, labilities
incurred or assumed, and equity instruments issved by the acquirer in exchznge for exntrol
over the acguires, along with disect costs related to the business combination. Identifiabla
assets, lizhilitizs, and contingent linbilities of the acquiree in a business combination are
recognized st feir value as of the scquisition date.

Goodwill or gain from 2 bargain purchass is determmed as the difference betwern the eost
of the investment and the fair value of the idsntifiable nat essets of the subsidiary as of the
acquisition date when the parent company gains confrol over the subsidiary. Any gain from
a bargain purchasc (if spplicable) is recognized in the comsolidated income statement.
Goodwill is amortized on a straight-line basis over its estimated usefol life of 10 yeers.
Periodically, the Company acsesses goodwill impairment in its sobsidiaries. If there 9
evidence that goodwill impairment exceeds the annuzl allocation, the impaiment smount i
recognized immedintely in the year it occurs,

FINANCIAL INVESTMENTS

Trading securities are initially recognized at cost including the purchase prices plus sy
directly anributable transaction cosis (il any), such as brokemge fees, transaction fees,
information service foes, taxes, levies, and hank's fees. After initlal recognition, trading
sacurities are megsured ot cost minus any allowance for impeirment. Upan dispesal or sale,
the cost of trading securities is determined using the first in first out method or weighted
average method.

Held-to-maturity investments comprise term deposite held to maturity to earn profits
perindically and other held to maturity investments. These investmeals are mitially reeorded
at cost moluding nurchase price and related transaction costs. After initial recognition, these
investrments ara recorded gt their recoverable amount. Interest income from held-to-maturity
investments after the purchase date is recorded on the income stotement on an eccrual basis,
Interest carned before the scquisition dste is deducted from the initial cost at the time of

purchase,

Tvesiments [n subsidinries, joint ventures, ond cssoclates acquired during the yeur are
rccognized by the aoquiring entity bused on the scquisition date, acquisition cost, and
accounting procedures in compliance with the acecunting standards on "Business
Combinations” end “Investments in Joint Ventures aml Associates.”

In the Consolideted Finanefal Statements, investments in joint ventures and assncw@ics are
sccomted for using equity method, Under the equity method, the investments are initially
rocorded in the consolidared helance shest a1 cost aml subssqueatly edjusted for changes in
the Corpoeation®s share of the not assets of the associate afier the acquisition date. Goodwill
arising from investments in associztes is inchided in the carrying amount of the nvestment.
The Corporation doss not amortize goodwill bur assesses iis (mpaiment ennuelly to
determine whether & write-Jown s necessary.
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e SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)
33 FINANCIAL INVESTMENT (CONT'IY)

For adjustments to the valoe of investments in joint ventures end associales ansing cunng
the period, the Corporation excludes the portion of preferred dividends atiributable o other
shareholdars (if prefemed shares are classified as equily), the estimated allocation for rewerd
and welfare funds of joint ventures nnd associntes; and the profits related (o transactions
where the joint ventme or associate contributes caprtal or sells assets to the Corporation
hefare determining the Corporation's ownership share in the prefit or loss of the jomt
venture or associate for the reporting period. The Corparation then adjusts the value of the
investmert corressonding to its ownership share in the profit or loss of the joint venture or
associate and recogaizes it immediately in the consolidated ineotre satement.

The fingncial statements of associntes are prepared in the same period as the Corporation's
consolidared financial statements and follow acoounting policies consistent with thoss of the
Corporation. Appropriate adjustiments are recorded to ensure the accounting policies appled
are comsistent with those of the Corparation when necessary.

Eguity Investments in other cntities comprise invesunenis in equity instruments of other
entities without having control, joirt control, or significant influence over the nvestee.
These investments are initizlly stated at cost. Afier initial recognition, these investments ase
measured at cost minus any devialuation of investments .

Provision for devalustion of investments is made at the end of the fiscal year as follows:

= For trading secimilies invesiments: The 'Flrﬂﬁ'i!i:lﬂ i3 based on the difference berwean the
original cost of the investments recorded in the accounting books and their market valuc
gt the time of provision

- Fer longterm investments (not classified as trading securities] and where there is no
significant influence over the investee: f the mvestment is in listed stocks or its fair
value can be reliobly determined, the provision is based cn the marker value of the
stock. If the fair value of the investment cennot be determined et the reporting date, the
provizion is based on the Fmancial statements of the invesiee al the tinc the provision 15
made.

- For held-to-meturity investments: 17 there is clear evidence that part or &l of the
invessment may not be recoverahie, and the loss can be reliably determined, the loss is
recognized as a financial expense for the year and directly deducted from the investment

value

A6 RECEIVARBLES

Receivables are preseated at their carmying amount minus provisions for dowbtful debts end
are tracked in detail sccording to original maturity, remaining term at the reporting dete,
debtor, currency type, and other factors based on the Corporation’s management neads.,

Provisions for doubtful debis are made for each doubtful receivable based on the estimated
potential loss, Specifically, provisions are allocated for recelvebles that are past due &s
stazed in cconomic contracts, comirect commitments, or debl agresments, where the
company has made multiple collection attempts but has not yet recovered the debl. The
determination of the overdue period for receivables is based on the original payment
dzadline in the inital sales contraet, without comsidering any debl extensions between
parties. Provizions are also made for receivables that have not yet reached their due date bt
where the debtor has gone bankrupt, is undergoing, dissolution procedures, has gone
miszing, or has fled. The provisions are reversad when the debt is reecvered
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3.

)

38

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT™D)
INVENTORIES

Inventorics ere recognized at the lower of cost and net reslizable valve The cost of
inventories mcludes puichase costs, processing costs, and other directly related expenses
incurred to bring the invemtories to their current Jocation and condition. The net realizable
value is determined as the estimated selling price minus the estimeted costs of completion
and the estimated costs necessary 1o sell them.

The value of investories is determined uging the weighted avernge method. Inventorics are
sccounted for nsing the perpetual inventory system, However, at VIMC Shipping Company,
a dependent unit of the paremt company, inventory valve {primarily fuel oo ships) 1s
pecountad for using the periodic inventory system.

Meshod for determining the value of work-in-progress at the end of the pericd: of work-in-
progress are aceumulated based on setual costs incurred for each service or project
consulting item that has not yet been completed. [Lomg-term work-in-progress are
accumulated based on the actusl costs incurred for real cstate investment projects held for
sale.

Provisions for inventory devaluation are made at the end of the eceounting period for sach
inventory item where the cost exceeds the net realizable value, Incresses or decrenses in the
provision balance required at the financial year-end are recorded in the cost of goods sold.

FIXED ASSETS

Fixed assets (tangible and intengible) are initially recorded at historical cost, Dunng their
uwseful life, tangible and intangible fixed asscts ere stated at cost, less sccumulsted
depraciation and carrying Emount.

The historical cost of finance leage fixed asseds is recognized at the lower of fair value or the
present value of the minimum leass payments, plus any directly anritutable costs incurred
in relation o the foance lease (excluding valuc-added tax) During their ussful life, finance
lease fixed assets are recerded at historical cost, less accumulated depreciation and carrying
amount, Fingnoe lease fixed assets are depreciated over the lease term and charged to
opergling expenses to ensure full capital recovery.

Diepreciation of fixed assets is applied on & straight-line basis over their estimated useful life
as follows:
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Classes of fixed asscts Uselul lives(Year)
Buildings, struoctures 20 —35
Machinery, equipment 05~ 10
PMotor vehicles, ransmission 06 — 20
Office equipment and furniture 03 - 10
Lend use rights with definite term a0
Lend use rights with indefinite term No depreciation
Computer software 03
Cither inlingible assets nz—21

INVESTMENT FROFPERTIES

Investment propertics are recorded at historical cost. For investiment properiics that were put
into use and recorded at cost before the determingtion of equitization value, the historical
cost and sccumulated depreciation are recognized based on the valuation results of the
squitized parent company — Corporation, as approved and announced by the competent
authority.

For investment properties Jeased under operating leases, they are recorded al hislorical cost,
accumulated depreciation, and net carrying amount. Depreciation 15 applied using the
straight-line method over the estimated useful life as follows:

[lasses of fixed aszets Tselal lives{Year)
Buildings, structures 20 - 25
Land use rights 50
Infrastrscture 47

Tha conversion of owner-oecupied property or inventory info investman! propery occnrs
only when there is a change in use, such as when the owner ceases to use the asset and
begins Jeasing it 1o another party under an operating l=ase or upon the completion of the
coustruction phase. Similarly, the ennversion of investment property into owner-occupied
property or inventory takes place cmly when there is a change m use, such as when the
owner starts using the asset for its own operations or begins prepering it for sale. The
conversion of investment property into owner-oceupied properly or inveatory does not alter
the historical cost or carrying amount of the property at the date of transfer.

CONSTRUCTION IN PROGRESS

Construction in progress costs include asscts such as equipment thet is in the process of
being procured and installed but has not yet been put into use, as well as hasic construction
projects that are still under comstruction and have not been completed or put into use at e

time of closing the books for the preparation of the separate financial statements.
These assets are recorded at historiczl cost. The historical cost includes Payments for goods

and services to contractors and suppliers, Related borrowing costs incurred daring the
investment phase, and Other reasonable expenses direcily zssociated with the formation of
ihe gsget. Depreciation for these assets is applied n the same manner &5 for other =ssets and

begins when the asset is available for use,
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s SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUELD)

411 OFPERATING LEASE

Oiperating kases refer to fixed asset leases in which a significant portion of the risks and
rewards of ownership remeins with the lessor. Pavments made under operating leases arc
recognized in the income statement on a straight-linc basis over the lease term.

112 PREPAID EXPENSES

Prepaid expenses related to the business operstions of mulliple financial years are recorded
as prepaid expenses and gradually allocated to the business results over subsequent financial
vears. The value of goodwill and re-evaluated toole and instruments is recognized based on
the enterprise valustinn resalts of the equitized parent company — Corporation, as approved
and announced by the competent authority.

The caleulation and allocation of long-term prepaid expenses into production amnd business
costs for each financial year are based on the nature and extent of each type of expense,
selecting an appropriste allocation method and eriteria.

The Carporation's prepaid expenses include:

- Prepaid land expenses: These include prepad land lease payments, inclnding land-
related expenscs for which the Corporation hes obtained a land use right certificate but
does not meet the criteria for recognition as an intangible fixed asset. Theso cosls are
recognized in the ingome statement using the swraight-line method over the term of the
land lease contracL

- Tools and instruments: Tools and instruments that have been put inlo use are allocated
1o expenses hased onan assessment of the acmal situation, with their costs reflected in
the income statement for the year.

- Fixed asset repnir costs: One-time repair costs for fixed assets with a significant value
are allocated to expenses based on an nssessment of the sctual situation, with the costs
reflecied in the income stalement for the year.

- Reatal and insurance exponses: These wre allocared hased on the prepaid penod.

313 PAYABLES

Payables are tracked hesed on payment terms, creditors, foreign currency type, and other
factors according to the Corporation’s management requirements. Payables are classified as
cither short-term or long-term in the consolidated financial statements based on their

remeining masturity as of the reporting date.

3,14 BORROWINGS AND FINANCE LEASE LIABILITTES
Loans and finance lease liabilities inclade various rypes of borrowings snd lease obligetions.

These liahilitics are tracked in detail, based on each loan entity, each loan debtor, each loan
contract and cach type of loan ssset, the repayment term, the original cumency (if any).
Loans with the remaining repayment term of more than 12 months from the reporting date
are presemted as long-term loans snd financial lease labilities. Loans due within the next 12
months from the reporting date arc clussified as short-term loans and finanee Jease
liabilities.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
BORROWING COSTS

Borrowing costs are recognized as production and business sxpenses in the period in which
they ane incurred, except for bomrowing costs that are directly attributable to the investment,
construclion, or produstion of gualifying assels thal require a substantial period of fime
{ever 12 montha) to be rendy for their infended nse or sale. These costs are capitalized s
pert of the asset's velue when the conditions set out In Viemamese Accounting Stendard No.
16— Bomowing Costs are met,

For the financial year endad 37 December 2024, all loan imterest expenses are recorded in
the Consolidared Income Statment.

ACCRUED EXFENSES

Apcrued expenses are recorded based on ressonable estimates of the amount paysbls for
goods and services used during th= perind when no invoices are available or when
accounting records and documents zre insufficient, including loan inlerest expenses and
other related costs,

The recording of accruad expenss as prodoction and business expenses during the year shall
bve carried out under the matching priaciple between revenues and expenses during the year,
Accrued expenses are setfled with actual expenses incurred. The differsnee between 2ecruzd
and nctual expenses is reverted,

PROVISION FOR PAYABLES

Frovisions for payables are recognized only when the following conditions are met:

- The Corporation has a present obligation (either legal or constructive) a8 a result of a

past evenk;
- Thereis .il.Pm]u.HE ot low of ecomomic benefits rﬁqtiﬂﬂ fo gettle the uhlig&tmﬁ;

A reliable estimate of the obligation amount can be made.

The recognizad velue of a provision i3 the most reasonable estimaie of the amomi required
1o scttle the present obligation as of the financial year-cnd date.

Only expenses directly related fo the mitially recognired provision can be offsct against that
povist

Provisions for payables are recorded as production and business expenses in the financial
year. If the provision recognized in a prior finencial yeir exceeds the requirad provision in
tha cument reporting period, the excess amount is reversed and recognized as a reduction in
production and business expenses for the year,

UNEARNED REVENUES
Uncarned revenue refers to the amounts prepaid by customers for assel leases covermg one
or muitiple finencial vears.

Uncarted revenue is recognized in sales revenue and service provision according to the
amount allocated sppropriately to each financial year.

b
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINLED)

OWNER™S ROUITY

Orwner's equity at the end of vear is recopnized based on the actual contrituted capital of the
owner, which iz the charter capital of the Corporation spproved by the Stare Capital
Manapement Commitsiee at Enterpeise under Decision No. 2ITODUBRQLY on 1B June
2020,

At Bien Dong One Member Limited Liakility Shipping Compamy (*Bien Deng):
According 10 the guidelines of the Mmistry of Finanee in Official Letter No. 751/BTC-
TCDN dated 17 September 2015, the difference between the amount of dzbt Bier Dong
sssumed from the Vietnam Deht and Assct Trading Corporation (DATC) and the principal
and imterest payable to credit instinnions {incurred before the creditor comversion) 18
resorded s sn increase in the vahic of state capital at Bien Dong. This guidanes differs [fom
the Victnamese Aecounting Standards (VAS), which require such difforences to be recorded
in the income statement for the year.

Before 2017, Bien Dong epplied the guidance from Official Letter Mo, T31/BRTC-TCDN
dated 17 September 2015, from the Ministry of Finance (*Official Letter 7517) regarding the
aceounting trestment of the difference between the book valoe of Habilltkes and the assumed
debt value with DATC. Accordingly, the difference between the mount of dobt assumed by
the company from DATC and the prineipal and interest payable to eredit institutions was
recognized as on increase in the value of stake capital &t Bien Deng,

From 2018 fo 2021, Bien Dong adopred the Viemamess Accounting Standards (VAS),
uncer which the difTerence between the amount of debt sssumed from DATC and the
principal and interest payable to credit institutions was recorded in the income
statement for the reporting year

From 2072 to 2023, Bien Dong epplied the guidance from Circular No, 462021TT-BTC
dated 23 June 2021, Official Letter Nov. 75 1/BTC-TCDN dated 17 September 2015, Official
Latter No. SEES/ETC-TCDN deted § May 2017, and Official Letter Na. 14308 TC-TCDN
dated & February 2021 from the Ministry of Finence.

If Bien Dong consistently applies the regulations of the Viemamese Accounting Standards
(VAS] in reengnizing these amounts, then on the consclidated balance sheet as of | January
2024, the Revalustion Surplus (Code 416) will decrease by WND 2,166.24 billion, while the
Undis‘ribated Afier-Tax Profit (Code 421) will incresse by the comespondicg amount.
Similarly, as of 31 December 2024, the Reva'uation Surplus (Cods 416) will decrzase by
WND 2,166.24 billion, with 1 comesponding increase in the Undistributed After-Tax Profit
(Code 421).

Share premium reflects the difference between the par value, direct costs related to share
issuance, and the actual issuance price of shares {including cases of reissuance of treasury
chares). The premium can be positive (if the issuance price is higher than the par value end
the direct issuance costs) or negative (if the issuance price is lower than the par value end
issuance eosts),

Other capital within owner's equity reflects business capital formed from business
results, donations, sponsorships, or asset revaluations (if permilted to increasz or
decrease the owner's contributed capital). Revaluation surplus is recognized in cases
such ms when there is a govermment decision to revalue assets, during the
equitization of state-owned enterprises, o7 in other cases g3 prescribed by law.
Undigributed aftsr-tax profit reflects the business results (profit or loss) after corpurate
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income tax, as well as the profit distribution or loss weatment within the
Corporation.
SUMYARY OF SIGNTFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICLES (CONTINUELDY)

REVENUE RECOGNITION
Revenue from rendering of servicey

Revenue is recognized when the owicome of a transaction can be measured reliably. For
services rendered over multiple years, sorvices revenue is recognized using the percentage
of complotion method as of the balance sheet date, Sale of services is recogmized when all of
the following conditions are met:

- FRevenue can be measured reliably;

- It is probable thet cconomic benefits associated with the transaction will fow to the
Company;

- The percentags of completion of services at the balance sheet date can be measured;

- Costs incuwred in rendering the services and the estimated costs to complete the sarvices
can be measured.

The completsd portion of service rendering is determined using the completed work
evalwtion method,

Fingacial incowme

Income from interest, oyalties, dividends, profit distributions, end ether financial income is
rezngmized when the following two (2) cond itions are met:

- There is a probuble inflow of economic bensfits from the transaction.
- The income amount can be meesured relisbly.

Dividends and profic distributions are recogpized when the Corporstion is entithed fo receive
dividends or profit distributions from s mvestments.

Common sheres or stock dividends: Mo inscome 15 recognized when the right to receive
commen shares or stock dividends is established, The number of common shares or siock
dividends received is diselosed in the relevant consolidated financial statements.

REVENUE DEDUCTIONS

Revenue deductions from sales and service provisions erising in the year include ade
discounts, sales discounts and sales retumns.

Trade discounts, sales discounts and sales returns bat oecur within the same peried as the
sale of products, goods, or services are recognized 25 a reduction in revenue in the pericd
they ocour. For cases where the products, goods, or services were sold in previous periods
ard revemue deductions arise in a subsequent period, the recopmition follows these
pricciples: 17 the deduction occurs befors the issuance of the consolidated financial
statements, it is recorded &5 a reductlon in revenue in the prior period's consolidatod
finencial statements (e reporting period). if the deduction occurs efter the issuance of the
consolidated Mnancal statements, it is recorded as a reduction in revenuc in the cument
period's finarcial statzmems (the subsequent period).

I8



VIETNAM MARITIME CORPORATION - JOINT Form No. B (9 - DN/HN
STOCK COMPANY Forthe fiscal year
Ne.l Dao Duy Asnh, Phuong Mai ward, ended 3171272024
Diemz Da Distriet, Hanoi _ =
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT'IY)

(Thewe nater e an integral pore of o shoukd be read in sonfunciion witk e aesomponying fisasclul w0 emeis)

A SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOTUNTING POLLCIES (CONT'D)

322 COST OF GOODDS SOLD

st of goods sold in the pericd is recorded in accondance with the revenve gencreted in the
period and ensures com pliance with the principle of pradence.

113 FINANCIAL EXPENSES

Financial expenses include the following:

- Expenses or losses related to financial investment activitiss;

- Bormowing costs;

- Losses from the disposal or transfer of short-term securities, and transaction ccsis for
selling securilizs;

- Provisions for impairment of trading securities, provisions for investment losses in other
entities, foreign exchange losses from currency sales, and foreign exchange rate fosses,

These expenses are recorded at their gross amounts incurred during the year end arz not

offier agaimst financial mcome.

3.24 CORFPDORATE INCOME TAX
Cuirrent corporate income Tax (CIT) expense and deferred CIT expense

Current CIT expense is datermined based on taxable income for the perind and the
applicable corporate income tax rate for the current financial yeer,

Deferred CIT expense is determined hased on deductible temporary differences, taxable
temporary differences, and the applicsble corporate income fax rate.

Current CIT expense is not offsct against defecred CIT expense.

Corporafe income feex vate for the curvent financial year

For the financial year ending 31 December 2024, the Corporation applics a CIT rate of 20%
fior texable income derived from business and production activities.

Corporate income tax expense includes both eurrent corporate income tax and deferred
corporate income tax.

3,25 BASIC EARNINGS PER SHARE

Basic earnings pe share is calculated by dividing net profit or Joss after wy atiributable to
common sharsholders of the Corporation (after adjustments for allocations to the Welfare
and Reward Fund and the Cxecutive Reward Fund] by the weighted average mumber of
gammon ehares outstanding during the year.

326 RELATED PARTIES

A perty is considered 1o be related to fhe Corporafion if it has the ability to comrol the

Corparation or exercise significant influence over the Corporation in making Ninanzial and

operational decisions. Relatzd parties include:

- Entermriscs that heve the right to coatrol, are direcily or indiressly controlled through
one or more intermediaries, or under the common coatrol with the Corporation,
including subsidiaries. joint ventures, joint amangement, and associztes,

- Individuals who have the right 10 directly or indirectly vote in the reporting enterprises,
leading to significant influence over these enterprises, key management persoane] who
have the authority and respocsibility for planning, managimg emd eontrollng the
Corparation”s activitics, including close family members of such individuals;
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTTD)
RELATED PARTIES (CONT'DY)

-  Enterprises owned by aforementioned individuals, where they hold direc: or [ndirect
voting rights or have significent influence over the enterprise.

When assessing each relafionship of related parties, the mature of the relationship is
considered, not merely its legal form.

SEGMENT REPORTING

A segment is a distinctly ideatifiable component of the Corporation that is involved in
providing related products or services (business segment) or providing products or services
within a spacific economic environment {zeographical segment). Fach segment is exposed
to different resks and retums compared to other sogments.

Segment information is prepared and presented in accordance with the accounting policies
epplied in the preperation and presentation of the Corporation’s consolidated fmancizl
statements. The purposc is to help users of the financial swtements gain a clear
understanding and ¢cemprehensive assessment of the Corpomation’s performance.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

JNL2024 0012024

YND YND

Cash on hand 16,561,419383 14,337,111,932
Demand depesits 1.B50,964,376,000  1,507.841317.660
Cash eguivelents (*) 1I87 486,350,000  1,249260 748,006

ﬁﬁ.ﬁﬂlbiﬁ ﬁ'.u‘?l.dﬁl'?.m

(%) Cash equivalents rofer to commercial banks with mamritdes not exceeding three monls.
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. TRADE RECEIVARLES

Jinzang 00 2024

A Provision Amaunt Frovisn

VYN YND VD VD

Shari=term 1, T4 R RS H2H (154,544,701 6TR) 1505, 172,355,537 (241,635,972,042)
Faloted purtics 92020897003 {4, 547,018,048 195,921, 327.083 (4547772, 214
= Iniemational Shigpimg and Labour Coopemation J50C BRI = 61,514,007 =
= Vietnam - Japan Interrntional Transpor Co.,Lid 124,674,288 - 6057373 -

= Victnom Honda Logistics Victnam Co. Lid 13T 853 872 BT, 194,499
= Rizn Domg Logistics [3C 4,655,791 380 - 4724, 484,380 -
- Wosco Agency and Logistics JSC 1053557, 554 . STRATI ALY -
« SITC-Dinh Va Logisices Co. Lid - - 32,151,600 :
- HPH Laogistic JSC 1,543,654,314 £,433,301,425 -
- Dung Dis - Hai Phong Port Container Lises JSC 5,240,370.882 - 5, TH, 53000 -
- U Lo Port Tugboat and Memtame Seevice 150 T, GE 54 . 23 860,363 =
= SP55A4 International Container Services Joinr Venmure Comparny 2,745,844 504 - 22520057, 280 =
- 3 Moep Intarmational "erminal Co, Ll b3, B84, EG, D 53,363,074, 00 -
- Korca Express Sai Gon Porl Co.Lad 492510014 - | B0, 65T -
- NYE Aun Logistics [Vielhdam) Co., Led 355,175,037 - A0 443,612 -
- D Mang Ponl Tughbeat S50 = £ 20, 25, 00 -
- Viship 1SC 3754, 799 625 (3,754, 7719.629) 3,754,770 620 {3,754, T E29)
- Csi Lan Intermational Container Terminal Limitad Lighiliry ZEII 05,1594 - [ 940 AT 5, DD -
= Bong Do Marnire: 15C 115,000, 000k 115, CHIEL, DD -
- THi Vai General Port JSC - - 167,400,000 &
- Emigon Maritime Foint Stock Company 24,000,000 = - =
- Vinashin Oeean Shipping Co, Lid 793,136,120 {703,136 529) TH2.997 581 L2092 581)
= Cen 1o Shipbuilding |ntrogiry snd Transpart 15C - . 12994 111 =
= 8F - PSA Internotional Por Co,, Lid - §,000,000 *
= Wipsco=¥inalines Ship Repair 150 307,030,500 ZA5.805,831 =
- Viginam Sea Transport amd Chortering F5C 15,142 800 = o
-Mam Can Ponl Jomi Stock Compaay AT 00000 = .
31
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5 TRADES RECEIVABLES (CONTINUFD)

JAL2024 0101/ 124
Amaumt Frovisian Amoani Mrovisien
VD WHID VMDD YD
Oihicr parfics 1,652,747 992815 (249, V56875, 720) 1,397, 250,028,454 (217,088, 199,822}
- Dennsar Chartering & Trading GembH 16,658, 768 724 116 658,768, 724 | 16,658 768 714 (16,658,268 T2
= [ Imvestment and Tradmg 50 S SUE T Pl L P 63,447, 183,03 1 e e O
= Sliscrsk Limes A8 10,560,474, 714 - B, 500, 1662, 165 -
- Ballben Induearial Vietnam Co., Lad, 16,5 159,008 420 19,726,636,390 i
- Dzean Network Experss Ple L1d 74,278 865,976 2 25,766,212 030 .
- Phuoe Long Port Co, Lid 7.873,162,400 5 8, 700,847,634 :
= B Gl Pord Ciaal JSC JR657. 305,546 . J2AZ 17015 -
- Nam Trieu Shipping Co. Lid 21,077,044, 420 121,077 044,420 21,977,044,420 (21,977,044 420
- Maipai Mitle Logisties Vietnam Co.. Lid, 14,116,722 448 - 12, 218.324.395 -
= Mikomy listermsiicins] Tramspon Copaiy 6,214,501 642 - 10,127 ARG, 306 -
- Bai Gon Pord Coal JSC 106,234,907 - AR,732,114,604 -
- Wil Phao Mining Co,Lid BR10A82 470 . 43,354.563.913 -
- Manh-East Hegional S1ede Reacrve Dapertment - - 21,504 B 484 -
- Diher trade receivables | 411, 175,382,211 {1 50,763,963 634} 1,051,958, 147,181 (138,725,629 5167
Lomg-term Q3,500,771 4,342 . 102,843,157 875 E
Relutird pevrsien 91,599, 714, 142 5 102,840, 157475 "
- Cai dep Intemational Termimal Co, Ltd (*) pLE R L N T - 10 345,157 875 =
1,538 469,604,170 [254,544,791,678) 1,605,015 513,412 (241,635,972 847

(*) Reecivable from Cai Mep Intemationnal Terminal Co., Lid. (CMIT) related to infrastroctore facility rental fees of Cai Mep Port. This includes o
receivable related to delerred land rental pavinents ag per the contraet agreement for the period Trom 2083 1o 2019, This amount will be paid n 24
inatallmenta starting fram 30 June 2019, wnhil 31 December 2040, On 30 Junc 2023, Saigon Port and CMIT signed & temporary payment deferral
apresinent with tie lessors. Accordingly, the land renial payments deferred under e contract sgeregment for the pericd from 2013 1o 2009, for the fust
four instaliments, will be further deferred and will commenee from 30 June 20235,

2
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fi. ADVANCES TO SUPPLIERS

3171272024 012024
Amoumd Frovision Amoumnt Provigion
VND VND YND VND
Sanrt-term o04,476,701,248 {57,539,583,98%) T23497,121. 34 (57,539, 843,989)
Related pardies 2,676,105,764 . 307,830,480 :
Construction Consubtaticn JSC far Maritima Pnllding 180,184,500 S0, 85 0,480 -
Domp Do Marine JSC 2,495 521,264 - . -
(iser parfies Dir, RN, 595 454 (57,530 853,989; 712,906,190,824 (57,520,883, 089)
Buchdang Shipbullding Co.,Lid (1) B89.262,562,009 (99,239,258,319) B9, 262, 562,009 (49739 256 319)
Mitsud E & & Co., Ltd 108,085,362 470 - 194, 745, 1 86, 888 -
WNam Trieu Shipbuilding Co. Lid {2} 256,655, 705,780 . 264,255, 705,789 -
Huynh Thy Trading Services Co. Lid - - hd BEE (k0,000 -
Others 467,795,965,207 (H,300,625,670) 157,653, 836,138 (2,300,625 670)
Lang-term 24,653,393,581 { 24,653,398,581 -
Real Estarte 10 J5C 29,653,398 581 - 24,653 398 381 -
979,131,099 §20 (57,530,883 083 748, 150,510,885 (57,539 883.089)

{1} Includes:

- Advance payment reiated to Contract No. 01/VNL-BD dated Movember 22, 2010, signed between the Parent Company — Corporation and Bach
Bang Shipbuilding Company for the construction of three vessels: BV-10, BV-11, and BY-12, amounting to VNI 49,239,258 319, This advance
payment excecds the [nalized seftlement value due to the project termination,

= The remaining amount is aa advance payment for the consiruction of the Lucky Star and Blue Star vessels with Vietnam Sea Transport Joint Siock
Company, The partics wre curvently completing the necessary procedures to fnalize the vessel settlement value.

(2) Advance payment to Nam Tricu Shipbuilding One Member Limited Liability Company for the construction of the Vosco Sunrise vessel of
Vietnam Sea Transpon Joint Stock Compeny. The two parties are in the process of compleling the necessary procedures for the final senlement of
the vessel's value.

3
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7.

LOAN RECEIVABLES
31/12/2024 01/01,2024

Amount Provision Amount Provision
VND YND VND VND
Short-term 203,408,000,000 - 65,212,000,000 -
Related pariies 202,008,000,000 - 63,872,000,600 -
SP-SSA International Container Scrvices Joint Venture Company (1) 202,008,000,000 - 63,812,000.000 -
Other parties . L.400,000,000 - I,400,000,000 -
Others 1,400,000,000 4 1,400,000,000 .
Long-term 1,080,764,677,466 - 883.211,680,000 -
Related parties 1,080,764,677,466 - £83.211,680,000 -
SP.SSA International Container Services Joint Venture Company (i) 337.100.850,000 = 514,108,000,000 -
SP-PSA International Port Co.,Lid (ii) 424,974,330,000 - 369, 103,680,000 -
Cai Lan International Contaier Terminal Co., Lid. (iii} J18,689,497.466 - - -
1,284,172,677,466 - 048,423,680,000 -

(i) Loan under Resolution No. 119/NQ-CSG dated 16 March 2023, issued by the Board of Dircctors of Saigon Port Joint Stock Company

(ii)

(Saigon Porf), a subsidiary of the Corporation, approving the restructuring of the loan debt of Saigon Port-SSA International Container
Services Co., Ltd, (SSIT) with credit institutions, in accordance with the Loan Agreement Terms and the Shareholder Financing
Agreement. Specifically, the shareholders agreed to finance the buyout of SSIT’s loan and all outstanding debt obligations, with a total
required funding of USD 48,000,000, of which Saigon Port contributed USD24,000,000 (through a term loan of USD 24,000,000 at an
exchange rate of 23,518 VND/USD). On 23 June 2023, Saigon Port completed the disbursement of VND 564,432,000,000 to SSIT
under the Shareholder Loan Agreement dated 28 April 2023, and the SSIT Restructuring Agreement. The loan has a S-year term, an
interest rate of 6.3% per year, and is unsecured.

Loan to SP-PSA International Port Co., Ltd., with a principal amount of USD 4,950,000 (from the Parent Company — Corporation)
and USD 11,880,000 (from Saigon Port), under the Shareholder Loan Agreement dated 26 August 2008. This corresponds to a 15%
equity contribution from the Corporation and 36% from Saigon Port in SP-PSA International Port Co., Ltd.. The loan is subject to an
interest rate based on SOFR (Secured Overnight Financing Rate) and is repayable upon request by PSA Vietnam Pte Ltd. (the lender).
At the time of preparing the financial statements, the Corporation and Saigon Port were still in discussions with the parties to finalize
the amendment of the loan agreement and the basis for calculating accrued interest receivable and payable.

(iii) Receivable from Cai Lan International Container Terminal Co., Lid. (CICT) under the debt purchase agreement signed between

VIMC, SSA Holdings International, and the lenders, as part of the CICT financial restructuring plan, which was approved by the
Extraordinary General Meeting of Shareholders on 22 July 2024,
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT'D)
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8. OTHER RECEIVABLES

Short-term

-

Advances

Collaterals and deposits

Reccivables from dividends paid, profits distributed
Deposit and loan interest receivable

Payment on perhalf

Input VAT must be collected from Terminal No. 2 Project -

Receivables from equitisation
Other receivables

+ Bachdang Shipbuilding Co, Ltd (i)

+ Depreciation and inlerest on assets of bridge No. 4 and No.
5 of Chua Ve container yard (ii)

-+ (Mhers

Long-term

=

Collaterals and deposits

Receivables from compensation costs for houses, structures,
crops, and temporary residence expenses
Other receivables

TR e

31/12/2024 01/01/2024

Amount Provision Amount Provision

VYND YND VND VND
1,114,081,771,535 {47,197,243,782) 783,375,660,069 (47,034,686,907)
23.680.,410,730 - 23,006,540,315 -
57.862,924,614 (162,556,8735) 13,654,904,236 (162,556,875)
40,250,966,469 (3,287,420,975) 4875445211 (3,287,420,975)
293,298.093,332 (7,733,305,729) 199,192,408, 141 (7,733,305,729)
R0,386,274,300 (96,557,406) 38.,563,631.216 {96,597,406)
12,810,751,466 - 12,810,751 466 -
28,719,686,558 - 28,719,686,558 -
577,072,664,066 (35,917,362,797) 462,552,292,926 (35,754,805,922)
32,630,296,044 - 50,193,406,832 -
194,218,263,761 194,218,263,761 -
3310224, 104,261 (35,917 362,797) 218 140,622, 333 (15,754, 805,922)
307,034,939,700 - 112,569,520,285 (36,567,700)
164,599,664,649 - 41,454,380,526 -
74,166,933,376 . 51,220,150,029 -
68,268,341,765 - 19,894,979,730 (36,567,700)
1,421,116,711,325 (47,197,243,782) 895,945,180,354 (47,071,254,607)
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VIETNAM MARITIME CORPORATION - JSC
No. 1 Dao Duy Anh, Phuong Mai Ward, Dong Da District, Hanoi

Form No B 09 — DN/HN
For the fiscal ycar ended 31/12/2024

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT’D)
[Thase notes are an imegral part of and should be read in confunction with the accompanying financial statements)

8.

(i)

(ii)

OTHER RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)

3111272024 01/01/2024

Amount Provision Amount Provision

VND VND VND VND

In which: Other receivables are related parties 321,821,129,.803 (23,852,306,009) 168,251,045,998 (23,872,306,00%)
- Cai Mep International Terminal Co.,Ltd 1,655,210,725 - 1,680,469,752 -
- SP-PSA International Port Co.,Ltd 212,537,977,105 54,519,493 ,496 :
- Vinalines Hoa Lac Logistic JSC 324,126,585 - 324,126,585 i
- Nam Can Port JSC 3,310,988,907 (3,310,988,507) 3,310,988,907 (3,310,988,907)
- Oriental Shipping and Trading JSC 6,700,148,507 (6,602,648,507) 6,661,648,507 (6,622,648,507)
- Can Tho - Thanh Tuan Port Co.,Ltd 154,250,000 - 154,250,000 -
- Vinashin Ocean Shipping Co.,Ltd 97,057,412,225 (12,932,016,846) 81,375,306,536 (12,932,016,846)
- Can Tho Shipbuilding Intrustry and Transport JSC 1,006,651,749 (1,006,651,749) 1,006,651,748 (1,006,651,749)
- Khuyen Luong Port JSC - ‘ 66,000,000 -
- SP-SSA International Container Services Joint Venture Company . - 19,152,110,466 -
- Dong Do Maritime Joint Stock Company 74,364,000 - - -

Implementation of Resolution No317/NQ-CNTT dated 23 November 2015, issued by Vietnam Shipbuilding Industry Corporation (SBIC), approving
the reassignment of the debt recipient from SBIC’s entrusted capital source at Shipbuilding Industry Finance One Member Limited Liability Company,
related to the transfer of the 1,730 TEU - V22 vessel construction investment project from Bien Dong Shipping One Member Co., Ltd. (Bien Dong) to
Bach Dang Shipbuilding One Member Co., Ltd, (Bach Dang).

According to the handover minutes signed on 5 August 2015, Bien Dong transferred this project along with the related loan principal and interest
liabilities to Bach Dang as of 5 August 2015,

The outstanding debt represents the remaining amount reccivable from Bach Dang after the transfer of praject costs, loan liabilities, and interest
expenses (See Note 24 — Loans and Finance Lease Liabilities for more details).

The amount paid by Hai Phong Port Joint Stock Company, a subsidiary, into the State Budget, covering depreciation costs and loan interest for Berths
No. 4 and No. 5 at Chua Ve Port for the period from 2014 fo 31 December 2018, as required by the Ministry of Finance under Official Letter No.
3910/BTC-TTr dated 3 April 2020.
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VIETNAM MARITIME CORPORATION — JSC

Mo, | Dao Duy Anh, Phucsp Mai Ward, Dong Da District, Hanoi

Form No B 09 — DN/HN
For the fiscal vear ended J1/12/2024

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT'D)
{Tireww noder v ma feviegend ool of oo sho el be reeel e confaection with the aroo mpenping faoncind reuements)

5

DOUBTFUL DERTS

Skari-term
- Boeh Danp Ehipbulding Iadustry Co.Lid
- Denmer Chartering & Trad ing Grobi
- DIC Investment and Trade JSC
= ¥inashin Ocean Shipping Cao,, Lid
= Nam Trieu Shipping Co., Lid
- Cai Mep Interpational Terminal Co,, Ll
= Dthers
Leng-term
Oithers

ot o W G = T, o 18

Avnaenrd a4
Coond Recovernhle Crst Recoverahle
ralue valar
Ll ] VNI YL VD
393.051,586,523 19,328,063, 388 374,119, 864,549 27,879,734,251

40,230 258, 319 - 40 230 358,310

16,658,268, 724 % 16,658, 268,774 -
B0,597, 598,942 3 65,437,185,833 5, 709,918,561
23.059,435.641 47,535, 804 |6, 547,728,383 .
21,977, 044,420 - 21.977.044,420 -
39.706,522.031 £, 543 030 048 - -
181,313,458, 445 20,435 187 636 4 FT0 378870 22169 KOS, 590
. - 36,567,700 -
. 16,567,700 -

T T T D TR T

374,166,432.249 27, 879,734,251



VIETNAM MARITIME CORPORATION - JSC Form No B 09 - DN/HN
No, 1 Dao Duy Anh, Phuong Mai Ward, Dong Da District, Hanoi For the fiscal vear ended 31/12/2024
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT’D)

(These notes are an integral part of and should be read in conjunction with the accompanying financial statemenis)

10. INVENTORIES

31/12/2024 01/01/2024

Cost Provision Cost Provision

YND VYND VND YND

- Raw materials 431,641,044 485 - 446,133,145,057 -
- Tools and supplies 29,133,777,571 - 23,996,756,296 -
- Work in progress 9,538,137,150 - 11,327,422,057 -
- Goods (*) 219,070,782,588 (204,319,590,800) 215,806,187,804 (204,453,892,650)
- Consignments - - 602,018,182 -
689,383,741,794 (204,319,590,800) 697,865,520,396 (204,453.892,650)

(*) The goods include two ship engines for 47,500 DWT (HB-02/03) built at Ha Long Shipbuilding One Member Limited Liability Company, with a
total value of VND 210,469,590.800. This project was discontinued following Resolution No. 513/NQ-HDTV dated 6 March 2015, by the
Corporation’s Board of Members. These two ship engines are currently being used by the Corporation as collateral with the Vietnam Development
Bank — Northeast Regional Development Bank Branch under the asset mortgage contract No. 2019/HBTCTS-NHPT dated 29 August 2019, As of 31
December 2024, the Corporation has made a provision for the impairment of these two ship engines, amounting to VND 204,319,590,800.

11. FINANCIAL INVESTMENTS

31/12/2024 01/01/2024
Cost Fair value Cost Fair value
VIND VYND VND VNI
Held to maturity invesments
Short-term 5,138,580,323,941 # 5,138,580,323,241 5,276,990,271,626 5,276,990,271,626
Term deposits (*) 5,138,580,323,941 5,138,580,323,941 5,276,990,271,626 5,276,590,271,626
5,138,580.323.941 5,138,580,323,941 5.276,990,271,626 5!176!990!271!626

(*) Term deposits ranging from 3 to 12 months at commercial banks.
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VIETNAM MARITIME CORPORATION = JISC

Na, | Das Duy Anh, Phuong Mai Ward, Dong Da District, Hanoi

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT'D)
[There notes e o fotegend purd o ced shatdd bo ros Tn comfane il e ith the cocnerning feora il sbeme ]

11. FINANCIAL INVESMENTS (CONTINUEL)

Jrverinent i JoiRt vERTUPeE, G5 Ciares
Compiny"s nama

= Khuyen luong Port JSC
- Loi Lan International Contmires Terminol Co., Lid
= Cn Tho Shiphuilding and Transooration JSC
= WOSCO Trading and Service JBC
= Vietnam Sea Transport soed Clrtering 15C
- Mam Can Port Joint Steck Company
= Thi Ve Ganarmal Port 150
- Ha: Phong Port Inveatment Development Secvice RSl
- Hat Phong Marine Invesmert ond Trading J5C
= Repull Shipping Company
= VOSCO Apency and Logistics I5C
- Tan Hung Phot Macitime Service 150
- Transportation and Trading Services JSC
Dong Do Moritime Jom: Stock Company
- H'H Logistics JEC
= iCun Lo Port 'Tugboat and Maoritime Service JSC
- 32k Gon Port Lagistica J5C
= Da Nang Port Logistics 150
= KM Cargo Service Hai Phong Co.,Litd

Form No B 0% — DN/HMN

For the flseal year ended 31/12/2024

311272024 01/ 12024

Proportion  Proparti Value (i) Proportion Proportion Value ()

of yoting om of of voting  of Inferesi

righis  Interest rirhis

i 3 ] VRN B T YD
40.00%  49.00% BB ATE DOT 45.0:0% 49.00% 32,352,707, 590
SO0 2B.34% - 50,00% 28.34% 5
1[4 31.45% - 31.45% 35345% -
645 23.69% 20,308,310,076 46.45%; 23.60% 20,328,470,544

4332%  43.32% - 44.61% 1%
4935%  45.35% - 49.35M 45 75%, .
21.00% 13.74% 17,000,263 402 21.00% 15.74% P, 195, BT9
N32% IR.25% 29, 757,030,562 30.52% 2R3 1],999.714,645
A053% 38 4E% 30,590,342,284 40.53% IRAEM 3&,_[!]4.56:,553
: : - 26.46% 26.46% 580,107,823
I600%  1R3I6% 1219817702 36% 18.36% 2.202,661,742
2000%  13.09% 1040, 00,1410 20.00% 13.09% 300,000,000
33.40%  33.40% £4,186,401,199 13,400, 13,494, 60,056,914,581
4BOTH  48.97% . 4897% 48.97% %
3881%  35.92% 14,900,653,069 I8 81% 35.92% 16,164 948 515
3600%  18.36% #,724,806,131 36.00% 18.36% 5,876,541 454
20.12%  1B.62% 2,627.515,041 20.12% 18.62% 1,678,103,402
4510%  33.60% 26,000,530,784 45.10°% 33.83% 25,501,991,538
IG00%  13.32% 23,779,148,807 36.00% 33329 21,380,249,716
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VIETNAM MARITIME CORPORATION —.J5C Form No B 09 — DN/HN

No. | Dan Duy Ank, Phuong Mai Ward, Dong Da District, Hanoi For the fiscal year ended 3171272024
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT'D)
(Tivaze novies are oo fmvegral part o and showkd ba recd (0 cogfeneidion with the srcompraying feeocin stofementz)

11. FINANCIAL INVESMENT (CONTINUEL)
Tnvesiment in joint ventires, associales

Company's name 31/1272024 01/01/2024
Proportiom  Proporti Value (T) Proportion  Prepartion Value (i)
of voting on ol of voting  of Interest
rights  Interest rights
e B ¥R o b YN
= Brmart I.ng_i:lnil:: Service Co,, Lid, (Hai Phaap) Z0p0%G 1B.519%% 35,405,162.924 - - -
= e Ming Pord Tughost JRC a0l 27008 JI 013,335 36.00% 2T.00% 29,050,220,748
= Bien Dong Logistics Joint Stock Company 21005 21.00%% - 2103 21.00% -
- Sni Gon Ben Tre Trading Service Transpor: Logistic 30.00%  13.00% - F0.00%45 13.05% 200,000,000
- Constrisction Comsulting for Maritine Bollding JSC 49.00% 49005 27, 349,0091,922 A% 1% 48 00% 26,604,292.514
- Hai A Marine Servics 150 . - - 26.46%% it 14,641 477,187
- ¥iship Maritime Transport Foint Stock Company FT00% 3700 - 3T.00% 37.00% -
- Vinalines Morth-East Joint Stock Company 25.00%  23.14% - 25.00% 27.14% -
= Internetional Mantme and Labor Copperstion JHC A5 (R 36.00% - 36.00% 36.00% -
= Oriental Shipping and Trading JSC (OSTC) 4900%  49.00% - 49.00% 49,00% -
= BF-85A Internetionsl Conianinor Services Joint Yenturs E0.00% J6. 5514 70,439, 259.571 S0,005%4 36.55%% 502 BT1,RO0. 157
Lompry
- Can The - Thanh Tuan Port Co.,Lad 47.19%  46.72% 4 FThADN, TES 7. 19% 406, T2% 5853054012
- Cai Mep Intemational Terminal Co., Ltd S000% 45.82% - 50.00% 45625 =
- 5P-F5A Inernational Port Co. Lid S000%s 38.54% 430, 181,278,305 S0,00% 18.54% 03, 380,063,021
- Koren Expraas Sai Gon Port Co.,Lid S0.00%% 32.71% 30.5%1,830,925 S0.00% 32 71% 31,B08,576,552
- NYK Auto Logistic Vietnam Co.,Ltd 20000%  10.21% 1,0585,273,059 20.00% 10.21% 4,7%1,572.238
= Vinalines Dong Do Ship Repair Co, Ltd 45.56%  45.56% - 45.56% 4556 -
- BITC Dinh Vu Lagistics Co.Lid SO00%  47.21%  184.849.146,303 S0, 00%% 47.21% 204,276,672,941
- What Viet liternetional Transport Joint Venturs Company 50.00%  SO.00%: 37.621,103,451 500084 50,00% 37, 155,841,108
- Vinalines Honda Lopistic Vietnam Co, Lid 2.12% 12.55% T.A627.902 383 221 12.55% B.674.889.576
- Vinalines Hoa Lac Lopistics Vietnam Co,,Ltd 37.89% 2.A49% 5,596,276, 146 AT.85% 21.05% S HEE0 8]
- Maorine Induatry Servize JSC - - . 2000 I 5000 13,289,887,592
!g!gmglﬂ!lﬂ 1541 08,629
41}
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VIETNAM MARITIME CORPORATION — JSC Form No B 09 — DN/HN
No. | Dao Duy Anh, Phoong Mai Ward, Dong Da District, Hanei For the fiscal year ended 311/1272024
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT™I)

et mater dre an imepnal port of awd shondd be road in confimorion wick th aecospanying fTeancial sirememty)

11 FINANCIAL INVESMENT {CONTINUED)

Investment in ofher entities

Company's name A1Masanid LRI O
Gid mic Dyrphing TV Gia give Drphing TV
YND VND % VND VNI "
Investment in other entities I80,522.247,319  (23,333,07R,200) - 405417 493,658 (23,064,587,0307 -
= iemam Maitime Commercicl Joind Siock Dank 44 105,028,230 . 129 45,000,200 2040 = M.)8%
- Yien Dong Poerl Urban Development Investment 30, 00 1 000,000 - SRESG RO CHYT 00,000 - 556%
Co.Lid
- T™ Infernatinnal Port Joint Stock Company 33,504.424,002 (11,880,635,615] 11.35% 33594424002 (21880635615 1L35%
- Qv Mhon New Port J5C 18, 000,000,000 - 16.68% b8, 00, nle0, G0 b - 16.68%%
= Cithers (5,268,204,013) (1,452,442 585] = 7,831,770,447 (1. 183,551.415) (08
Inveatment (n other catities by wolfare fund 6,000,162,283 (1,060,000, NN} - 6.000,162,283  (LOOO000.0007  O.00%
= Wisnam Merilime Commercial Toint Stock Bank 2.593,162,283 - - 2,593,162,283 - 0%
- Ofthers 3407000000  [1,000000,000% - TAUT000,000 (1000000000} -
_ISSRANGE _Q433TI00 - _ULAIT6SSM _ Q406SRT00) -

{i) For investments owned by the Corparation before 31 December 2006 (the date of enlerprise valuation for equitization), the investment valoe is
recurded based on the enterprise valuation results for equitization, as approved and announced by the competent authorities.

(i) Saigon Port Joint Stock Company (Saigon Port), a subsidiary of the Corporation, has recorded an investment in the form contributed capital by
nasets, specifically a 600-meter-long wharf (K6, K7, KB, K9, and K1) at Wha Reong - Khanh Hoi Port, into to MNgoo Vien Deong Investment
Nevelopment Co, Lid. (Mgac Vien Dong), with a contributed eapital valoe of YIND 300,00 1,000,000, equivalent o a §.6% ownership interest. Ssigon
Pari has et heen sble to ohtain the financial statements of Mgoe Vien Dong Company fram 2021 to the present. Howeves, the contributed asscts
remain under management, operation, and enmmercial use by the compeny, and Ngoe Vien Dong has committed 1 bearing all coals related to the
maragement and land use obligations with the Stale, in accordance with the Agreement dated 31 August 2017, between Npoc Vien Dong and Saigon
Porl. The Board of General Directors of the Corporation assesses that this investment has not suttered any impairment.

4]
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VIETNAM MARITIME CORPORATION - JJ5C Form Ne B 09 - DN/HN
Mo. | Dao Duy Anh, Phuong Mai Werd, Dong Da District, Hanoi _ For the fiscal yenr ended 31 112/20324
NOTES TO THE CﬂNEJLlD.ﬁ.TEh FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {l’ ONT ")

{Thees potes g nm Integrnd pert of oed should be recid b comjuncriad o ik fe scoompamping franefaf staremenrs)

13. TANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS

Builelings, Machincry, Vehicles, Management Oehers Total
strnctures e L ‘'ranzportation, eguipment
gy mipment
YND i 1] YD ¥ND ¥ND YND
HISTORICAL COST
01/00/2024 464304074324 L DNE, 024,662,795 18,350,324 910,304 135,558, 871,102 ST 168767710 31,225,381 305,744
- Constrochon vestment fet | 20 A 8E. 242 18,1 92,660,068 6,070, 488578 6,430,951 608 - 67231 6589490
enmpletiad
- Purchase n year 2,0:25,303,982 4591 63,494,801 491,715,569,444 14,099,540,709 650,750,000 B6T,654,658,000
- Liguidation, disposal {3,182,946,171) (89,679,654,858)  (2,219,707,935.217} < AR0RTAZI4)  (219,563.636)  (2318,485.980,091)
- Rcclassification 12,699,532, T 3.216,142,138 {15,250, 87E.069) (659,156,893) - .
- Handoves to Hai Phong (556,924,356,144) (263,479, 163) (5643476470 (2,793, 710,479) - (560,545,893 .433)
City
- (kher incronss/decronnss [5,270,858,4 TE) (15.287,040,000) (3,005,007 490 8B5.266,763  (1,534.625.R95) (2677649 205)
317122024 9,554,269 628,529 3,463,366, 786,431 15,639,582 815,300 247,21, 846,506  56,065.328,198 28,062, 641,030,949
ACCUMULATED DEFRECTATION
01012024 (5,361, 430,414,013) (2,178,762, 787.471) (15,184,280, 735 625) (158,960, 816,558) (45,257, 519,673) (22928, 700,273, 341)
- Dreprecinion in year {255,412426,990)  (177,524,303,109) [U9B493, 525 3777  [20,795429.855) (3,p3731E,733) (1,455,865 004 0564)
= Hendover o Hiei Plong 547,660 673 082 235,6TH, 0D 564,347,647 2,783 M0 AT = £51,254 409208
Ciny
- Liguidation, disposal 3,177 292,945 #9,575,162.225 2,172, 260,950,606 5,600 876,214 141,634 654 2270954 916,744
- Reelassification {10,897 574) {2,415457,400) 1,06]1,972.680 [ 36 252 306 (2 -
- Other increasas/docTewmes (7,760,952,582) 8,568,048,743 1,500,842, 745 {786,032,682) 1,534,625 805 1,522 805,624
31272024 !5&'1‘3& T28332)  [(2,260,222,7T59.512) !M.I]m.ﬂﬁ.lﬂ.luj {170,684, 310,086) (47218577849  (21,560,B31,14581Y)
NMET BOOK VALITE
011 2024 o, 1102, Bibd 660,311 Q09,2461,875,324 3,196, 044,193,669 T, S9H, 054,544 L0911, 248,05 B, 296 GR0,03 1,303
_ e R — PEEESSSEE I —_—— ——————— "]
My JWEH‘]ME’F IJI:!,]-H.[E&.!H!‘ 2031, 196 668,060 ﬂ.l.!'-'ﬁ!ﬁﬂ 8,545,750,349 RN ROG,885, 120

The historical cost of tangible fixed assets that have been fully deprociated but are still in use as of 31 December 2024, is VND B,891,181,259 (As at 31
December 2023: VD 6,710,265,079,306).

The carrying amount of tangible [xed assets pledged as collateral For borowings as of 31 December 2024, 1s VMND 1 345,974,609 436 (As at 31 December 2023:
VN 2,047, 770,795,671
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VIEINAM MARITIME CORPORATION — JSC Form No BU9 - DN/HN
MNo. | Dao Duy Anh, Phuong Mai Ward, For the fiscal year
Dong Da District, Hanoi ended 31/1 272024
NOTES TD THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS [CONT'D)

{iThese moms ave an intgral part of snd showk! be reod i camfnction with e mocompanying fnancial seemen)

1% FINANCIAL LEASE FIXED ASSETS

Buildings, Muchinery, Total
structures cquipmicni
YND YD YD
HISTORICAL COST
010172024 22,590,437,844 35,7000, M 58.290,437.844
30/12/2024 22,590.437,844 3511!&.1}!].{1]] 1.437.844
ACCUMULATED DEFRECIATION
010172024 (4,047,453 443) (6,098 T50,000) (10,146,203 443)
. Depreciation in vear (1,129 521 BRE) (1, 785.000,000) (2,914,521 888)
31122024 {S,ITE.B"I’E;'.:'._IE (7.B83.750.000) _{13,060,725.331)
NET BOOK YALUE
00172024 18,542,984 401 29,601, 250,000 15!“@&#!1
3171272024 17413 13 17,816,250,000 29,712,513
14. INTANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS
Lapd wee rights  Capyrights and Compuier  Other intangibis Total
patenis Sofiwary fixed assity
YD VND ¥hD D YAD
HISTORICAL COST
01002024 THRA83,574,719 ISLASLEN0 126796184949 14356822211 929, 5HH.480,979
- Purcheses in year s 561987433 = SA619.874,233
- Db decreases (A1 AA7 195) = (4135750000 210,000,000 (1.135.235,199}
IE024 T87.351,911.570 ISLE94800  122002487,167 _ 14.566822511 934,473,120,003
ACCUMULATED AVORTTEATION
0LOLZ024 (146,000 505,967) (351 508400) (5066046004) (14307 H15412) (2855760466203}
= Amorization {14,387 216,193} - [L1,7TB2.035 614) (43, 004, 750) {161 1L | 56567
- (bt incresse 632,400,541 . 160426,839 (165 BRI £95,072,541
s (@RS g PCOReho) (4SITRSI _ (0091451159
NET BOOK VALUE
(1} ] Pl G 6L 459,966,752 - 41,731 38855 d!,ﬂl"!ﬂﬂ ﬂﬁilﬁ.lihﬂﬁ
32024 617, 1 - JSIRRM.313 49147500 653451 467814

Cost of fully amortized imtangible fixed assets but sill in use as al 31 December 2024, s
YHDT5,102, 581,270, (As at 31 December 2023 VHD A 2,654, 800,559
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VIETNAM MARITIME CORPORATION - J5C
Ne. | Dao Duy Anh, Phueng Mai Ward,
Deng Da Distsict, Hanoi I
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT'D)

(I These roes are @i negrad part of end should Be read fn confunciion with ike dteampraing fnancid s

Form Mo BI9 — DN/HN
For the fiscal year
ended 317122024

15 [NVESTMENT PROPERTIES

16.

OLO1 2024 Increase in  Decréase in J1ZZ024
VELT year

VND hiuill YND YND

HISTORICAL COST TE9 TED B4R 418 1,796, 725,19 E01,560,573,617

- Land use rights 255797 524 208 - 255,797 525,14

- Building 541, 158,773,630 1,796 725,199 547 055 500,820

= Infrastructieo 20T 506,950 . - B0 545 DED

ACCUMULATED (343,668,359.497) (40,350,061 437) = [3B4.558460,934)
DEPRECLATION

- Land use fighis (54,459,720271)  (6141281,994) (60,601, 002,265)

= Bullding (2R 451 BART26) (33896819171} - (3223BRTTTEOT)

- Infrostruchore (716,820, 500) TR51,850,272) (1558 650,772]

NET BOOK VALUE 455,095, 448,921  (39,093.336,138) - 417,002,112 683

= Ladd uge rights 201,337,805,537 (6, 141.2B1.9594) 105, 156,523,543

- Building 052.666,916904 (32 1040,193.572) - 220,564,723 .912

- Infrastructune 2,08, 726, 480 {851,860.272) - |,238, 866,208

Investment properties primarily include the land use rights at Cai Mep Por, the Intemational
Maritime Trade Infoemation Center Building at Mo. 1 Dac Duy Anh, Phuong Mai, Dong Da,
Hanoi, and the Vimadeco Building st No. 163 Nguyen Yan Troi, Phu Nhuan District, Ho

Chi Minh City, which are currently being leased out.

The Fair value of these investment properties has not been officially assessed or determined
a8 of 31 December 2024, However, based on the rental situation and market prices of these
assets, the Executive Board of General Directors believes that the fair value of the
investment properties exceeds their carrying amount as of the financial year-end.

PREPAID EXPENSE

Short-term

- [NSUrANSE EXpEnEe

- Dispatched tools 2nd supplics

- Fixed asset repair cost

={hers

Long-tcrm

= Cood will

- Prepald lasd restal

- Repair costs ewailing allocazion
- Tools and supplies expense awaiting allacstion
- Pro-operating expanses

- Dithers

31/12/2024 010172024
VND VND

79,824 461,633 B8, BS3,920,088
21,284,996, 554 21,284,996 634
18.423.061,033 18,473,061,017
14 618,279,026 14618279026
25,498, 124,590 34,527,583,345
173,585,689,251  400,626,923,84Y
1,508,764 474 1,508,764, 474
70, 522,864,934 70,522, 864,974
226,194470,270  226,154,470,270
46,834,233 08S 46,834,233,085
5,169,139,803 %,169,119,803
23,266,216,685 50,307,451,282
453,410,150,584 489, 4H0,843,936
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T M



VIETNAM MARITIME CORPORATION - JSC
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT'D)
{These notes ave an integral part of and shonld be read in conjunction with the accompanying financial statements)

17. LONG-TERM ASSETS IN PROGRESS

Long-term work in progress

Project of construction of housing for emplayees of Sai Gon Port -
Phase 2

Construction in progress

-

-+

e

+

Procucement of fixed assets

Construction in progress

Project of 02 container terminals No. 03, 04 - Lach Huyen gateway
port (1)

Construction project of yards behind wharf No. 4,5
Construction invesiment profect of Sai Gon - Hiep Phuee (2)
Cai Cui Port Phase I (3)

Cai Cui Port Phase 11 (4)

Investment project to upgrade wharf No. |

- (uy Nhon Port (3)

Other profects

Major repair

e e T TR

31/12/2024 01/01/2024

Cost Recoverable Value Cost Recoverable Value

VND VYIND VND VIND
39,141,592,111 39,141,592,111 38,937, 789,457 38.937,789,457
79,141,592,111 39,141,592,111 38,937,789.457 38,937,789.457
3,489,131,060,882 3,489,131.060,882 2,475,402,619,717 2.475402,619.717
45,369,904,529 45,369 904,529 1,864,193,525 1,864,193,525
3,442,803,812,356 3,442 803,812,356 2,472,414,279,892 2.472.414,279.892
3,154,812 152200 3154812152200 1,618,005 587 322 1618005 587 322

: : 116,401,932,855 116,401,932,855
30,056,053,743 30,056,053,743 337,098,446,775 337,098,446.775
42,404,035,793 42,404.,035,793 59,433,908,642 59,433,908,642

8,647,825,475 8,647,825,475 8,647,825,475 2,647 825,475

3 = 73,258,538,517 73,258,538,517

206,883, 745,136 200,883,745, 136 250 568,040,300 259,508, 040, 306
957,343,997 957,343,997 1,124,146,300 1,124, 146,300
3,528,272,652,993 3,528,272,652,993 2,514,340,409,174 2,514,340,409,174
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17.

LONG-TERM ASSETS IN PROGRESS (CONT'DY)

(1) Projoct Information — Construction of container terminals Ne. 3 and Mo, 4 at Hai Phong Intemational Geteveay Port (Lech Huyen Port Area), Hui Phong City

Investor: Hoi Phong Port Joint Stock Company

Purperse: To mest tie development schedule of mvestment and constroction prsjects for eeenomic and social infrastroctore in Hai Phong Cliry

Location: Loach Huyen Port Aren, within Dinh Vu - Cat Hai Eeonomie Zone, Cat Hai Distriet, Hai Phong City

Total imvestmnent capital: VND 6946 billion

Project implementation and expectad completion timeline: From 2020 to 2025

Investment capital sources: Estimated 55% loan firancing and 453% equity capital

Praject scope: Construction of 02 termivals for ships up to 100,000DWT (nearly 8,000 leu) with a tokl length of 750m, & width of 50m, Darge and
service terminal with & total length of 250m (including 50m width of the main barth), 15m wide for ships up to 3,000 DWT (nearly 160 teu); Bank
protection embankment; System of storage yards, roads, auxiliary works end technical infrastrecture, synchronous equipment (mesting goeds ontput
through 1.0 - 1.1 million tzw'year) on an area of 47 ha ; The main equipment for exploitation: 06 STS cranes cn the main wharf} 24 K1'Gs, 02 RS0
focklifts; 01 empty forkdift; 50 traciors + traibers; 01 repair workshop crane, 08 vehicle scales st the port gate and Terminal Operating System (TTI5)
software for port mancgement;

Status of the project as at 31 Decamber 2074 The company has completed 55 41% of the total project volume. Phase | is expected to be put into operation
in March 2023, with Tull project completion by the end of 20235,

(2) Genernl information about the project

Investar: Saigon — Hiep Phooe Part lomi Steck Compamye;

Address: D10C, D3 Road, Hiep Phuoe Industrial Park, Nha Be District, Ho Chi Minh City.

Purpose: To Facilitate th= relocation of the Nha Rong - Khanh Hai Por of Sai Gon Port in accerdance with Official Letter No. 1603/ TTg-CN dated 10
October 2006, issued by the Prime Minister, allowing investment in ports along the Saigon River,;

Scale: 3606 ha;

Tatal investment capital: VIND 2,777 billion;

Stams of the project: The project has completed BON meters of herths, two warchouses, and 118,000 m® of cargo yards. The remaining infrastructure is still
uncer simultzaeous construction and operation, utilizing completed Gcilities. The wepected completion date is May 2025,

Un 12 Uetober 2022, the Company submitted Document No. 998 PH-2022 to the Boerd of Directors and is waiting for the Board of Directors’ sppriveal
for the adjusted budget. Accordingly, the adjusted estimated management cost is VIND 56,746,708,000. As of December 31, 2024, the peovisionally
copitalized construetion value is VMDD 1,529,821, 772,965, The company is in the process of fipalizing documentation to request approval for the
adjustinent of invesiment cost estimates for the prejeci.

4a
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17.

LONG-TERM ASSETS IN PROGRESS (CONT'D)

{3} Investor: Can Tho Port Joing Stock Comipany

Construction purpose: Land reclamation of 23.4 hectares, enhancing the best exploitation of the potential of the central maritime
exchange hub in the Mekong Delta region, creating a driving force to accelerate the sconomic development process, primasily for
Can Tho city,

Constroction kcation: Tan Pha Ward, Cai Rang District, Can Tho Cily,

Total investment: 230.3 billion VIND

Start and expected completion date: Prom 2002 1o 201 1, currently extended bevend the original schedule,

Project status as of 20/062024; The project has been completed amd pui inlo operation for en area of 9.5 héctares. The remaining
area hes just been leveled. and a scawall has been built, but necessary infrastructure for port operetions has not been invested in vet
The company is continuing to invest to complete the project’s components for business operatioms.

(4] Iewestor: Can The Port Joint Stoek Company

Construction purpose: Development of Cal Cul Port with a capecity of 4.0 - 4.5 million l.nus-fwur. receiving vessels with a capucity
of up to 20,000 DWT, enhancing the best exploitation of the potential of the central maritime cxchange hub in the Mekong Delta
region, creating a driving force to accelerate the aconomic development process, primarily for Can Tho city.

Construction Jocation: Tan Pho Ward, Cai Rang District, Can Tho City.

Tatal investment: 8208 billion VND

Start date: From 2008, curently extended beyond the ariginal schadule.

Project status as of 30V062024: The project has just carried out land reclamation and completed some small components. The
comparty is wailing 1o lnalize legal procedures and raise fuisds to continue the irvestment and camplzte the project components for
busziness operations,
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18. SHORT-TERM TRADE PAYABLES

Shori-term

Reluted Partios

= Cospstroztion Consaliaien JAC for Baditome Bullding

= Cai Mep Intermmionz| Teminal Co., Taid
Kooren Exprezs Sai Guon Port Cao,lLud

= BI - I'SA Intemntional Pord Co. Lt

- Dia Marg Port Logistics J5C

- D Many Thiwrl '|'|.g|'l:-! 1842

. Cal Lan Internationad Conialner Terminn! Co,, Ll

- HPFH Leglatics J8C

= Tiorg Do Marine 150

= WORCO Trndlmg mod Jervice T30

- BP-S8A Internationa] Contuines Services Tolot Ventue

- Cum Lo Port Tugbeat snd Maritirne Service J3C

= Haigon Maritme Jalm Siock Company

= Maritime Industrial Service Joint Siock Company

Olver parties

- Huloag Shipbuilding Ona bMember OF Responsibility Co.,
Lid

= Vietnam Development Bank

= Wietnnm Walerway Construction Joint Stoek Corporation
- Branch D

= Hai Phorg Lifting Foguipmemt Co,, Lid

« MITSUI EES Ca., Lid

= Phu Xusn Consulting and Construction FSOC

= Hanoi Waler F‘lujﬂ.'l Construciion FSC

- Beeh Dang Shipbuilding Company Limited

= Onherm

IWIZR0E4 LR P S

Amount Ahility-to-pay Anaunt Abilty-t1o-pay
amount amonni
VND VND VNI VNI
1,698,829,979, 726 1,698, 020,979,726 1172462471665 1,180,342 877,611
26,364, £ 72,000 26,364, 572,905 23,500,740, 796 27,508, 746, 796
2 062 1029, TOE 2,082,029, 708 157,926,462 157,926,462
49,500,000 40, 500,000 A00, 758,770 100,758, 7T

TRT 712,782 TRT, 722,782 LA18,136333 418,136,333
142,441,583 [ £2.441 583 3,217,264 1,217.264
3.119,067,702 1,119,967, 702 6,596,407,031 3, 506497031

5 826,565,009 9,526,865,009 11,286,544,555 11,286,044,555
1.575,217.879 1,575, 217,879 275,586,818 275,686,818
219,620,463 239,620,463 16,053,552 16,053,552

2 004,677,253 2,004, 677,253 29,416,000 519,416,000
504,464,360 554, 464, 360 2,467,798,564 2,467,798,564
1,396, T4, 292 3,356, 706, 292 - -

3 - 272,905,190 272,905,190

404, 263,266 404, 263,266 60,561,000 Bl 561,000
141,096,603 L4 1,006,603 |4,84%,248 14,045,248
1,671,668,406,526 1,671,665,406,826 1148961724840 1 156542,130.K15
32,067,142, 734 06T 142,74 F2067,042,7T14 32067, 142,734
= - 1BG,085 462,583 1B6,085,462,583

| 6,665,300, 615 16,665, 309,615 23878 400,048 29.828,400,049
30, 700,000,000 30,700,000,000 s ¥
534,268,317,306 534,268,317,506 s -
246,586,354,7T46 246,886,354 746 7, B00, 405 946 7.080,405 996
- . 17,724,828, 1 69 17,724,828,169

72.806.29E 515 72 B0G,298,515 T2,806,298.513 71,806,298,515
TOT 571 583 4590 T07.571,983,690 BOB 567, 1 B6. BT Bl6.4459 501,819
1 60N0T0,0T0.796  1,699.019.979.716  1,172A62471,665  1,172.462,471,665
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1% TAX ANDOTHFR PAYADBLES TO THE STATE BUDGET

Tax payables

= Waloe added tax

- Export. import dutizs

- Corporsie income fex

- Personal income ta

- Land tax, land rental (*)
- Emvironmental Toxes

« Dther taxey

Tax receivables

= Value added tax

= Corporale Income tax

- Pereonal income tax

= Lamdd tax, land rental {*)

= Other taxes

= Fees, churnges & otier payaliles

AT EED 4y

Toim Mo T8 049 - TN

For the fiscal year ended 3 1/12/2024

0LAUL2024  Amount to be paid Amount aciually 311272024

in year paisd in year
VML YD YND VND
6,333,342.963 153,437,934 538 148,515,399,706 11457,877,785
u 637,176,957 637,176,957 4
216,792.395.427 543,031,188 895 ST1,835,T92 4D 187 987,791,842
3,015,473,398 §2,634,830,307 71,208 518,410 14,471,785,185
60,163, 867,679 Z16.957 828, 2HY 185, 75347243 91,358,223,516
- 458,107,000 d5E 107,000 -
6,458 941 767 74 808,225 958 A2.016,554.093 4,230.611,672
292,996.001,234 1,076, 965,290,073 1,060.445,021 097 W 516,290,710
(K1/01/2024 Amnunt actually Amaunt tn be paid A1/12/2024

paid in venr in year
VND VND VT YND
5,449,237,851 427,548,045 3,104,543,574 2,771,842,123
B,577.124,607 110,434,352 243,691,401 8,443,868,058
1442210511 450431815 1,054,189,234 E3IB.462,092
145,980,071 348 35,028,845,711 53 844,037,033 127,174,780 636
1,450,892 4,000,200 5,480,892 -

264 5,191 B8 1517

161 460,034,209 ﬂm-[l.'.ﬂﬁ.iu‘]* S4,261,987.325 139,118,951 499
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15. TAX AND OTHER PAYABLES TO THE STATE BUDGET (CONT’D)

(*) Including;

- Saigon Port has temporarily estimated the remaining land rental fees payable for the
Nha Rorng - Khanh Hoi Port area up to the time the Company signed an agreement
with Ngoe Vien Dong Urban Development Investment Co., Ltd. (Ngoc Vien Dong),
the investor of the Nha Rong - Khanh Hoi Port Project, under Investment Policy
Decision No. 6815/QD-UBND dated 29 December 2016, issued by the People's
Committee of Ho Chi Minh City. The estimated amount is VND 40,247,522,180.
The company has engaged in multiple correspondences with the Ho Chi Minh City
Tax Department regarding land rental fees for this arca for the period from 01
January 1, 2017 to August 31, 2017. However, as of the date of this report, the
company has not yet received a final response from the competent authority.

- Saigon Port has made temporary payments for land rental and land tax for the
period from 2015 to 2020 at Tan Thuan 1 and Tan Thuan 2 Ports (Tan Thuan Dong)
as per the notifications from the District 7 Tax Department, Ho Chi Minh City,
totaling VIND 124,474,343,440. The tax authority applied the office rental unit price
to calculate the land rental fee for the entire leased area. However, in reality, most
of the leased area is used for berths and warehouses, which have lower rental unit
prices than those used by the tax authority. Accordingly, the company has sent
multiple official correspondences to the District 7 Tax Department - Ho Chi Minh
City and other relevant authorities regarding the determination of area, unit price,
and usage purpose for the leased land based on the mentioned notifications, As of
the date of this report, the company has not yet received a final response from these
authorities.

20. ACCRUED EXPENSES

31/12/2024 01/01/2024

VND VYIND

Short-term 2,313,842,060,507 2,238,687.385,014

- Interest expense (*) 2,250,074,143,39R 2.169,977,156,047

- Shiprepair expense 5,015,912,043 6,506,366,832

- Expenses for public works of housing area 15,389,773,022 15,750,687,210
for employees of Sai Gon Port

- Cost of services rended 6,798,753,561 5,285,528,151

- Land tax payaple 441,209,387 428,256,660

- Others 36,122,269,096 40,739,390,114

Leong-term 13,882,563,322 14,310,819,982

- Land tax payable 13,882,563,322 14,310,819,982

2,327,724,623,829 2,252,998,204,996

(*) Including payables of Vietnam Shipbuilding Finance Company Limited (VFC) with the balance
as at 31 December 2024, consisting of a VND loan totaling VND 728,311,773,798, which includes
VND 317,867,277,106 and USD 16,728,423.67 (as of 1 January 2024, the balance was VND
314,545,473,772 and USD 16,728,423.67). According to confirmation letters and loan interest
notifications from VFC, the interest receivable by VFC from Bien Dong exceeds the amount
recorded by Bien Dong as of 1 January 2024, and 31 December 2024, by USD 59,208,393.37 and
USD 63,541,824.47, respectively. This loan interest relates to the principal debt used to finance the
construction of the 1,730 TEU V22 container ship, which was transferred to Bach Dang
Shipbuilding One Member Co., Ltd (See Note 8 — Other Receivables and Note 24 — Loans and
Finance Lease Liabilities for more details.)
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WNo. 1 Dao Duy Anh, Piuong Ma! Ward,

Dung Cra Lisirict, Hano
NOTES TD THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT'IN

Form Mo, B09 — DIN/HIN

For the fiscal year
ended 31/12/2024
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iL

Iz,

UNEARNED REVENUES

Shori-term

Revenue received in advance for leasing
premises

Fevenue received m advance from sea
[Fansporl sctivities

Reveriue received in advance from port
operation activitics

Oitihers

Long-term

Revenue reeeived in advanee for leasing
premises

OTHER FAYABLES

Short-term

= Trade union fes

- Soeial insarance

= Health insurance

= Unemplayment insurance

= Pavable on equitization

= Shoct=term deposit, collaeral received

= iher payvables
+ Dhividlend profl payables
+ Inierest payabies to Ronk and ather
i tiin o (14
+ Peaymenir on behaly of ol amonnd
recwived 12 pay shipoing limes on behag of
IRIEIRE companies
+ Erpluyees® PIT hos nof et been
firalizad
+ Compensation casts for the relocalon of
Hoacrere e Povt (2]
MRzrs

3141272024 nimL20z24

VND VND
25,249.417.363 19,997,232,312
3.642.452. 775 4,005 026,154
4,267,032 584 4,792,208 M6
10,151,840, 748 0.535,048,336
7,188,091,256 1,650,948 836
44,734 415,104 4 652 204,284
44.734,415.104 44 652 204, 284
M M
310123024 o12024

YND YD
1,542,520,618,319 1,414.230,211.311
10,041,254, 296 10.081,222.308
376,559 352 21,280,559

O3 B00, 825 O ISR c00
165,345 568 3,728,533
160,235,795, 191 18, 100,592,423
[8,333,906,474 18.329,5830,505
1353,974 320,51 13675594997 464
IS0F7FI7 824 T8 2T 412
P4 405,253,421 1037 546,445 550
T T R0 008 TREIT 406 91

& 401 360870 4,787,904 285

&4 A 613821 -
22Z 8676467 IE0055,623 326

i1
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22. OTHER PAYABLES (CONTINUED)

Long-term .
- Long-term deposit, collateral received

- Other payables
+ Payable to Vien Dong Pearl Urban

Development Investment Co., Ltd. in
advances for the relocation and support of

emplovees (3)
+ Payable 1o State budger in capital

advances for the implementation of Saigon
- Hiep Phuac Port censtruction investment

mraject (4)

t Temporarily increase in the original
cost of ship (Lucky Star, Blue Srar, Vosco
Sunrise] (3)

+ Shipbuilding hdusiry Corporation -
Advance capital (6)

(Mthers

Other short-term payables are related
parties
SG - 884 Port International Container
Services Jaint Venture Company
8P - PS4 International Port Co., Ltd
SITC - Dinh Vu Logistics Co., Lid

Cua Lo Port Tugboat and Maritime

Services Co.,Ltd
Thi Vai General Port JSC

Da Nang Port Logistics JSC

Da Narng Port Tughoat JSC

Vinashin Vien Duong Transport Co.,Ltd
Bien Dong Logistics Joint Stock Company
Maritime Construction Consulting Joint
Steck Company (CMB)

(1) Including:

31/12/2024 01/01/2024

VND VND
2,381,238,467,846  2,407,085,935,506
104,315,719,784 62,170,833,632
2.276,922,748,062  2,344,915,101,874
850,000,000,000 850,000,000,000
599,000,000,000 599,000,000,000

487,172,201,784

191,025 462 572

516,672,201,784

191,025,462,572

149,725,083,706 188,217,437 518
3,924,059,086,665 3,821,316,846,817
311122024 01/01/2024
VND VYND
34,875,403,269 29,240,616,326
4,455,468,624 841,043,603
484,526,024 729,914,777

= 7,190,708

50,500,000 2
224,573,843 314,646,277

- 5,136,480

1157429 129 57,338,164
28,502,905,649 27,285,346,321
60,000,000 .
92,411,613 -

- Interest payable to the Vietnam Development Bank — Can Tho Regional Branch related
to a loan agreement for the investment and construction of the Hau Giang Shipyard
amounts to approximately VND 28.2 billion. After the debt rescheduling period under
Resolution No. 107/NQ-CP dated 10 October 2017, issued by the Government, this loan
continues to accrue interest at the bank's announced interest rate.
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al1.

(2)

()

(4)

OTHER PAYABLES (CONTINUED)

Interest payeble to Shipowilding Industry Finance One Member Limited Liability
Compeny [VEC), ameunting to over YWD 26.7 billion, related to a loan agrecment tor
the investment and construction of the Hau Giang Shipyard. This project was pan of the
USD 600 million foreign loan-funded project portfolio, as stipalated in Decision No.
1986/OD-CNT-TCKT dated 26 June2007, issued by the Bourd of Directors of Vielnam
Shipbuilding [ndustry Group (Vinashin), with an interest rate of 9.3% per annum and a
loan value of VD 28.6 billion. As of now, the Heu Giang Shipyard Project has been
permencntly diseontinued under Official Letter No. 403/TTg-KTN dated 29 March
2013, issued by the Prime Minister. This forcign loan was restructured under Resolution
No. 107/MQ-CP doted 10 Qewober 2017, issved by the Government, with & preferential
interest rate, and the company is currently accruing interest at a rate of 1.2% per annum.
However, the Company and VFC have not yet reached an agreement on the applicable
interest rate for the loan principal from VEC since the issuance of Resolution No.
107/N0Q-CP. VFC has not vet implemented the debt restrocturing under the resolution
and continues to apply the contractual interest rate of 9.5% per anaam to the Company.
Interest payable to the Viemam Development Bank under losn agreements for investment
in shipbuilding projects, with & total value of approximately VND 490 billion.

In 2024, Port of Hai Phong Joint Stock Company (Hai Phong Port), a subsidiary, received
aver VND 319 billion from the Peaple's Committee of Ngo Chuyen Dismict to facilitate the
relocation of Hoeng Dieu Port, in actordance with Decision No. 3983/4013-UBNL and No.
3084/D-TIRND dated 22 Decemnber 2023, issued by the Pecple's Cormmittee of Ngo Quyen
Dhistrict, regarding land recovery; Decision No, 3982/0D-UBND dated 22 December 2023,
Decision No. 4274/0D-UBND dated 28 Decomber 2023, Decision No.347/QD-UEND
dated 15 Mareh 2024, and Decizion No, 245%QD-UBND dated 1 Octoher 2024, issued by
the People’s Committes of Ngo (Juyen District, regarding the approval of compensation
plans for Hai Phong Port Joint Stock Company. OF this asount, VND 54.4 billion was
allocated for asset relocation compensation. As of 31 December 2024, the remaining
balanes of the reloeation compensation costs for Hoang Dieu Port is VNI 80 hillion.
Payable 1o Ngoc Vien Dong Urban Development Investment Co., Lid (Ngoc Vien Dong).
This payeble relates 1o capital advances provided by Ngoc Vien Dong in response to the
capital requirements of Saigon Port Joint Stock Company from 2013 10 2013, s gpproved
by the Ministry of Transport, for the construction anc operation of Phase | of the Saigon -
Hiep Phucc Port project (now under the management of Saigon Hiep Fhuoe Port Joint Stock
Company, # subsidizry of the Corporation]. Under the handover agreement dated 31 August
2017, Ngoc Vien Dong agreed to temporarily return the original condition of the premises to
allow the Company to continue managing, operating, and conducting business at the Nha
Rong - Kharh Hoi area while the construction of Saigon - Hiep Phuoc Port L ET
incomplete, The Company is responsible for completing the relocation and asset handling
process, provided that Ngoc Vien Dong completes all legal procedures. related to land use
rights. During this period, the Company will not bear any related land use costs {effective
from 31 August 2017). Once the relocation process is completed, the seftlement of this
capital advance will be camied out between Saigon Pori, the Munistry of Finance, and MNgoe
Vien Dong,

This payable relates to an advance received from the State Budget in 2009 and 2010 by
Saigon Port to finance the investment and constructicn of the Saigon - Hiep Phuoc Port
project, which is now managed by Saigon Hiep Phuoe Port loint Stock Company, a
subsidiary of the Company. According to Decision No. 462010/Q0D-TTg dated 24 June
3010, igsued by the Prime Minister, this capital advance must be repaid to the State Budget
once the construction of the Saigon - Hiep Phuoo Port project is completed, As of now, the
project remaing under construction.
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22.

13.

OTHER PAYARLES (CONTINUED)]

(5) Provision for payable to increase the cost of fixed nssets at Vietnnm Ocean Shipping Joint

Stock Company. The Compary is in the process of finalizing decumentation to seifle the
cost of the vessels Lucky Star, Blue Star, and Vosco Sunrise, including prepayments made
to Bach Dang Shipbuilding One Member Limited Liability Compamny and Nam Trieu
Shipbuilding Onz Member Limited Lisbility Compeny.

() Payable to Vietnam Shipbuilding Indusiry Corporation (SBIC). This payable relates 1o

funding with intercst received from SBIC for operations during the perind from i
cetablishmant until 2000, speeifically for the mvestment in the Hau Gieng Shipyard Project
This project was permanently discontinued wnder Official Letter No. 403/ TTg-KTN dated
29 March 2012, issued by the Prime Minisler. The interest accrued on this debt was
restructured under Resolution No. [07/MNQ-CP dated 10 October 2017, issued by the
Government, which stipulated the cancellation of acerued interest. As.of 31 December 2024,
SBIC has not yet implemenied the Government's resolution end continues to nolify the

Company of interest charpes annually.

DEFERRED INCOME TAX LIABILITIES

Deferred ineome tax labilitles

311272024 01012024
Dieferred income tax Habilities arising from 468 876,542 109 493,673,493 083

deductible temporary differences

468,876,542,100 493,673,493,083
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I4. LOANS AND OBLIGATIONS UNDER FINANCE LEASES

D11 2024 During the year 31212024
Amount Ability-to-pay Increase Decrease Amauni Ability-to-pay
amouni amipuni
YN YND VNI VNI ¥IND YD
Shori-term loan 1,4%4,330,731,754 1,496,330,731,754 247 892294,150 46.5,549,043,559 L2ZB0,6T3, 086,345 L, 280,673, 986,345
Shart-1zrm loan B85 441,441,303 B5. 441 441,303 06,865,128,033 64,577 A18,610 117,729,150,726 117,729, 150,726
Current poridon of 1,410,888 290 451 1,410,869,200 451 151,027, 70,117 JUESTEE2E049 |, 0162,944,835,61% 1,162,044 B35 410
bong-term Josa
Long-term loan 1,702 085,060,787 1,792,085, 060,787 A6S,970,417.669  458,505,795,615  1,990.540682 841 1,999,549,682 841
Total 38415702541 _ IFRRAISTORSAL _ 913862715810 _ 922.054839.174 _ 3,280.123,669.186 _ 3.280,223,659,186
Shori-term borrowings
Currency Interest rateiyvear Cusranies Ifz2024
VD
Vietnam Skipbuilding Finance Co.Ltd (1} UED Specified in each loan agreement Unsecused 59.080,000,000
¥ietnzm Development Bank VND Spexified in cach loan agreement Collatoral 1,051,839, 588,728
QDA due lomn (3) Use Specified in each loan agreament Unsecured 23,523,799,200
Others VND Specified in each loan agreement Unsecured, Collateral 146,230,558,318
1 GB6,345
35
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4

(1

LAIANS AND DBLIGATIONS UNDER FINANCE LEASES (CONTINUED)

Lang-term borrawings
Currency Interest rafe/yenr Guaranton AV12/2024
paa VND
Viemam Development Bank Vil Secified in cech loan agroement Lingecurcd, Collzteral 248,406,295 507
Viewam Sniphailding Finanes Co.Ltd (1] LD Specified in cach loan agreeent Unsecured 46,495,501,428
PSA VietNam PreLid (2) LISTY Specified in esch loan agreement Unsecured 426,439.330,000
Lang-derm QDA nan (3) UsD Specified in each loan agroement Lnsecured 481,315473,54]
Dy Nang City Investrment end Developmient Fuand VNI Specified in cech lonn agrocment Unsecured 252,872,800,000
Juint Stock Commcreinl Bank for Investruend and
Dievelopment of Vietnnm = Hanod Dranch VHDE Specified i eech loan agrecment Unsecured, Collateral 225,547 512 953
Uthars VND Specified in each kan agreesicnt Unsecured, Coilaters] 318,457, 768,940
1,909 41
Including:

The Joan of Bien Dong One Mamber Limited Liability Shipping Company (Bien Dong) with Shiphuilding Industry One Member Limited Liability
Finance Company (VFC) had a halance as of 31 Decomber 2024, of VMN59,080,000,000 I (as of 31 December 2023, it was VND 39, 080,00K,000).
This loan was used to finence the 1730 TEU V22 Container Shipbuilding Project, which was handed over to Bach Dang One Member Limited Liability
Shipbuilding Company [Bach Deng). Specifically, in accordance with Resolution Mo, 31TMNOQ-CNTT dated 23 Movember 2005, issued by the Vietnam
Shipbuilding Industry Corporation, which approved the transfer of debt recipizuts from the entrusted eapital af the Uorporation at the VFC regarding
the reallocation of the 1,730 TEL - V22 new shiphuilding investment project from Bien Dong to Bach Dang, and the handover minutes signed on 3
Aupust 2015, between the Company and Bach Dang, Bien Dong has wansferred (his project, including the principal |can and related mterest, to Bach
Ding from 5 August 2005

The loon fram VFC was used to implement investment projects of Hau Giang One Member Limited Lishility Shipyard Compeny according to the list
of projects using the $600 million forcign loan fund stiputated in Decision No. 1986/0B-CNT-TCKT dated 26 June 2007, ol the Bosnd of Directors of
the Vietnam Shipbuilding Industry Group. The loan carries an intevest rate of 9.5% per year, with a loan term of 10 yeors from tho first disburcement
daic anil 2 grace period of 2 years. The initiel principal loan belance in VMDD was mutually agreed upon by the parties fo be comverted to LISD at
1,070,144.91 USD. This loan is secured by assets formed from the loan capital. The loan was restructured aceording to Government Resolution No.
107MNQ-CP dated 10 Dctober 2017 As of 31 December, the company has cumulatively peid VEC VND 3.5 billion, equivalent to appeoximately
LUSI2.146,133.96 Through the Vinashin restructuring apreement, ull outstanding debi has becn agreed upon by croditors to be defermed until 30
December 2025, with an interest mle of 1% per year, which will be calcalated ot the end of the peciod.

26
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4.
(2)

(3

LOANS AND OBLICATIONS UNDER FINANCE LEASES (CONTINUED)

Lian details:

PEA Vittnom Pz, Lid, Seigon Port Joint Steck Company, and Vietnam Maritime Corporation - JSC are shareholders contributing eapital 1o SP-PSA
International Port Co., Lid. The sharcholders apreed to provide a loan to SP-PSA Internationa! Port Co., Ltd. under a sharcholder loan agreement disted
26 August 2008, with a total loan amount of 1IST 33,000,000, including phase A of USD 28,196,202.53 and phase B of USD 4.803,797.47, PSA
Vietnam Pre. Lid. advanced the entire loan amount. Vielnam Maritine Corpomation amd Saigon Port will teke on the debt with PSA Vietnam Pte. Lid.,
with o total principal foan amount of USD 16,830,000, corresponding to their 31% ownership in the company.

Loan Purpose: The loan was used for SP-PSA International Port Co, Lid. to cover project development costs, design, engineering, procurement of
materials and equipment. construction, operations, instellation, completion, financing, maintenance, marketing, replacement, and repair ol & two-berth
comainer port located in Phu My Town, Tan Thanh Disirict, Ba Ria - Yung Tau Frovince. This meludes a 600-meter berth and several quay cranes,
Lian Interest Rate: The interest rate applied under the Sharcholder Loan Agrecment was based on the 6-month LIBOR rate. From 16 December 2013,
PSA has notified that the interest rate will be temporarily calculated hased on the Secured Ovemight Financing Rate (SUFR).

As per the Supplementary Agreement (signed on 26 May 2008, berween SP-PSA, Its sharcholders, and Calyon), all outsianding debis of SP-PSA
International Port Co., Lad, that were not advanced by sharcholders must be repaid immediately upon request by the sharcholders or the advancing
sharcholders. Furthermore, under the Sharchelder Loan Agreement, all dividends and other distributed amounts (if any, for Vietnun Muritine
Corporation and Saigon Port) eader the Joint Venture Agreement or Articles of Association will be prioritized for repaying the prircipal loan (and
aecrued interest) until the loan is fully settled. At the time of preparing the consclidated fingncial statements, Vietnam Maritime Corporation and
Subgon Port are still I disevssions with relevant partiss to finalize the contract addendum and the basis for calculating receiveble and payable interest.
Incleding:

The loan balance under Loan Agreement No, 022004/ TDNN, dated 21 December 2004, signed between the Hail Phong Branch of the Development
Support Fund and Hai Phong Port (now Port of Hai Phong Jeint Stock Company). The loan was mken 1o Invest in equipment for the "Hai Phong Port
Uperade and Renovatlen Project - Phase IT™ project. 1 is an unsecured loan with an inferest rale of 1.3% per year, with the finel principal and interest
payment due on 20 Angust 2029, As of 31 December 2024, the cutstanding principal belanco in Japanese Yen (JPY) ia JPY 784,283,500.00 (equivalem
to WVND 121,509,042,655), of which the current portion of long-term debt due is TPY [56 856, 70000 (equivalent to VNITZS, 520, 799,299).

The recognized debt value releted fo Berths Mo, U4 end No. 05 and the container yard at Chua Ve Terminal - Hai Phong Por, along with other
allocaied costs, was recorded based on Decision Ne. 4196/QD-BGTVT, issued on 25 November 2015, by the Ministry of Transport. The totel
recopnized debt value s VWD 383.3 billion.

According tv Decision No, 4136/QD-BGTVT and the Minutes of Inspection and Determination of Stale Capital Value, along with the settlement of
procesds from the equitization of Hai Phong Port One Member Limited Liability Company at the time of its official ansition (o 4 joinl-stock
company, which was gigned between the Working Group of Vietnam Maritune Corporation and the company s represcntatives on 10 October 2006, the
company has temporarily adjusted the value of the aforementioned assets and equipment and recognized the loan value at a totel amount of VIND 383.3
billion (including VND 342.1 billion as the settled value of the two berths and VNI 41.2 hillion as other allocated oosts for the equipment packige
within the project). This recognition was retrospectively adjusted by the company os of | July 2014 (the date the company offiially transitioned into a
joint-stock company’k

57
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4.

"

LOANS AND OBLIGCATIONS UNDER FINANCE LEASES (CONTINUED)

A1 present, the borrowing and repayment plan (including loan term, repayment. plan, iatorest rate, and security temmz), as well 4¢ the currency of the
debt recognition (Vietnsmese Dong or Japanese Yen), has not been approved by the relovant Stale maonagement agencies af the time of debt
recognition. Therefore, the company has semporarily recorded these Joans in Viemamese Dong and has acerued interest expenses for the period from 1
July 2014, to 31 Decernber 2018, a1 an interest rate of 9.5% per year, plus a re-lending cost of 0.2% per year, In 2020, pursuam 10 Eesolution No.
TI/MNQ-CHP dated 12 June 2020, of the Board of Directors of Port of Hai Phong Joint Stock Company, the company ceased aceruing intsrest expenses
from the beginning of 2020,

In Official Letter No. 8715/RTC-PLN dated 23 July 201K, from the Ministry of Finance and Official Letter No. 10582/VPCP-KTTH dated 1 Navemnber
2018, from the Government Office, the Govermmend Office apresd with (he Ministry of Finance's proposal to review the basis for recognizing the value
of Berths Mo. 4 end No. 5, as woll as the associnted loan conditions, The Government Office also approved the policy of re-lending the equipment costs
under & mechanism similar to thet approved by the Pritne Minister in Official Letter o, 1596/ CP-OHOT dated 25 Oetober 2004, Specifically, the re-
lending interest rate in Japanese Yen is |.5% per yoar, Additionally, the Ministry of Finance has required & re-examingtion of the company's
equitization process (since the settlement of State capital value at the time of equitization has not yel been approved by the competent authorities).
Once the Ministry of Finance officdally approves the loan end repayment plan, the company will adjust ils financial statements accordingly, if
MeCESsary.,

On 11 Nevember 2022, the Government Office issued Official Letter No. 7642/VPCP-CN, conveying the direetive of Deputy Prime Minister L2 Yin
Thénh, requiring the Ministry of Tranaport (MOT) to lead coordination with the Ministry of Finance and selevant agencics to study and carefully
review the possible solutions for managing and operating Berths Ne. 4 and No. 5 of Chua Ve Terminal, ensuring thal the approach aligns with the
actunl asset conditions, cperational management, and relevant lagal regulations.

Cn 28 Seprember 2023, the Ministry of Transport issued Olficial Letter No. 10882/DGTVT-TC Lo the Ministry of Finance, seeking input on a draft
Diecree on the management, use, and operation of maritime infrastructure assets (which will replace Decree No. 43/2018NB-CP dated 12 March
2018). In this proposal, the Ministry of Transport suggested adding provisions in the fransitional clauses to allow Hei Phong Port 1o marage and
operate Berths Mo, 4 and No. S (rather thon leasing them), should the praposal be approved. On Ducember 24, 2004, the Goverament (Mtice izsued
Notice No. 569/ TB-VPCP, summarizing the conclusions of Deputy Prime Minister Tran Hong Ha ot a meeting regarding the Government’s drafl
decres on the mimagement, use, and operation of inland waterway infrastructure assets. The Deputy Prime Minisier agreed ot 1o include transitional
handling provisions in the decree fur maritime mitastrocture asscts formed from State capital. At the same time, the Minizry of Transport gnd the
Ministry of Finanes were instructed to urgently report a solution for handling these assets.

1]
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a8, OWNERS' EQUITY
351 CHANGES IN OWNERS' EQUITY
Cadegarits Contribuced caplial  Cplialsurplo iler capiinl Wevaluation  Farcien cackinge Investment and Oihirpquiy  Retsined earnings  Noo-Contreling Thital
dillerences Miffereaets  developmeni Faad fmd e
O WY

VR VNI VED WD YRI VN VNI ¥ND NI YHI
s 13005 RE0 000,080 109456557 BOMOTISET (3351, TEeTELEH) 655305390 1,586 ETASEIE  ITTS00  (RSY 4 TSANE)  LLORIMLESEIOU  407BdI148 755
- ¥rofi in perog - . £ . - - - LLMEARMAIAT BI0HMAEEE | ALER LI
= Cash Dividend - : - . - - - [2B6I5TEI0A51]  (I361ITERDATH)
+ Fand aparopeiion - . - 500 455 518,358 (EBATSSAS ) (91.913,163,298) {169,505 149,217}
- Rediged phing - 51,3785490,501 = : - fi1.378 841 5L
i mlerest
= Changes in cquiy - - 12201313 12300339.391
ol asoci=d
TR
- Othens - {B76,500,000) W50 1 (EEATLTIA 0RENIIIG  [(40.343,530.467%)
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5.  OWNERS' EQUITY (CONT'D)

152  DETAILS OF OWNERS® EQUITY

31/12/2024 01/01/2024
VND  Rate VND __ Rate
. State contributed capiral  11,942,133,000,000 9947%  11,942,133,000,000 99.47%
- Orther sharcholdcrs £3,747,000,000 0.53% £3747,000,000  053%

253  EQUITY TRANSACTIONS WITH OWNERS

Year 20724 Year 2003
VD YD

Lovestment equity of owners

Equity in beginning of period 12,005,880,000,000 12,005,880,000,000
[ncreased souity in poricd . -
Dicluted equity in penod -
Exquity in the end of period 12,005,530, 000,000 12,005 8R0,000,000
Dividend distribation (46,326, 570,024) -

-

26, OFF-BALANCE SHEET ITEMS

3LN024 0L0L2024

Foreign currencies
usD 55,796,R18.42 54, 395,030.11
EUR 2,765.93 §,111.73
Iy 45,593.00 &4,000.00
ELE 5,707,044, 18 2,016,859.46
Doubiful debt writlen-off (VND) 47,978,313, 903,00 43,713 BRO,096
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NOTES TO THE INTERIM CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
{These rotes are an integral part of and should be read in conjunction with the accompanying, Sfinancial statements)

27. REVENUE FROM SALE OF GOODS AND RENDERING OF SERVICES

Revenue from sale of goods

Revenue from rendering of services

+ Transportation

+ Revenue from port operation services and
marilime Services

+ Office, warehouse leasing

+ Other services

Revenue from construction contract

18. COST OF GOODS SOLD

Cost of goods sold

Cost of services rendered

= Transportation

- Cost of goods sold for port cperation
services and maritime services

- Office, warchouse leasing

- Others

Reversal of provision

Cost of construction contract

29. FINANCIAL INCOME

Interest income
Gain from disposal of financial investment

Dividends and profits received
Foreign exchange gain on year
Foreign exchange gain on year-snd
revaluation of monetary items
Other financial income

Year 2024 Year 2023
YND VYND

12,655,666,346,953

4.307,603,925,955 1,813,722,701,028
10,990,775,157,002
4,228,535,778,235
6,401,153.555,584

4,473,051,188,004
7,686,700, 404,664

345,058,353,334
150,847,400,951
6,448,798,228

290,119,839.771
70,965,983,412
15,668,265,183

16,969,719,071,136 12.820,166,123,213

Year 2024 Year 2023
VND VYND
4,250,569,858,767 1,780,357,537,601
9,891,007,711,882 8,617.404,367,999
4,030,551,708 037 3,735,120,469,316
5,438,750, 405,749 4,572.194,678,506
313,482,677 004 238 909 845,368
109222, 830 192 52,616,072 959
(134,301,850) (1,445,698,150)

6,042,710,478 14.242,688.103

14,147.885.979.277 __ 10.412,004.593.703

Year 2024 Year 2023
YND VND
464,476,358,397 472,748,962,576
62,425,431,766 15,732,043,260
36,214,959,243 39,637,740,510
206,026,148,452 84,192.445,157
77,901,052,806 43,330,914,952

9,545,701,692 8,968,181,020

856,589.652,356 664,610,287,475
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NOTES TO THE INTERIM CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
{Thece nsies are an infegral part of and showld be read i canfunciion witk e eecompanying finanzi! staiements)

30, FINANCIAL EXPENSES

Year 2024 Year 2023
YD VND
Interest expenses 372,851,242,087 202,077,736,23]
Expenses/Loes from selling stocks, disposal 35,269,320 3659.359,063
of financial mvestrmests
Foreign exchange Loss on yeer 147.479,228,103 44 497,145 002
Foreign exchange Loss on yaar-end 22,769,984,116 10,626 432,665
revaluation of monetary Hems
Provisioning and reversal of financial 72322018478 (679 £81,836)
investment restrves
Other financidl expenses 1,420,446,897 563,003,396
___ 616,§79,088.999 257.553.794,521
3. SELLING EXPENEES
Year MiZd Year 2003
VYND YD
Labour expesises 14,960,771,459 13,217,709,003
Depreciation expenses 166,066,567 238 464 463
Expenst of omsourcing servioes 95,25],334,265 D6,636,380,153
Other expenses in cash 270935032088 27.956.868,003
DN  RMIAL6E
3. GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES
Year 2024 Year 2023
VIND YND
Raw materials, tools and supplies expenses 32,5T0.H75,837 35,136,903.616
[.abour expenses TET.07TR 711,004 TI5362670,351
Depreciation expenses 42.274 643 413 AR042 B33,5962
Taxes, fees and charges 32,950,862 532 20453207 690
Provisicn / reversal of provision experses 76,827.030,643 [125,904,175,9203
Expense of ouisnmcmg services [43. 816,754 608 01.E51, 680,358
Orther expenses in cash 306,933.911,803 270,541.664,634

lﬂ&‘ﬁiﬂﬂ]ﬁ !mﬂags
3 OTHER INCOME

Year 2024 Year 1023
YD YD

Giain from Jiguidation, disposal of fixed 720,352 805,600 3,564, 105,871
asscis
Loan intcrest is written off, debt sinchare 382,276,365,958 189,124 024,198
Income from compensation for the transfer 233,3%3,058,425 L
of relneated aseets 8t Heang Dicu Port
[ncome from insurance compensation 2,011,971 034 146,957 972,579
Income from reimbursement of the Cai Lan 33,202 80k 424 -
praject
1aearie from revalnation of assets for 25,201 964037
capital conmribution
Crhhers 38,348 124352 GBS, 1ER 782,70

1435 448,737,979 ﬁﬂilﬁﬂ
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VIETNAM MARITIME CORPORATION - J8C

No. 1 Dao Duy Anh, Phuong Mai Ward,
Dong Da District, Hanoi

Form No. B09 - DN/HN

For the fiscal vear
ended 31/12/2024

NOTES TO THE INTERIM CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
{These nates are an integral part of and should be read in corjunction with the accompanying financial statemenis)

34, OTHER EXPENSES

Net book value and expenses from
liquidation, disposal of fixed assets
Depreciation, loan interest and other costs
of Hau Giang Shipyard project

Expenses from repairing damaged property
Fines, tax arrears, administrative fines
Others

35. BASTY EARNING PER SHARE

Net profit after tax of shareholders in parent

company

Eaming allocated 1o common shares (VIND}
Average outstanding common shares during the

VeEr
Earning per share (VND/share)

36. OPERATION COST BY NATURE

Raw materials, tools and supplies

Labour expenses

Depreciation expenses

Taxes, fees and charges

Provision / reversal of provision expenses
Expense of outsourcing services

Other expenses in cash

Year 2024 Year 2023
VND VND
3,154,470,854 167,353,247
19,544 026,993 16,483,984,103
- 50,884,282,739
19,872,192,501 14,889.819,310
36,649,539,422 56,771.188,576

79,220,229,770 139,196,627,975

Year 2024

Year 2023

2,021,014,444 818

1.162,313,159,317

2,021,014,444,818 1,162,313,199,317
1,200,588,000 1,200,588,000
1.683 268

Year 2024 Year 2023
VND VND

1,054,586, 181,564
2,844,440,962,974
1,525,135,144,321

77,273,557 442
83,274,790,696

4,142,667,332,614
960,415,809,885

1,842,028 813,008
2.543,469,907,819
1,317,079,959,847
34,830,653,289
(122,296,295,451)
3,819,051,120,885
800,877,608,655

11,587,793,779,496 10.235,041,768,052
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VIETNAM MARITIME CORPORATION - JSC Form No. B09 — DN/HN
No. 1 Dao Duy Anh, Phuong Mai Ward, Dong Da Distriet, Hanoi For the fiscal year ended 31/12/2024
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

(These notes are an integral part of and should be read in confunction with the accompanying financial statements)

37, OTHER INFORMATION

371 SEGMENT REPORTING

For the fiscal year ended 31/12/2024

Transport sevice Fortoperation  Office, warchouse Sules activitics Other nctivitics Total from all Exception Grand total
activities services and maritime leasing segments
services
YND YND ¥YND ¥YND . VKD YD YND VND
Net revenue from sale 4.464,580,297,333 7,686, 709,404,664 345,058,353,334 4,307,603,925,955 157,286,199,179 16,951,248, 180,465 - 16,961,248 180,465
of goods and rendering
services
Profit from business 435,162,800,246 2.247,958,998,915 31,575,676,330 56,634,067,188 42030,658,509 1,513,362,201,188 - 1,813,362,201,188
sicdivities
Total eost of 1.647,289,847 866 - 1,647,389,847 866
acquigition of fixed
assels
Unallocated usscts 41 268 985,470,141 (10.844,014.837,152) 30,424,970,632,789
Total assets - - - - - 41,268.985,470,141 !!Eﬁdd.ﬂ‘] -I!SJTEISE! ﬁllls‘i?ﬂ!ﬂl:?ﬂg
Unzllocated liabilities - - - = 13,187,994,980,386 (179,721,960,640) 13,008,273,019,746
Totnl linbilities - - - - - 13.1 B‘Fzﬂ!lvl;!!ﬂéﬂ& (179,721 960,640) 13,008,273,019,746
i | 64
lla=88 |= j2
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VIETNAM MARITIME CORPORATION — JSC

Form No. HOY — DN/HN

Mo, 1 Dac Duy Arh, Pheong Ma! Ward, Deng, Da District, Hanoi For the (iscel vear endad 3171272024
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUELD)]
(There moves are an imegred part of e shewld be read s confwction with fhe eocompaaying firanclal seateem
371 SEGMENT REPORTING (CONT®D)
Fuort he fiscal year endod as at JULEZ0ES

Transport sevice Pori operntion  OfMiee, warehouse Hules uciivilies  Other activifics Total fram all Exeeplion Laraad toiml

acibvities rEryices yol lcasing sepmenly
macilime srvices
WA YNNI YN ¥HD VI YHD VI VNI
Kt revense from sels 4,200, 380,125,519 G0 133,555,501 20,019 B30 TT E13,732. 700,008 RAA34 241 505 12 815,009 470,407 - 12315012 470.497
of pewcds smnl pendenng
fervioes
Frofit frum business 472,188,901, 73% 1025 0448, 848,009 51,200,594 403 33051634327 21,238,133 297 AU B4 EET - 2,400,014 B76, 794
Tuotal cost ol 2,003,301, 337 T8 34( 317
acquisitian of il
ﬁgﬂ;m 28, i, THEBAS (M6 (17 L 258 153,762 1334287 19,18
Totalases : — - o - e (TSI, B s
Epemnent [iahilitieg [2.2590,175.55 0676 {130,050 B TEST) 12,169,113, 677,60
Tatal linhilifies = - = - - 12,299.175553 676 ___ (WMLBSLATSITY) 13,1651 13,677,653
—_— e —_—_—_—_—_—_—_— Ce—
(k]
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VIETNAM MARITIME CORPORATION - JISC

Mo, 1 Dao Duy Anh, Pruong Mai Ward,
Dong Da District, Hanai

Form No. B9 — DNHN

For the fiscal yesr
ended 31/12:2024

NOTES TO THE INTERIM CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
(T here motes are an buegral part of ond choald be recd im confwmetion with the sccompansing flaoneiol statamens)

3T, UTHER INFORMATION (CONT'D)

37.1 RELATED PARTIES

In addition to the balances with related parties stated n the Notes above, the Corporation also
has the followlng ransactions with relaed parties:

Transation with related parties

Revenua from sale of goods
- Dra Mang Port Tupboat ISC
- Cai Mep Interraticnal Terminzl Co., Lid

= WSO Ageney end Logistics ISC
- [nternationnl Shippmgand Labaur

Cocparation J5C

- Koree Express Sai Gon Port Co Lid

- Nhet Vie: Intemational Transport Joint

Warture Company

- Bien Dong Logistis 15C
- Viemam Sea Transport and Chartering J5C

= Yinalines Honda Logistos Yiet Mam Co,

Lad

- Dang Do Merine. 150
- Cal Lan Fematioaz] Contsiner Terminsl

Co,Lid

- VOSCO Trading and Service J5C

= Conytruction Consuliation IS0 for

Maritime Building

- Tramsportation and Trading Services J9C

= SPS5A Infermational Conteiner Servioes
Joimt Venmre Compeny
= SITC Dinh Va Logistics Co. Ltd

Relattomship
Azepcigied company
Associnted company

Associatad compamy
Assnciated company

Associaed company
Assnciated company

Associzted company
Associatnd company

A ssncizted company

Assacizted company
A s ated compamy

A g gated compamy
A sanc iated company

Assncisted company
Assacinted company

Assogiated company

Chng ry TNHH TNHH KM Cargo Services Hat Phong

= i Lo Part Tughost and Marthims

Servise JSC

= NYK Antalogistics Viemamn) Co., Lid

= Thi Vai General Port J5C
- [ Mang Port Logistics JSC
- Saigon Maritime Joint Stock Comgany

- HPH Logistics J5C
- Quy nhom Port JSC

Assogiated company
Aszociated compeny
Assoeinted compsmy
Associated company
Associated compeny

Associsted company
Assoctated company

¥ear 2024 Yenr 2023
VNI VD
2435029011 & 820,244 R8O
05,899, 754,.003 80,110,029, 540
13.000,750.081 7551576665
102 1862 985 4088613035
7.E00.407 4] 3.5834 737 BA3
BI2 685320 1 074.654.491
B.591.845.361 5135312752
fa,.666.605 1272717
11.040.233.5% £275.420.728
214,963,813 1.665.659.799

4. 108.572. 165 3225359.785
ORi.015.552 1245443797

= 2.160.000

28532381

145, 188,213,402 TT301.790.830
SR2.503 870 112717389
270,564,650 282697417
SE22T.000 2713531 %00
723.900.000 643.792.000
ITSSIRTLOE0 23002635638
2850185340 442 581830
4.869.927.135 9.162.183,128
88,774,000 53334500
342,585826.955  213.582.793.877
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YVIETHAM MARTTIME CORPORATION - J50C
Neo. 1 Dao Duy Anh, Phuong Mai Ward,
Dong [ra District, Hznoi

Form Mo, BO? - DN/HN
For the fiscal year
ended 31/12/2024

NOTES TO THE INTERIM CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS [CONTINUED)
(These natér are 4 ietegrod pvt of ard should be read in canfuncyins with the scoompargng fironsiel desmend)

3. OTHER INFORMATTON (CONT I
371 RELATED PARTIES (CONT'D)

Helathomshilp Wear 2024 Year 2023
Lt VND
Purchsse of goods and services
- Mhet Viet Internationa! Transpert Joint Assogiated company 0,800,000 1.617.624.000
Vaoture Company
= Dong Do Marine JSC Assngiatad company 595800333 13454597257
- Construction Consultation for Maritime Associntedd com pany 1.175.655.454 379333333
Building J5C
- Oriental Shipping And Trading J5C Associated comparry 5271.420,000 10.£73.767300
- BP-S5A Imernational Comainer Services  Associated company 330436457 B4 079815
Jmint Yenture Company
- SP-FPSA International Fort Co., Lid Associatad company §3.7TE.FHY. TAE 2215.716.724
- Cal Mep Inbamationad Tenmingl Co,, Lid Associated company 11613704851 E5E6BA.595
- VOBCOD Apency and Logistics ISC Associated compamy 2. 101662643 ZATTERL S04
- VOSCO Trading and Service J50C Associdted company 30.703.B88.5549 184BE 023837
- SITC-Dinh Wu Logistics Co., Lid Associated company 106.549.226 =
- Cua Lo Port Tugboat and Maritime Associated company F4.400.000 172 400000
Servies J3C
- Rorea Express Sai Gon Port o, Ltd Associated company 0.054.3468.747 4.738.148.923
= Thi Wai General Port 150 Assaeinted company 3.660.399.703 1.345 590,000
- Da Nang Port Loglsties 1SC A ssociated company TOITHNIIEE  T4A90.I7H.ISE
- Da Mang Port Tughoat J8C A seacinfad company E1.153.772.450 £1.360 715309
- Bien Diong Logistios 18T dzmnciated company - 516957000
- Seigon Maritime JSC Agepciated company 1546001 86 .
- Cat Lan Intemational Container Termmal — Assacisted company 245274400 409042320
Do Lid
= HPH Logistics J5C M ssocisted company 552152527 214 569963
- Quy Mhon Port ISC A ssacisled compeny JLBSTZI0000 30091870400
- Maritime Industriel Service Joint Stock Assacisted company 255761436 114.168.158
Company
310.721.442.958  249.010.641.632
ILocome of key management personnel
Full pame Relatinn — Yeard03d4 ____ Year 2033
VNI w0
Mr. Le Anh Son Chabreen 1.650113,500 1305463 29
Mr. Mauyen Cank Tink  Member of Bowd of Mansgement .BIT289.355 LA35076.6T0
and Geneml Direcne
Mr. Do Tien D Member of Doord of Managerment 1.305,366,518 1,000,282.022
Mr. Mguyen Dioh Chung  Member of Boerd of Management 1,303 24,516 1,0365,082.29]
Mir. D Hung Dueng Member of Board of Menagement I 200 210, PHE LOIER00 419
hir. Fham Anh Toan Ereputy General Direolos [,274,964,487 BETOAT A
W Le Cuang Trung DRepuly Crenerl Directos 1, 250,466,487 1,010,387 356
Mr. Nguyen Ngoe Anh  Deputy Genersl Director 1,201 769,519 72,512.320
Appaintzd on 01 Novemaer 2023
Mr. Lunng Thiah Minh  Hesd of Supendsion L, 155,023,753 SARTLTOLT
Ma Pham Thi Mhi Ha Member of Supervisory Board B<3,132, 453 745057, T
Mr. Fham Cao Nhue Membee of Supervisory Board B13.501, 100 GH2OST. TR
13,65 S0 I10,5HZ626,15
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VIETNAM MARITIME CORPORATION - JSC Form No. B09 - DN/HN
No. 1 Dao Duy Anh, Phuong Mai Ward, For the fiscal year
Dong Da District, Hanoi ended 31/12/2024

NOTES TO THE INTERIM CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
{These notes are an integral part of and should be read in conjunction with the accomparnying, financial statements)

37. OTHER INFORMATION (CONT'D)
37.3 OTHER INFORMATION

According to the provisions of Decree No. 126/2017/ND-CP dated 16 November 2017, of
the Government on the conversion of state-owned enterprises and single-member limited
liability companies wholly owned by state enterprises into joint-stock companies, at the time
of officially converting into a joint-stock company, the Corporation is required to finalize
taxes and other obligations payable to the State budget with the Tax Authority and request
the representative agency of the state owner to approve the valuc of state capital at the time
of conversion into a joint-stock company, settle the proceeds from equitization, pay
severance benefits for redundant employess, and cover equitization costs. The Corporation
has completed the tax finalization process, For the remaining requirements, the Corporation
has completed the necessary documentation and is submitting it for approval by the
competent authorities. Therefore, the figures presented in the accompanying consolidated
financial statements may change after approval from the relevant authorities.

38, COMPARATIVE FIGURES

The comparetive figures are figures in the Corporation’s Audited Consolidated Financial
Statements for the fiscal year ended 31 December 2023, which have been audited and
retrospectively adjusted at Can Tho Port Joint Stock Company. The specific indicators are

as follows:
ASSETS Code  Before adjustment Adjustment  After adjustment
YND Reclassification VND
CURRENT ASSETS 100 11,965,376,076,582 (1,763,134,488) 11,963,612,942,094
Short-term receivables 130 1,735,069,537,601 (1,763,134,488)  2,733,306,403,113
Short-term advances fo supplizrs 132 723,652,104,304 (154,983,000 723,497,121,304
(Other short-term receivables 136 784,083,811,557 (1,608,151 ,483) 783,375,660,069
NON-CURRENT ASSETS 200  15572,087539913  (27L,752,713) 15,571,815,787,190
Long-term assets in progress 240 1514,612,161,897  (271,752,723)  2,514,340,409,174
Long-term construction in progress 242 2475,674372.440  (271,752,723)  2,475,402,619,717
TOTAL ASSETS 270 _27.537,463,616,495 (2,034887211) 17,535,428,729,284
LIABILITIES 300 12,168,959,809,699 153,868,000 12,169,113,677,699
Current liabilities 310 T/417,142,2%6,057 153,868,000  7,417,296,164,057
Short-term trade payable 311 1,172,462,471,665 103,322,000  1,172,565,793,665
Other current payables 319 1,414,180365,311 50,546,000  1,414,230,911,311
EQUITY 400 15,368,503,806,796 (2,188,755211) 15,366,315,051,585
Owners® equity 410 15,368,503,806,796 (2,188,755211) 15,366,315,051,585
Undistributed eamings 421 (239.780,880,851) (2,18B,755211)  (241,969,636,062)
- Undistributed earnings 42la  (1,402,094,080,168) (2,188,755211) (1.404,282,835,379)
accumulated to the pricr year end
TOTAL RESOURCES 440 17,537,463,616,495 {I,ﬂiﬂ,ﬁ&ﬂlll} 27,535428,729,284
Hanoi, 03 March 2025
Preparer Head of Finance and ~ouioaki® eral Director
Accounting Depnﬂme%"_‘\;. 4
fe /TONG CONG TY '\
]/%/[/j lf f.:/ HANG HA| 1S =
b=\ VIERN _
\"-, 5;;2:_? IZ-'.Q.;_J )j
Vu Thi Thanh Duyen LeDuyDuong S04 Nguyen Canh Tinh
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VIETHAM MARITIME CORPORATION - JOINT STOCK COMPANY
No. | Dao Duy Anh, Phuong Mai ward, Dong Da district, Ha Noi

STATEMENT OF THE BOARD OF GENERAL DIRECTORS

The Board of General Directors of Vietnam Maritime Corporation — Joint Stock Company
{hereinafier referred o as the “the Corparation™) presents this report together with its Scparate
Financial Statements of the Corporation for the financial vear ended 31 December 2024,

BOARD OF MANAGEMENT AND BOARD OF GENERAL DIRECTORS

Members of the Board of Management and the Beard of General Directors of the Corporation who
held office during the fnancial year ended 31 December 2024 and up to the date of this report are as
follows:

Board of Management

Mr. Le Anh Som Chamman

Mr, Nguwven Canh Tinh Member

Mr. Do Tien Buic Bember

Mr, Nguyen Dinh Chung Member

Mr. Do Hung Duong Member

Board of General Thirectors

Mr. Nguyea Canh Tinh CGeneral Director

Mr. Pham Anh Tuan Dieputy General Director
Mr. Le Quang Trung Deputy General Director
Mir. Mguven Ngoe Anh Dieputy General Director
Legal representative

The legal representative of the Corporation for the financial year ended 31 December 1024 and to
the date of this report is Mr. Nguyen Canh Tinh-General Director.

Board of Sapervisiors

Mr Luong Dinh Minh Chief supervisor

Ms, Phan Thi Xhi Ha Member

Mir. Pham Cao Nhue Member

Chief Aceountant

Mr. Le Duy Duong Head of Finance and Accounting Department
THE AUDITOR

The auditors of UHY Auditing and Consulting Company Limited have andited the Separate
Financial Statements of the Cotporation for the financial year ended 31 December 2024,

EVENTS AFTER THE BALANCE SHEET DATE
The Board of General Directors confirms that, there have been no significant events occurring efler

the balance sheet date which would require adjustments to or disclossres to be made in the Separate
Financial Statements;
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VIETNAM MARITIME CORFORATION - JOINT STOCK COMPANY

STATEMENT OF THE BOARD OF GENERAL DIRECTORS (CONT'DY)
THE BOARD OF GENERAL DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY

The Board of General Directors of the Corporation is responsible for preparing the annual Separate
financial statements that give a tree and fair view of the financial position, results of operations and
cash flows of the Corporation for the year. In preparing these Separate Financial Statements, the
Board of General Directors is required to:

» Design and implement an effective internal control system o mitigate the risk of malerial
misstatement due to frand or errors in the preparation and presentation of the Separate Financial
Statements;

+ Comply with Vietnamese Accounting Standards, Vietnamese Accounting System for enterprises
and the relevant statutory requirements applicable o financial reporting,

Select suitable secounting policies and apply them consistently;
Make judgment and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

s State whether applicable accounting standards have been followed, subject to any material
departures disclosed and explained in the Scparate Financial Statements;

s Prepare the Separate Financial Statemients on 4 going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to
azsume that the Corporation will continue its operations,

The Board of General Directors is responsihle for ensuring that proper accounting records are kept,
which discloses, with reasonable accuracy at any time, the financial position of the Company and e
ensure that the financial statements comply with Vietnamese Accounting Standards, Vietnamese
Corporate Aceounting System and related legal regulations on preparation and presentation of the
financial staternents. It is also responsible for safeguanding the assets of the Company and hence for
taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other imegulariies.

The Board of Ceneral Dircctors confinms that the Corporation has complied with the above
requirements in preparing these Seperate Financial Statements.

APPROVING SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Board of Genersl Directors has approved the attached Sepasate Financial Statements. These
statememts provide a true and Fair view, in all material respects, of the fimancial position of the
Coerporation as of 31 December 2024, us well as its income statement and cash flows for the
finaneial year ended 31 December 2024, in accordance with Vietnamese Accounting Standards, the
Vietnamese Accounting Corporate System, and relsted legal regulstions on the preparation and
presentation of the Scparate Financial Statements.

OTHER COMMITMENTS

The Board of General Directors commits that the Company has fully complied with its regulatory
disclosure ebligations as stipulated in Circular No, 96/2020TT-BTC dated 16 November 2020,
issued by the Ministry of Finance on information disclosure in the securities market; Decree No.
155/2020VND-CP dated 31 December 2020, issced by the Government and Circular No.
116/2020TT-BTC, dated 31 December 2020 issued by the Ministry of Finance, which provides

o L
4o T Nguysn Canb Tinh
- eral Director

Herai, 03 March 2025
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AUDITING AND CONSULTING COMPANY LIMITED

No: 1432025/ UHY- BCKT

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS* REPORT
Of the Separate Financial Statements of Fiemam Maritime Corporation — Joint Stock Company
For the financial year ended 31 December 2024

Tao: Sharcholders, Board of General Directors and Board of Management

Vietnam Maritime Corporation — Joint Stock Company
We have audited the accompanying Scparate Financial Statements of Vietnam Maritime
Corporation — Joint Stock Company (hereinafier referred to as “the Corporstion™) as prepused on 03
March 2025 and set out en page 06 to 48, which comprise the Separate Balance sheet as at 31
December 2024, the Separate Income Stetement, the Separate Cash Flow Stmtement for the financial
year ended 31 December 2024 and the Notes to the Separate Financial Statements.

The Board of General Directors' responsibility

The Board of CGeneral Directors of the Corporation is responsible for the preparation and fair
presentation of the Separatc Financial Statements in accordance with Vietnamese Accounting
Standards, Viemamese Corporate Accounting System and related legal regulstions on the
preparation and presentation of Separate Financial Statements, and for such internal control as the
Board of General Directors determines necessary 1o esure that the Separate Financial Statements that
are free from matenal missizternents, whether due to fraud or emor,

Auditors’ respongibilities

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these Separate Financial Statements based on our
audit. We conducted our audit in sccordance with Vietnamese Standards on Auditing. Those
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit 1o obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the Separste Financial Statements are free from material
misstiement,

An audit involves performing procedures ta obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures
in the Scparate Financial Statements. The selected procedures depend on the avditor’s judgment,
inchuding the nssessment of the risks of material misstatement of the Separate Financial Statements,
whether due to fraud or error. When assessing these risks, the auditor ¢onziders the Corporation’s
internal comtrol relevant to the true and fair preparation and fair presentation of the Scparate
Financial Statements in order to design audit procedores that are appropriate in the circumstances,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectivencss of the Corporation®s internal
control. The eudit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the Board of CGeneral Directors, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the Separate Financial Statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have cbuined is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion.

Auditor's Opinion

In our opinion, the Separate Financial Statements give o true and fair view, in all material respects,
of the separate financial position of Viemam Maritime Corpoeration — Jeint Stock Company as at 31
December 2024, and its separate operating results and its separate cash flowe for the year then ended
in eccordance with Vietnamese Accounting Stendards, Vietnamese Corporate Accounting System
and legal regulations related to the preparation and presentation of the Separate Financial
Staiements.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS REPORT (CONT'D)
Emphasis of Matter
We draw attention to the following matters disclosed in the Separate Fnancinl Statements:

- At Note 12; The Corporation is monitoring the investment in Cuy Nhon Port Joint Stock Company
at the flem “lovesiment in subsidiaries” {Code 251) in  the Balane Sheet, with a value of VKD
41546 billion. This amount represents the value transferred by the Corperstion to Hop Thanh
Investment and Mineral Joint Stock Company (Hop Thanh Company ) under the terms of the share
ownership transfer contract. At 30 December 2024, the parties are still discussing and evaluating the
legitimate interests of Hop Thanh Compaiy in the period of its investment in Quy Nhon Port Jomt
Stock Company.

- At Note 353 Under Deeree 1262007/ND-CP, dawed 16 Movember 2017 issued by the
Government on the conversion of state-owned enterprises and single-member limited lability
companies with |00% state-owned charter capital into joint-stock companies, at the time of officsal
conversion into a joint stock company, the corporetion is required to finalize taxes and other
pavables to the State budget with the tax authority, seek approval from the owner's representative
agency for the State capital capital valuation, finalize proceeds from equitization and pay allowances
for redundant emplovees and equitization costs. The Corporation has completed the finalization of
laxes and other payables 1o the Stae budger For the remaining matters, the Corporation has
finalized the necessary documents and is submitting them to the competent authorities for approval.
As a result, the fizures in the attached Separate Financial Statements may be subject 10 change afier
receiving afficial approvil from the competent authorities,

{ur epinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

: Trinh Thi Trang
Deputy General Director Anditor
Awditor's Practicing Certificate Auditor's Practicing Certificate
Mo, 3660-2021-112-1 No. 4061-2022-112-1

For and on behalfof
UHY AUDITING AND CONSULTING COMPANY LIMITED
Haroi, ﬁMm:'h 202F
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VIETNAM MARITIME CORPORATION — Form No. BO1 - DN

JOINT 5STOCK COMPANY For financial vear ended
Mol Dao Duy Anh, Phieong Mai ward, Dong De District, Hanol 31 December 2024
EEPARATE BALANCE SHEET
As ar 31 Decenrber 2024
ASSETE Code Mote B I el 1 01012024

VD WD
CUHRRENT ASSETS 100 26T ITRGT 1,511, 356,461,711
Cash and cash equivalents 110 4 322.930,807,952 480,875,972,938
Cash I 2T AZR.B0T. 912 400,875972.938
Cash equivalents 112 500, 02,000,000 80,000,000,000
Bhart-term financial investments 120 12 1, 324.907,174,250 1,550,400,000,000
Held-to-matisrity invesiments 23 1,324 907 174,250 F 530, £00,000,000
Currenl aceounis receivable 130 GE,711,524,538 273 BRA. 149312
Shert-term trade receivables I3 5 222971807428 127,49 538,729
Short-térm advinces to suppliers 132 & 3,000, 281,040 61405892519
Short-term loan recsivables 135 ¥ 13,21 6,000,000 13.216,000,000
Cither receivables 136 8 339,784,197,850 363,047,109, 705
Provision for doubiful shon-term 137 L (2R, 7R0,328,720) (292,705 958, 590)
Shortage of asscts awaiting resolution 139 £1] 1 428,566,949 1,428 5665949
Inventories 40 1l 137,400,959,697 153,482,119,491
Inventories 141 341,720,580,437 2578956012 14]
Prowision for devalustion of invenlornies 148 (204, 315 550,800 (204 4573 892 650
Chther current assets 150 T1. 720,882,257 T27158219,970
Short-term prepaid expenses 151 I 5.870,143,841 7463577609
Waluc-sdded fax deductible 152 57056202081 57, TG 40946, 004
Taxes and adher receivables from Siete 153 15 B 088,446,333 TA55, 146,335
buedges
MNONCURRENT ASSETS 204 12,190 243 448,543 11,266.259.849,013
Long-term receivables 210 £31,071, 024,806 IET. 500,743, T3
Long-term boan reveivable 215 7 471, 1001.268,594 153,331,321.538
Ctther long-term receivibles 216 E 59 969 K55 K72 34,30 989 955
Provasion for doubtfal long-teem 219 9 . (36 367, MK
Fixed asseis 220 T4, 866,302, 6854 1,036, 046,199,031
Tangibie fixed nssets | 13 TE2HT0A430,801 1.024,634 456 369
« Historical cast 222 Sedr el anl 328 6,243,913, 260,678
- Aecwamalated depreciation 243 {3,208, 370 030 327} (5,221 288 ¢3R04
Intangible fived asscts 7 14 £.5%5 532 BE3 PLA421,742,162
= Historical cast 228 FRIST FIE 428 26181, Fi8 428
- Avcumelated amortization 239 (TR585 825 748) e, T, 04, e
Tovestment properiics 130 15 202,345,041,956 231,505.088,174a
- Historicul cost 23] 443 376 84R 513 442,711, 786,823
- Accumulated deprociation 252 (21028 20h,6ET) (21 1,206.698,453)
Long-term asset in pragress 240 21,225 5T0LR1Y 14083,776,017
Constrsction in progres 242 21,135 5T0.819 1,403 776,017
Long-term Anancial iovestment 250 11 10,671,792 508,773 9, 790,818.099.914
Inwvestrrent in subsidiarics 251 10,511 4359 528 564 0681 323 395201
Investment in joint-veniuncs, ssaociates 252 403,834 081,788 403 834,081,768
Equity investments in other entities 253 17,175 300,748 17,179.300,7448
Provigion for devaloatson of long-term 254 (260,660,502, 127) (311517, 777,823)
Ouhir long-term assets 2 22,00 HAR 445 18, 806,042,008
Long-term prepaid expenses 261 16 27,030 B38 445 18,B8G 042 098
TOTAL ASSETS 278 14,412,914 827217 13,777,616,310,724
The accompanping koted are an fritegral port of these Separale Finarclal Sarements fi
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VIETNAM MARITIME CORPORATION — Form No. B 01 - DN

JUNNT STOWCK COMPANY For financial vear ended
No.l Dao Duy Anh, Phuong Mai ward, Dong Da District, Hanoi 31 Detember 2004
SEPARATE BALANCE SHEET (CONTINUEIY
As ot 3] December 2024
RESOURCES Code  Note Jniz2024 0012024

YD VND
LIABILITIES M LO11,422 551 AST 1.631,485332,118
Current liwbilities 310 B31935.182.928 1 a0 926 800 480
Shor-term trade payables il 17 7414 834513 120,657 522 218
Shoc-term prepanments from customnes 312 19 22,164 650,351 2,936,761 ,500
Tax and other payables to the Stare bodget 313 18 0772 947 745 07 528499
Payables to employess 34 79,638 965,162 B, 700,331,600
Accrusd expenses 35 20 5845237158 13, 767,395,200
Shori-term unesarmned revemee g 32368056371 4203916 965
Other pavables K 21 620,649,301, 249 1.071,976,213,604
Shexrt=term bormowings and finance lease 340 23 = L4067 355573
liahilizies
Bonus and welfare fund 3 23,063,654, 769 23 AR3.500
MNoa-current Hahilities 50 178,487 368,519 161,558,522,638
Other bong-term payables #3721 S2,009,918,529 40,679,522,638
Long-term bommowings and finance lesse 338 el 126,477 450,000 120,879,004,000
OWNER'S EQUITY 400 13.401492,275,760  12,144,130,978,606
Capiral 41 13 13,401, 492,275,760 12146, 130,578,606
Share capigal 411 12,005, 530,000,000 12,008, E&0, 000,000
o ﬂrd'rm.lj' shares with 11;,||'J'rlg .r'{;.ﬁ'[:t 4ila EE,EEF.E&H.W.#M 12,005, 380,000,000
Investment & development finds 418 42,075, 291502 =
Retained earmings 421 13555769082 F78 141 250 Q78 G
- Retcined sarningy ovcunndated 1l the 421a (2I7.0382,333.043)
end af the pravious year
- Betoined earnings of ther currend peviod 427k 1353536982, 178 357.283.201,651
TOTAL CAPITAL 440 14,412,914 827217 13,77 0,606,210,724
Hanet, 03 March 2023
Preparer Head of Finanee and Greneral Director

Accounting Department ﬁm\
e b

_ (% NG HAI 42D
— III.*_I'\. III“E-T :
oy, -C
o 7

¥u Thi Thanh Duyen

The accamparying noted are an imtzgral pari gf these Separate Finoneial Sraremenis T
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VIETNAM MARITIME CORFORATION —
JOINT STOCK COMPANY

Form No. BO2 - DN
For tiw financial year ended

No.| Dao Duy Anh, Phucng Mai ward, Dong Da District, Hanoi 31 Deember 2024
SEPARATE INCOME STATEMENT
For the finemcial yoar endded 31 Decembar 2034

Tiems Code MNote Yenr 2024 Year 2023
VND VND

Revenue from sales of goods and m 25 1,640,919,298 307 1. 468,719,468.851

remdering of servicds

Revenue deductions 02 - -

Met revenoe from sales of goods and (1] 1,640,919,298.307 1,468,719,468.851

rendering of servies

Cosi of goods sold 11 26 1,448.034,001 824 381 064018, 128

fiross revenoe from sales of goods and 20 192.585,296,485 B7655450,723

rendering of servies

Financial income 21 540,455,111,560 546,597.897.046

Financial expense 23 R 107,309 478,612 BE.S513,506302

In witich: Imtevest expense 23 23,372 539 160 28 168 824, T

Selling expense i SR 9.851,871,608 20,757 680,927

Genaral and administrative expense 26 30 222,772,517,260 208.663,736,4T0

Net profit from operating activities 0 393,406,540,554 316,318, 324,070

COrther income 31 3l §75,328 607,325 51,938,641 658

Oither expense 32 iz 15.1948.165,701 10,973,764,077

Oiher profit 4 B, 130,441,624 40 554 87T 541

Total net profit before tax 50 1.353,536,962,178 357283201651

Current corparate ineome 1ax éxpense 51 31 -

Profit after corporate income tax 6l 1,353,536,982,178 357283201651

Freparer

%V_

Vu Thi Thanh Duven

Le Duy Duong

Head of Finance and

Accounting D:FMH::W:HMW&
iy TI'_"H[: COMG TY

I3 NG Hil

I||Il'.l ular [
£
J =] TS
ok
“C4

Hangi, 03 March 2025

peral Hrecior

The accomparying woled are an .fnr;g;ﬂl.l’p-:r.r af these Separale Finaneiol Sutements
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YIETNAN MARITIME CORPORATION — J5C
Mol Deo Duy Anh, Phuong Mai ward, Dong De District, Hanoi

Form No. B 03 - DN
For the financial vear snded

31 December 2024

SEPARATE CASH FLOW STATEMENT

Cash flows from operating activities

Frofii before tax

Audjustment far
Depreciation and amorization of xed assets
amdl fnvesimenl properics
[Reversal of prosisfons)
Exchange {gains¥losses from retracslation of
mesnetary fems denaminaiad (n foretan comency
(Prafitsk bosses from imvesting activities
[rderist e xpense

Operating profit before changes in working

capital
Iroremse o decrese in recevublis
IniTesse or decrease i invenioncs
Incresse or decreass i payahles (excluding
interest parvabbe/oo rporaie income jax poyalbie)
Ircrense or decreiss in prepaid expensis
Interest paid

Net cash flow farm eparoting acfialtio

Cash flaws from investing activities
Purchase or construciion af ficed assvis snd
clber Bomg-Lerm aesels
Proceeds froom dispocel or iransfer of fixed wssets
aid other lemg-lerm assels
Loans snd purches e of dei instrumems from
olber entities
Collections from borrowens and proceeds from
azle of debt instnemonis of other catitics
Exquhy Investments in odher entities
Proceeds from sales of imvestmonts in other
enfities
Enderear and disvidend received

{By indirect method)
For the finamcial year ended 31 December 2024

Code MNote Year 2024 Year 2023
YD ¥l
il 1353536 962,178 35T IRAZDN.6S]
a2 340,181 919,503 44 539008272
LLE] (58,953,795, 10T (21,951,655.951)
LIE] (T 062,031 481 (13, T 685 178)
05 (B41,700,00% T2%) (510,583 .305,368)
16 23372539, 160 21, 168.826, T
o 7H9 386,624,525 176,735.477,221
09 {324,770,272.237) 20, 584,576,590
10 16,215.431,644 168,745 486, 331
11 (*36,6T4.387 035) {597 037 047 715
12 (1.566,362,579) 11,501 990,662
14 {46.812,514,027) (E25,000,000, D)
el e B 220,683,097
2l (211,873,742 487) 1 75.080,027 3600
2 105,673, 144, 000 i
2 (1276225.072.874)  (1,966,R18.482.684)
24 1,176,716, 000_{HH 1,954 T, | 65 684

5 (340,426, 974,000)

6 20,502, 90, (<K
7 418,676,212 623 430,625 048, 062
0 (97,957,522, 738) 392,917.304,762

er cmslh fTow from [rvesting aciivities

The avcompanying roted are an infegral part of these Separafe Finomeial Statements
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YIETHNAM MARITIME CORPORATION - J5C Form Mo. B 03 - DN
Mol Dao Duy Anh, Phuong Mai ward, Dong Da District. Hanoi Far the financial vear ended

3] December 2024

SEFARATE CASH FLOW STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

By indirecr merhod)
For the financial year ended 31 Decenber 2024

Ttems Code  ™Note Year 2024 Yeor 2023
VD Yl
Cash Mows from Enanciag aclivilies
Repmnent of principal 34 [R40,AT1,555,0873) (BEB12 514027
Divadends or profits paid 16 owners il (46,326,570,024) -
Mo carch fTaw fram faancine activities i {2RE, PRN, 125,707 (RS BIT 4,027
Met cash fiows In the period L] (ET9ATTI20544) 310.0534,473,708
Cash and cash equivalents af the beginning of 60 4 40875972 938 140475, TI8 653
Eiffect of fioneign exchange diilemence hl 21,231,5964,358 2363, 03 377
Cash and eash equivalents at the end of the ] 4 J22930,R07 932 AROHTS9T.91R
¥Eur

Hemai, 0F March 2025

Preparer Head of Finance and General Director

Acconnting Depariment

b

Vi Thi Thanh Duayen Le Duy Duong

T accompanying nored are an infeeral part q,l".r-hsre S-sﬂﬁe_ﬁmfm' Sicrlemmeris
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VIETNAM MARITIME CORPORATION -J5C Form No. BO9 - DN
Mo, | Dao Duy Anh, Phuong Mai ward, Dong Da District. Hanoi For the financial year ended

31 December 2024

NOTES TOTHE SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
[There mates ane g integrad part of and sioald be recd in congame o witl the accampeying fAnancial saemens)

L.1

1.2

1.3

L4

1.5

GENERAL INFORMATION
STRUCTURE OF OWNERSHTP

Vietnam Maritime Corporation - Joint Stock Company was established under Decision No.
250/ TTg dated 2% April 1995, issued by the Prime Minister, On 29 September 2006, the
Corporation was converted to operate under a Parent Company - Subsidiary Company
model, in accordance with Decision No. 2162006/0D-TTg issued by the Prime Minister.
AL the same (ime, the Prime Minister issued Decizion No. 2172006'0D-TTe an the
establishment of Vietnam Marilime Corparation.

On 25 June 2010, the Prime Minister issued Decision No. PES5/'QD-TTg -approving the
ransformation Vietnam Marilime Corporation inlo a enc-member lmited lability company
owned by the State.

As part of the restructring project of Vietnam Maritime Corporation, approved by the Prime
Minister, the Corporation carried out financial settlment and enterprise valoation for
equitization gt 31 December 2016. On 08 December 2017, the Minister of Transport issued
Decision No. 3402/0D-BGTVT, annoucing the enterprise valec for the cquitization of
Vietnam Maritime Corparation — Parent Company, On 20 June 2018, the Prime Minister
issued Decision No, 731/QD-TTg, approving the equitization plan for the Corporation. On
18 June 2020, the State Capital Management Committee at Enterprises issued a Decision No.
2TTAQF-UBQLY, adjusting the charter capital scale and structuee based on the resulis of the
initizl public offering of Vietnam Maritime Corporation. The Corporation successfully held
the first General Meeting of Sharcholders on 13 August 2020 and officially transitioned into
a Joint Stock Company on 18 August 2020,

The Corporation operates under the Business Registration Certificste No, 0100104393, first
issued by the Department of Planning and Investment of Hanoi City on 07 July 2010. As of
18 August 2020, the Corporation was issued ite seventh Business Registration Certificate,
officially transitioning a Joint Stock Company mode with a charter capital of YND
[ 2,005, 880,000,000,

The Corporation’s headguarters is located at Ocean Park Building, No. | Dao Duy Anh.
Phuong Mai Ward, Dong Da District, Hanoi City.

PRINCIFAL BUSINESS FIELDS

The Corporation's main business activities include coastal and ocean frelght transportation,
inland waterway and road transportation, and supporting services related to transportation;
port and inland waterway terminal operaticns; agency services, freight forwarding, logistics,
warchousing, and storage of goods, as well as debt rrading.

NORMAL PRODUCTION AND BUSINESS CYCLES
The Carporation’s normal business cycle is within |2 months.
STATEMENT OF COMPARABILITY ON SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Comparative figures are bazed on the audited Separate Financial Statements for the financial
vear ended 31 December 2023, and are fully comparable.

CORPORATION'S STRUCTURE

Information about subsidiaries and affiliated is presented in Note 12-Notes o Finaneial
Slatements.

11
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VIETNAMNM MARITIME CORPORATION - JSC Form No. B03 - DN
No.l Dao Duy Anh, Phuong Mai ward, Dong Da District, Haned Far the financial year ended

31 December 2004

NOTES TO THE SEFARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT'D)
fThese notes are an integral pavs of and should be read in comjumetion with the apeompanying financial sigements)

1.
L%

|

2.2

31

GENERAL INFORMATION (CONT'IN

CORPORATION'S STRUCTURE (CONT DY)

Information eboul subsidieries and affiliated s presented in Mote 12-Nofes to Financial
Stasements.

As of the present time, the Corporation has the following dependent accounting units that do not
have lcgal status;

Mame Address Main business activities

1 Branch of Viemam Maritime  Hai Phong City  Office leasing services and
Corporation - in Hai Phong space ledasing

2 Branch of Vietnam Maritime  Ho Chi Minh Office leasing services and
Corporation - in Ho Chi Minh ~ City space leasing

3 WIMC Shipping Company Hanoi Shipping agents

4 VIMC Hai Phong Maritime Hai Phong City  Office leasing services, and
Service Company space leasing, maritime

services

5 YVIMC Mantime Manpower Hanaoi
Supply Company

6 Maring specialized project Hanoi Project management
management board

BASIS FOR PREPARATION OF SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND
FISCAL YEAR

BASIS FOR PREPARATION OF SEFARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Separete Financial Statements are presented in Viemamese Dong (WVND), following the
historical cost principle and in compliance with Vietramese Accounting Standards,
Viemamese Corporate Accounting System and related legal regulations on the preparation
and presentation of Separate Financial Statements.

The Corporation’s Separate Financial Statements for the financial year ended 31 December
2024 are prepared on an accrual hasis (except for cash flow-related information) and
consolidate the financial statements of the dependent accoumting emtities and the
Corporation's Head Office, All intercompany transactions and balances have been
eliminated in the preparation of these Financial Statements.

FINANCIAL YEAR

The fiscal year of the Corporation begins on 01 January end ends on 31 December, These
Separate Financial Statements have been prepared for financial year ended 31 December
2024,

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The significant accounting policies adopted by the Company in the preparation of these
Separate Financial Statements are as follows:

ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Separate Financial Statements in accordance with Vietnamese
Accounting Standards requires the Board of General Directors to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounmts of liabilities, assets and disclosures of
contingent assets and lishilities at the reporting date, and the reported amounts of revenues
and expenses during the financial year. Actual operating results may differ from these
estimates and assumptions.

12
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VIETNAM MARITIME CORPORATION - JSC Form MNe. B 09 - DN
No.l Dao Duy Anh, Phuong Mal ward, Dong D District, Hanoi For the financial year ended

31 December 20324

NOTES TOTHE SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT'IN)
(Thaxa wowes are an lntegral part of and should be read in confwction with the accompanying fimancial sicremenis)

i

32

3.3

LI

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, cash at banks and short-term investrients
with an origingl maturity of no more than three months from the investment date, that are
highl liquid, readily convertible into known amounts of cash, and subject to an insignificant
risk of value fluctuation.

FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSACTIONS

Foreign curmency transactions are converted into Vietnamese Dong (VND) at the actual
exchange rate applicable on the transaction date. Exchange rate differences arising from
these transactions are recognized as revenue or expeénse during the financial year.

Menetary items denominated in forcign currency at the end of the financial year are
translated using the exchange rate prevailing on the Statement of Financial Position date, as
follows:

- For assets: The buying rate of the Commercial Bank where the Comporation
regularly conducts transactions

- For lisbilities: The selling rate of the Commercial Bank where the Corporaticn
regularly conducts transactions,

Exchange rate differences arising from the revaluation of year-end balances, afer offsetting
increases and decreases, are recognized as financial income or financial expenses in the
current vear,

FINANCIAL INVESTMENTS
Held to matarity investment

An investment is classified as held 1o maturity investment when the Company has bach the
mntention and ability 1o hold it wtil matwrity, Held-to-maturity investments include term
deposits with banks, held-to-maturity loans for the purpose of earning periodic interest, and
other held 1o maturity investments.

Held-to-maturity investments are initially recorded at cost, which includes the purchase
price and any directly related transsction costs, After initial recognition, these investments
are recorded at the recoverable amount. Interest income from held-lo-maturity investments
earned after the acquisition date is recognized in the income statement on an accrual basis.
Interest camed before acquisition is deducted from the initial investment cost at the time of
purchase,

Capital investments in other entities

Investments in other entities include investments in subsidiaries, associated companies, and
other held fo maturity investments.

Investments i subsidiaries, joint ventwres, and assoclares are initially reconded in the
accounting books at cost, which includes the purchase price or capital contribution plus
costls any dirzctly related investment cost. After initial recognition, these investments ar
measured al original cost minus provisions for investment devaluation, Dividends and
profits earmed before the scquisition of an invesiment are deducted from the investment’s
carrying value. Dividends and profits eamed after the acquisition are recognized as revenue.

13
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VIETNAM MARITIME CORPORATION — JSC Form No. B0% - DN
No.! Dao Duy Anh, Phuong Mai ward, Deng Da District, Hanoi For the financial year ended

31 December 2024

NOTES TO THE SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT" N
(These mates are an imegral pant of and should be read in comfuncion with the occompamying franeial slatemaniz)

3.

34

3.5

SUMMARY OF SIGNTFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)
FINANCIAL INVESTMENTS (CONT'D)

Dividends received in shares are only tracked by the number of additional shares received,
aned their value 15 not recorded in the financial statements,

Equity Irvestments in other emtities Inciude investments in equity instruments of other
entities where the Company does nat have control, joint control, or significant influence on
the investee. The carrying value of these investments is recorded based on the valuation
results of the equitized enterprise of the Parent Company-Corporation, as approved and
announced by competent suthorities.

Provizion for devaluation of investments is made at the end of the period as follows:

For mvestments held to maturity: When there is solid evidence that part or all of the
investment may not be recoverable and the amount of loss can be relinbly determined,
then the loss is recorded as financial expenses during the year and is directly deducted
fram the investment value,

- For investments in subsidiarics, joint ventures and associates: A provision for
devalvation of investments is made when the investeée incurs losses, based on its
Separate Financial Statements or consolidated financial statements of subsidiaries, joint
ventures &nd associates at the provision time. The provision amount is calculated as the
difference between the actual capital contributions of the parties in the subsidiaries, joint
ventures and associates and the actual owner's equity, multiplied by the Company's
capital contribution ratio relative to the total sctual capital contribution of the
subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates. If the subsidiaries, joint ventures and
associetes are included in the comsolidated financial statements, the provisions is
determined based on the conzolidated financial statements.

For long-term investments (not classified as a trading security) with no significant influence
on the investes; If the investment consists of listed shares or its fair can be reliably
determined, the provision is made based on the market value of the shares; if the fair value
of the investment cannot be determined at the reporting date, the provision is mede based on
the investee's Financial Statements at the provision date.

RECEIVABLES

Receivables are presented at their carmying amount minus provisions for doubtful debts and
are tracked in defail according to original maturity, remeining term at the reparting date,
debstor, curtency type, and other factors based on the Corporation's management needs,

Provisions for doubtful debts are made for each doubtful receivable based on the estimated
potential loss. Specifically, provisions are allocated for receivables that are past due as
stated in economic contracts, confract commitments, or debt agreements, where the
company has made multiple collection attempts but has not yet recovered the debl. The
determination of the overdue pericd for receivables is based on the original payment
deadling in the initial sales coniract, without considering any debt extensions between
parties. Provisions are also made for receivables that have not yet reached their due date but
where the debtor has gone bankrupt, is undergoing dissolution procedures, has gone
migsing, or has fled. The provisions are reversed when the debt is recovered.

14
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VIETNAM MARITIME CORPORATION - JSC Form No. B09 - DN
Mol Dao Duy Anh, Phuong Mai ward, Dong Da Distdct, Hanoi For the flnancial year ended

31 December 2024

NOTES TO THE SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT'D)
(These Aoles are an infegral part of and showld be read in confuncrton with dw accompanying fnancia SRR}

3
.6

37

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'I)
INVENTORIES

Inventories are recorded at the lower of cost and net realizable value. The original cost of
inventory includes purchasing costs, processing costs, and other directly related costs incurred
to bring the invenlory to its current Jocation and condition. Net realizable value is determined
by the estimated selling price less the estimated costs of completion and estimated costs
necessary g2l them.

The cost of inventory is caloulated using weighted average method. Inventory is recorded
using perpeteal method. However, st VIMC Shipping Compary — a dependent accounting
unit of the Farent Company, the value of inventories [mainly fuel on board) is recorded
according to the periodic inventory method.

A provision for devaluation of inventories is made at the end of the vear for each inventory
itz when its original cost exeeds its net realizable value. Increases or decreases in the
inventary balance that require & provision et the end of the fiscal vear are recorded in the

cost of goods sold.

TANGIBLE FINED ASSETS AND DEPRECIATION
Fixed assets are stated at historical cost and accumulated depreciation.

The eost of tangible fived assets comprises the purchase price and any directly attributable
tosls necessary o bring the assets to their working condition and location for their intended
use, Expenditures incurred after the initial recognition are only recorded as increase in
historical cost of fixed assets if they areceriain to enhance the Future economic benefits
derived from their use. Costs incurred that do nol meet these conditions are recorded as
operating expensss during the vear,

For fixed assels recorded 45 an increase before 31 December 20 &, their historical cost is
determined based on the valuation of the Corporation’s equitized enterprise, as approved by
the competent authorty,

Fixed asscts arc depreciated using the straight-line method over their estimated useful lives,
as follows:

Categories of fixed assets Useful life (Year)
Buildings, structures 20135
Machinery, cquipment 05— 10
Maotar vehicles, ransmission 06 — 20
Office equipment and ather fixed assels 03 — 08
Land use rights 50
Computer sofware 03
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NOTES TO THE SFPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT'D)
(T notes are an Integral part of and should Be read in cuniurction with the acoompanying finamrial siaiements)

3.

A8

3.9

10

311

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Investment properties are initially recognised at historical cost. For invesiment properties
that were put into use and had an increzse in historical cost on ar before 31 December 2016
(the time of equitization valuation), the historical cost and accumulated deprecintion are
recopnized bazed on the valuation results of the cquitized parent comparny, as approved and
announced by the competent authorities,

Catepories of fixed assots Useful life (Year)
Buildings, structures 35

CONSTRUCTION IN PROGRESS

Construction in progress includes fixed assets that are being purchased or constructed but
have not yel been put inte use, and capital construction projects that are still under
construction and have not yet been completed or put inte use ol the time of closing the
books to prepare Separate Financial Statements. These assets are recorded at historical cost.
Aftributable costs include the eosts of goods ind services payable to contractors and
suppliers, related interest costs incurred during the investment period, and other ressonake
e0sts directly associated with the formation of the property. Depreciation of these asscts
shall commence when the nssets are completed and put ino use,

PREPAID EXPENSES

Prepaid expenses comprise costs incurred during the year and related to multiple
accountmg periods. The corporation’s prepaid cxpenses include the following:

Frepaid land expenyes

Prepaid land expenses include prepaid land rental, including cost related to leased land for
which the Company has received certificate of land use right but is not eligible for recording
#s intangible fixed msset in accordance with the Cireular No. 45/201 %¥TT-BTC dated 25
April 2013 issved by the Ministry of Finance which provides guidance on the managzement,
use and depreciution of fixed assets, und other expenses related to ensuring the use of leased
land. These expenses are recognized in the consolidated income statement on & straight-line
basis over the lease term specified in the contract.

Tools and supplies

Tools end supplies incurred one time: based on assessment of the actual situation, the cost of
tools and equipment costs are recognized in the income statement For the year

Fived asset repalr costy

One-time asset repair costs: based on an assessment of the sctual situation, repair costs are
recognized in the income statement for the year.

Remial and insurance costs: Allocated based on the prepayment period,
PAYABLES

Payables shall be recorded in detail based on their original term, remaining term at the
reparting date, payeble entities. pavable curreney and other fociors in accordance with the

Corporation’s management requirements,
The Corporation classifies payables as either long-term or short-term based on their

remaining ferm at the reporting date and re-evaluates maonetary items denominated in
loreign currencies in accordance with principles outlined in Note 3.3,

16




VIETNAM MARITIME CORPORATION — JSC Form No. B 09 - DN
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NOTES TO THE SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT’D)

{These notes are an integral part of and should be read in confunction with the accompanying financial statements)

3.
3.12

3.13

3.14

3.15

3.16

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)
BORROWINGS AND FINANCE LEASE LIABILITIES

Loans and finance lease liabilities include various types of borrowings and lease obligations.

These liabilities are tracked in detail, based on each loan entity, each loan debtor, each loan
contract and each type of loan asset, the repayment term,the original currency (if any).
Loans with the remaining repayment term of more than 12 months from the reporting date
are presented as long-term loans and financial lease liabilities. Loans due within the next 12
months from the reporting date are classified as short-term loans and finance lease
liabilities.

BORROWING COSTS

Borrowing costs are recognized as production and business expenses in the period in which
they are incurred, except for borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the investment,
construction, or production of qualifying assets that require a substantial period of time
(over 12 months) to be ready for their intended use or sale. These costs are capitalized as
part of the asset's value when the conditions set out in Vietnamese Accounting Standard No.
16 — Borrowing Costs are met.

For the financial year ended 31 December 2024, all loan interest expenses are recorded in
the Separate Income Statment.

ACCRUED EXPENSES

Accrued expenses are recorded based on reasonable estimates of the amount payable for
goods and services used during the period when no invoices are available or when
accounting records and documents are insufficient, including loan interest expenses and
other related costs.

OWNERS' EQUITY

Owner's equity is stated at the actual capital contributed capital by the owners. On the
official date of conversion to a joint stock company. the owner's investment capital is
accounted for and adjusted to reflect the correct charter capital of the joint stock company,
as approved by the competent authority. The difference between the value of equity on the
official date of conversion to a joint stock company and the charter capital of the joint stock
company is recorded in other short-term payables by the Corporation and is to be submitted
to the Enterprise Arrangement Support Fund in accordance with regulations.

Undistributed profit after tax reflects business results (profit and loss) after corporate
income tax and the status of profit distribution or loss handling of the Corporation.

REVENUE RECOGNITION

Revenue from rendering of services

Revenue is recognized when the outcome of a transaction can be measured reliably. For
services rendered over multiple years, services revenue is recognized using the percentage
of completion method as of the balance sheet date. Sale of services is recognized when all of
the following conditions are met:

- Revenue can be measured reliably;

- It is probable that economic benefits associated with the transaction will flow to the
Company;

- The percentage of completion of services at the balance sheet date can be measured;

- Costs incurred in rendering the services and the estimated costs to complete the services
can be measured.
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NOTES TO THE SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT'D)
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3
116

317

118

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT IV
REVENUE RECOGNITION {CONT'D)

The completed portion of service rendering is determined using the completed work
evaluation method.

Finarcial fmcome includes bank interest, loan receivable interest, Dividends and profit
distribution, Exchange rate difference, divestmemt profits at joimt stock companies,
specifically as Follows:
- Deposit interest is determined on &n scerual basis, caleulated based the doposits balance
and the applicable interest rate,
Dividends and profits distributions are recorded based on notifications from the
distributing entity,

(Mher imcome includes eaming ariging from events or transactions that are separate from the
Corporation's normal business activitics, in addition to the revenues mentioned above.

CORPORATE INCOME TAX

Corporate income tax expense includes both cument corporate income tax and deferred
corporale insome fax.

Corperate income fax

Current income tax is caloulated based on taxable profit. Corporate income rax is applied at
an effective tax rate of 20% of taxable income.

The determination of corporate income tax follows current tax regulations. However, these
regulations may change over time and the final determination of corporate income tax is
subject to the results of examination by the competent tax authorities.

Deferrid corporale INcome s

Deferred corporate income tax refer to income tax that is pavable or refundable due to the
temporary difference between the camying value of sssets and liabilities for of financial
reparting purposes and the their values tax purposes. Deferred tax habilities are recognized
for all taxable temporary differences. Deforred tax assets are recorded only when it is certain
that there will be sufficient taxable income n the future to utilize these deductible tempormry
differsnces.

RELATED FARTIES

A party is considered to be related to the Corporation if it has the ability to control the
Corporation or exercise significant influence over the Corporation in making financial and
operational decisions, Related parties include:

. Emerprises that have the right to control, are directly or indirectly controdled through
one or more intermediaries, or under the common control with the Corporation,
including subsidiaries, joint ventures, joint arrangement, and associates;

e Individuals who have the right to directly or indirectly vote in the reporting
enterprises, leading to significant influence over these enterprises, key management
personnel who have the authority and responsibility for planning, manoging and
controlling the Corporation’s sctivities, mcluding close fomily members of such
individuals,

. Enterprises owned by aforementioned individuals, where they hold direct or indirect
voting rights or have significant influence over the enterprise.

When assessing cach relationship of related parties, the naure of the relstionship is
considered, mot merely its legal form.
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NOTES TO THE SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT'D)
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&}

3:1%

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT IV

SEGMENT REPORTING

A segment is & distinguishable component of the Company (hal engages in manufacturing or
providing an individual product, service or a group of related products or services (business-
based segment) that is subject (0 nsks and retums that are different from those of other
business segments.

Sepment information should be prepared in conformity with the accounting policies adopled
for preparing and presenting the financial statements of the Company in order to help users
of financial statements better understand and make more informed judgements about the
Company 83 a whole. Segment reporis are presented in the Consclidated Report of the
Corporation as guided in Vietnam Accounting Standards No. 28 — Segment Report.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

3171272024 OL012024

YND VND
Cash on hand 3.121,559,730 2,319,125.484
Cach at bank 269,307,248,202  398,556,847,454
Cash equivalkents (¥} 50, 502,000,000 80,000, 300, 000

3322,930,807,932 480,875,971.938

(*) Cash equivalents refer to commercial banks with maturities nod exceeding three months.
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For the financial vear ended 31 December 2024

NOTES TO THE SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

{These notes are an integral part of and should be read in conjunction with the accompanying financial statements)

8. RECEIVABLES

Related parties

- Viet Nam Ocean Shipping Agency Corporation

- Hai Phong Port JSC

- Can Tho Port Joint Stock Company

- VIMC Dinh Vu Port JSC

- Vietnam Ocean Shipping Joint Stock Company

- Vinalines Nha Trang 15C

- VIMC Logistics JSC

- Vietnam Hi-tech Transportation

- International Shipping and Labour Cooperation JSC
- Vietnam - Japan Intenational Transport Co., Lid

- Vinalines Honda Logistics Vietnam Company Limited
- VINASHINLINES

- VIMC Container Lines JSC

Other

- HB Investment Trading JSC

- HAPAG - LLOYD (VIETNAM) LTD

- Denmar Chartering & Trading GmbH

- Ocean Network Express Pte Litd

- Other clients

A0S ¢ S =T YAl

31/12/2024 01/01/2024
Value Provision Value Provision
VND VND VND VND
22,168,478.540 (793.136,329)  34,774,715,693 (792,992,581)
39,871 - - o
484,977,024 - 594,804,860 -
648,000,000 - 93,020,000 -
221,735,430 - 134,890,470 -
. - 28.248.778.197 -
60,585,295 - 24,089,654 -
3,863,076,849 - 4,710,287,937 -
81,313,983 - 107,061,950 -
99,932,011 - 562,351 -
76,198,288 - 1,285,373 -
3,074,531 - 66,942,320 -
793,136,329 (793,136,329) 792,992,581 (792,992,581)
15,836,408,929 - - -
200,803,328,888 (26,148,906,834) 92,716,823,036 (24,294,872,882)
146,268,626,306 - - -
61,257,567 - 9,178,877,773 -
16,658,268,724 (16,058.268,724) 16,658,268,724 (16,658,268,724)
- - 12,766,067,281 -
37.815,176,291 (9,490,638,110) 54,113,609,258 (7.636,604,158)
222,971,807,428 (26,942,043,163) 127,491,538,729 (25,087,865,463)
20
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NOTES TO THE SEFARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
(These notes are an integra pand of and sheeld be read In confinelion with e acecmpanping finapciol sialements)

6.

PREFPAYNMENT

A0 0vA0 1 ranid
Vol Provision Value Provision
VHD VYM™D VHD VD
Bach Dang Shipbuiling Company Limited({*) 49299258310  (49,239.258.319) 49239358319  (49,239.258,319)
Wit Mam T&T Construction and Trading JSC f 026,258, 532 - - .
Vietnam Waterway Construction Corporation 6,170,608,452  (6,179,608,452) 6,179, 608,452 (6,179,608,452)
CHhers 11.646,175.737 {1.032,231,218) 50987025, 744 (1,032,231, 218)
73.091,281,040 (56,451,097 985) 61405892 519 (56,451,097 980y

(*) The advance payment exceeds the seftled value of Contract Mo, 01/VNL-BD dated 22 November 2010, signed between the Corporation and Bach

Dang Shipbuilding Company for the construction of the BY-11 ships.

dBf CYbe]t s = e R
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NOTES TO THE SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

{These notes are an infegral pari of and should be read in conjunction with the accompanying financial statements)

7. LOAN RECEIVABLES

31/12/2024 01/01/2024
Value Provision Value Provision
VND VND VIND VND
Short-term 13,216,000,000 - 13,216,000,000 -
- Can The Port Joint Stock Company (i) 6,716,000,000 = 6,716,000,000 -
- Hau Giang Maritime Service Limited Liability Company (ii) 6,500,000,000 - 6,500,000,000 -
Long-term 471,101,268,994 - 153,331,321,528 -
- SP-PSA International Port (iii) 124,992.450,000 - 119,196,000,000 -
- Can Tho Port Joint Stock Company (i) 26,869,321,528 - 33.585,321,528 -
- Cai Lan International Container Terminal Limited Liability 318,689.497,466 - - -
- Vinalines Nha Trang JSC 550,000,000 - 550,000,000 -
484,317,268,994 - 166,547,321,528 -
Related prties 165,627,771,528 - 166,547,321,528 -
- Can Tho Port Joint Stock Company (i) 33,585.321,528 - 40,301,321,528 -
- Hau Giang Maritime Service Limited Liability Company (ii) ©,500,000,000 - 6.500,000,000 -
- SP-PSA International Port (iii) 124,992.450,000 - 119,196,000,000 -
- Vinalines Nha Trang JSC 550,000,000 - 550,000,000 -
- Cai Lan International Container Terminal Limited Liability 318,689,497 466 - - e

(i) The principal and interest balance of Can Tho Port Joint Stock Company at Vietnam Joint Stock Commercial Bank for Industry and Trade is repaid
by the Corporation in accordance with the agreement signed on 30 September 2019, between the Corporation and Can Tho Port Joint Stock Company.
The loan repayment period extends until the end of 2027, The interest rate for the first calculation period is 4.5% per year, while the interest rate for
2024 1s 3.4% per year. For subsequent periods, the interest rate will be adjusted as per the agreement but will not exceed the average deposit interest
rate of the following four banks: Vietcombank, Vietinbank, BIDV, and Agribank. The loan is secured by collateral assets and the right to claim debts
from economic contracts of Can Tho Port Joint Stock Company, with a total estimated value of VND 65,726,937,914.

(ii) The loan to Hau Giang Maritime Service Limited Liability Company, carries an interest rate of 6%/year and is intended for payment of land use fee
related to the extension land use progress in Song Hau Industrial Park - Phase 1. The loan term is until 31 December 2024, or immediately after Hau
Giang Company receives proceeds from the transfer of 21 hectares of land. This is an unsecured loan, and the Company prioritizes using revenue from
the land transfer to repay the financial support. As of the reporting date, Hau Giang Company is still in the process of completing the necessary
procedures for the land transfer.
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(These notes are an integral part of and should be read in conjunction with the accompanying financial statements)

7. LOAN RECEIVABLES (CONT’D)

(iii) The loan to SP-PSA International Port Co., Ltd. has a principal amount of USD 4,950,000, granted under the Shareholder Loan Agreement dated
26 August 2008, corresponding to 15% of the Corporation’s equity contribution in SP-PSA International Port Co., Lid.
The loan bears interest at the Secured Overnight Financing Rate (SOFR) and is repayable upon request by PSA Vietnam Pte Ltd. (the lender)

(iv) The receivables from Cai Lan International Container Terminal Co., Ltd. (CICT) are based on a debt purchase agreement signed between VIMC,
SSA Holdings International, and the lenders as part of the financial restructuring plan for CICT, which was approved at the Extraordinary General

Meeting of Shareholders on 22 July 2024,

8. OTHER RECEIVABLES

31/z2024 01/01/2024
Value Provision Value Provision
VYIND VND VND VYND
Short-term 339,784,197,850 (198,338,418,174) 363,047,109,705 (209,738,428,189)
Advances receivable 4,872.519,106 - 5,401,509,033 -
Morigages 488,060,875 (162,556,875) 563,376,875 (162,556,875)
Dividend receivables 68,457.420,975 {68,457,420,975) 78,275,906,975 (77,066,663,975)
Deposit interest 18,846,003,587 s 39,009,465,756 -
Loan interest 75,359,962,000 (7,713,305,729) 57,156,382,558 (7,733,305,729)
Receivable from input VAT of Construction Project No.2 - Ba Ngoi 12,810,751 466 - 12,810,751,466 -
Port (1)
Insurance indermnity 7.769,322,.276 - 15,042,900,975 -
Vinalines Nha Trang JSC (2) 106,209,633,907 (104,164,735,511) 106,230,769,573 (101,992,278,014)
Vinashin Ocean Shipping Company Limited 15,682,105,689 (5,622,699,320) 17,.334,975,914 (5,601,848,023)
Others 29.288.417,969 (12,217,699,764) 31,221,070,580 (17,181,775,573)
Long-term 59,969,855,872 - 34,304,989,955 (36,567,700)
Mortgages 3,483,461,658 - 3,328,702,424 -
Loan interest 9.570,264,854 - 10,884,963,779 .
Receivable from fuel and materials for ships of Vietnam Ocean 41,316,129,360 - 20,054,756,052 -
Shipping Joint Stock Company (3)
Others 5,600,000,000 - 36,567,700 (36,567,700)
399,754,053,722 (198,338.418,174) 397,352,099,660 {209,774,995,889)
23
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8. OTHER RECEIVARLES (CONT'T

B = i b oL

iy wr e

A4 h1/01/2024
Yulue Provision Vol Provision
VND VND VND VND
Related parties ME569,690,895  (189,531,995,003) 190, 273,135,151 (197,043,158,083)
Sai Gen Port 1SC = : 100,600,000 pE
Cam Ranh Pon J8C 12,810,751 A6k - 12.B10.7T50.4646 -
Hui Phong Porl Joint Stock Company 240 (00 g - 120 (00, (i
Viel Biwn Oozan Shipping Agency Corpomiion 143,952 000 - . -
Can The Port JSC 4,843,684,713 - 4,371.020,069 {2,211,349,083)
YVIMC Diinh W Port J5C e 0eih0 O - 48,000, M0 -
Cai Lan Port Snvestment 54 BI3 B4 1637 - EX3 R4 1.637 -
Vietnam Oeean Shipping Joint Stock Company 0,704 (b3 540 [ T T4 005, 3490 70,726, 548, TO6 (70,704,003, 549
Cuy Mhon Port JSC 112,000,000 - 174,000, 0001 -
Vinaship J5C 60,000,000 - LRI TR {6, 5510, CHOHD, D)
Vinalines Nha Trang ISC 1) 1LEDS6333T  (104,164,735.51 1) 106, 230,765,573 (101,992,372 014)
- Vietnam Maritime Development 2,100,000 - . -
VIMC Logistics TSC 7975530 - 2408 480,000 =
Haw Gizng Maritime Service One Member Company Limited 11,022,557,947 (4,749,616,539) 7,369, 868,635 -
Nam Can Port JSC 3,210,988,907 (3.310,988,507) 3,310,985,907 {3,710,988,907)
Dangdo Marine Joint Stock Company 74,364,000 - - -
= Yielnam Sea Trinspor and Chardering J5C - . R -
- Criental Shipping and Trading I1SC (OSTC) &, 700,148,507 [6,602,648,507) 6,601 648,507 (0,022,648,507)
- Cai Mep International Terminal Co. Lid 633,210,725 : |, 500,141,641 :
5P -PSA Intemmational Pert Company Limited 61,002,015.761 - 49 389,493 496
Saipon Muarrtime Joint Siock Co.Lid 36 000 CHO - -
YIMC Container Lines IS 215,700 000 - -
Cai Lan Internationnl Contuiner Terming] Limited Linbility 4,046,654.557 - .
Compeny
Vinashin Ocean Shipping Company Lamited {4) 15,682,105,689 - 7234975914 [5,001,848,021)
Khuyen Luong Port JSC - - 66,4400, 0K -
Leng-term J 24494424 - 10,884,965, 7TT9 =
VIMC Condainer Lines 15C (3 21,454,229 570 - . -
Can The Port JSC 8.570.264.854 . F0,B84.961,770 #
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. OTHER RECEIVARBLES (CONT )

{1} This is the deductible VAT input tax for the construction project of Berth No. 2 — Ba Ngoi Port (Phase 1), which Vietnam Mantime Corporation has
transferred as an asset to Cam Ranh Port Joint Stock Company.

{2) The receivable from Vinalines Nha Trang Joint Stock Company, for which the Corporation has made principal repayments on behalf of loans from
Vietnzm Joint Stock Commercial Bank for Industry and Trade, Vietnam Bank for Agriculture and Rural Development for the construction of the
Aw Co | vessel; a loan from the Vietnam Development Bank — Hai Phong Branch for the construction of the Au Co | and Hoa Lu vessels,

including the corresponding accrued interest.

(3) Receivables related o fuel, lubricants, and ship supplies represent the value of unused materials remaining on board as per the ship lease agreement
between VIMC Shipping Company — a subsidiary of the Corporation — and the charterers. These amounis will be settled upon coniract termination,

(4) The receivable from Vinashin Ocean Shipping Company Limiled includes payments for social insurance, health insurance, and unemployment
insurance that the Comporation has paid on behall of the company, as well as debt recognized by Vinashin Ocean Shipping Company Limited from
the Centrul Enterprise Restruciuring Suppont Fund, which has been converied into an ingrease in state capital in the Corporation. The Corporation
will recover this receivable by offseiting it against the proceeds from the liquidation of vessels owned by Vinashin Ocean Shipping Company
Limited, currently recorded under the “"Other Short-term Payables™ sccount.
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BAD DERTS

Shori-term

= Bach Daryg Shipbuilding Compuny
Vicinam

= Wietnam Ocvan Shipping 150

= ¥innlines Mha Trang 1S5

= Cricnlal Shipping mnd Trading BSC

= Winnship J5C

- Denmne Chartering & Trading
Limbh

= Wielnam Walsrway Congtructlon JSC

- Hai Phong Transport Eagineeriag
JEC

- [ithers

Laong-term

- Oilhers

SHORTAGE OF ASSETS AWAITING RESOLUTION

- 0Hl log from WNL Trades Ship
= 0l los from VML Ocean Ship

JinzEnz4 B @ImAnzd

Value Prowisben  Hevovernble value Vilue Provision Hecoverable valuc

VND VND VND VD VND VND

T 0T 004,453 (3R4,7H0,328.719) 13,626,735 The MMLAZ] 684,486 (202,705 D58 500 11,915,725, 896
A0 258319 (49230.258.319) - A9719,258,319 (49 230 258 314) L
0,704 005,549 (70,704,005, 545 : 04,005,548 (70,704,005.545) -
106,200 433,907 (104,164, 735511) 2044 498,396 104,941,493,917  (101,992,278,014) 2.540,215903
6,602 8, 30T (6,601 648 31T - G622 648 507 (6,622 fd8 50T -

- - - i 50 CHOD, DM {6, H00,000,000) -
InASH268.724 (16,654 268 T24) . 16,658, 268,724  (16,658,268,729) .
B, 1 79,608,452 (6,17 60B 452} - 6,179,608,452 (6,179,608452) .
, 768,939,533 (1,794 578,599) 3,974 360,934 . - -
A5.044,70] 502 (2E.A37, 225 06H) 6,507 475,434 43 676,411 010 (34,709,891 .02 5) B.866,509 993
& : = 36,567,700 (346,567, 700) -

E 36,567 700 {36,567, 700) 2

20T AN, NG44 (254.78032H.729) 12,626,735, 764  MM.6SR2SL 186 (292,742.826290) 11915725506

3171272024 a1 r2024

Valoe Provision Value Provision

VNI VND VND VND

534,955 7RO (534,955,789) 534,955,789 {534,955,789)

893,611 160 (893.611,160) 893,611,160 (393,611,160)

| 425,566,949 {1,428 566,949) 1, 428,566,940 (1,428,566,949)
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VIETNAM MARITIME CORPORATION = J5C Form MNo. B 09 - DN
Mol Deo Duy Anh, Phuong Mai ward, Dong Da District, Hanod For the financial year ended 31 December 2024

NOTESTO THE SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUET)
{Thes e motes are am h'u,l;.rm"pu"l' afF daoned sheandd by rwadd i comirreifon winly dhe r.n:'rrm.l,:m‘f-l;ﬁn.l: P deal srate v

11. INVENTORIES

31712/2024 01/01/2024
Value Provision Yalue Provision
VND VND VND VND
= Raw materinls | 26,234,528 695 - 141,797,196,285
= Took, supplied 259,796,286 ’ 321,366,323
- Work in propress 3,088 278 B7T 3 4 850,530,301 -
- Goods (*) 210,237.976,619  (204,319.590.800)  210,966,919,232  (204,453.892,650)

341,720,580,497  (204,319,590,800)  357,936,012,141 _ (204,453,802,650)

[*) The goods include two ship engines of 47,500 DWT (HB-02/03) built at Ha Long Shipbuilding One Member Limited Liability Company, valued at
VND 210,469,590,800. This project was disconlinued following Resolution No. 51 3NQ-HDTY dated & March 2015, by the Corporation's Board of
Members. These two ship engines are currently being used by the Corporation as collateral for the Vietnam Development Bank — Northeast Regional
Development Bank Branch under the asset mongnge contract No, 2009 HDTCTS-NHPT dated 29 August 2019, As of 31 December 2024, the
Corporation has made a provision for the impairment of these two ship engines in the amount of YIND 204,319.5%0,800.

1. FINANCIAL INVESTMENTS

31/1242024 01012024
Valoe Fair value Provision YValue Fair value FProvision
VND WD WM VNI VMO YD
Hield o maturky investment
Short-term 324, W17, 0 744250 §,524,907,174,250 - I S0, A1), R0, (b T 5300, A0, ST, ) .
= Term depuosis (* 324 507, 174,250 | 324,007, 1 74,250 - 15540, 400, 000, D I, 550k 400,000, KN} -
1,324, 117,174,250 1,324.907,174,250 - 1530, 00, D00, iME 1, 5340 010, D00, W -

{*) Term deposits ranging from 03 to 12 months at commercial banks.

27

e Ml neh ek T Jwd




VIETNAM MARITIME CORFORATION —J8C
M.l Bao Duy Ank, Phuong Mai ward, Dong Da District, Hanoi

Form Mo, 309 - M
Forthe financial year ended 31 December E_JJE

MOTES TO THE SEFARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
(T hese maies are ot e geal parr of and showlad be read in canfamction wih the geeoarpamdag fnareio shafermaents)

11. FINANCIAL INVESTMENTS (CONT'DY)

dimvesiments fn subvidiories

= Vietnmn Ocenn Shipping Agency Corporation

= Yietnumm Maritime Dovelopment 1SC

- Vietmon Cvem Shippang Joant Stock

= WINMC Logistics 15T

- Com Fank Pod ISC

= Whuship J5C

= Hai Phong Port 180

= Nghe Tinh Pon JSC

= Saf Goa Pon 15C

= D Kang Pod J5C

- Vigtrumm Contemer Operation Co., Lid

- WIMC Contamer Lines JSCLii)

= Wietnmn Hiech Transponation Co., Lad

- Bien Dionp Shipping Co., Ltd

= Vime Dinh Yu Port J15C

- Cai Lan Pori Investment JSC

- Hau Giang Maritime Service One Member
Company Limied

= Can Tho Pee JISC

= Vinalines Kha Trang 15C

= Quy Nhcn Part JSC (iil)

301272024 QL2024
Waliwe (i) Provigion Proportion of Valwa (I} Provision Proportion of
vating rights voting rights
YHND VNI s WD VN B,
10,511, 430,628, 264 (157.161,314,204) 0681 313,395,101 (193, ETT, 790, 0191)
D65, 300 A 35, RO - 51.05% 166, 306,435 800 - 51.05%
- - S1aHMs S0.6T000.000 - 51.00%
TS G HA 000 (00 - 51 0 TE 6RO 000 51.00%
47,563,558, ({00 - A, T1% 47 563,558,000 56.72%
552,706,641, 000 - LATRY SEZ, 706,641,000 - B 90%%
L0, 200, 000,000 - 5100 10, 200, 000, 000 - 51.00%
A TR, VI3, TR, 600 - 02 56% 4,781,733, 756,600 - 03 505
B35 100,000,800 - 5100 125, 101,000,500 51.00%
1,032,519, 248,000 - 65.45% 1,132, 519,248,000 45 45%
1,435, 500,000,000 . TR0 1,435, 500,000,000 - T5.00%
31,459 1105 w2 16,356,556, KRdA) il G A0 450 0, 007 {16, 608659 372) o, D054
1.0, 550,000,000 - Y, 56% - - e
A 073,250,493 {16 QR0 698, 5TT) o5 D 38 073,250.493 1T, 04,247 490 56, 00%
& = 100 075 - 5 100 D
- - - 124,763, 766,837 (59,506, 818.715) S1.00%
- - 56.58% - - 6, 54%
A95.301,093.431 (124, 724078779 100 A 305,300 55431 (99, FELHTI 605} P00, DG
259 192 479,128 - 09.01% 250 102 AT 128 - 85.01%
- - o T - - OFT9%
415,459, 150,120 - T500% 415,459, 150,120 - 75.01%
28
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VIETNAM MARITIME CORPORATION = J5C
Mo Dao Duy Anh, Phuong Mai ward, Dong Da District, Hanpi

Form No. B 09 - DN
For the financial year ended 31 December 2024

MNOTES TO THE SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {CONTINUED)
{These noler are aw infegrnl pard ﬂfmrd slrorkd be read in corgrrcticor with M aceampanying fieanciad safemenis)

12, FINANCIAL INVESTMENTS (CONT ')

Trvestiment in joied venfires amd arsocinies

- Virtngm Ses Transport and Charlering JSC

- Wigtham - Japan Inbenational Trnspert Cu,,

= EP-EEA |nternational Contaimer Services
Juint Venture Cimpany

= Cal Mep International Terminal Co. Ed

= BI* -PSA International Porl Company

= Vmalmes Dong Do Ship repair Company
Limited

- Bam Can Por 150

= Khuyen Lueng Port 180

= Dipng Dhe Marine 1SC

- Transporiation and Trodng Services 150

- Geapull Shipping Compary

= Constracton Consulting for Maritime
Building J5C

= Intermational Ehippi.ng and Labour
Cooperation 15C

- Oriental Skipping and Trading JSC

A R A

ST 2014 AL 202 4
Vinlue (i} Frovision Propopion ol Walwe (§) Frovizion Froportion of
violing FAghis voling rights
VYHI VHD i VD WHI Y
403834081, THH (1L 058,563 460) - 43 834,081,733 {117,535,195,342) -
35,565,600,000 135,565,600, 000) 41.30% 33,865,600,000 (33, DG, 00, ) 14.61%
39,208 565 4460 - 50008, 30266, 565 460 - 50000
55 86 479, 724 - 0,008 55 BE6 ATD 724 - 500084
3 = 50, 00% . . S 0%
169, TRT, 500,004 {17.830.527,646) 50,0074 LGt HT, 500, 00 (55,377 559,527} S0 M
- A9, 1%, 40, 149%
3,131,503,820 [3.131,513,420) 49.35% 1,131.513,820 {3,131,513,820) 49.35%
20,846,170 892 . 48, 00% 20,846, 1 79,892 . 49, 00%%
10,9403 146 004 {11,993 146,000) 4E 973 11,993, 146 004 (11,993, 145,000} 4807T%
25,344,000, 0 - LRIC B 23,344,000 000 - 3340
- - - - 254054
30,895, 720,892 - 49.00%% 30,895,730 892 - SO0
T 286,400,404 [ 7. 286,46 000) 5600 T 28,0, (0 (7. ZEO 00,000} F6. K
3,930,976, 004 {3,930, %, 000) 9,00 3,930.976,000 (3,930,976, 000} 2900
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VIETHAM MARITIME CORPORATION =150 Form No. B 0% - DM
Niz.| Dan Duy Anh, Phuong Mei ward, Dong Da District, Hanoi For the finencial year ended 31 December 2024

i3 B LD L0 . AR

NOTES TO THE EEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
.:‘TJJ..-'.f.;.- AATE OFe G ||.I'||.I'|_'.E:I'||:I‘|I' arr r'g,l'".'rrad.r.l'rm.l'ﬂ' b read im ooRiuecting with the mtmmﬁngfmm‘fu(.rruﬂ'mn#?

1. FINANCIAL INVESTMENTS (CONT'D)

] Bl e 1 O1mE 2024
Valuwe (i) Provision  Proportion of Value (i) Provision Proportion of
voling righis viting Hghls
YD YND Yo YND YND T
Ciher Invesfmens 17,176 300, 748 {340,624, 457T) - 17,178 300, 748 {1,110, 7R3, 250) -
- Sl Gon Maritime JSC 4,431 254 423 - 11 5% 4431254 523 - I, 15%
= Hni Phong Masine [nvestment and Tradmg 11,643, 115,357 {2,335, 841, 167) |2.92% 11,643, 115,357 - 12.93%
J5C
= Petec Trading and Investment Compamy 147,178 . LR e 1a7178 - (0. 0D %
= Demisia ['nrpl:lrﬂ"p:m Joint Venlure f_'.-umpuu.y 1,104, 7R3, 290 {1,111&.‘.'33,291}] | B0d, TRS. 200 {1, 104,783 9500
10,932, 453,000, 900 (260, 6il, 502, 127) - L, 102 717 (311.217,777.523) =

(i) For mvestments owned by the Corporation before 31 December 2016 (the date of enterprise valuation for equitization), the investment value is recorded
based on the enterprise valuation results for equitization, as approved and announced by the competent authorities

{ii} The company was newly established during the year in accordance with the enterprise registration certificate No. 0110710348, issucd by the Hanoi
Department of Planning and lnvestment on 10 May 2024, with a charter capital of 1,015,000,000,000 VND, of which the capital contribution value of VIMC is
1.014,550,000 VYN, contributed in the form of assets and cash, including:

12,648,000 shares in VIMC Dinh Vu Port Joint Stock Company, On 19 July 2024, Vietnam Maritime Corporation - J5C completed the procedures
tor transferring the ownership of all shares held in VIMC Dinh Vo Port Joint Stock Company to VIMC Container Transpont Joint Stock Company
{VIMC Lines), amounting to 12.648 millicn shares. Afier this ransaction, the emaining number of shares held by the Corporation is ( shares. As a
result, the Corporation 15 no lenger the direct parent company of VIMC Dinh Vu Port Joint Stock Company. and VIMC Lines has become the dimect
parent company of VIMC Dinh Vo Port Joint Stock Company [rom 19 July2024.

4,590,000 shares in Maritime Drevelopment Joint Stock Company (Stock Code: VMS). On 9 Auvguest 2024, Vietnum Maritime Corporation - JSC
reported the completion of the ownership trunsfer of 4,59 million shares in Maritime Development Joint Stock Company (Stock Code: VMS). Afier
the transaction, the remaining number of shares held by the Corporation is 0 shares. Consequently, the Corporation is no lenger the direct parent
company of Maritime Development Joint Stock Company as of 5 August 2024, Al the same time, on 5 August 2024, VIMC Container Transport
Joint Stock Company (YIMC Lines) reported the compietion of receiving the ownership transfer of 4.59 million shares in Maritime Development
Joint Stock Company (Stock Code: VMS) from Vietnum Maritime Corporation - 15C, making VIMC Lines the direct parent company of Maritime
Development Joint Stock Compary from 5 Aupgust 2004,

500 units of 20" DC containers and 500 units of 40° HC containers, for which the transfer procedures have been completed.

- Capital contribution in cash; The remaining amount afler deducting the value of contribuled asseis,
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VIETNAM MARITIME CORPORATION - ISC Form Mo. B 09 - [N
Mo, | Dao Duy Anh, Phuong Mai ward, Dong Da Distriet, Hanoi For the financial vear ended
31 December 2024

NOTES TO THE SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT'D)
{These pates are an imtegral part of and should be read in canfurction with the accompany ing financial skatements)

NOTES TO THE SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {CONTINUED)
(Thess notes are an tmegral pari of and should be read in conjunction wish the accompamging fnanclo! siolements)

12 FINANCIAL INVESTMENTS (CONT'IN)

(iii} In September 2013, the Corporation divested its shares in Quy Nhon Port Joint Stock Company
{(“(JNP”) under a share transfer agreement with Hop Thanh [nvestment and Mineral Joint Stock Com pany
{*Hop Thanh™). On 27 May 2019, following the conclusions of the Government Inspectorate regarding the
equitization of Quy Nhon Port Joint Stock Company (“ONF"), the directives of the Standing Deputy Prime
Minister, and guidance from relevant authoritics, the Corporation signed Contract No, 01/201%VNL-
HT/CGCP with Hop Thanh to receive the transfer of ownership of QNP shares. On 29 May 2019, the
transfer of 30,312,262 shares, equivalent to 75.01% of ONP's charter capital, to the Corporation was
completed through the Vietnam Securities Depository Center, According to the contract, the tital transfer
value includes the transfer price, and the legal benefits of the investor. Details:

The transfer price (1] was VND 415,156,027,500. This amount was paid by the Corporation 1o
Hop Thanh on 27 May 2019, and was temporarily recorded as the investment value in QNP on
the date of ownership transfer.

- The legal benefits of the investar {2) refer 1o the legal benefits that Hop Thanh is entitled to for
its involvement in investiment, management, and operation. Both parties agreed that Hop Thanh
would propose 3 methodology for determining this value and submit it to the Corporation lor
review and subsequent approval by the competent authorities.

As of 31 December 2024, the parties have not yet determined the legal benefits (2) that Hop Thanh is
entitled to for its period of investment, management, and operation. Consequently, the Corporation has not
vet made this payment to Hop Thanh and has not recorded this amount as part of the investment value in
the financial statements.
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Form No. B 09 - DN
For the financial year ended 31 December 2024

VIETNAM MARITIME CORPORATION - JOINT STOCK COMPANY
No.1 Dao Duy Anh, Phuong Mai ward, Dong Da District, Hanoi

NOTES TO THE SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
(These notes are an integral part of and shouwld be read in confunciion with the accompanying financial siatements)

13. TANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS

Building, Machinery, Vehicles, Management tools, Other Taotal
Structures equipment transportations equipments
VYND VND VND VND YND ¥YND
HISTORICAL COST
01/01/2024 246,258,984,717  39,000,836,988 5,949,104,791,065 11,308,592,908 240,055,000  6,245,913,260,678
- Completed capital - 384,447 428 4,301,203 817 479,929 (48 - 5,165,580,293
construction investment

- Purchase in the period - 12,762,018,318 78.,707.500,000 - - 01,469,518,318
- Disposal and transfer - - (318,253,3006,524) - - (318,253,306,524)
- Capital contribution to - - (82,953,591,437) - - (82,953,591,437)
31/12/2024 246,258,984,717  52,147,302,734 5,630,906,596,921 11,788,521,956 240,055,000  5,941,341,461,328
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION
01/01/2024 (138,005,147,288) (22,302,365,139) (5,051,042,362,375) (9,727,992,235) (210,936,772) (5,221,288,803,809)
- Depreciation for the period (13,398,616,100) (5,247,104,115) (288,636,211,310) (233,952,257) (29,118,228)  (307,545,002,010)
- Disposal and transfer - - 318,167,855,943 - - 318,167,855,943
- Reclassification - 43,000,026 - (43,000,026} - -
= Capital contribution to - - 2,294.919,349 - - 2,294,919,349
31/12/2024 (151,403,763,388) (27,506,469,228) (5,019,215,798,393) (10,004,944,518) (240,055,000) (5,208,371,030,527)
NET CARRYING AMOUNT
01/01/2024 108,253,837,429 16,698,471,849 898,062,428,690 1,580,600,673 29,118,228 1,024,624,456,869
31/12/2024 94,855,221,329  24,640,833,506 611,690,798,528 1,783,577,438 - 732,970,430,801

The historical cost of tangible fixed assets that have been fully depreciated but are still in use as of 31 December 2024, is VND 239,091,236,150
(compared to VND 357,621,120,096 as of 31 December 2023),

The carrying amount of tangible fixed assets pledged as collateral for borrowings as of 31 December 2024, is VND 237,135,510,315 (compared to

VND 275,082,500,001 as of 31 December 2023).

[ T = -
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VIETNAM MARITIME CORPORATION - Form No. B (¥ - DN
JOINT STOCK COMPANY For the financial year endad
Mol Dao Duy Anh, Phuong Mai ward, Dong Da District, Hanod 31 December 2024

NOTES TO THE SEFABATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
[Thewe mates e o fntegra port of pnd shonld be read i conflinction wilh the aecompamyding finarcial sterments)

14.  INTANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS

Land Copyright, Computer Total
use rights patent sa fitware
YND YND YND YND
HISTORICAL COST
1AV 2024 397,715,529 351,598,300 I7 431,134,259 18,181,758,618
- Purchase in the - = - -
pirioad
31122024 397,725,529 IS1E08.300  17.432.134,299 13.181,758,628
ACCUMULATED DEFRECIATION
014172024 (397,T25,529) (351, 898,800) (16,010,392,137)  (16,760,016,466)
- Diepreciation for . = (2,B23,809,279) (2,525,809.279)
the period
S 2024 (397,7T25,519) (351 898.300) (18,836,200.416) (19,585,815,745)
NET CARRYTNG AMOUNT
01D 2024 - - 11,421, 742,162 11,421,742,162
31712772024 - - 595,931,883 H.595,931,883

The cost of fully amortized intangible fixed assets that are still in use as at 31/12/2024 is
VND 7,427,391 442 (as at 31/12020273, it was VND 7,204, 664,169),

15.  INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

0LA01/2024  Increnze during Decrease during A1/12/2024
the period the pericd

YD YND YD YD

Invesiment real estate for rent
HISTORICAL COST  442,711,786,623 865,062,000 - 443,576,848,623
- Building. structure 442,71 1,786,623 865,062,000 - 443,576,B48.623
ACCUMULATED  (211.206,698,453) (29,522,108,214) - (241,028,806,667)
- Building. structure  (211,208,698.453) (29,822,108,214) - (241,028 806,667)
NET CARRYING 231,505,088,170 = (28,957,046,214)  202,548,041,956
- BuBding, structure 231.505,088,170 = (2B.957,046.214)  202,548.041,956

Investment properties mainly inclode the valve of the Hanoi International Maritime Trade

Information Center building at 1 Dao Duy Anh, Phuong Mai, Dong Da, Hanoi and value of
Vimadeco Building at 163 Nguyen Van Troi, Phe Nhuan District, Ho Chi Minh City, which
are currently being leased,
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VIETNAM MARITIME CORFORATION —
JOINT STOCK COMPANY

No.l Do Doy Anh, Phuong Mai ward, Dong Da District, Hanoi

Form Mo. B09 - DN

Far the financial year ended

31 December 2024

NOTES TO THE SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

{Thexe notes are an integral pon of and showld be read in corfencrfon with e accompaming francial siafemenis)

16, PREPAID EXPENSES

Shori-ferm

= Insurance expenses

= Properly repair cosis

- Took and supplics awaiting allocation
= Others

Long-fcrm

- Prepaid lnd rental

- Fepair cost awailing allocation
- Took and supplies awaiting allocation
- Others

31122024 014012024
VIND VND
5 876,143,841 7,463,577,609
4,949, 682,197 5,202,724,141
66,545,847 30,128,788
304,486,092 457,792 885
555429705 772,929,795
22,039 838,445 15,886,042, 098
15,600,831,215 16,176,816,435
3,046,229,79% 2,171, 742,782
7 166,575,870 123,823,480
1.026.201.536 213,659,401

27,915,952 H5.619.707
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Form No. B 09 - DN
Fer fnancial year ended 31 December 2024

VIETNAM MARITIME CORPORATION — J5C
Mo Daoe Duy Anh, Phuong Mai ward, Donp Da District, Hanoi

.....

NOTES TO THE SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
[There noter are an integral purt of oo stould be el fa conjunetion with the acoompanying fnancio stemes)

17 TRADE PAYABLES

3L/122024 01012024

Value Amount can e Yalag Amount can be

padd enid

WD YD VMDD YD

Rolated parties 4,134, 193,609 41 34,193,609 25.913,429,807 25,913,429, 807
Sni Gion Poat Joint Stock Company - - 6,455, 987 545 6,455, 087,545
Hai Phong Port Joint Siock Company - - 81,474,391 §1,474,391
Danang Port Joint Stock Company - = 1,820,343 856 [, B20,343,856
MWehe Tinh Porl Jomt Stock Company - . 34,781,773 34,781,773
Can The Port Joint Steck Company . . 470,829,870 420,829 870
Wime Dinh Yo Port Jaint Stock Comipany - = 2000 4 10, 800 20y e |, BOH]
Vietnam Ocean Shipping Joint Stock Company - - 13,600, (K0 | 3,600,000
Quy Nhon Port Joint Stock Company = - 2,766 657,933 2766 657,933
Vs Corporation - - 1,739 374, 695 1, 739,374,695
Vietnam Container Operation - - 156,764 859 156,764,859
BienDong Shipping Company 3,562, 178,094 3,562,1 TR,094 9,472,126,452 9,472,126,452
Vietnam Mariiime Development 68,361,655 68,361,655 . ar
Diong Do Marine JSC - - L2304 16,000 5204 16,004
Vasca Trading and Service laimi Steck Company 503,653,860 503,653,860 - -
Cupt Lo Port Tughoat and Markime Service Joint Stock - - EE, 128,000 B8, 128 0030
Saipon Maritime Joint Stock Cou, Lid - - G, 561, 000 60,561,000
Cuynhon Porl Logistic service Co., Lid - - 234,752,000 224,752, 000
Cai Mep Intemational Terminal Co., Lid = - 39 220,632 30,220,632
Others 73,280,641,304 73,280,641,304 04, 744,092,411 94,744,092, 411
Halong Shipbuilding One Member of Responsibitity Ca,, Lid 32,067, 142,734 32,.067,142,734 32.067,142,734 32,067, 142,734
Oihers 41,213, 498 570 41213498570 62676240677 A2, 676,049, 677
Total TT 414,834,913 77414834013 120,657,522 218 120,657 522,218
35
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VIETNAM MARITIME CORPORATION - JSC
No.1 Dao Duy Anh, Phuong Mai ward, Dong Da District, Hanoi

Form No. B09 - DN

For financial year ended 31 December 2024

NOTES TO THE SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

(These notes are an integral part of and should be read in conjunciian with the accompanying financial statements)

18.

TAXES AND OTHER FPAYABLES TO STATE BUDGET

Tax payables

Value-added tax
Personal income tax
Land tax and land tax
Other taxes

Tax receivables

Value-added tax
Corporate income tax

Personal income tax

Land tax and land rental

01/01/2024 Amount payables in Amount paid/offset 31/12/2024
the period in the period

VND VND VYND ) VND

745,527,603 4,332,876,909 4,391,651,937 686,752,575

152,100,896 10,860,146,575 10,776,468,521 235,778,950

- 14,857,300,533 14,857,300,533 -

- 10,411,220 10,000,000 411,220

897,628,499 30,060,735,237 30,035,420,991 922,942,745

01/01/2024 Amount payahles in Amount paid/offset 31/12/2024
the period in the period

VND VND VND VND

65,980,504 - - 65,980,504

7,111,282,260 - - 7,111,282,260

277,883,571 = - 277,883,571

- 1.477.83 1,000 2,111,131,000 633,300,000

7,455,146,335 1.477,831,000 2,111,131,000 8,088,446,335
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VIETNAM MARITIME CORPORATION —J8C
No.1 Dao Duy Anh, Phuong Mai ward, Dong Da District, Hanoi

Form No. B 09 - DN
For the financial year ended
31 December 2024

NOTES TO THE SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

({These notes are an integraf part of and should be read in conjunction with the accompanying financial statements)

19, ADVANCE FROM CUSTOMERS

31/12/2024 01/01/2024
VND VND
Short-term 22.164,650,361 2,936,761,500
Longmarch Shipping Pte Ltd 8,353,736,725 -
MNCL Trading Joint Stock Company 5,155,288,031 -
Glory Shipping Marine Co.,Ltd 4,772,670,567 .
Lauritzen Bulkers A/S, Copenhagen - 958,346,602
Others 3,882,955,038 1,978,414,898
22,164,650,361 2,936,761,500
Related parties 28.000,000 631,281,518
- Hai Phong Port JSC - 383,654,800
- Da Nang Port 1SC - 247,626,718
- Quy Nhon Port JSC 28,000,000 -
20. ACCRUED EXPENSES
31/12/2024 01/01/2024
VND VND
Short-term 5,845,237,358 23,767,395,200
- Ships repair cost - 6,506,366,832
- Ships accident payables 5,015,912,043 3,659,006,045
- Others 829,325,315 13,602,022,323
5,845,237,358 23,767,395,200
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NOTES T0O THE SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
(These wetes are an irtegral part of and shodd be read i conyemerion with the accomparying finzncial siaements)

2%, OTHER PAYABLES

122024 012024
VINDH WD
Shori-term 620, 649,301 . 24% 10119762 1 5604
Trade unicn fe= and Insurpne=y 2,315,064 B20 1624234 851
Depasits received &S, P (i 1,320, 730375
Other paynbles G118, 145476429 1.007,031.248,358
- Finaskin Ocean Shipping Compary Limired ) JE, 502,905, da9 27285 146,321
- [nrerest payables 572,240 953, 78R4 PG AAT OI6 535S
- PIT payables 2,538 T3 280 2435 8F4A24
- (hhers L 850 833, T 7A22 I G
Long-term 51.009,918,519 40679502 538
Daprsits received SZ.009.918,519 40,679 3232 638
A72,5%.219.778 1,052,655,736,242
Other shori-term puyvabiles are related parties 29370,523,100 27 369,346,321
- BienDone Lopistics JRC 603,000, 000 A0, D00, 000
- Construction Consilting for Maritime Building - 12,000,000
I=C
- International Shipping and Labour Cooperation = 12,000,000
I5C
« WIMC Container Lines ISC 805617451 -
- Winashin Ocean Shipping Company Limited 28,502 905 649 27,245,346,321
Oither long-term payables nre related parties 3,632.416397 21.054,062,951
- Wletnam Oeean Shipping Joint Swock Company 21,285,058 E0G 21,285,058, 806
= Vietnam Ocean Shipping Agency Corponation - 357,798,600
= Wietnem Hi-tech Transportation - 58416540
- Intamnacional Shipping and Labour Cooperation = 05,0 14600
I8C
« VIMC Contminer Lives JEC 10.347,357,591 -
- Winalines Honda Logistics Veetnam Company - TI1,EERI00
Lamitad
» Yietnam - Japan Intenaticnal Transport Co., Lad - 47,864,000
- Vietnam Masitime Development - 131,024,205

{*) The proceeds from the sale and liquidation of ships owned by Vinashin Ocean Shipping
Co., L1d, amounting to USD 1,074,714.26 have been transferred to the Corporation’s bank
accounts to settle debts peeviously paid by the Corporation on behalf of Vinashin, As partial
disbursemenis are made, the Corporation will offset the corresponding amounts against the
receivables from Vinashin Ocean Shipping Co.. Lid., which are recorded under "Other

receivables” (Note E).
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VIETNAM MARITIME CORFORATION - JSC Form Mo, B (¥ - DN
MNe.1 Dan Duy Arnh, Phuong Mai ward, Dong D Disirler, Hanoi For financial year ended 31 December 2024

NOTES TO THE SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {CONTINUET
(There nofes are m: integrol pard of aad shonla fe resd B compunetion with e accompasnydng Maociaf statenremt)

21 BORROWING AND FINANCE LEASE LIABILITIES

FLTRE024 During in the vear 01700 224

Vil Amaount ezn Imerense Deerense  Exchanpe e Value Amaunt can

bo paid differemces be paid

VND YD YD VND YD VD YND

Short-term hormowings * - - 240.671,555.973 - 140,671,555973  240,671,555973
Crrrenit portfon of lang-term debis = = . 240,671 555973 = 248,671 555,973 24047555 9T
- Vigtnarn Development Bank (1) - - - M0GT],555073 - 240671355971 2404671,555971
L ng-term borrowd nps 126,477 450,000 126,477 450,000 = - 55UB450,000 120,879,000,000 126,875,000,
- PSA Viet Nam Pre..Lud (2) 126,477 250,000 136, 47T 450,000 - - 5 50% 450,000  1MLETOMELOG0 120 8TG 000,60

(1)

(2}

IIﬁﬂT‘TﬂE’H.ﬂﬁl 126,477 458,00 - 240,671,555,973 5598 450,000 361,550,555,973 HIESESE&WJ

Loan from the Vietnam Development Bank under loan agreements for investment in shipbuilding projects. The loan collateral consists of assets
formed from the loan funds. The loan inferest rades are specified in each confract. All these loan agreements have been restructured for principal
repaymel.

Lonn from PSA Vietnam Ple Lid.. which was re-lest 1o the SP-PSA Joint Venture under a shareholdér loan agreement dated 26 August 2008,
The toial value of the sharchelder loans to the SP-PSA Joint Venrture is USD 33,000,000, including phasc A: USD 28,196,202.53 and phasc B:
UISD 4,803,797.47. The Corporation's lending portion corresponds to its 15% equity stake, amounting 10 a principal loan of USD 4,950,000, The

of the loan is restricted to project-related expenses. The applicable borrowing, and lending interest rate was originally based on the
LIBOR rate but has been calculated based on the SOFR rate (Secured Ovemight Financing Rate) since 16 December 2023, According to the
supplementnl agreement, all outstanding debts of the Joint Venture and any unpaid amounts not advanced by shareholders must be repaid
immediately upon request by the shareholders or the advancing shareholders. Furthermore, as per the Shareholder Loan Agreement, all dividends
and other distributions (il any} under the Joinl Yentore Agreement or Arlicles of Associalion will be pricoatized [or repaving the princigal loan
(and necrued interest) uniil the foan is fully settled.
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No.l Dao Duy Anh, Phuong Mai ward, Dong De District, Hanoi For financial year ended
31 December 2024

MNOTES TO THE SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
[ These nores are av infegral part of anel shoulal Be recd in corfunciion with the accompaming Anancial staremems)

3 DWNERS' EQUITY

13.1 CHANGES IN OWNERS" EQUITY

Contribited capital Investment &  Hetained earmings Total

development funds
VNI L v ¥ED VED
N1 P A 12, (W=, 550, =00, bDD . (207,032, 23, 45) 11, TR R4 T, TTH, D55
= Prafit for year - . 87.283,200,651 357,283,701, 651
317117813 L2 (M5, BB, B00, 000 . 140250, 9T8 604G 12, 146, 1M, 57H 606
01012824 12, 0005, 580, 00, B ! 140250 0TREDG  12,186,130,978,606
- [mviestment furd - 075,203 583 (53,924, 408, 582) A S1E45, 115,060
= Pl for year - - L335256,982, 078 1,355,006, 982,178
« Trodil distribeatzm = = (b, 326,370,024 {46326, 570,024)
3222 —LLOSEHO0NI00 007529358 LIDEIITE 13, WIAITETe0

231  DETAILS OF OWNER'S CONTRIBUTED CAPITAL

12024 0LAN2024
VD Rate YND Rate
Siate contributad capiial 11,942, 133,000,000 99.47% 11,942, 133,000,000 99.47%
Contribited capital of 63, T47,000.000 .53% 63, 747,000,000 0.53%

other shareholders

12,005,880,000,000 100.00%  12,005,850,000,000 100.00%

23.3 CAPITAL TRANSACTIONS WITH OWNERS

Year 2024 Yaear 2023
YN VMIr

- Investment equity of owners
+ Equity in beginning of periad 12,005, 880,000,000  12,005,8%50,000,000
+ Inerersed eguity in period - =
+ Dieluted equity in period = =
+ Equity in the end of period 12,005, 3840,000, 000 12,005, BEQ, 000,000
- Dividend distribution 46,320, 5T0L024 =

R e A
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NOTES TO THE SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
{These nater are an-integral part of and should be read o confunction with the accampanying financtal slalemenis)

4.

is.

OFF BALANCE SHEET ITEMS
ALF12 2024 mimrznz4
Droubrfol debis written-oiT (VND) 22 1V721.7TTE O 22.007,711,772
Glohal Petrol Transport Jomt Stock Comprny 3,836,155.590  3.B46,155,590
Duong Hoang Thinh Transport tradmg Co., Lid 2,990,349 810 2,840,349 810
Bhat An Commercial Service Private Entzrprise 1,393, 800000 1,393, 800,080
Bach Viet Phuong 2,548,102,000 2,548, 102,000
Other 11,289.314372 11,289.314,372

Foreign carrencies

LUso B.E36.4 16,9 I5.258.265.76

REYEMNUE FROM SALES OF GOODS AND RENDERING OF SERVICES

Year 2024 Year 2023
YN VND
Revenwes from sale of goods S0 444,292 648 42,2131.372.024

1.239,475.00%,659
1,081, 134,673,427
PR LR L L

Revense from rendermg of zervices

+ Trimnsporiadion

- Marilime port operation services and
shinpfee servioes

| 426 488 096,827

1278 80, 273 B8

{2, 295,583, 141

+ Offfce, warchouse leasing 142,210, 168,814 123,481,121,372
+ Cler Services 8494 351, 464 b T s A T
—LG40.919.208.307 | 468,719,468.851
COST OF GOODS S0OLD
Yoear 2024 Year 2023
YD VD
Cost of goods sokd 391,792 381,594 41 B75, 720,597
Cost of services rendered L 56 2] G20, 230 1,239 188,297,531

= Transportafion

= Maritime por! operation sérvices and
shipping services

= Cifice, warehouse feasing

= Cither services

Reversel of Provision

B34 807, 266,420 [LZ28. 037, 345058
5 08 Al a 44T I S N el |
107,574 814,633 B4, 307, 787,659
i, 95, 014, 544 TAIT R4S, 245
(134,301,850) {1, 445,694,150)
1,448,0134,001,524 1 381,064,018, 128

4]
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NOTES TO THE SEFABATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUEL)

{These moves are an cmiegral pord gf ard shondd be read ie confmaciion with the aecompamyieg fransbal siatements)

7. FINANCIAL INCOME

Imterest income
Dividends and profits receved

Forzign exchange difference gam m the period

Crain from sale of mvestmenis
qu:isn E'KE"I:.I'IF El."ln om ].r:-ar-end
revaluation of monetary items

Orhier finencial meome

I8, FINANCIAL EXPENSES

Intercst expenses

Foreipn exchangs difference loss in period
Foreign exchange loss on vear-end
revaluation of moneary lems
Provisionng and reversal of fimancial
investment reserves

COithviers

39, SELLING EXPENSE

Expenses of outsourcing services
Cithver expenses in cash

30, GEMERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSE

Raw materials

Labour expenses

Tools and supplies

Dwpreciation expensas

Texes, tees and charges
Frovision/reversal of provision cxpenses
Expenses of outsourcing services

Cither expenses in cash

Year 2024
YD

Year 2023
VD

TG, 467 300

313,544,055,150

80, 152,674,924
29, 502,900,000
27,062,031 481

$70,982,503

93,489,969,278
417,093, 336,060
20,835,410,024
14,655, 408,246

523,773,408

F40,455, 111,560 Eﬂﬂ!ﬁ&

Yenr 2024 Year 223
WD WINTD
253,372,539, 160 21,168,826,790
74.344,3 16,869 21,134,257.031
- 534, 719073

£.649,543 019 44,649, 106,058
Q43,079 544 B26,6097 350
107, 309,478,612 B85 13,606,302
Year 2024 Year 20123
YD VD

6964, 717,851 16,251,521,655
LERT, 153,757 4 506,159,272

9.851,871,608

20,757,680,927

Yoar 2024 Year 2025

YD VND

1,352 503,185 1265 059, 900
139,069 883,731 [ZE. 385,933,095
1019, 685,500 [,842,368,046
11,430 053 500 12,493,690,400

10,388, 593,181

£,471,009,230

(3.954,803,667) 1,394, 247,409
21,332, 548,937 16,972,286, 262
43,523,955,803 35,835.142,028
221,771,517,269 DR, 663,736,470
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{Theze mates aee an integral part of mnd rhould be read in confimetion with the accompanying finencial sialementy)

3L

OTHER INCOME

Ingome from Med assets disposal
Collected fimes

TLand rent reduction

Remuneration from the representative of
Caollection of management fees, personnel
traiming and markel promoton

Inzome from Compensation

Intcrest imcome written off

Income from revaloation of assets for
capital contribution

{Hhers

3L OTHER EXPENSES

33

Remuneration for capital representatives
Spendmg sponsoring, supporimg
Paying for container shell compensation
Others

Year 2024 Year 2023
YD VD
104.475,616,802 205,503,840
535,204 500 758,134,546
1,592 954 Rn 2,421,851,700
7.178,255,524 Ta25.040.914
4,933 610,367 5,474,248 812

6,546,244,879
37, 743,650,417
468,537,405,790

3.315,610,457
207,324, T18

=

CURRENT CORPORATE INCOME TAX EXPENSES

Total profil belore Ly

Increase

= Depreciation of fixed assets is cars exceeding
WIND L6 billion

= Foreign exchangs loss an year-end reval ustion
af eash and aceoumt receivables

- Fines and incligitle cxponses

Diecrease

= Income from dividens, profit

= Foreign exchange gain on year-end revaluation
iof cash and scceunt receivables

- Reversal of provision for doubtful debes that

wins gxcluded when caloulating tax In the
presious year
Taxable income

Last vear's loss carrled forwa rd
Tazable lncome

Cument cofporate [nocome tax rae

Corporate income tax

1,385,584,210 4,791,706, 661
975,328,607,315 51,938,641,658
Year 2024 Year 2023
VD VND
B.815,529.810 T.338,691.429
5.471,000,000 2,610,000,000
< AR4,909, 041
109,662,769 165,530,940
801,973,122 174,632,617
15,198,165,701 10.973.764.077
Year 2024 Yenr 2023
VD VD
1,333,536,982,178 357,283,201,651
6,864,799,5T1 4,065,334, 426
153,793,072 155,793,072
. 1,271,223,187
B, 709,008,499 LO38.218,167
356,532,024,810 417,093,336,090
323 ,544,055,150 417.093.336,090
31,778,726,660 .
1,209,243,000 -
1,003,869, 756,939 (55,744,900,013)
(1,043,869, 756,939}
205 0%
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VIETNAM MARITIME CORPORATION - ISC
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Form Mo, B 09 - DN
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{Thexe notes ave g infegrad part of anc shoul B rend in comfanction with the accomparyng financio siatemenis)
34, BUSINESS AND PRODUCTIONS COST BY NATURE

Year 2024 Year 2023
YD YD
Rew materials 221,586, B06, 7T 331,714.303,348
Labour expenses 204 177.367.275 265,330,323 302
Toals and supplics 2508, 525,300 277,218,237
Depresistion expenses 340,192.919.503 344.539.009.272
Texes, fees and charges 17,808,902, 721 B.46d, 285,193
Provision/reversal of provision expenses (6,088,907,517) 1,937,638,706
Expenses of outsourcing services 332,330,469.939 337,832.066,329
Other expenses in cash 85,795,135.597 80,290,336, 746
1288311300588 1,572.879,296,133
35, OTHER TNFORMATIONS
35.1 RELATED PARTIES
Transactions with related parties
Year 2024 Year 203
Felation VHND YD
Furchase of poods and services . -
- Buoi Gon Port 18C Subaidiary compiny 20043, 705,178 14,006,323 B12
= Posof Hai Phong Jelm Sock Subsidiary vempany 120296 185 2 5%5. 038, 408
= Dm Mong Pogi J5C Subsldlary compeny B.923. 566,914 10,258 BRA 664
= Mehe Tinh Port, J5C Subsidiary company 2IRAT4 570 15,088,435
= Can The Poct 180 Subsidiary company 3,332.803.170 15492370, 445
= Wime Dinh Vi Port J15C Subsidiary company 14989407, 100 -
= Yieinem (cean Bhipping Joint Slock Subsidinry company 0040, T i, 666 166, 846526
« Quy Nhon Port 15C Schsidiary company T ATR B2 9,740,463 856
- Cal Mep |Fiemational Temminal Bubsidinry company 016, T30, 741 0,667,803
Co LTD
« BienOong Shipping Company Bunsidinry company I16,330.014 1,211,743 707
Limlted
- Haw Gisng Maritime Seevice O Bubsidiary company 544,993, 1 1 34,993, 1 14
Member Company Limted
- Dinhvu Poet Inwestment & Asznciabed rompany | 18 490,058 6,728,995 400
Dewclopment Joint Stock Company
= Wietnem Container Cgperation Subsidinry company 53,477,535 371855933
= Wiet Mam Ocean Shipping Apency Subgidiary company 4,7EL, 114,697 4,560,375, 747
Coamperatioa
- Dongdo Maring Associaled campany 95 801,333 E.574.733.370
= Wietnem Maritime Development Associnied company 63,197 818 -
- SP-55A Inlermalicnal Teminal Associated company 29, 038,520 1,300,000
- Yosco Trading And Service 15C Assocanied cnmpany 1304, 824 340 -
Cun Lo Por Teghoal and bariiime Acsocialed campany 54 400,000 £ T 2000, 00
scrvice 180
GEDIZOIGIST _ 2.308.199.491

i
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No.1 Dao Duy Anh, Phuong Mai ward, Dong Da District, Hanoi

NOTES TO THE SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
(These notes are an integral part of and should be read in conjunction with the accompanying financial statements)

OTHER INFORMATIONS

35.1 RELATED PARTIES (CONT'D)

Transaction with related parties (Cont’d)

Relation Year 2024 Year 2023
VYND YND

Revenue from sale of goods
- Sal Gon Port 18C Subsidiary company - 71,836,562
- Cam Ranh Port ISC Subsidiary company - 190,545,455
- Port of Hai Phong JSC Subsidiary company 8,382,738,332 13,123,431,662

- Da Mang Port JSC
- Can The Port JSC

Subsidiary company
Subsidiary company

1,246,133.600
5.091,265,125

1,434,574,382
4,547.359,090

P 1 ' |

- Vime Dinh Vu Port ISC Subsidiary company 3,049,162,211 1,672,790,041
- Vietnam Ocean Shipping JSC Subsidiary company 173,928,244,129 176,633,922,946
- Quy Nhon Port ISC Subsidiary company 992,647,741 1.766,926,220 j
- Vinalines Nha Trang JSC Subsidiary company 46,212,877 45,890,589 10
- Vietnam Ocean Shipping JSC Subsidiary company 1.493.974,982 1.430,306,537 -
= Victnam Maritime Development ISC Subsidiary company 466,319,292 460,608,575 3
- VIMC Container Transport JSC Subsidiary company 24.465.188.623 - -
- VIMC Logistics 1SC Subsidiary company 9.892,280,251 7.717,723,382
- Vietnam Hi-tech Transportation Subsidiary company 295,251,219 340,627,102
- BienDong Shipping Company Subzidiary company 11,828,993,687 11,637,073.166
Limited
= Hau Giang Maritime Service One Subsidiary company 3,615,256,987 3,438,465,741
Member Company Limited
- VOSCO Agency and Logstics JSC Associated company 62,405,000 -
- Biendong Logistics., ISC Associated company 164,713,845 264,450,723
- International Shipping And Labour Associated company 146,624,469 166,998,948
Cooperation JSC
- Vietnam - Japan International Associated company 432,117,363 496,219,491
Transport Co.,Ltd
- VHL Logistics Co..Ltd Associated company 765,618,442 1,920,193,522
- Sai Gon Maritime JSC Associated company 285,018,530 442 581,830
- VOSCO Agency and Logistics 1SC Associated company 68,518,519 -
Da Nang Port Logistics JSC Associated company 3.620,371 -
246,722,305,595 227,822,526,034
E‘_ﬁ
3 C
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% OTHER INFORMATIONS
351  RELATED PARTIES (CONT D)

Year 2024 Year 2023
Helation YD YHD
Orther Ineomse
- Sai Gaa Part 13C Subsitiary compaany 4,931 610307 4,689 697,875
- Caf Lan Por vvestoment 15C Swbaidiney company - T4B.Sdn, 043
4,933,610.307 S 438644818
Interest ineome
- Can The Port J&U Sshaidimry company I 2R3 2ETOZE 2.5 B4, 3610
= Ha Ciiang Maritime Service One Sushsidiary compans 4, 5000 331459 855
Slember Company Limiced
« Cai Len [ntemutional Canlainer Agspointed company o, 048 B3 557 E
Termiral Limited Liability Compuny
- &P -PSA Inbematbonal Port Amsoelaied company 9.073,724.45% E300.547.774
Company Limated
14, 800, L ee044 11,152,B88.134
Dividends received
» Cam Ranh Port IS¢ Subskiiary company 8,920, 356,750 10, %02 658, 250
= Sai Gon Mariime 150 Subsidiary compans - H4. 938,543,600
- Part of Hai Phong 150 Sishaitiary company 121,056,550 800 121,056 550, k00
- Da bang Pon 50 Subsidiary company 103,530,000 000 111,375,000,000
- Wienam Marltme Development 150 Subsidiary campany 5,237, A00.000 d_ 5540, 04D, DD
= HMghz Tinh Porl I5C Subgidiary company i 584, 263200 B.235,050,0:40
- WOSA Corporaticn Subsidiary sompany 23,0325, B8 1400 17.5052,095,000
- VAL Logsies J5C Subsuliary compay - -
= Chey Whan Pord 150 Subsidiary company 36,374, 714400 IBITTI4 400
= Consrruclwn Consiltaticn 150 For Assgcialod compdry TRIE XILA00 TAMR D56, O
Adsilime Building
= Wietngm - Japan Intermationl Asspeited company 4, (eI, DGk, 000 A, A0 A O, )
Transpart Co, Lid
= Khayen Luoeg Port JSC Assnginted company 3075 46H.000 ER AT LERC L
= Transpartation And Trading Services Asstrcimed copTipany 2 593 D ann 3,456,000, 000
IS0
= Sengill Shipping Company Associvted company - A BPE 100,000
- %o Gan Morgine 150 Other mvestment = 2 1E TN, 560
313,544,085, 150 417.093,336,00])
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as, OTHER INFORMATIONS (CONT'D)

351 RELATED PARTIES (CONT DY)

Transaction with related partics (Cont*d)

In addition to the transactions mentioned in the Notes above, the Corporation also engaged
in the following transactions with related partics:

Bemuneration of key monagement personnel

Mz Le Aok Son
ir. Npuyen Canh Tinh

b, Do Toen Duc

M. MpEuyven Dinh Chung

bir. Do Hung Duong
Mr. Pham Anh Tann
Wir. Le Cruang Trung
Mr. Mpiven Npoc Anh

Mir Luang Denhk Mank
Mis. Phan Thi Mhi Ha

e PRam Cno Nhoe

Helation Yemr 2024 Yiear 2013
W E NI
13655 385,250 10,302,626, 131
Chairman 1L536,113.5306 1,305 463,296
Member of the Boarl of 1,627 282,353 1,435.076,670
[hrectors cum Ceenenal
Mcrmbes of the Board 1,305, 366,516 1,0%4,282,922
Member of the Board 1303244, 516 1036 082 ¥
Marther of the Boand 1,266,520, 968 1.018.500,419
Dieputy General Mansger 1.234,966.407 9B7087,356
Depuay Creneml Manozer 1,230 966 457 1,10 587 356
Creputy Gencral Mansger 1200, 760 5109 T2AEE 320
l."'l.pp-ninled im
G
Superviiory Poaml 1,195,033, 753 Qe TTT
Member 4lthe 43,132,533 T45.057.793
Supervisory Boord
Member ofthe 15501190 GR2.05T. M2
Supervisory Boand

351  DPERATIONG LEASED ASSETS

(1) The Corporation signed a land lease contract for the

located at No. | Beo Dy
Anh Street, Phuong Mai Ward, Dong Da District, Hanoi City, for vse as an office and
for office rental business from 15 June 1998 to 25 June 2048, The leased land area i
6,851.0 m?. Under this contract, the Corporation is required 1o pay annual land rent until
the contract's expiration date, in accordance with the prevailing regulations of the State

{2) The Corporation signed a land lsase contract for the property located st 163 Nguyen
Wan Troi Street, Ward 11, Phu Nhuan District, Ho Chi Minh City, for use as an office
and for rental business from 19 June 2002 to 19 June 2052, The leased land area is
330.0 m?. Under this contract, the Corporation has made a one-time land rents| payment
covering the entire lease term, in accordance with the prevailing repulations of the State.
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VIETNAM MARITIME CORPORATION - JSC Form No. B 09 - DN
Kool Das Duy Anh, Phuong Mal ward, Deng Da District, Hanod For firancial year ended
31 December 2024

ROTES TO THE SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMERNTS (CONTINUELD)
(These poter are an integral part of aad should be red in comfumctian with the coeompamaimy fmanciz! et ments)

A5, OTHER INFORMATIONS (CONT'D)
3.2 OPERATIONG LEASED ASSETS (CONT'D)

{3) The Company has signed lund leass contmcts al 2 several locations in Hai Phong City,

s follows:
Adldress Acreage Purpose Land lease Land lease
m®) term

1 Dong Hai Ward, 161,745.0 Transhipment Land  lease 40 years (from
Hai Am district statron with  anpual 24022004 &=
Hai Phong City rent payment  24/01/2044)

2 282 Da Mang, Van 8,310.] Haotels, Land lease 50 years (from
My Ward, WNgo Offices  for with annual 2307/1994 to
Chryven district, Hai lease rent payment  25/07/2044)
Phong City

3 I1TR ¥o Thi Say, 1120 Office Land lease 50 years (from
May To Ward, with a lump-  15/10/1993 1o
Mgo Cruven sum payment 15/1072043)
district, Hai Phong for the entire
City lease term
Total 170,176.1

353 OTHER INFORMATIONS

According to the provizions of Decree Mo, 126/2017/ND-CP dated 16 Movember 2017,
issued by the Government on the conversion of state-owned enterprises and single-member
limited liability companies wholly owned by state enterprises into joint-stock compenies, at
the time of officially conversion into a joint-stock company, the Corporation is required to
finalize taxes and other obligations 10 the State budget with the Tax Authority seck approval
from the ocwner's representative agency for the State capital capital valuation, finalize
equitisation proceeds and pay allowances for redundant emplovees and equitization costs.
The Corporation has completed the tax finalization of taxes and ather payables to the State
budget. For the remaining requirements, the Corporation has prepared the necessary
documentation and is submitting it for approval by the competent authorities. Therefore, the
figures presented in the accompanying Separate Finencial Statements may be subject o
adjustments following offxial approval

Jb. COMPARATIVE FIGURES

The comparative figures are those from the Separate Financial Statements for the fiscal vear
ended 11 Decernber 2023, which wias audited,

Hamef, 03 March 2025

Preparer Head of Finance and Director
Accounting Department i
b3 . !
-:e-' - -_ .2
|I * | \f!ET -
e J%?"’
L

Vo Thi Thanh Duyen Le Duy Duong Wi __ﬁlﬂmﬁ Canh Tinh
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VIETNAM MARITIME SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM
CORPORATION -JSC I ndependence - Freedom — Happiness

No: 288/TTr-bHbCD Ha Noi, 8th July, 2025

SUBMISSION
On the Approval of the 2024 Profit Distribution Plan of
Vietnam Maritime Cor poration — JSC

To: The Annua General Meeting of Shareholders 2025
Vietnam Maritime Corporation — JSC

Pursuant to Law on Enterprises No. 59/2020/QH14 dated 17/6/2020;
Pursuant to Law on Securities No. 54/2019/QH14 dated 26/11/2019, No.
56/2024/QH15 dated 29/11/2024;

Pursuant to Circular No. 116/2020/TT-BTC dated 31/12/2020 of the
Ministry of Finance guiding corporate governance applicable to public companies
under Decree No. 155/2020/ND-CP;

Pursuant to the Charter of Vietnam Maritime Corporation - JSC ;

Pursuant to The Separate and Consolidated Financial Statements for the year
2024 of Vietnam Maritime Corporation — JSC have been audited by UHY Auditing
and Consulting Co., Ltd.,

The Board of Directors of the Corporation respectfully submits to the Annud
Genera Meeting of Shareholders 2025 for approva the 2024 Profit Distribution
Plan of VIMC asfollows:

1. Assessment of Business Performancein 2024

Based on the audited Financial Statements 2024 of the Parent Company,
certain financia indicators and actual payroll figures of the Parent Company are as
follows:

ltems Plan Actual Actual 2024/
2024 2024 Plan 2024

1. Revenue (VND billion) 2415 3.157 131%
2. Total accounting profit before tax 0
(VND billion) 935 1.353,5 145%
3. Average employee salary fund 19.136
4. Average salary and remuneration fund 10716
for Management Personnel o

Accordingly, both the actual revenue and the actual profit before tax of the
Parent Company in 2024 recorded growth compared to the plan approved by the
Annua General Meeting of Shareholdersin 2024.

1



2. Profit Appropriation Plan for FY 2024

Based on the business performance results for 2024, the applicable

regulations, and the current balances of the Corporation’s funds (including the
Development Investment Fund, Bonus and Welfare Fund, etc.), the Board of
Directors of the Corporation respectfully submits to the Annual General Meeting
of Shareholders 2025 for approval the plan for profit distribution and appropriation
to funds from the 2024 post-tax profit, as follows:

Profit Distribution

% of Profit

No Description After Tax Notes
Plan for 2024 (VND) Allocated
1 Profit Before Tax 1.353.536.982.178
Profit After Corporate
2 Income Tax for 2024 1.353.536.982.178
Foreign Exchange Gain ?hsepgeptgrealt\lem% 0
from Year-End Revaluation 27.062.031.481 . il
of Balances Financial Satements,
page 42
as per the Notes to
Income from Written-Off the Separate
Loan Interest 371.743.630.417 Financial Satements,
page 43
Income from A as per the Notes to
Reval uation for Capital 468.537.405.790 the Sep.‘glate
Contribution Financial Jatemerts,
page 43
Total Allocated Profit
3 After Tax (5)=(2)+(3)-(4) 52.418.135.000
capped at the
31 Appropriation to Bonus and 57 810.750.000 12.04% equivalent of 3
Welfare Fund months of average
employee salary
50% of the amount to
Bonus Fund 28.905.375.000 50,00% be allocated to the
Bonus Fund
50% of the amount to
Welfare Fund 28.905.375.000 50,00% | be allocated to the
Welfare Fund
Allocation of the
3.2 Management Bonus 1.607.375.000 | 0,12
Fund
4 | Undisiributed Retained 1.204.118.857.178

Earnings (6) = (4) + (5.5)




Regarding the remaining 2024 profit of VND 1,294,118,857,178, the Board
of Directors proposes not allocating funds to the devel opment investment reserve
and not distributing dividends at this Meeting. We respectfully request the 2025
Annual General Meeting of Shareholders to review and approve the 2024 Profit
Distribution Plan of Vietnam Maritime Corporation - JSC (VIMC). Respectfully
submitted./.

Recipients: ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

- As stated above;

- Supervisory Board;

- Members of the Board of Directors,
- Archives: Office, Finance &
Accounting Dept, General Secretary.




VIETNAM MARITIME SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM
CORPORATION - JSC | ndependence - Freedom - Happiness

No: 289/TTr-bHDCD Hanoi, 8th July, 2025

STATEMENT
Business and investment plan in 2025 of Vietham Maritime Cor poration -
Joint Stock Company

To:  Annua General Meeting of Shareholdersin 2025 of Vietnam
Maritime Corporation - Joint Stock Company

Pursuant to the Law on Enterprises No. 59/2020/QH14 dated 17/6/2020;

Pursuant to the Law on Securities No. 54/2019/QH11 dated 26/11/2019; Law No.
56/2024/QH15 dated 29/11/2024;

Pursuant to the Government's Decree No. 155/2020/ND-CP dated 31/12/ 2020
detailing the implementation of a number of articles of the Law on Securities;

Pursuant to Circular No. 116/2020/TT-BTC dated 31/12/2020 of the Ministry of
Finance guiding a number of articles on corporate governance applicable to public
companiesin Decree No. 155/2020/ND-CP;

Pursuant to the Charter of Vietnam Maritime Corporation - Joint Stock Company;

Pursuant to the Internal Regulation on corporate governance of Vietham Maritime
Corporation - Joint Stock Company;

Pursuant to Resolution No. 229/NQ-DHDCHD dated 16/4/2024 of the 2024 Annual
Genera Mesting of Shareholders of Vietham Maritime Corporation - Joint Stock Company,

The Board of Directors of Vietnam Maritime Corporation - Joint Stock Company
("VIMC") respectfully submit to the General Meeting of Shareholders the 2025 Business
and Investment Plan of VIMC asfollows:

. BUSINESS AND INVESTMENT RESULTSIN 2024
1. Background in 2024

VIMC and subsidiaries operated in the context of complicated and unpredictable
situation of the world economy; fierce strategic competition; geopolitical tensions escal ation
in many areas, the price of gasoline, basic goods, and freight fluctuated sharply; the economy
and trade have recovered slowly and unsteadily; total demand and global investment declined;
exchange rates and interest rates fluctuate unpredictably; natural disasters, climate change,
energy security, food, and cyber security are complicated.

The bulk freight market has been unstable throughout the year. The BDI indicator
declined sharply from the end of 2023 from 3,400 pointsto only about 1,300 pointsin January
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2024 and then mainly fluctuated between 1,500 and 2,000 points. However, since mid-
November, the BDI index has continued to fall deeply to 1,150 points. The market is mainly
led by Capesize segment while smaller vessel segments such as Supramax and Handysize
remain stable due to increased demand in Asia and the Americas.

The container shipping market developed positively in the first half of the year, freight
rates increased compared to the same period last year, mainly due to the continued crisisin
the Red Sea, congestion at major portsin the world, and recovery in consumer demand in the
US and European markets. However, the average freight rate has decreased continuously
since mid-July due to the adaptation of shipping linesin rerouting their services, the reduction
of port congestion as well as the delivery of newly built ships handed over continueto beat a
high level.

For VIMC's port system, pressure of competition is increasing constantly. Private
players with very high flexibility in price policies, have absolute advantages in market and
customer development. In addition, amid the general difficult situation, shipping lines
themselves are also forced to cut costs, putting pressure on revenue at ports.

Logistics subsidiariesface many difficultiesin terms of operation costs (gasoline prices,
electricity prices, etc.), and volume when many export enterprises lack orders, reducing the
flow of goods between factories and stations, ports, and border gates.

2. Results of business and investment activities in 2024
2.1 Results of business activities
2.1.1 Business results of the parent company
(Unit: Billion VND)

Plan 2024/ | 2024/Plan
Items 2023 | ooy | 2024 | 50p3 2024
Total Revenue 2067 | 2414| 3157| 153% 131%

1. Net revenue from sales of goods

) ; 1,468 1,255 1,641 112% 131%
and rendering of services

2. Cost of goods sold 1,381 1,158 1,448 105% 125%

3. Gross profit from sales of goods

: . 87.6 96.8 192 220% 199%
and rendering of services

4. Financial income 547 381 540 99% 142%

5. Financial expense 88.4 49.8 107 121% 215%

6. Selling expense 20.7 16.1 9.8 47% 61%

7. General and administrative 209 244 293 107% 91%
expenses

8. Net profit from operating 316 169 303|  124% 233%
activities

9. Other income 51.9 778 975 1878% 125%

10. Other expense 10.9 115 15.2 138% 132%




11. Other Profit (11=9-10) 40.9 766 960 2344% 125%

Total net profit beforetax 357 935 1,353 379% 145%

The parent company’s shipping volume reached 3.8 million tons, achieving 100% of
the 2024 target (excluding 1.4 million tons of container cargo handled by VIMC Linesin
the second half of 2024 after its conversion into ajoint stock company).

- Total revenuein 2024: VND 3,157 billion (131% of FY 2024), of which:

+ Revenue from sales of goods and rendering of services: VND 1,641 hillion, an
increase of VND 386 billion compared to the plan, mainly due to VIMC's expansion of
business activities, increase in revenue from commercial activities (an increase of VND 365
billion).

+ Financial income: VND 540 billion, 142% of the budget, equivalent to an increase
of VND 159 bhillion, mainly from deposit interest (an increase of VND 48 hillion) and
exchange rate difference interest (an increase of VND 107 hillion).

+ Other income: VND 975 hillion, an increase of VND 197 billion compared to the
budget, mainly due: (i) income from the write-off of the interest on interest of VDB Bank
(VND 378 billion - anincrease of VND 177 billion compared to the plan), (ii) revenue from
the revaluation of the assets contributed by shares of Vietham Maritime Development Joint
Stock Company and VIMC Dinh Vu'sinto VIMC Lines (VND 468.5 billion - an increase
of VND 16 billion compared to the plan), (iii) revenue from asset liquidation was VND 104
billion (a decrease of VND 7.6 billion compared to the plan) and (iv) some other income
was VND 20.8 billion.

Total expense: VND 1,479 hillion (122% of FY 2024), expenses increased compared
to the plan due to: expenses for commercial activities increased by VND 363.5 hillion,
financial expenses increased by VND 57 billion (mainly due to an increase in losses on
exchange rate differences which be revaluated at the end of the period).

During the year, VIMC has synchronously implemented solutions to effectively
manage costs, followed by a decrease of VND 20.8 hillion of business management
expenses in 2024 compared to the plan.

Profit before tax: VND 1,353 billion (145% of FY 2024).

Thus, the business results of the parent company in 2024 exceeded all the targets
including volume, revenue and profit which were assigned by the Annual General Meeting
of Shareholdersin 2024.

2.1.2 VIMC consolidated business results:

. Plan 2024/ 2024/plan
Items Unit 2023 2004 2024 2023 2004
Shipping volume M;L'LO” 208| 158 19.4 0% | 122%
Million
Port throughput ton 114.8 123.7 145.3 127% 117%

3



Revenue 'f'/','\: g” 13964 | 13447 | 19253 138% 144%
Profit before tax 'f'/','\: g” 2126| 2736| 3153 149% 115%
(Note: Data according to VIMC's 2024 audited financial statements)

a. Port Sector
Cargo throughput: 145 million tons, increasing by 17% compared to the budget. In
which, containerized cargo was 6.2 million Teus, equivalent to 119% of the 2024 budget.
The results of the port sector grew significantly due to:

- Determined and synchronously implement solutions to maintain and develop the
business, customers and market share.

- Taking advantage of the opportunity from the congestion of ports in the region as
well as promoting market development, customer care, VIMC port system has devel oped
many new container servicesin 2024.

- Cargo throughput of almost port have raised up compared to FY 2023 and 2024
budget. In particular, the volume of strategic commodities such as containers, animal feed,
iron and steel, wood chips, and wood pellets grew well at ports such as Saigon, Da Nang,
Quy Nhon, and especially increased sharply in the joint venture ports with a growth rate of
38%.

Revenue: VND 7,753 billion, an increase of 15% compared to the budget, of which:
Hai Phong Port — increased by VND 688 billion (due to an increase in exploitation revenue,
in addition, Hai Phong Port recorded compensation for the relocation of Hoang Dieu
terminal of VND 202 hillion); Saigon Port — increased by VND 288 bhillion from
exploitation revenue and financial revenue); DaNang Port — increased by 113 billion VND.

In order to promote and improve labor productivity and service quality at ports, VIMC
has drastically directed the implementation of the information technology and digital
transformation in the management and administration of business activities;, Many ports
have made efforts and determination to improve and compl ete towards building a smart and
modern port system, constantly improving the quality of customer service and operational
efficiency. In 2024, 10 new container services have been developed, especialy there were
large services directly connect VIMC's port system with portsin Europe and the US.

b. Shipping Sector
Shipping volume: 19.4 million tons, up 22% compared to the plan. Although the volume
decreased compared to the same period in 2023 (due to the liquidation of 10/56 vessels, while
only 2 additional ships were invested. Besides, 14 vessels had to be on dock to periodically
repaired), it still exceeded the plan by 22%. VIMC has drastically directed the subsidiariesto
promote chartering activities to increase volume and revenue (volume from vessel
outsourcing activities reached 2.2 million tons).

Revenue: VND 9,729 hillion, up 93% compared to the plan, of which: VIMC Shipping
—increased by VND 213 hillion (from commercia revenue and finance restructuring); VVosco
— increased by VND 3,609 hillion (from commercia revenue, exploitation revenue and ship
liquidation revenue); from July 2024, VIMC Lines revenue will be recorded in the
consolidated results (VND 530 billion).



c. Maritime Services Sector

In 2024, the activities of the maritime service sector continue to face many difficulties
due to the decline in traditional business activities; there has been no breakthrough in the
development of new services. The warehouse system, transportation fleet, and logistics
system are still limited in many aspectsin terms of capacity and quality of services provided
to customers. Core logistics services have not brought much revenue, relying heavily on
outsourcing. The customer structure is still relying heavily on traditional customers.

Revenue: VND 1,543 billion, up 10% compared to the plan, almost companies have
guaranteed revenue and exceed the budgeted revenue.

2.2 | nvestment resultsin 2024
2.2.1 Investment activities at the parent company:

The investment plan of the parent company in 2024 approved by the General Meeting
of Shareholdersin Resolution No. 229/NQ-DHDCD dated 16/4/2024: VND 436.7 billion,
of which, transitional projects: VND 199.6 billion, new investment projects. VND 237.1
billion.

During the year, total value of investment was VND 151.4 billion (equivalent to 35%
of the plan) mainly due to: mechanisms and policies related to bidding, so the parent
company has not implemented the dry cargo ship investment project from 20,000 to 50,000
DWT (Plan: VND 177.8 billion).

I nfrastructure investment projects:

- Hau Giang Maritime - Seaport service infrastructure investment project: All
preparatory procedures were completed, and construction officially commenced on January
12, 2024. By the end of 2024, the actual construction volume had reached 70% of the
contract value, with the remainder carried over to 2025.

- Ninh Giang inland waterway port: The People’s Committee of Hai Duong Province
approved the investment policy and selected the investor to implement the project (Decision
No. 2690/Qb-UBND dated October 18, 2024). Following thisapproval, VIMC worked with
the People’s Committee of Ninh Giang District to receive guidance on procedures related
to land measurement and site clearance. In 2024, VND 796 million was disbursed for
consultancy services, construction surveying, project proposal preparation, and cadastral
map adjustments. In 2025, VIMC will continue investment preparation procedures such as
developing the 1/500 zoning plan, environmental impact assessment report (EIA),
feasibility study report, and land compensation/site clearance, with an estimated cost of
VND 84 billion.

Equipment procurement project:

- Completed the purchase of 500 new 40HC containers and 500 new 20DC containers.
The project has been completed, handed over and put into operation; acceptance and
settlement of contracts; transfer assetsto VIMC Shipping for management and exploitation.

- Completed the purchase of two 7-seater cars and one 5-seater car for business
activities,

I nvestment project on information technology system:

In 2024, the parent company implemented information technol ogy projects to upgrade
the information technology system for management and operation activities. However, the
Implementation situation has not been achieved as planned, it is expected to continue to be
implemented in 2025 as follows:



+ IT infrastructure upgrade project: signed the contract to implement and disburse the
contract advance.

+ Portal and resource sharing project - Logistics Hub: has signed a contract to prepare
an economic and technical report. The project has not been approved since there was a
change in construction design, survey report based on the actual situation.

Building and warehouse repair:

VIMC has implemented building repair according to the approved plan. The total
disbursement value reached VND 17.3 billion (09 items). In which, the item of renovation
and installation of additional corridor smoke extraction system for Ocean Park Building is
being implemented and continuing to be conducted in 2025.

Development strategy of Vietham Maritime Corporation - Joint Stock Company to
2030, vision to 2035: Developing and implementing solutions to carry out the vision.

In 2024, the strategic consulting project has been implemented. The project has been
accepted for the initial reporting period. Mid-Term reporting is currently implementing
which and continues to transition in 2025.

2.2.2 VIMC's key projects:

(i) Construction of container terminals No. 3 and No. 4 of Hai Phong international
gateway port (at Lach Huyen port, Hai Phong city):

As of the reporting date, the cumulative disbursement was VND 4,962 billion out of
the total VND 6,946 hillion investment (71.4%). As a flagship project, VIMC and Hali
Phong Port have focused resources on itsimplementation. In 2024, VIMC expedited project
milestones, equipment installation, and port opening procedures to ensure operations begin
as scheduled in April 2025. The entire project is expected to be completed in 2025.

(i) International transshipment port project in Can Gio district, Ho Chi Minh city:

In 2024, VIMC actively coordinated with Saigon Port, closely following ministries
and authorities to explain and supplement the dossier of the project. Up to now, the
procedures related to the approval of the project's principle have been resolved:

- Regarding the master plan of Vietnam's seaport system: On 22/5/2024, the Prime
Minister issued Decision No. 442/QD-TTg approving the adjustment of the master plan of
Vietnam's seaport system for the 2021-2030 period, with a vision to 2050.

- Regarding the principle of investment: On 16/1/2025, the Prime Minister approved
the investment principle of the project (Decision No. 148/QD-TTg).

In 2025, VIMC/Saigon Port will coordinate with partners to complete investment
preparation procedures and expected to be selected as the project investor.

(iii) Lien Chieu Port, Da Nang:

VIMC has coordinated with Da Nang Port to implement investment proposal
procedures and promote cooperation with foreign partners to implement and develop
cooperation plans in line with the new investment orientation of Da Nang City People's
Committee.

In addition, VIMC is promoting the development of logistics infrastructure projectsin
the regions: Investment principle of Ninh Giang inland waterway port project has been
approved; announced the opening of Dong Pho Moi inland port, Lao Cai province (ICD Lao
Cai).

2.3 Capital investment:

According to the capital investment plan for 2024 approved by the General Meeting
of Shareholders, VIMC has implemented as follows:
6



- Completion of capital contribution to establish VIMC Container Transport Joint
Stock Company (VIMC Lines): On May 10, 2024, VIMC Lines was granted the Enterprise
Registration Certificate. At the same time, VIMC completed the procedures for capital
contribution to VIMC Lines in the form of cash and assets (a batch of container shells, the
value of investment capital in VIMC Dinh Vu and Vimadeco) in accordance with
regulations. Currently, VIMC Lines has stabilized its production and business operations.

- Contributing capital to establish VIMC - Aries Joint Venture: VIMC has devel oped
the investment plan and submitted it to competent authorities for approval of the policy and
capital contribution decision to establish VIMC — Aries Maritime Services Joint Venture
Company Limited. As of now, the company has been granted the Investment Registration
Certificate, the Enterprise Registration Certificate, and the capital contribution has been
completed.

Capital increase for subsidiaries: VIMC has completed the charter capital increase of
Vinaship Joint Stock Company and Vietnam Sea Transport and Chartering Joint Stock
Company, and is currently implementing procedures to increase charter capital at Can Tho
Port Joint Stock Company, among others.

2.4 Asset liguidation

In 2024, VIMC completed the liquidation of the VIMC Green vessdl as planned, with
revenue of VND 103 billion. At the same time, it completed the liquidation of 10 old cars,
earning VND 1.08 hillion.

I1. BUSINESS AND INVESTMENT PLAN IN 2025
1. Business plan in 2025:

In 2025, the global situation isforecasted to continue evolving rapidly, complexly and
unpredictably, with persistent risks of geopolitical conflicts and intensified great-power
competition. Trade tensions are expected to rise. Policy changes in major economies pose
risks to global growth.

The current maritime transport market is experiencing a severe downturn. The
trangport indices (BDI, WCI) have fallen sharply to the lowest level since June 2020 due to
weakening demand, risks related to US trade policy and many shipping lines have begun to
resume their services through the Red Sea. It is forecasted that the transport market in 2025
will continue to face many difficulties and challenges because the demand for bulk cargo
transportation will only increase by about 1%, while the supply of the fleet will maintain a
growth of about 3%, leading to the risk of large oversupply and putting pressure on freight
rates. Currently, the BDI index only ranges from about 700-1,200 (much lower than the
assumption in the business plan of 2025- from 1,600 to 2,000).

In addition, VIMC continues to face numerous internal challenges regarding fleet
capacity & technical specification, aging vessels while compliance requirements under new
international conventions. VIMC logistics infrastructure is no longer located in optimal
areas, leading to competitiveness reduction. Major seaports have to relocate due to the
construction of public infrastructure in the provinces.

Despite facing a difficult and challenging context in 2025, with the determination and
aspirations of the leadership and employees, and under the direction of the Prime Minister
7



and the Ministry of Finance, in order to ensure that growth is not lower than 2024 and at
least 8% for 2025, VIMC will synchronously implement many comprehensive solutions to
overcome bottlenecks, difficulties as well as create breakthroughs and seek new growth
drivers to achieve the highest goals and targets of the 5-year business plan (2021-2025)
towards the 14th National Party Congress.

Pursuant to Document No. 1073/QD-BTC of the Ministry of Finance dated
25/3/2025 on the assignment of growth targets in 2025. VIMC has built a business plan in
2025 asfollows:

1.1 Business plan of the parent company:
(Unit: Billion VND)

Plan 2025/
ltems 2024 Plan 2025 2004
Total Revenue 3,157 3,849 122%
1. Net_ revenuefr_om sales of goods and 1,641 3,176 194%
rendering of services
2. Cost of goods sold 1,448 3,139 217%
3. Gr(_)ss profit f_r om sales of goods and 193 36.2 19%
rendering of services
4. Financial income 540 326 60%
5. Financial expense 107 34.5 32%
6. Selling expense 9.8 15.2 154%
7. General and administrative expense 223 240 108%
8. Net profit from operating activities 393 725 18%
9. Other income 975 346 36%
10. Other expense 15.2 10.3 68%
11. Other Profit (11=9-10) 960 336 35%
Total net profit beforetax 1,353 409 30%

Parent Company’s throughput: 3.2 million tons (85% compared to FY 2024).

- Total revenue: VND 3,849 billion, an increase of VND 692 billion (22% compared
to FY 2024). Revenue from shipping operationsis expected to reach VND 3,006 billion, an
increase of VND 1,526 billion compared to 2024 due to VIMC’s strong efforts to meet the
Government’s growth targets.

- Profit before tax in 2025: VIMC expects to reach VND 409 billion. In 2024, VIMC
recorded several gains from financial restructuring, revaluation of capital-contributed
assets, and foreign exchange differences.

The above business targets are aligned with the growth indicators assigned by the
Ministry of Finance under Decision No. 1073/QD-BTC dated 25/3/2025.
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VIMC's consolidated business plan:

. Plan 2025/
ltems Unit 2024 Plan 2025 2024

Shipping volume Million ton 194 21.1 109%
Port throughput Million ton 145.3 158.3 109%
Revenue Billion 19,253 20,793 108%
VND ' ' 0

, Billion 0
Profit beforetax VND 3,153 3,076 98%

2. Investment plan in 2025

2.1 Investment plan of the parent company:

a The 2025 investment plan of the Parent Company is VND 194.6 billion, including:
- Investment plan carried forward from 2024 to 2025: VND 162.7 billion

- New investment plan for 2025: VND 31.9 hillion

* Transitional projects from 2024:

(i) Infrastructure investment projects:

- Ninh Giang inland waterway port: In 2025, preparatory investment procedures will
be conducted with an estimated value of VND 84 billion.

- Renovation and installation of additional corridor smoke extraction system at Ocean
Park building: expected to be completed in the second quarter of 2025.

- Hau Giang seaport maritime service area: To be continued and completed for
operation in 2025.

- Procurement project for additional audio and lighting equipment for the main
conference room on the 3rd floor of Ocean Park building: The total investment is adjusted
to VND 1.8 billion to upgrade the specialized audio system for conferences.

(i) Information technology project:
- Centralized customer care portal: (CRM + Hotline).

- IT infrastructure upgrade project to support the management and operations of
VIMC.

- Resource sharing portal project - Logistics hub.
- Human resource management software.

(iii) Development strategy of Vietnam Maritime Corporation - Joint Stock Company
to 2030, vision to 2035: Develop and implement solutions to realize the strategic vision.

* New projectsin 2025:

(i) Infrastructure investment projects:



- Project 1: Installation of fine art lighting system outside Ocean Park building.
- Project 2: Mekong Delta project

- Project 3: Investment project in construction of VIMC logistics center at Lach Huyen
Terminal area, Hai Phong City

- Project 4: Investment project for construction of Lien Chieu Port area, DaNang City
— Phase of strategic investor mobilization

- Project 5: Investment project for construction of Nam Do Son Port area, Hai Phong
City

(if) Equipment procurement projects:

- Project 1: The purchase of new 7-seater cars.

(ii1) Information technology project:

- Integrated axis project - Bigdata VIMC.

b. The 2025 plan for repair and renovation of infrastructure and equipment is VND
31.9 billion.

(Detailsin the Appendix No. 01 attached).

2.2 Plan for reducing ownership ratio, divestment, and capital reduction in
subsidiaries.

Pursuant to the devel opment strategy for the 20212030 period with avision to 2035;
the 5-year business and investment plan for 2021-2025; the approved restructuring scheme
of VIMC for 2021-2025; the progress of divestment activities in 2024; and the market
situation, VIMC continues the plan of reducing ownership ratio and divesting contributed
capital in subsidiaries in 2025, specifically as follows:

+ Divestment plan: (i) Saigon Maritime Joint Stock Company; (ii) Transving; (iii) Hai
Phong Port Joint Stock Company; (iv) Transport and Trading Services Joint Stock
Company; (v) Cam Ranh Port Joint Stock Company; (vi) Dong Do Maritime Joint Stock
Company.

+ Increasing charter capital to reduce VIMC's ownership ratio in enterprises: (i) Can
Tho Port Joint Stock Company; (ii) VIMC Logistics Joint Stock Company; (iii) Vinabridge;
(iv) VIMC Lines. (Details in Appendix No. 02 attached).

2.3. The parent company’s capital increase and capital contribution plan:

In 2025, the Parent Company plans to contribute capital to several enterprises to
alocate budget and proactively manage financial resources, with a total planned capital
investment value of VND 3,242.7 billion (excluding the payment for the “legitimate
interests of the investor” under the share transfer agreement of Quy Nhon Port with Hop
Thanh Company, estimated at approximately VND 65 billion), including:

- Carried forward from 2024: Capital contribution to establish VIMC — ARIES
Maritime Services Joint Venture Company Limited, with a provisional contribution value
of VND 2.7 billion (equivalent to 51% of charter capital).

- New capital investment projects. VND 3,240 billion, aimed at contributing capital to
joint ventures to implement the following projects. Can Gio International Transshipment
10



Port Construction Investment Project and Comprehensive Investment Project for Lien Chieu
Container Terminal, upon being selected by the competent authority in accordance with
regulations. Specifically:

+ Capital contribution to the joint venture implementing the Can Gio International
Transshipment Port Project: VIMC and Saigon Port will form a consortium with a partner
to participate in bidding and be selected as the project investor. Following selection, the
consortium members will establish a Joint Venture Company to implement the project. The
Vietnamese side will hold 51% of the joint venture’s charter capital. VIMC’s capital
contribution is tentatively calculated at 36% of the minimum charter capital of the joint
venture. The exact value and proportion of capital contribution by each party will be
reported by VIMC in the Joint Venture Establishment Plan.

+ Capital contribution to the joint venture implementing the Comprehensive
Investment Project for Lien Chieu Container Terminal: VIMC will participatein the bidding
process and, if selected, will be theinvestor of the Lien Chieu project. Alternatively, VIMC
may form a consortium with Da Nang Port and a partner to participate in bidding for the
project. After being selected, the consortium will establish a Joint Venture Company to
implement the project. The Vietnamese side (VIMC and Da Nang Port) will hold 51% of
the joint venture’s charter capital

In addition, in 2025 VIMC will not dissolve the VIMC Manpower Company to carry
out the seafarers training and supply according to VIMC’s centralized crew management
strategy.

At the sametime, along with continuing the restructuring of VIMC Hau Giang, VIMC
plans to increase the charter capital of VIMC Hau Giang from assets and receivables of
VIMC at VIMC Hau Giang, supporting VIMC Hau Giang to have resources to implement
investment projectsimprove operational capacity, and stabilizeitsfinancial situation before
transferring to the joint stock company.

(Detailsin Appendices 03, 04 attached)

2.4 Plan for sale/liquidation of old and unused assets of the parent company:
(Details in Appendix 05 attached)

2.5 Ship liquidation plan:

(Details in Appendix 06.07 attached)

2.6 Ship investment plan:

(Detailsin Appendix 08 attached)

3. Principle of increasing the parent company charter capital:

In implementing the Resolution No. 36-NQ/TW dated October 22, 2018 of the Central
Executive Committee on the Sustainable Development Strategy for Vietnam’s Marine
Economy to 2030 with a vision to 2045, and in alignment with the Development Strategy
for the 2025-2030 period, with avision to 2035 of Vietham Maritime Corporation (VIMC),

VIMC iscurrently carrying out aseries of key projectsinitsthree core business areas.
investment in deep-sea port systems (Lach Huyen, Nam Do Son, Lien Chieu, Can Gio, etc.),
fleet development, and logistics infrastructure. The total capital demand for counterpart
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funding for these projects is approximately VND 55,000 billion, of which more than VND
23,000 billion is needed during the 2025-2030 period.

However, with the current charter capital of VND 12,005 billion — primarily allocated
to fixed assets (such as seaport and warehouse systems, and shipping fleet) and capital
contributions to subsidiaries — VIMC has in recent years been accumulating resources to
ensure the implementation of its key projects. It is estimated that VIMC can self-mobilize
approximately VND 6,300 billion and raise about VND 17,000 billion from external
SOUrces.

Therefore, increasing the charter capital of VIMC is essential to meet investment and
development needs, seizing opportunities to expand business operations (investing in ports
for large vessels, fleet expansion, and capital increasesin efficiently operating subsidiaries),
in line with VIMC’s long-term strategic devel opment orientation.

To secure sufficient resources for implementing investment projects under its Development
Strategy, VIMC plansto prepare and submit to the General Meeting of Shareholdersin 2025
— upon satisfying necessary conditions — a proposal to increase the charter capital to
approximately VND 23,000-25,000 billion, and reduce the State ownership ratio at VIMC
to 65% of charter capital, through the following methods: (i) Retaining post-tax profits (after
appropriating statutory funds) to supplement owner’s equity as a source for increasing
charter capital of VIMC; (ii) Issuing shares to increase charter capital, attracting strategic
investors, with the State not contributing additional capital during this capital increase.

4. |mplementation solution

4.1 Business Development:

- In an unpredictable and volatile market environment, VIMC will regularly meet and
engage with domestic and international partners, customers, cargo owners, and shipping
lines to exchange and update the market developments, capturing their production, export,
and import plans, as well as the service development plan of shipping lines as well as setting
up appropriate business scenarios.

- Facing a significant risk of volume decline when the shipping lines may withdraw or
stop their services, leading to oversupply of berth subsidiaries will immediately activate
solutions to retain customers and services. Simultaneously, VIMC will seek opportunities
to attract more shipping lines and new services, optimizing berth utilization.

- Continue to concretize and vigorously promote the “Customer-Centric” culture.
Strengthening and fostering cooperative relationships with partners to ensure stable
throughput and develop new services to VIMC port system.

- Continue to restructure the business apparatus following the customer experience
journey. Innovating customer care by focusing on marketing programs and integrated
service packages. Accelerating digital transformation, applying information technology in
management and operations, increasingly professionalizing customer care, and enhancing
customer experience. Strongly develop new services beyond stevedoring, such as logistics
services, to increase revenue for port companies.

- Develop and supplement new solutions to timely respond to unpredictable changes
in U.S tariff policies. Focus on promoting business activities, seeking and expanding new
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customers, cargo owners, shipping lines, and services in order to diversify markets, avoiding
dependence on traditional markets, and minimizing risks from new tariff and trade policies.

- Actively integrate internationally, strengthen bilateral and multilateral cooperation;
effectively mobilize and utilize capital and technical support from partners and international
organizations to enhance the effectiveness and efficiency of governance, administration, and
operations.

4.2 Finance and investment:

- Basing on market forecasts and assessments, VIMC shall set up corresponding
business scenarios. Subsidiaries need to evaluate and select suitable investment projects,
prioritizing resources to expand and grow while ensuring cash flow balance.

- Implement centralized procurement programs, Shared Service Center model to
manage costs effectively and prevent waste.

- Deploy cost reduction solutions, effective cost management, centralized procurement
programs.

- Continue to negotiate with the Vietnam Development Bank (VDB) on debt
restructuring for the parent company and subsidiaries; continue supporting subsidiaries in
handling debts at commercia banks, SBIC, and VFC.

- Looking for capital sources for key projects of VIMC subsidiaries and the parent
company.

- Continue utilizing and improving operational efficiency of subsidiaries resources,
infrastructure and land.

- Investing in new vessels aligned with the fleet development strategy, prioritizing
new-generation ships.

- Liquidation of old vessels: Accelerate the liquidation of aging vessels with low
operational efficiency that do not meet IMO environmental requirements.

4.3 Human resour ces:

In 2025, VIMC will continue to focus on implementing “People Centric” by prioritizing
human resources development and training.

- Continue to restructure and build an effective, lean organization.

- Strongly apply information technology and artificial intelligence (AI) in human
resource management.

- Innovating recruitment, training, and talent search processes, implementing the SSC
(Shared Service Center) model for recruitment and training services with VIMC’s
subsidiaries.

- Reforming the staff evaluation system: multi-dimensional (360-degree) assessments
based on criteria and outcomes, combined with software-based evaluation tools.

- Thoroughly innovate salary and remuneration mechanisms according to market
principles to motivate employees; establish mechanisms and policies to foster fair, healthy
competition and attract and retain talents.

- Implement the VIMC culture corporate culture strategy based on One Foundation —
Two Approaches — Three Priorities (establishing a unified cultural foundation applied across
all VIMC member companies).

4.4. Gover nance and administration:
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- Focus on supplementing, perfecting, and removing institutional bottlenecks within
the system; addressing long-standing inadequacies, backlogs, and obstacles to best meet the
demands for innovation and breakthroughs in national development under the new
circumstances.

- Continue to improve and reorganize the organizational structureto be lean, effective,
and efficient; strengthen real and effective decentralization and delegation; tighten
discipline and order, emphasizing the responsibility of leaders.

- Continuously enhance the quality of governance and administration at VIMC and its
member enterprises through cooperation with leading global partners and shipping lines.

- Actively and proactively research and transfer new technologies to increase labor
productivity. Lead innovation, digital transformation, and the development and application
of science and technology in accordance with Politburo’s Resolution No. 57.

- VIMC-wide effective application of CRM systems; focus on deploying centralized
Big Data platforms as a foundation to connect resources, develop integrated services, and
Increase revenue from new services.

- Apply cost management technology: implement digital and automation technologies
in operational management, especially in optimizing vessel scheduling and maintenance.

- Kaizen & Innovation: Continue consolidating Kaizen practices within VIMC’s
knowledge system, striving to achieve increased value and benefits compared to 2024
through Kaizen application.

Sincerely./.
Recipient: ON BEHALF OF
- Supervisory Board; D OF DIRECTORS
- Members of the Board of Director; &
- Save: Office

O
(o} ,‘\Y'
f’f:‘ bA-T? nh Son
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APPENDI X 01.1
2025 INVESTMENT PLAN — PARENT COMPANY

Unit: VND million

: Project Total
A AAEEESNENTS Scale/Description I nvestment A0ED T
I Ongoing Projectsfrom Previous Years 1,630,010 162,735
1 | Capital Construction I nvestment Projects 1,576,514 130,555
1,1 | Infrastructure investment for the maritime | Group C 63,900 34 500
service area at Hau Giang Seaport '
1,2 | Investment and construction of Ninh Giang | Group B 1,496,459
) 84,000
inland waterway port
1,3 | Renovation and instalation of additional | Installation from 14,355
smoke extraction system in the corridor of | Ground floor to 19th 10,255
Ocean Park Building floor
1,4 | Procurement of additional audio and lighting | Specialized audio 1,800
equipment for the large meeting room on the | system for 1,800
3rd floor of Ocean Park Building conferences
2 | IT Projects 21,795 17,680
2,1 | Centralized Customer Service Portal Project | Implemented at VIMC 1,000
(CRM + Hotline) and subsidiaries
1,000
2,2 |IT infrastructure upgrade project for | VIMC Headquarters 14,106
management and operations of VIMC 10,743
2,3 | Information portal and resource sharing | Implementedat VIMC 4,850
project — Logistics Hub and subsidiaries 4,685
24 | Human resource management software | Implementedat VIMC 1,839
investment project and subsidiaries
1,252
3 | Development Strategy of VIMC to 2030, | 3-phase Report 31,701
Vison to 2035: Develop and implement
solutions to realize the vision 14,500
I | Projects Commencingin the Plan Year 3,439,010 31,850
1 | Capital Construction I nvestment Projects 3,420,710 23,210




Project

Total

N2 FCCRINENTS Scale/Description I nvestment 2Pl
1,1 | Installation of decorative exterior lighting | From 4th to 19th floor 7,710
system for Ocean Park Building
7,710
1,2 | Mekong Delta Area Project 75,000
5,000
1,3 | Investment and construction of VIMC | Logistics center 3,338,000
logistics center at Lach Huyen terminal area, | construction on 46,7
Hai Phong City hectares of land 500
1,4 | Investment project for construction of Lien
Chieu Port area, Da Nang City — Phase of
strategic investor mobilization 5,000
1,5 | Investment project for construction of Nam Do
Son Port area, Hai Phong City 5,000
2 | Equipment Procurement Projects 4,500 4,500
2,1 | Procurement of new 7-seater cars for genera 2 cars 4,500 4500
office use ’
3 | IT Projects 13,800 4,140
3,1 | VIMC Big Data Integration Hub Project 13,800 4,140
Total 5,069,020 194,585




APPENDIX 01,2
2025 MAINTENANCE PLAN - PARENT COMPANY

Unit: VND million

Project

Total Repair

Ne, AEIEEEINENTE Scale/Description | I nvestment A0 FER

I INFRASTRUCTURE MAINTENANCE 21,050 21,050

1 | Renovation of restroomsfrom Ground floor | 16 WC rooms 3,700 3,700
to 3rd floor of Ocean Park Building

2 | Waterproofing for rooftop terrace on 4th 800 m? 1,500 1,500
floor and roof of Ocean Park Building

3 | Renovation of the canteen on the 19th floor 575 m? 12,700 12,700
of Ocean Park Building

4 | Installation of 2 new company signboards 65 m? 300 300
in Ho Chi Minh City

5 | Instalation of a new company signboard at 80 m2 1,000 1,000
Ocean Park Building

6 | Interior renovation of central elevator cabin 500 500

7 | Repair and renovation of the front exterior | Building front 1,000 1,000
of Ocean Park Building

8 | Renovation of pantrieson floors 3, 5, 8, 11, 5floors 350 350
and 15 of Ocean Park Building

[l | EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE 10,842 10,842

1 | Upgrade of camera system from 1stto 15th | Foors1to 15 1,000 1,000

floor and installation of additional cameras
in elevators




: Project Total Repair
N FACEESNENTS Scale/Description | I nvestment A0ED T

2 | Replacement of fire dlarm equipment from | Basement 2 to 3,700 3,700
Loop 1to Loop 7 (Basement 2 to 16th floor) 16th floor

3 | Installation of circuit breaker to isolate two 300 300
backup generators

4 | Group control connection for 2 rear 2 elevators 220 220
elevators in Ocean Park Building

5 | Upgrade and modernization of 4 central 4 elevators 4,712 4,712
elevators in Ocean Park Building

6 | Replacement of compact corridor lighting 12 floors 180 180
on floors 4 to 15 and 19 with LED lights

7 | Repair and upgrade of fire protection 9 floors 450 450
system at 163 Nguyen Van Troi Building,
HCMC

8 | Repair of air conditioning system at 163 280 280
Nguyen Van Troi Building, HCMC
Total 31,892 31,892







APPENDIX NO. 02.1

2025 PLAN FOR DIVESTMENT AND REDUCTION OF THE PARENT COMPANY'SCAPITAL CONTRIBUTION
IN INVESTED ENTERPRISES

Unit; VND million

No. Enterprise Name Charter VIMC's VIMC’s Ownership
Capital '”V‘:t?“e”t Number of Ratio
Capital (at par .
value) Sgarﬁl\l;:gd Owner ship
y Present | Ratio After
Divestment
I Carried forward from 2024
1 Saigon Maritime Joint Stock 43,096 4,374 437,400 | 10.15% 0%
Co.Ltd
5 Vietnam Hlegch Transportation 39854 ) - | 56.00% 0%
Company Limited
3 | Ha Phong Port Joint Stock 3,269,600 3,026,414 | 302,641,377 | 92.56% 65%
Company
Transportation and Trading 0 0
4 Services Joint Stock Company 86,000 28,800 2,880,000 | 33.49% 0%
I | 2025 Plan
1 | €am Ranh Port Joint Stock 245,018 198,230 | 19,823,015 80.90% 65%
Company
o | Dong Do Marine Joint Stock 122,445 50966 |  5996573| 48.97% 0%
Company




APPENDI X NO. 02.2:

2025 PLAN FOR REDUCING THE PARENT COMPANY’S OWNERSHIP RATIO IN INVESTED ENTERPRISES

Unit: VND million

Current Status

Post-adjustment

Note
No. | Enterprise Number : Number
Name Charter | of shares ML C. Exlinelize of shares VLY C.
: Ownership | charter Owner ship
Capital | hddby | poic06) | capital | "¥9BY | Ratio (%)
VIMC VIMC
| | Carried forward from 2024
Charter capital increase through
debt-to-equity  conversion  of
Can Tho VIMC’s receivables (based on the
Port Joint 0 0 parent company's books as of
1 Stock 275,281 | 27,256,618 | 99.01% 489,720 | 31,831,818 65% 31/12/2024), share  issuance,
Company resulting in a reduction of VIMC's
ownership in Can Tho Port JSC to
65% of charter capital.
Charter capital increase, with a
VIMC corresponding reduction  of
L oqistics VIMC’s ownership to 36% of
2 Joi%t Stock 142,121 | 8,061,620 | 56.72% 223,934 | 8,061,620 36% charter capital in order to mobilize
resources, enhance flexibility,
Company
empower corporate autonomy, and
improve operational efficiency.
[l | 2025 Plan
Vietnam Capital rest.ruct.urmg and planned
i charter capital increase to reduce
Container VIMC’s ownership to below 51%
1 | Operation 16,421 X 60.00% 27,367 X under 51% | . P %
e aming to mobilize resources,
Limited i :
enhance flexibility, and improve
Company bUS :
usiness operations.




Current Status

Post-adjustment

Note
No. | Enterprise Number : Number
Name Charter | of shares ML C. Exlinelize of shares VLY C.
Capital | hedby |QWNErShip| charter | 4y, | Qwnership
VIMC Ratio (%) capital VIMC Ratio (%)
\él)m;ner Charter capital increase, with
. : 0 0 ownership reduced to 51% as part
2 gggiblnt 1,015,000 | 1,014,550 | 99.96% | 1,989,314 | 1,014,550 51% of the plan to restructure and
establish VIMC Lines
Company




APPENDIX NO. 02.3:
PLAN FOR CHARTER CAPITAL INCREASE AND REDUCTION OF VIMC'S

OWNERSHIP RATIO IN INVESTED ENTERPRISESIN 2025

. VIMC LOGISTICS VIETNAM JOINT STOCK COMPANY ("VIMC
Logistics")
1. Implementation Statusin Accordance with the VIMC Restructuring Scheme

According to the 2021-2025 VIMC Restructuring Scheme approved by the
General Meeting of Shareholders (GMS), VIMC Logisticsis to be restructured through
capital divestment or a charter capital increase, thereby reducing VIMC’s ownership
ratio in VIMC Logistics to 36%. Under the 2024 Plan for Charter Capital Increase and
Ownership Reduction at Investee Companies approved by the VIMC Annua Genera
Meeting, VIMC Logistics is to be restructured by means of divestment or issuance of
shares to investors to reduce VIMC’s ownership in VIMC Logistics to 36% post-
restructuring.

According to the 2023-2028 Restructuring Scheme prepared by VIMC Logistics,
the capital increase plan is expected to be implemented in 2025.

2. Orientation and Plan for Business Operations and I nvestment
2.1. Business Orientation

- Development objectives for the period 2023 - 2025: Completely resolve
outstanding issues, underperforming assets, and loss-making business projects;
streamline the organizational structure; ensure effective and efficient corporate
governance. Maintain and stabilize business operations, focusing on high-quality
services for existing customer groups; expand market share and diversify new customer
SOuUrces.

- Development objectives for the period 2026 - 2028: Focus on investing in and
developing logistics infrastructure, deeply participating in the service chain within
VIMC's maritime transport - seaport - logistics services ecosystem.

- Vision to 2030: Establish alogistics infrastructure system, complete major, key
projects. alogistics center in key economic zones; an operations center for the North-
South refrigerated container chain and exports.

2.2. Investment Plan
a) Investment in developing cold storage facilitiesin Hai Phong

- Method: Lease regular warehouses, then convert and invest in equipment to
transform them into a cold storage system in Hai Phong to meet the increasing demand
for preserving goods such as food, pharmaceuticals, and chemicals. The cold storage is
planned with a scale of 2,000 m2, comprising 5 component warehouses, each with an
area of 400 m2, located near Port of Hai Phong, with convenient transportation and
infrastructure connectivity. The target market includes import-export enterprises in the
Hai Phong area, international logistics companies, and consumer goods manufacturers.

- Estimated investment period: 2025
- Estimated total investment: Approximately VND 14.8 billion.



- Investment capital source: Own capital.
b) Research and development of infrastructure investment at ICD Lao Cai

On December 16, 2024, the Ministry of Transport issued Decision No. 1549/QD-
BGTVT announcing the opening of Dong Pho Moi Inland Container Depot (ICD) (Lao
Cai). Dong Pho Moi ICD islocated in Dong Pho Moi Industrial Zone, Lao Cai Ward,
Lao Cai Province, covering an area of 50,000 m2. The function of Dong Pho Moi ICD
(Lao Cai) isto receive and store goods for service business activities and to carry out
import-export procedures in accordance with Government Decree No. 38/2017/ND-CP
dated April 4, 2017, and the Investment Certificate and Business Registration Certificate
issued by competent authorities.

Dong Pho Moi ICD in Lao Ca is an important cargo transit hub, connecting
Vietnam with international markets through the Lao Cai border gate. This area has
geographical and transportation advantages and is receiving significant infrastructure
investment, opening up many opportunities for the development of logistics,
transportation, and related industries. In the 2025-2030 period, the development goal is
to enhance its role as a modern logistics center to optimize domestic and international
cargo flows, develop high-tech services such as automated warehouse management and
|oT-based transport monitoring, while supporting import-export enterprises through fast
customs services and procedural consulting. Potential services also include a logistics
center, cargo management systems, as well as value-added services such as packaging,
labeling, and basic processing. In particular, this area has potential for developing
Vietnam-China cross-border e-commerce services, leveraging geographical advantages
and bilateral trade relations, while promoting the use of cold storage for efficient
preservation and transportation of agricultural products and foodstuffs.

- Estimated investment research period: 2025
- Estimated investment capital source: Own capital.
) Investment in assets and equipment

To expand business operations, the Company will invest in atransport fleet of 20
container trucks equipped with generators and trailers.

Estimated total investment: Approximately VND 30 billion.
Estimated investment capital source: Company's own capital.

d) Further research on investment options in key economic zones (when
opportunities arise)

() Project: Investment in constructing a Honda goods distribution systemin Lien
Chieu area - Da Nang

Establish a center for recelving, storing, and distributing Honda goods,
connecting Honda's factories as well as connecting factories to distribution agents,
thereby shortening transportation time, bringing high efficiency to the manufacturer, and
generating revenue for VIMC Logistics.

Reduce manufacturer costs, and decrease damage and theft of goods due to more
reliable and faster "door-to-door" transport services.

- Estimated location: Lien Chieu area - Da Nang.



- Estimated scale and total investment: The total project implementation area is
20,000 m2, including planned main items. an executive office building of about 200 m2,
a 10,000 m2 warehouse, a 5,000 m2 yard, and the remaining areafor auxiliary facilities.
The estimated total investment is approximately VND 103.4 billion.

- Investment capital source: Company's own capital + contributed capital: 40%;
bank loans and other legally mobilized capital: 60%.

(i) Investment Project for the Construction of a Logistics Center in Can Gio
District

According to VIMC's development strategy for the 2021-2030 period, VIMC
collaborates with MSC to research investment in a large-scale international container
transshipment terminal in Can Gio District, Ho Chi Minh City. Phase 1 of the project
includes constructing 1,000m of main berths, 450m of barge berths, and 38.5 ha of
container yard. This is a key project aimed at developing international container
transshipment services, meeting the socio-economic devel opment needs of the maritime
industry.

VIMC Logisticsis exploring theinvestment in developing alogistics center (cold
storage system) in Can Gio District (now Thanh An Commune), with the following
preliminary details:

- Purpose: To establish a cold storage system in Can Gio District to meet the
demand for storing and preserving marine products and other frozen goods.

- Estimated location: Thanh An Commune — Ho Chi Minh City.

- Estimated scale: Total project implementation area of 12,000m2, including
main items: an executive office building of about 200m2; a 10,000m2 warehouse; a
1,000m2 yard; the remaining areafor auxiliary facilities.

- Investment capital source: Own capital 40%; loans and other mobilized capital
60%.

3. VIMC Logistics Restructuring Plan

To ensure capital for implementing development investment projects, mobilize
resources, create flexibility and proactivity for the enterprise, and improve business
operations, based on the VIMC Logistics restructuring plan in the VIMC Restructuring
Scheme (reducing VIMC's ownership stake from 56.72% to 36% of charter capita),
VIMC proposes a plan to increase charter capital to reduce VIMC's ownership stake to
36% of charter capital.

VIMC Logistics' Proposed Capital Increase Plan:

No. Item Value Ownership
(million (%)
VND)

1 | Current Charter Capital 142,121 100.0
1.1 | VIMC 80,616 56.72
1.2 | Other Shareholders 61,505 43.28

2 | New Charter Capital 223,934 100.0

(Projected)
2.1 | VIMC 80,616 36.0




2.2 | Other Shareholders 143,318 74.0

3 |Charter Capital Increase 81,813
(Projected) (3=2-1)

II. VIETNAM CONTAINER OPERATION LIMITED COMPANY
(Vinabridge)

1. Status of divestment implementation according to the VIMC Restructuring
Scheme

According to the VIMC Restructuring Scheme for the 2021 - 2025 period,

approved by the General Meeting of Shareholders (GMS), Vinabridge is slated for full
capital divestment.

Pursuant to the 2024 divestment plan of VIMC as approved by the Annual
General Meeting of Shareholders, VIMC implemented the following procedures for
divesting its capital in Vinabridge: (1) valuation and appraisal of VIMC’s capital
contribution in Vinabridge; (ii) approval of the divestment plan for VIMC’s stake in
Vinabridge; (iii) offering the stake to the remaining capital contributor of Vinabridge,
who declined the purchase; (iv) organizing a public auction for the capital contribution
to external investors (held on December 27, 2024). However, the divestment was not
completed within 2024 due to alack of investor interest.

2. Orientation and Plan for Business Operations and | nvestment
2.1. Business Orientation
- Enhance service quality to retain traditional customers and attract new ones.

- Increase revenue in the two main service segments. warehouse operation and
transportation.

- Seek cooperation opportunities with import-export companies and joint
ventures with logistics needs in Hai Phong.

- Closely collaborate with seaports and shipping lines within VIMC's ecosystem.

- Cooperate with logistics companies within the VIMC system as well as
transport companies in the Hai Phong Logistics Association to increase cargo sources
for transportation.

- Effectively reduce and manage costs.
- Seek transport customers to enable two-way (backhaul) transportation.
2.2. Business and Production Plan

No. I ndicator Unit Actual Plan Comparison
2024 2025
1 Revenue VND million 55,600 62,800 113%
2 Costs VND million 55,470 61,750 111%
3 Profit Before Tax | VND million 130 1,050 807%
4 | NetProfitEquity % 0.79 6.4 810%
Ratio
5 EBITDA VND million 1,850 2,375 128%




2.3. Investment Plan

In 2025, the Company plansto invest in the following assets to serve its business
operations:

- Investment in three 40-foot trailers, total investment: VND 1.08 billion.

- Investment in fire prevention and fighting systems at the Container Y ard, total
investment: VND 0.2 billion.

- Investment in one 45-ton forklift, total investment: VND 10.5 billion.
- Total planned investment for 2025: VND 11.78 billion.
3. Enterprise Restructuring Plan

Currently, after a period of strong restructuring (2023 - 2024), Vinabridge's
business operations have markedly improved. After many consecutive years of |osses
(since 2019), in 2024, the Company is projected to achieve a profit (VND 130 million).
In addition, Customs authorities have recognized Vinabridge Yard as a centralized
customs supervision and inspection site for export and import goods (since June 2024).
Therefore, it is anticipated that cargo volume will continue to grow, and Vinabridge's
operations will gradually stabilize. The plan for 2025 projects a profit of VND 1.05
billion. To enhance competitiveness and the quality of warehousing services to meet
business operation requirements, Vinabridge needs to raise additional capital to invest
in equipment procurement (the planned investment for 2025 is VND 11.78 billion).

Therefore, to mobilize resources, create flexibility and proactivity for the
enterprise, and improve business operations, VIMC proposes to adjust the restructuring
plan for Vinabridge from full divestment to implementing a capital increase, thereby
reducing VIMC's ownership stake in Vinabridge to below 51% of its charter capital in
2025.

[I1. VIMC CONTAINER LINES JOINT STOCK COMPANY (VIMC
Lines)

1. Charter Capital Plan according to the VIMC Lines Establishment Scheme

According to the Establishment Plan of Vimc Container Lines Joint Stock
Company, attached to Resolution No. 39/NQ-HHVN dated February 2, 2024, of the
VIMC Board of Directors, the charter capital plan of VIMC Linesis as follows:

1.1. Current Charter Capital at Establishment

The charter capital of VIMC Container Lines Joint Stock Company at the time
of establishment: VND 1,015,000 million, of which:

Shar eholder Capital Ownership
Contribution (%)
Valueat Par
(million VND)
VIMC 1,014,550 99.956
Other Shareholders 450 0.044
Total 1,015,000




1.2. Charter Capital Increase Plan:

After the establishment of VIMC Lines, VIMC and relevant stakeholders will
continue to seek strategic investors to contribute capital to VIMC Lines. At that time,
the Company will increase its charter capital, issue shares to strategic investors, and
reduce VIMC’s ownership ratio in VIMC Lines. The procedures are expected to be
carried out in 2025, with the official charter capital increase to be completed in 2026.
The detailed plan is as follows:

Planned Charter Capital
Item I ncrease
Amount Ratio
(million VND)
VIMC's Capital Contribution 1,014,550 51.00 %
Other Shareholders' Contribution 450 0.023 %
Strategic Investors Contribution 974,314 48.977 %
Charter Capital 1,989,314 100 %

The additional charter capital is approximately VND 974.31 billion,
corresponding to 48.977% of the charter capital, to be issued to strategic shareholders.
This aims to mobilize capital for investing in the container fleet, infrastructure,
warehouses, vehicles, etc., for VIMC Lines and its member enterprises to expand
business operations.

2. Orientation and Plan for Business Operations and | nvestment
2.1. Business Orientation
2.1.1. Regarding Maritime Transport Business:

Focus on improving the service quality of the domestic container shipping market
share for key commodities such as: agricultural products, consumer goods, construction
materials, etc.

- Develop operational activities, cooperate with domestic and international
shipping lines in operations and ship agency, such as: Bien Dong Shipping Company
Limited; Hyundai Merchant Marine Co., Ltd; Gold Star Line Ltd; Zim, etc.
Additionally, will cooperate with Vosco if such cooperation proves effective.

- Develop container ship transport agency services: Operate domestic routes and
IntracAsiaroutes: Cai Mep, Hong Kong, Singapore, Malaysia, India. In the long term,
upon establishing a stable operational structure and brand.

2.1.2. Regarding Seaport and Warehouse Operation Business

According to VIMC's capital contribution plan in VIMC Lines, VIMC Dinh Vu
Port Joint Stock Company and Maritime Development Joint Stock Company are
subsidiaries of VIMC Lines.

VIMC Lines will not directly manage port and warehouse operations but will
oversee strategy at ports and service enterpriseswhere it has capital contributions, while
also supporting port and warehouse development and connecting service chains
according to VIMC's strategy. VIMC Lines will direct all its operating container ships
and partners ships to call at VIMC ports under VIMC's umbrella to increase cargo
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throughput at VIMC Ports. Concurrently, it will coordinate the operation of Vimadeco's
warehouse system in Hai Phong, Hanoi, and Ho Chi Minh City to help enterprises
improve operational efficiency, and increase revenue and profit.

2.1.3. Integrated Logistics Services Business

Leveraging the advantage of owning seaports, fleets of ships, vehicles, etc.,
VIMC Lines can provide a logistics service chain from goods reception, packaging
organization, warehousing, chartering transport means, customs procedures, €tc., to
delivering goods to the final destination (usually warehouses, factories, or construction
sites) as specified by the cargo owner and chosen by customers.

VIMC Lines logistics chain services include: Cargo handling; Customs
clearance; Full Container Load (FCL) freight forwarding; Inland transportation;
Tallying; Warehousing; Door-to-door delivery services.

2.2. Investment Plan

VIMC Lines investment plan for the 2025-2030 period, as per the plan, is as
follows:

Total
Total Investme
No. Type of Ship/Container InvFa:(;r rrnnent In\é?i?éant I nvestment nt
(USD) (million
VND)
I Y ear 2025 1,499,454
Secondhand
. _ | purchase/re-
1 21288?28? vessal (1000 - | ) 1 rchase of 2025 | 21,000,000| 540.750
' newbuild/ne
whbuild
Secondhand
. _ | purchaselre-
2 glzggrfgg;* vessel (900 —| ) rchase of 2025 | 19,000,000 | 489.250
' newbuild/ne
whbuild
Newbuild/re-
1,700-2,200 TEU vessel No, | Purehaseof 320000001 654 000 -
3 1 newbuild/sec | 2025-2028 — 927,000
ondhand 36,000,000 |
purchase
Newbuild/re-
1,700-2,200 TEU vessel No, | Purenasef 32000000 654 000 -
4 5 newbuild/sec | 2025-2028 - 927.000
ondhand 36,000,000 '
purchase
5 iﬂo-? x 20 MT and 500 x 40 2025 71.887
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Total
Total | nvestme
No. Type of Ship/Container ! nvFeﬁ(;r nr:]ent ! mé?irg;m I nvestment nt
(USD) (million
VND)
5 | 500X 20° MT and 500 x 40 2005 86,880
MT
7 | Quay crane purchase project 2025 40.800
Il | Period 2026-2030
1 | 1,700-2,200 TEU No. 2 Second-hand | ¢ 19.000,000 | 496,660
purchase
2 | 500/20MT and 500/40MT 2026 86,880
3 | 1,700-2,200 TEU No. 2 Newbuilding | 2027 32,000,000 | 836,480
4 | 1,700-2,200 TEU No. 3 Newbuilding | 2027 32,000,000 | 836,480
5 | 1.700-2,200 TEU No. 3 Second-hand |,y 19,000,000 | 496,660
purchase
Total Phase 2 2,753,160
Grand Total 4 252,614

The 2025 investment plan of VIMC Lines includes the procurement of 04
container vessels (through newbuilding, repurchase of newbuilds, or secondhand
purchase), 02 batches of container shells, and investment in quay cranes, with a total
estimated investment of approximately VND 2,877 hillion to VND 3,083 hillion.
Additionally, during the 20262030 period, VIMC Lines plans to further invest in 02
additional container vessels, with an estimated capital requirement of VND 1,648 billion
to VND 1,854 billion.

3. VIMC Lines Capital Increase Plan

To ensure capital for implementing the Company's development investment
projects, and based on the restructuring plan outlined in the Proposal for Establishing
VIMC Container Transport Joint Stock Company—which involves reducing VIMC’s
ownership from 99.956% to 51% of charter capita—VIMC proposes to increase the
charter capital of VIMC Lines through share issuance to strategic investors, thereby
reducing VIMC’s ownership to 51% in accordance with the approved establishment
plan.
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APPENDI X NO. 03:

2025 INVESTMENT PLAN FOR INCREASING THE PARENT COMPANY’S CAPITAL CONTRIBUTION IN

INVESTED ENTERPRISES

Unit: VND million

Additional

: Capital FO”T‘ O
No. I nvestment Proj ect Contribution Capltal_ Notes
Contribution
Value
Carried forward from 2024
Capital contribution value is USD 102,000
: . (equivalent to 51% of the Joint Venture's charter
Qﬁgﬁ?\;t(\)/f&ng |_bxt§|cEagltal for Cash capita capital) according to Decision No. _228/QD-!—IH\_/N
1 Shipping Service Company 2.700 contribution dated Se_ptember _10, 202_4._ The capital cont_rlbutl on
Limited amount in VND is provisional; the value in VND
will be converted a the exchange rate on the
contribution date.
[ Plan for 2025
Along with continuing the restructuring of VIMC
Hau Giang, VIMC will research and develop a plan
to increase charter capital for VIMC Hau Giang
from VIMC's assets and receivables currently being
1 Hau Giang Maritime Service « By debtsand | leased back to VIMC Hau Giang... at an appropriate
Limited Liability Company assets time. This is to provide VIMC Hau Giang with

resources to implement investment projects,
enhance operational and business capacity, improve
its financial health, and prepare for conversion into
a Joint Stock Company.




Additional

: Capital Form gl
No. I nvestment Proj ect L Capital Notes
Contribution S
Contribution
Value
Debt-to- Convert the debt owed by _Vi nali nes Nh_a Tr_ang JSC
5 Vindlines Nha Trang JSC « equity toVIMCinto VIMC's equity stakein VinalinesNha
. Trang JSC. Divestment will proceed after Vinalines
conversion , :
Nha Trang's land issues are resolved.
Debt-to- Conver‘; the debt owed _by Can '!'ho Port JSC to
3 Can Tho Port Joint Stock Company X equity VIMC 'nto Vi MC.IS.’ equity ?take in Can Tho Port
conversion JSC, and issue addltlo_nal capital to partners, thereby
reducing the Corporation's ownership stake to 65%.
The Corporation, together with Saigon Port, will
form aconsortium with apartner to participatein the
bidding process and has been selected as the
investor for the Can Gio Project. Subsequently, the
consortium members will establish a Joint Venture
. : : Company to implement the Project. The Vietnamese
4 g'o”tp\r/o?‘egire toimplementtheCan | 5 51 500 ;ﬁl gﬂi’i‘éﬂ' side’s ownership ratio (VIMC and Saigon Port) will
be 51% of the charter capital.
VIMC’s capital contribution is tentatively
calculated at 36% of the joint venture’s minimum
charter capital. The exact value and ownership ratio
of each party in the joint venture will be reported by
VIMC in the Joint Venture Establishment Plan.
VIMC will bid for and be selected asthe investor for
5 Joint Venture to implement the X Cash capital | the Lien Chieu Project. Alternatively, together with

Lien Chieu Project

contribution

Da Nang Port, it will form a consortium with
partnersto bid for and be selected asthe investor for




Additional

Capital Form of
No. I nvestment Proj ect pital Capital Notes
Contribution N
Contribution
Value

the Lien Chieu project. Subsequently, the
consortium members will establish a Joint Venture
Company to implement the project. The Vietnamese
side's (VIMC, Da Nang Port) ownership will be
51% of the charter capital.

Note: In addition, VIMC is currently working with Hop Thanh to settle the payment for the “Value of the Investor’s Lawful
Interests” under the share transfer agreement of Quy Nhon Port with Hop Thanh Company. The estimated amount is approximately
VND 65 hillion. This payment will be made after both parties reach an agreement on the value of the lawful interests.




APPENDIX NO. 04.1

2025 PLAN FOR THE RESTRUCTURING OF ENTERPRISES

VIMC's Divestment and Enter prise Restructuring Plan Notes
current VIMC's
No. Company Name capital _ owner ship
owner ship Form of Restructuring per centage after
per centage restructuring
| Restructuring of Dependent
Units
Retain the dependent accounting unit model
VIMC Maritime  Manpower Dependgnt to carry out the tasks of trammg and . Dissolution not
1 Supply Company accounting | supplying crew members according to implemented as per
PRYY unit VIMC's centralized crew management the Scheme
strategy.
I mplementation of
[ Dissolution/Bankruptcy of
Enterprises
Vinalines - Dong Do Shiprepair 0 .
1 Company Limited 51% Bankruptcy Scheme adjusted
Ha Phong Marine Investment . . .
5 And  Trading  Joint  Stock | 12.92% Dissolution of the enterprise due to land

Company

reclamation




APPENDIX 04.2
2025 PLAN FOR THE RESTRUCTURING OF VIMC’S SUBSIDIARY UNITS

. VIMC Maritime Manpower Supply Company (MMYS)
1. Restructuring Plan for VIMC Maritime Manpower Supply Company

According to the VIMC Restructuring Scheme, VIMC Maritime Manpower Supply
Company was dlated for termination of operations. To date, the unit has not yet ceased
operations asit is still addressing outstanding issues from previous periods.

However, VIMC currently intends to maintain MM S's operations as a dependent
accounting unit to perform the functions of training and developing crew members, and
supplying crew members to enterprises within the VIMC system and its partners.

Therefore, VIMC proposes to adjust the restructuring plan for VIMC Maritime
Manpower Supply Company as follows. Maintain its current operating model as a
dependent accounting unit of VIMC.

2. The necessity of maintaining the operations of VIMC Maritime Manpower
Supply Company

Currently, the number of crew personnel in the VIMC shipping subsidiary unitsis
asfollows:

- Total crew members of VIMC Shipping Company as of November 30, 2024: 452
crew members, of which: Officers 172 (38.05% of total crew); Other Ranks 280 (61.95%
of total crew).

- Total crew members of Bien Dong Shipping Company Limited as of November
30, 2024 103 crew members, of which: Officers 43 (41.7%); Other Ranks 60.

- Structure by position: Ratings (Able Seamen, Qilers) (77% have elementary or
intermediate qualifications, 23% have college or university qualifications). Operational
Officers (61% have college qudlifications, 39% have university qualifications).
Management Officers (30% have college qualifications;, 70% have university
qualifications).

Therefore, continuing the operations of VIMC Maritime Manpower Supply
Company helps fulfill the functions of managing, training, and supplying crew members
with good professiona qualifications, professionalism, strong foreign language skills, and
professional ethics to maritime transport enterprises under VIMC.

3. Business Orientation

Continue maintaining the operations of VIMC Maritime Manpower Supply
Company to perform the functions of managing, training, and supplying crew members
with good professional qualifications, professionalism, strong foreign language skills, and
professional ethics to maritime transport enterprises under VIMC according to specific
phases, aiming towards association with aVIMC maritime transport enterprise that has the
function of supplying qualified crew members to foreign shipowners. The projected plan
isasfollows:



Phase 1 (2025): Organize management and dispatch of crew members for VIMC
Shipping Company, VIMC Container Lines Joint Stock Company, and Bien Dong
Shipping Company Limited;

Phase 2 (from 2027): Expand crew supply to other VIMC maritime transport
enterprises in need;

Phase 3 (from 2028): Research and implement cooperation with a VIMC maritime

transport enterprise that has the function of supplying crew members to foreign
shipowners.

4. |mplementation Plan
4.1. Personnel Plan

Recruit a Director for VIMC Maritime Manpower Supply Company with sufficient
professional competence, and experience in crew management and training to develop and
implement the operational organization plan according to VIMC's objectives and
orientation;

Consider transferring the Crew Management Personnel Department of VIMC
Shipping Company to VIMC Maritime Manpower Supply Company, and recruit additional
management staff with sufficient professional competence and experience for centralized
crew management;

4.2. Operational Plan

Develop the business operation plan for VIMC Maritime Manpower Supply
Company; consolidate the functional structure, personnel for specialized departments,
regulations/rules, and operational procedures;

Finalize mechanisms, policies, cooperation agreements, contracts, and legal
procedures related to labor re-leasing (secondment);

Transfer crew members from VIMC Shipping Company, VIMC Container Lines
Joint Stock Company, and Bien Dong Shipping Company Limited to VIMC Maritime
Manpower Supply Company for centralized management, arrangement, and dispatch in
compliance with legal regulations and VIMC's rules.

3.2. Office Location

Based on the aforementioned operational orientation, organizational structure, and
labor plan, to facilitate crew management, dispatch, training, and coaching, the proposed
new office location for VIMC Maritime Manpower Supply Company isin Hai Phong City
(at the current office space VIMC Shipping Company isleasing from the VIMC Hai Phong
Branch for crew management - No. 282 Da Nang Street, Ngo Quyen District, Hal Phong
City) or in the Hanoi area.



APPENDI X 05
ASSET LIQUIDATION PLAN OF THE PARENT COMPANY FOR 2025

Unit: Million dong

No

Asset Name

Original
Cost

Accumulated
Depreciation
/Provision

Net
book
value

Year of
Commissioning

Head office

Car 50Z-4425

966

966

2007

Car 292-7495

1.443

1.443

2007

Car 292-7827

1.292

1.292

2007

Car 29X-8479

1.443

1.443

2005

g | A WIN|F

5-seater Car 30V-
9010

1.292

1.292

o OO0 |O0|O0O

2009

Trailer 29R-
502.85 — Semi-
trailer (Hai Phong
Office)

311

311

2016

Vehicle 15C-
030.28 — Container
tractor received
fromVMSC

1.608

1.608

2011

Trailer 15R-
005.48 — Semi-
traller received
from VMSC

265

265

2011

Vehicle 15C-
022.28 — Container
tractor received
from VMSC

1.608

1.608

2010

10

Trailer 15R-
005.45 — Semi-
traller received
from VMSC

265

265

2011

11

Vehicle 15C-
022.36 — Container
tractor recelved
from VMSC

1.608

1.608

2010

12

Trailer 29R-
502.82 — Semi-
trailer (Ho Chi
Minh City Office)

311

311

2016

13

Vehicle 15C-
022.25 - Container
tractor recelved
from VMSC

1.608

1.608

2010

14

Trailer 29R-
500.40 — Semi-
trailer (old: Hai

314

314

2016




Phong Office/
new: HCMC)

Vehicle 15C-
15 | 022.29 - Container 1.608 1608| 0
tractor received

fromVMSC 2010

Traller 29R-
500.72 — Semi-
16 trailer (Hai Phong 314 314 0

Office) 2016

Trailer 29R-
037.97 (former
number: 29R-
1164) -
Transferred to
HCMC under
Decision No. 37
dated 10/3/2016 2008

17 242 242 0

Trailer 29R-
034.57 (former
number: 0865) —
Transferred to
18 HCMC under 242 242 0
Decision No.
54/QD-VCSC
dated 14/5/2015 2008

19 | Container Shells 3.230 3.230 0 2010

Liquidation of 02

20 : :
marine engines

211.386 204.319

Total 231.356 224.289

Note: The above asset liquidation plan does not include the plan for vessel liquidation.




APPENDIX NO. 06
VESSEL SALE PLAN OF THE PARENT COMPANY FOR 2025

No Company Vessel Y ear Vessel DWT/ Proposed Time of Reason for Sale
Name Name Built Type TEU Status Sale
A Bulk
1 Tay Son 2 2005 Carrier 13.310 Q4
2 | TaySon3 | 2005 Buk | 43085 | Q4 | OldVesse
VIMC Shipping Carrier Liquidation
3 DPai Pht 2006 Ol 50.530 Q4
al Fhu Tanker '
Pai An Oil
4 (Sold 2007 Tanker 50.530 Q2
4/2025)




APPENDIX NO. 07
SEA TRANSPORT UNITS’ VESSEL SALE PLAN FOR 2025

Vessd Y ear : Timeof | Reason for
No Company Name name Built Vessd type | DWT/TEU | Place Buit | Proposed Status Sale Sale
1 Vosco Star | 1999 Bulk 46671 | Japan Liquidation Q2-3
Carrier ' 9 Aged
Fortune : C
2 Vosco Freighter 1997 Container 560 TEU Japan Liquidation Q3 Aged
Fortune : T
3 Navigator 1998 Container 560 TEU Japan Liquidation Q4 Aged
Vinaship Bulk L
Pear| 1996 Carrier 24.241 Japan Liquidation Q4 Aged
4 Vinaship
Vinaship Bulk o
Pear| 1996 Carrier 27.841 Japan Liquidation Q34 Aged
A . bong Bulk o :
5 bong Do Thinh 1994 Carrier 7.088 Japan Liquidation Q2 Aged with

low




No

Company Name

Vessel
name

Y ear
Built

Vessd type

DWT/TEU

Place Buit

Proposed Status

Time of
Sale

Reason for
Sale

operational
efficiency

bong An

1995

Bulk
Carrier

7.091

Japan

Liquidation

Q2

Aged with
low
operational
efficiency

Pong Hb

1998

Container

561

Japan

Liquidation

Q4

Aged with
low
operational
efficiency

Vitranschart

VTC Glory

1998

Bulk
Carrier

23.620

Liquidation

Q4

Aged




Vessel Y ear : Timeof | Reason for
No Company Name name Built Vessel type | DWT/TEU | Place Buit | Proposed Status Sale Sale
Inlaco Bulk A o
9 Inlaco SG Bright 1999 Carrier 23.592 Philippines Liquidation Q4 Aged
Aged with
' low
Oriental Bulk o _
10 Glory 1995 Carrier 68.591 Japan Liquidation Q4 operational
efficiency
Aged with
low
Phuong Bulk S _
11 OSTC Pong 05 1994 Carrier 23.724 Japan Liquidation Q3 operational
efficiency
Aged with
12 Phuong | 1993 Bulk 22201 | Japan Liquidetion | Quy4 o
bong 06 Carrier ' operational

efficiency







APPENDIX NO. 08

VESSEL INVESTMENT PLAN OF THE PARENT COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIESIN 2025

Estimated Form of I nvestment : .
No C?\lmpa”y Vessdt | o antity | DWT/TEU Total | (Purchase/Newbuild/Lease | ESimated Time
ame Type of Investment
I nvestment Purchase/...)
The Parent USD 32-35 Newbuild Q2/2025
Company million
(VIMC
Shipping) or
the Joint Bulk
1 Stock Carrier 01 64.000 DWT
Company
converted
fromVIMC
Shipping
Approx 21 Second-hand Purchase Q4/2025
million USD
Container 01 1200 - 2200
TEU
2 | VIMC Lines
USD 32 Newbuild Q4/2025.
Container o1 1700 - 2200 million _ Expected
TEU delivery: January
2028
Bulk 30.000- USD 13-15 Second-hand Purchase Q2
Carrier 01 million

35.000 DWT




Vinaship Bulk 30.000- USD 13-15 Second-hand Purchase Q4/2025
Carrier 01 35.000 DWT million
-1 vessdl:
Jan/2025
Bulk 03 56.000 - -1 vessdl:
Carrier 58.000 DWT Q1/2025
- 1 vessdl:
Q2/2025
VOSCO USD 13-15 Second-hand Purchase - 1 vessdl:
million Q3/2025
: Approx. - 3vessls:
Oil Tanker 04 50.000 DWT According to
newbuild
contract schedule
Bulk 62.000 — Accordi ng to
Carrier 04 66.000 newbuild
DWT contract schedule
_ ApITOX. USD 13-15 Second-hand Purchase Q4/2025
Container 02 1.000 Teus million
usD 15 Second -hand Purchase Q4/2025
Inlaco Bulk 01 20.000- million
Saigon Carrier i 40.000 DWT




PLAN IMPLEMENTATION STATUS

Plan 2021 - | (Implementation results 2021 - 2024 and plan Compare
Items Unit 2025 2025) @)
Total 2021-2024 Plan 2025
@) 2
|. Businessresults
1. Shipping volume Thousand tons 15.366 24.708 21.508 3.200 161%
2. Revenue Billion VND 8.808 13.196 9.347 3.849 150%
3. Revenue from sales of goods and rendering of services Billion VND 6.394 9.396 6.220 3.176 147%
4. Cost of goods sold Billion VND 5.056 8.250 5111 3.139 163%
In which: Depreciation Billion VND 1.420 1.618 1.345 273 114%
5. Gross revenue from sales of goods and rendering of services Billion VND 1.338 1.145 1.109 36 86%
6. Financial income Billion VND 2.310 2.363 2.037 326 102%
7. Financial expense Billion VND 980 734 699 35 75%
In which: Interest expense Billion VND 875 370 356 14 42%
8. Selling expense Billion VND 100 76 61 15 76%
9. General and administrative expense Billion VND 930 1.060 820 240 114%
10. Net profit from operating activities Billion VND 1.638 1.638 1.565 73 100%
11. Other income Billion VND 100 1.436 1.089 347 .
12. Other expense Billion VND 90 67 57 10 74%
13. Other profit Billion VND 10 1.368 1.032 336 .
14. Total net profit before tax Billion VND 1.648 3.006 2.597 409 182%
15. Current corporate income tax expense Billion VND
16. Profit after corporate income tax Billion VND
In which: unplanned income
'+ Income from revaluation of assets for capital contribution 2024 Billion VND 469 100%
'+ Income from VDB interest write-off in 2023 and 2024 Billion VND 408 200%
11. Another Items
Total revenue Billion VND 13.274 14.452 109%
Liabilities Billion VND 737 1.962 266%
Owner's Equity Billion VND 12.537 12.580 100%
Profit before tax/Owner's Equity % 3% 5% 182%
Liabilities’Owner's Equity % 6% 16% 265%




VIETNAM MARITIME SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM
CORPORATION-JSC Independence - Freedom - Happiness

Number: 290 /TT-bHBCD Hanoi, 8th July, 2025

REPORT
On the Approval of the 2024 Wage and Remuneration Fund
and the Endor sement of the 2025 Wage and Remuneration Plan
for the Board of Directorsand Board of Supervisors
of Vietham Maritime Cor poration - JSC

To: 2025 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders
Vietnam Maritime Corporation - JSC (VIMC)

Pursuant to the Law on Enterprises No. 59/2020/QH14 dated June 17,
2020;

Pursuant to the Law on Securities No. 54/2019/QH14 dated November
26, 2019; and the Law No. 56/2024/QH15 dated November 29, 2024,

Pursuant to Decree No. 155/2020/ND-CP dated December 31, 2020 of the
Government detailing the implementation of a number of articles of the Law on
Securities,

Pursuant to Circular No. 116/2020/TT-BTC dated December 31, 2020 of
the Ministry of Finance guiding certain provisions on corporate governance
applicable to public companies under Decree No. 155/2020/ND-CP;

Pursuant to Decree No. 53/2016/ND-CP dated June 13, 2016 of the
Government on labor, wages, remuneration, and bonuses in enterprises with
dominant State capital contribution; and Circular No. 28/2016/TT-BLDTBXH
dated September 1, 2016 of the Ministry of Labor, Invalids and Socia Affairs
guiding the implementation of Decree No. 53/2016/ND-CP, and Decree No.
44/2025/ND-CP dated February 28, 2025 regulating the management of labor,
wages, remuneration, and bonuses in State-owned enterprises;

Pursuant to the Charter of Vietnam Maritime Corporation — JSC;

Pursuant to the Internal Corporate Governance Regulations of Vietnam
Maritime Corporation — JSC;

Pursuant to Resolution No. 229/NQ-DHDCD dated April 16, 2024 of the
2024 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders of Vietham Maritime
Corporation — JSC,;



Pursuant to the 2024 business results and the 2025 business plan of the
Parent Company — Vietnam Maritime Corporation;

The Board of Directors of Vietnam Maritime Corporation — JSC
(“VIMC”) respectfully submits to the Genera Meeting of Shareholders for
approval: the actua wage and remuneration fund for 2024; and the planned
wage and remuneration fund for 2025 for the Board of Directors (“BOD”’) and
the Supervisory Board (“SB”) of the Corporation, as follows:

1. The 2024 Planned Salary and Remuneration Fund for the Board of
Directors and the Supervisory Board Approved by the 2024 Annual
General Meeting of Shareholders

According to Article 6 of Resolution No. 229/NQ-DHDCD dated April
16, 2024, of the 2024 Annual Genera Meeting of Shareholders of VIMC, the
planned salary and remuneration fund for 2024 was approved as follows:

« The Board of Directors (BOD) consists of 4 full-time members and 1
part-time member (a BOD member concurrently holding the position of
General Director). The Supervisory Board (SB) consists of 3 full-time
members.

. Totd saary fund for the BOD and SB: VND 7,560 million; average
monthly salary: VND 90 million/person.

« Remuneration fund for the part-time BOD member: VND 216 million.

« The distribution is implemented in accordance with VIMC’s Regulation
on Salary, Remuneration, and Bonus for Managers and the Supervisory
Board.

2. Approval of the 2024 Actual Salary and Remuneration Fund for
the BOD and SB

The BOD of VIMC respectfully submits to the General Meeting of
Shareholders for approval the actua salary and remuneration fund for 2024, as
follows:

« The BOD consists of 4 full-time members and 1 part-time member (a
BOD member concurrently holding the position of General Director). The
SB consists of 3 full-time members.

« Totd saary fund: VND 8,021.5 million; average monthly salary: VND
95.5 million/person.
Breakdown:

o Saary fund for the BOD: VND 5,269.5 million
o Saary fund for the SB: VND 2,752.0 million

« Remuneration fund for the part-time BOD member: VND 235.44

million/year.



o The distribution is implemented in accordance with VIMC’s Regulation
on Saary, Remuneration, and Bonus for Managers and the Supervisory
Board.

3. Approval of the 2025 Planned Salary and Remuneration Fund for
theBOD and SB
In compliance with Decree No. 44/2025/ND-CP dated February 28, 2025,
on the management of labor, salaries, remuneration, and bonuses in State-owned
enterprises, and after deducting objective adjustment factors as prescribed when
determining salaries, the BOD of VIMC respectfully submits to the General
Meeting of Shareholders for approval of the 2025 planned salary and
remuneration fund for the BOD and SB asfollows:
« The BOD consists of 4 full-time members and 1 part-time member (a
BOD member concurrently holding the position of Genera Director). The
SB consists of 3 full-time members.
. Totd sdary fund for the BOD and SB: VND 7,895.3 million; average
monthly salary: VND 93.44 million/person.
« Remuneration fund for the part-time BOD member: VND 242.2 million.
« The distribution is implemented in accordance with VIMC’s Regulation
on Salary, Remuneration, and Bonus for Managers and the Supervisory
Board.

The Board of Directors of Vietham Maritime Corporation — JSC
respectfully submits to the General Meeting of Shareholders for approval: the
2024 actua salary and remuneration fund, and the 2025 planned salary and
remuneration fund for the Board of Directors and the Supervisory Board of
Vietnam Maritime Corporation — JSC.

Recipients:

- Asabove;

- Supervisory Board;

- Member of BOD;

- Save: Office, HR, GS.
HTO02




VIETNAM MARITIME SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM
CORPORATION-JSC Independence - Freedom - Happiness

Number: 291/TTr-bHDBCD Hanoi, 8th July, 2025

PROPOSAL
Regarding the Selection of the Auditing Firm for the 2025 Financial
Statementsof Vietham Maritime Cor poration — JSC

To: 2025 Annua General Meeting of Shareholders
Vietnam Maritime Corporation - JSC (VIMC)

Pursuant to the Law on Enterprises No. 59/2020/QH14 dated June 17, 2020
and its guiding documents;
Pursuant to the Charter of Vietham Maritime Corporation — JSC (VIMC);
In compliance with the provisions of law and the Charter of Vietnam Maritime
Corporation — JSC, the Supervisory Board of VIMC respectfully submits to the
General Meeting of Shareholders for approval the list of auditing firms proposed to
audit the 2025 financial statements of VIMC, as follows:

1. Principlesfor selecting an independent auditing firm:

a. A reputable and well-established independent auditing firm, trusted by many
public companies, with a highly qualified and experienced team of auditors,
b. A legally operating company in Vietnam, approved by the State Securities
Commission to audit public-interest entities, selected from the top auditing firms on
the list of qualified auditing companies annualy announced by the Ministry of
Finance, to audit and review the 2025 financia statements of VIMC;
c. Offering reasonable audit fees that match the scope, quality, and timeline
requirements of VIMC’s audit;
d. Providing free training courses in finance and accounting for VIMC.

2. List of proposed auditing firms:

The Supervisory Board of VIMC concurs with the proposal of the VIMC
Finance and Accounting Department as stated in the report dated March 14, 2025,
regarding the selection of an auditing firm. The Supervisory Board has compiled a
ranking of independent auditing firms listed among the organizations approved by
the Ministry of Finance to audit public-interest entities in 2025, as per Decision No.
2730/QD-BTC dated November 15, 2024, ensuring the best capabilities to meet
VIMC’s audit requirements. The proposed firms are:

« AASC Auditing Firm Co., Ltd,;
« A&C Auditing and Consulting Co., Ltd.;
« UHY Auditing and Consulting Co., Ltd.

However, to ensure the selection of the most suitable independent auditor

with reasonable costs based on the capability profiles of each firm, the Supervisory



Board will implement a bidding process in accordance with the Law on Bidding
No. 22/2023/QH15 and relevant VIMC regulations (if any). The following
selection criteria are proposed:
. High revenue from financial statement reviews and audits;
« A large, professional team of highly qualified and experienced auditors and
staff;
« A broad client base, with preference given to auditing firms that have audited
large-scale companiesin industries similar to VIMC.

We respectfully submit this to the General Meeting of Shareholders for
approval of the content, selection criteria, and proposed list of auditing firms as
mentioned above, and to authorize the Board of Directors of the Corporation to
decide on the selection of the auditing firm for the 2025 financial statements of
Vietnam Maritime Corporation — JSC, ensuring quality, efficiency, and reasonable
cost in accordance with legal regulations.

Recipients: ON BEHALF OF THE SUPERVISORY BOARD
- Asabove; -
- Member of BOD;

- Save: Office, FC, GS. HT02




VIETNAM MARITIME SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM
CORPORATION-JSC I ndependence - Freedom - Happiness

Number: 292 /TTr-bHPCD Hanoi, 8th July, 2025

PROPOSAL
Regarding the Approval of the L egal Representative Registration
of Vietham Maritime Cor poration — JSC

To: 2025 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders
Vietnam Maritime Corporation - JSC (VIMC)

Pursuant to the Law on Enterprises No. 59/2020/QH14 dated June 17,
2020; Law No. 03/2022/QH15 dated January 11, 2022, and related guiding
documents,

Pursuant to the Law on Securities No. 54/2019/QH14 dated November
26, 2019; Law No. 56/2024/QH15 dated November 29, 2024;

Pursuant to Decree No. 155/2020/ND-CP dated December 31, 2020 of
the Government detailing the implementation of certain provisions of the Law
on Securities;

Pursuant to Circular No. 116/2020/TT-BTC dated December 31, 2020
of the Ministry of Finance providing guidance on corporate governance
applicable to public companies under Decree No. 155/2020/ND-CP;

Pursuant to the Charter of Vietnam Maritime Corporation — JSC;

Pursuant to the operational and corporate governance needs of Vietnam
Maritime Corporation — JSC;

TheBoard of Directorsof Vietnam Maritime Corporation —JSC (VIMC)
respectfully submits to the 2025 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders for
approva the registration of a change in the legal representative of VIMC as
follows:

1. Legal representative(s) of VIMC after the change:

Number of legal representatives: 02 persons

Titlesof the 02 legal representatives. Chairman of the Board of Directors
and Chief Executive Officer (CEO)

2. Authorization:

Authorize the Board of Directorsto carry out procedures for registering
the change of the lega representative of VIMC with the Business Registration



Office and the Corporate Finance Department under the Hanoi Department of
Finance.

Recipients:

- As above;

- Supervisory Board;

- Member of BOD;

- Save: Office, GS, F&A.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
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VIETNAES VEVCORPORATION  SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM
12 ) Independence - Freedom - Happiness

Ha noi, 09 July, 2025

REGULATION

ELECTION OF MEMBERS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORSAND THE
THE BOARD OF DIRECTORSAND THE SUPERVISORY BOARD FOR
THE TERM 2025 - 2030 VIETNAM MARITIME CORPORATION -JSC

Based on the Enterprise Law No. 59/2020/QH14 dated June 17, 2020;

Based on Law No. 03/2022/QH15 dated January 11, 2022;

Based on the Securities Law No. 54/2019/QH14 dated November 26, 2019;

Based on Decree No. 155/2020/ND-CP dated December 31, 2020, issued by the
Government, detailing the implementation of certain provisions of the Securities
Law;

Based on Circular No. 116/2020/TT-BTC dated December 31, 2020, issued by the
Ministry of Finance, guiding certain corporate governance regulations applicable to
public companies under Decree No. 155/2020/ND-CP,

Based on the Charter of Vietnam Maritime Corporation - JSC; Based on the internal
corporate governance regulations of Vietnam Maritime Corporation - JSC;

Based on Resolution No. .../NQ-HHVN dated ... of the Board of Directors of
Vietnam Maritime Corporation - JSC regarding the plan to organize the 2025 Annual
General Meeting of Shareholders of Vietnam Maritime Corporation — JSC.

The Vote Counting Committee of the General Meeting announces the Regulations
on Nomination, Candidacy, and Election of the Board of Directors and the
Supervisory Board at the 2025 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders of Vietnam
Maritime Corporation — JSC as follows:

CHAPTER I:
GENERAL PROVISIONS

Article 1. Scope and Subjectsof Application
1. This Regulation applies to the nomination, candidacy, and election of
members of the Board of Directors (“BOD”’) and members of the Supervisory
Board (“SB”) at the first General Meeting of Shareholders (“General
Meeting”) of the Parent Company — Vietnam National Shipping Lines (“the
Company”).



2.

This Regulation specifically stipulatesthe criteria, rightsto stand for election
and nominate members of the BOD and SB by shareholders and their
representatives, as well as the procedures, conditions, and voting methods for
electing members of the BOD and SB at the General Meeting.

This Regulation applies to al shareholders holding shares or their authorized
representatives attending the General Meeting according to the list of
shareholdersasof ....................

Article 2. Number of Membersto Be Elected to the BOD and SB

1.
2.

The number of members to be elected to the Board of Directorsisfive (05).
The number of members to be elected to the Supervisory Board is three (03).

CHAPTERIII:

NOMINATION AND CANDIDACY OF MEMBERSOF THE BOD AND SB

Article 3. Eligibility Criteria for Candidacy and Nomination of BOD and SB
Members

1.

a

o

o

Eligibility criteriafor candidacy and nomination of members of the Board of
Directors (BOD). A BOD member must be a person who:

Has full civil act capacity and is not subject to the prohibitions on managing
enterprises as stipulated in Clause 2, Article 18 of the Law on Enterprises,
Possesses professional qualifications and experience in business
management of the Company, and is not necessarily a shareholder of the
Company;

Is not concurrently amember of the Board of Directors of more than five (05)
other companies;

Is not the spouse, biologica parent, adoptive parent, biological child, adopted
child, biological sibling, sibling-in-law of the Genera Director or other
managers of the Company; and is not a related person of the manager or the
person with the authority to appoint managers;

Meets other standards and conditions as prescribed by law.

Eligibility criteria for candidacy and nomination of members of the
Supervisory Board (SB). An SB member must be a person who:

Has full civil act capacity and is not prohibited from establishing or managing
enterprises in accordance with the Law on Enterprises,

Does not hold any managerial positions within the Company;

I's not necessarily a shareholder or employee of the Company;

| s not the spouse, biologica parent, adoptive parent, biological child, adopted
child, or biologica sibling of any member of the BOD, the General Director,
or other managers of the Company;
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Does not work in the accounting or finance department of the Company and
isnot amember or employee of the independent auditing firm that audited the
Company’s financial statements in the preceding three (03) consecutive years;
Has professional ethics;

Holds a university degree or higher;

Resides in Vietnam during the term of office (for full-time supervisors);

. Meets other standards and conditions as prescribed by law.

Article 4. Rightsto Nominate and Stand for Election to the BOD and SB

1.

a

N

Rights to nominate and stand for election to the Board of Directors (BOD):
Shareholders who have continuously held voting shares for at least six (06)
months shall have the right to stand for election or to pool their voting rights
to nominate candidates for the BOD.

A shareholder or group of shareholders holding from 10% to less than 20% of
the voting shares may nominate or stand for election of one (01) candidate;
from 20% to less than 30% may nominate or stand for election of up to two
(02) candidates;, from 30% to less than 40% may nominate or stand for
election of up to three (03) candidates; from 40% to less than 50% may
nominate or stand for election of up to four (04) candidates; from 50% or more
may nominate or stand for election of the full number of candidates.

In case the number of BOD candidates nominated or standing for election is
still insufficient, the Chairing Panel may organize additional nominations
through a mechanism announced and approved at the General Meeting before
proceeding with the nominations.

Rights to nominate and stand for election to the Supervisory Board (SB):
Shareholders who have continuously held voting shares for at least six (06)
months shall have the right to stand for election or to pool their voting rights
to nominate candidates for the SB.

A shareholder or group of shareholders holding from 10% to |ess than 20% of
the voting shares may nominate or stand for election of one (01) candidate;
from 20% to less than 30% may nominate or stand for election of up to two
(02) candidates; from 30% or more may nominate or stand for election of the
full number of candidates.

In case the number of SB candidates nominated or standing for election is
insufficient, the Chairing Panel may organize additional nominations in
accordance with the internal corporate governance regulations of the
Company and such nominations must be approved by the General Meeting
before proceeding.

Article 5. Application Documents for Candidacy and Nomination of BOD and
SB Members



1. The application documents for candidacy and nomination of members of the
BOD and SB include:

a. Application for candidacy/nomination to the BOD or SB (using the form
attached to the General Meeting documents);

b. The number, ratio, and type of shares held by the shareholder or the owner’s
representative making the nomination or standing for election;

c. A self-declared curriculum vitae with an attached photo provided by the
candidate;

d. A valid copy of the ID card/Citizen ID card/Passport;

e. A valid copy of the permanent residence book (or long-term temporary
residence registration certificate);

f. A valid copy of degrees, diplomas, and certificates proving educationa and
professional qualifications;

g. Power of attorney and/or minutes of the group meeting (if the candidate is
nominated by a group of shareholders).

2. Shareholders who meet the dligibility requirements for candidacy or
nomination of BOD or SB members must submit their application documents
to the General Meeting Organizing Committee at least 10 days before the date
of the General Meeting at the following address:

Public Relations and Communications Department — Vietnam National
Shipping Lines, 16th Floor, Ocean Park Building, No. 1 Dao Duy Anh Street,
Phuong Mai Ward, Dong Da District, Hanoi City.

Article 6. Disclosur e of I nformation on Candidates for Election

In caseswhere candidates have been identified in advance, information rel ated
to the candidates for the Board of Directors (BOD) shall be included in the General
Meeting documents and disclosed on the Company’s official website at least ten (10)
days prior to the opening of the Meeting, allowing shareholders to review the
candidates before voting. Candidates for the BOD and the Supervisory Board (SB)
must provide a written commitment attesting to the truthfulness, accuracy, and
reasonableness of the persona information disclosed, and must also commit to
fulfilling their duties honestly if elected as members of the BOD or SB. The
disclosed information related to BOD and SB candidates shall include at a minimum
the following:

1. Full name, date, month, and year of birth;

Educationa background,;

Professional qualifications;

Employment history;

Companies where the candidate currently holds positions as a member
of the BOD/SB or other manageria roles;

GIFNEARN



6. Assessment report on the candidate’s contributions to the Company, in
case the candidate is currently a member of the Company’s BOD/SB;

7. Any interests related to the Company (if any);

8. Name(s) of the shareholder or group of shareholders nominating the
candidate (if any);

0. Other relevant information (if any).

CHAPTER I1I:
ELECTION OF MEMBERSOF THE BOD AND SB

Article 7. Voting Method

The election of membersof the Board of Directors (BOD) and the Supervisory
Board (SB) shall be conducted using the cumulative voting method, whereby each
shareholder has atotal number of voting rights equal to the number of shares owned
multiplied by the number of members to be elected to the BOD or SB. Shareholders
may allocate all or part of their total votesto one or several candidates.

Example:

The General Meeting agrees to elect five (05) BOD members out of a total of
six (06) candidates. Shareholder A owns 1,000,000 voting shares (including both
directly owned and authorized shares).

Accordingly, Shareholder A’s total number of voting rights is: 1,000,000 x 5
= 5,000,000 votes

Shareholder A may vote using one of the following methods:
() Allocate all 5,000,000 votes to one (01) BOD candidate;
(i1) Evenly distribute the 5,000,000 votes among the six (06) BOD candidates;

(ii1) Allocate the 5,000,000 votes among several BOD candidates in different
proportions, provided that the total number of votes all ocated does not exceed
5,000,000.

Article 8. Ballot Paper
1. The ballot paper must contain the following main information:

a. Clearly state the number of voting rights that each shareholder/authorized
representative is entitled to exercise.

b. The ballot paper must contain the full names of all candidates

c. The ballot paper must include blank fields where the sharehol der/authorized
representative can fill in the number of votes alocated to each candidate.

d. Instructions on how to complete the ballot paper must be provided.

2. Aninvalid ballot paper is one that:
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Is not in the prescribed format or does not bear the official seal of Vietnam
National Shipping Lines,

Does not contain the full name and signature of the shareholder/authorized
representative;

Has been crossed out, erased, or altered;

Istorn or no longer intact;

Contains additional content or information other than what is required by the
Chairing Panel;

Contains atotal number of votes allocated to candidates that exceeds the total
voting rights indicated on the shareholder’s ballot paper.

After completing the ballot paper, the shareholder/authorized representative
shall cast the ballot into the ballot box as instructed by the Chairing Panel or
the Vote Counting Committee.

Article 9. Principles of Vote Counting

1.

2.

The Vote Counting Committee shall proceed with vote counting immediately
after the voting concludes.

The Vote Counting Committee shall inspect the ballot box in the presence of
representatives of the shareholders.

Article 10. Principlesfor Deter mining Election Results

1.

Elected members of the Board of Directors (BOD) or the Supervisory Board
(SB) shall be determined based on the total number of valid votes received,
ranked from highest to lowest, starting with the candidate who receives the
most votes, until the number of members required under Article 2 of this
Regulation is fulfilled.

In the event that two or more candidates receive an equal number of votes for
the fina position on the BOD or SB, are-election shall be conducted among
those candidates with the same number of votes.

Article 11. Vote Counting Minutes

1.

Q0o

Immediately after vote counting, the Head of the Vote Counting Committee
must prepare the Vote Counting Minutes with the following main contents:
Time and location of the vote counting;

Members of the Vote Counting Committee;

Purpose and content of the voting;

Total number of shareholders present and authorized representatives voting at
the General Mesting;

Total number of voting ballots/participation rate, specifying the number and
rate of valid and invalid ballots;

Signatures of al members of the Vote Counting Committee;



0.

2.

List of shareholders participating in the election (attached as an appendix to
the Minutes).

All complaints regarding the election results shall be reviewed immediately
at the General Meeting.

The Vote Counting Minutes shall be announced by the Head of the Vote
Counting Committee at the General Meeting and published on the Company’s

official website within twenty-four (24) hours from the time vote counting is
compl eted.

CHAPTER IV:
IMPLEMENTING PROVISIONS

Article 12. Implementing Provisions

1.

This Regulation consists of 4 chapters and 12 articles, and takes effect
immediately upon its adoption by the first General Meeting of Shareholders
of the Parent Company — Vietnam National Shipping Lines.

The Chairperson of the General Meeting shall be responsible for directing the
nomination, candidacy, and election of members of the Board of Directors
and the Supervisory Board of Vietham National Shipping Linesin accordance
with the provisions of this Regulation.

Shareholders, their representatives, and all parties participating in the General
Meeting shall be responsible for complying with the provisions of this
Regulation.

ON BEHALF OF GENERAL MEETING SHAREHOLDERS
CHAIRPERSON

Al

Le Anh Son
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VIEENAMMARN IME SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM
CORPERATIONHJISC I ndependence - Freedom - Happiness

Hanoi, 8th July 2025

MINUTESOF VOTING RESULTS
2025 ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS
VIETNAM MARITIME CORPORATION -JSC (VIMC)

Today, at 10:06 AM on July 9, 2025, at Long Vi Palace, No. 03 Pao Duy
Anh Street, Kim Lién Ward, Hanoi City, the 2025 Annual General Meeting of
Shareholders (the "Meeting") of Vietham Maritime Corporation - Joint Stock
Company ("VIMC") proceeded to vote on the following proposed resolutions,
with details as follows:
|. Ballot Counting Committee Members:
1.Ms. Vii Thi Di¢p — Chairperson
2.Ms. Kiéu Viét Ha— Member
3.Ms. Nguyén Thi Minh Ngoc — Member
I1. Election Results:
“i”. Approval of BOD's 2024 Activity Report (2020-2025 Term) and 2025-
2030 Operational Direction & 2025 Work Plan
- In Favor: 1,194,343,604 shares (100% of voted shares)
- Against: 0 shares (0%)
- Abstained: 0 shares (0%)
“ii”. Approval of BOS's 2024 Supervision Report on VIMC Operations,
BOD and CEO Activities
- In Favor: 1,194,343,604 shares (100%)
- Against: 0 shares (0%)
- Abstained: 0 shares (0%)
“iii”. Approval of BOS's Self-Assessment Report for 2024 and 2025 Work
Plan
- In Favor: 1,194,343,604 shares (100%)
- Against: 0 shares (0%)
- Abstained: 0 shares (0%)
“iv” Approval of Audited 2024 Financial Statements
- In Favor: 1,194,343,604 shares (100%)
- Against: 0 shares (0%)
- Abstained: 0 shares (0%)



“v”. Approval of 2024 Profit Distribution Plan

- In Favor: 1,194,343,604 (100%)

- Against: 0 shares (0%)

- Abstained: 0 shares (0%)

“vi” Approval of 2025 Business Production & Investment Plan
- In Favor: 1, 194,343,604 shares (100%)

- Against: 0 shares (0%)

- Abstained: 0 shares (0%)

“vii”. Approval of Remuneration Funds 2024 Actual & 2025 Planned for
Board of Directors (BOD) Board of Supervisors (BOS)

- In Favor: 1,194,343,604 (100%)

- Against: 0 shares (0%)

- Abstained: 0 shares (0%)

“viii” Appointment of Audit Firm for 2025 Financial Statements
- In Favor: 1,194,343,604 (100%)

- Against: 0 shares (0%)

- Abstained: 0 shares (0%)

“ix”. Registration of Change in Legal Representative

- In Favor: 1,194,343,604 (100%)

- Against: 0 shares (0%)

- Abstained: 0 shares (0%)

(The detailed shareholder voting results are attached as Annex A to these
Minutes.)

The Voting Results Report for all agendaitems presented at the 2025 Annual
General Meeting of Shareholders of Vietnam Maritime Corporation - JSC was:

« Finalized at: 10:06 AM on July 9, 2025
. Unanimoudly ratified by all members of the Ballot Counting Committee

MEMBERSOF BALLOT HEAD OF BALLOT
A
/ 77
Kiéu Viét Ha Nguyén Thi Minh Ngoc Vii Thi Diép



SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM
| ndependence - Freedom - Happiness

Hanoi, 9th July 2025

MINUTESOF VOTING RESULTS
FOR THE ELECTION OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND BOARD OF
SUPERVISORS MEMBERS
VIETNAM MARITIME CORPORATION - JSC (VIMC)

Today, at 10:18 AM on July 9, 2025, at Long Vi Palace, No. 03 Dao Duy
Anh Street, Kim Lién Ward, Hanoi City, the 2025 Annua General Meeting of
Shareholders (the "Meeting") of Vietham Maritime Corporation - Joint Stock
Company ("VIMC") conducted elections for members of the Board of Directors
("BOD") and Board of Supervisors ("BOS"), with details as follows:
|. Ballot Counting Committee Members:
1.Ms. Vii Thi Diép — Chairperson
2.Ms. Kiéu Viét Ha— Member
3.Ms. Nguyén Thi Minh Ngoc — Member
I1. Election Results:

1. Election of BOD Membersfor the 2025-2030 Term

Total participating shareholders. 24 shareholders, representing 1,194,847,104
shares. Election results (following the voting process):

No. Full name Number of Votes Voting Percentage
Cast (%)
1 Mr. LE ANH SON 1.194.847.304 100,00
2 Mr. NGUYEN CANH TINH 1.194.847.304 100,00
3 Mr. NGUYEN DINH CHUNG 1.194.847.204 100,00
4 Mr. DO HUNG DUONG 1.194.846.854 99,99
5 Mr. DO TIEN DUC 1.194.846.854 99,99

2. Election of SB Membersfor the 2025-2030 Term

The total number of shareholders participating in the election was 20
shareholders, representing 1,194,837,704 shares. The election results are as
follows:



No. Full name Number of Votes Cast Voting Percentage
(%)
1 Mr. LUONG DINH MINH 1.194.839.004 100,00
2 Mrs. PHAN THI NHI HA 1.194.837.304 99,99
3 Mr. PHAM CAO NHUE 1.194.836.804 99,99

(The detailed list of shareholder voting results is attached to these
Minutes.)

The Voting Results Report for the election of members to the Board of
Directors (BOD) and Board of Supervisors (BOS) at the 2025 Annual General
Meeting of Shareholders of Vietnam Maritime Corporation - JSC (VIMC) was
finalized at 10:30 AM on July 9, 2025, and was unanimously approved by all
members of the Ballot Counting Committee.

MEMBERSOF BALLOT HEAD OF BALLOT
COUNTING COMMITTEE COUNTING COMMITTEE
A ;
/ .-r’f il
/
Kiéu Viét Ha Nguyén Thi Minh Ngoc Vii Thi Diép



SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM
I ndependence - Freedom - Happiness

Hanoi, 9th July, 2025

MINUTES
2025 ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS
VIETNAM MARITIME CORPORATION - JSC (VIMC)

At 08:30 AM on July 9th, 2025, at the Long Vi Palace, located at No. 3 Dao

Duy Anh, Kim Lién Ward, Hanoi City, the 2025 Annua General Meeting of
Shareholders of Vietham Maritime Corporation - JSC (the "Meeting") was
convened in person with electronic voting.

A. ATTENDEES

1.

2.

3.

4.
5.

Shareholders as per the shareholder list of Vietham Maritime Corporation -
JSC finalized on May 6, 2025.

Members of VIMC's Board of Directors (BOD); Members of VIMC's
Supervisory Board (SB); VIMC's Executive Board; Chairman of VIMC's
Labor Union.

Representatives of State Shareholders - Ministry of Finance.

Invited Guests of Vietham Maritime Corporation - JSC.

Representatives of News Agencies and Media.

B. OPENING OF THE MEETING, SHAREHOLDER ELIGIBILITY

VERIFICATION REPORT, AND ADOPTION OF MEETING
REGULATIONS

1.

2025:

Opening of the Meeting
Ms.. Chu Dieu Linh— Head of the Trade Union's Operations Department of VIMC
declared the meeting’s purpose, introduced the attendees, and officially
opened the Meeting.

Report on Shareholder Eligibility Verification
Mr. Do Duc Duy - Acting Chief of Office of the Party Committee of
Vietham Maritime Corporation, on behaf of the Shareholder Eligibility
Verification Committee, presented the verification results as of 08:30 AM
on July 8th, 2025, with the following details:

Total shareholdersof Vietnam Maritime Corporation - JSC as of June 5,
964 shareholders, representing 1,200,588,000 shares.

Tota attending shareholders (including shareholders and authorized

representatives): 23 shareholders, representing 1.194.336.704 voting shares,
accounting for 99,48% of the total voting shares.



Conclusion: In accordance with the Enterprise Law, the Meeting is deemed valid
and quorate to proceed with its agenda.

3. Adoption of Meeting Regulations :Ms.. Chu Dieu Linh— Head of the Trade
Union's Operations Department of VIMC presented thedraft Meeting
Regulations and provided guidance on the electronic voting system.

Approval: 100% of voting shareholders present at the Meeting unanimously
adopted the Meeting Regulations.

C. INTRODUCTION OF THE PRESIDIUM, SECRETARIAT, AND
APPROVAL OF THE VOTE COUNTING COMMITTEE & MEETING

AGENDA
1. Introduction of the Presidium
The Organizing Committee introduced the Presidium of the Meeting,
comprising:

- Mr. Le Anh Son- Chairman of VIMC’s Board of Directors
(BOD), Presiding Officer
- Mr. Nguyen Canh Tinh — BOD Member, Genera Director of VIMC
- Mr. Do Hung Duong — BOD Member of VIMC
- Mr. Nguyen Dinh Chung — BOD Member of VIMC
- Mr. Do Tien Duc — BOD Member of VIMC

2. Introduction of the Secretariat

The Presiding Officer introduced the Secretariat, including:
Ms. Nguyen Thi Ha Trang— Specialist, General Secretariat Department,

Head of Secretariat
- Ms. Bui Thu Trang — Specidist, Investment Department, Member

3. Approval of the Vote Counting Committee
The Meeting proposed a3-member Vote Counting Committee. 100% of voting
shareholders present unanimously approved the committee, consisting of:
- Ms. Vu Thi Diep — Deputy Director of Secretary General Dept, Head of
Committee
- Ms. Kieu Viet Ha— Specialist, Legal % Risk Dept, Member
- Ms. Nguyen Thi Minh Ngoc — Specidlist, Secretary General Dept, Member

4. Adoption of the M eeting Agenda
After reviewing the proposed agenda, 100% of voting shareholders
present approved the Meeting Agenda via ballot.

D. PROCEEDINGS OF THE GENERAL MEETING
1. Report of the Board of Directors ("BOD") on 2024 Business Performance
(2020-2025 Term), Strategic Orientation for 2025-2030 Term, and 2025
Operating Plan



. Submission of

Mr. Do Hung Duong - BOD Member of VIMC presented the BOD's Report
on:

o Business performance results for 2024 (2020-2025 term)

o Strategic direction for 2025-2030 term

o Operating plan for 2025

. Report of the Supervisory Board ("SB") on Audited Financial Statements,

Business Results, and Performance of the BOD & General Director in 2024
Mr. Luong Dinh Minh - Head of VIMC's Supervisory Board presented the
SB's Report on:

o Supervision of VIMC's 2024 business operations

o Oversight of the BOD and Genera Director's performance

. Self-Assessment Report on SB's Performance in 2024 (2020-2025 Term),

Strategic Orientation for 2025-2030 Term, and 2025 Operating Plan
Mr. Luong Dinh Minh presented the SB's Self-Evaluation Report covering:

o Performance results of SB membersin 2024 (2020-2025 term)

o Operational direction for 2025-2030 term

o Work plan for 2025
Audited 2024 Financial Statements
Mr. Le Duy Duong - Head of VIMC's Finance & Accounting Department
presented the Audited 2024 Financial Statements.

Key Financial Indicators for 2024:
Unit: Vietnamese Dong (VND)
[Financial datatable to be inserted]
A | Balance sheet At 31/12/2024 At 31/12/2023
| | Total Asset 14.412.914.827.217 13.777.616.310.724
Current Asset 2.222.671.378.674 2.511.356.461.711
2 | Non — current Asset 12.190.243.448.543 11.266.259.849.013
) | Total Equity and 14412.914827.217 | 13.777.616.310.724
Liabilities
Liabilities 1.011.422.551.457 1.631.485.332.118
2 | Owner’s Equity 13.401.492.275.760 12.146.130.978.606
B | Income Statement Year 2024 Year 2023
Gross profit from sales and service
1 | provision 192.885.296.483 87.655.450.723
2 | Net profit from business activities 303.406.540.554 | 316.318.324.070




B | Income Statement Year 2024 Year 2023

3 | Toa accounting profit before tax 1.353536.982.178 |  357.283.201.651

4 | Profit after corporate income tax 1.353.536.982.178 | 357.283.201.651

C | Cash flow Statement Year 2024 Y ear 2023

1 | Profit before tax 1.353.536.982.178 357.283.201.651
Net cash flow from operating

2 | otivities 205.778.519.391 2.929.683.033
Net cash flow from investing

3 | ativities (97.957.522.738) 392.917.304.702

4 | N cesh flow from financing (286.998.125.997) |  (66.812.514.027)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and

5 | caeh equivalents during the year (179.177.129.344) 329.034.473.708
Cash and cash equivalents at

6 beginning of year 480.875.972.938 149.475.735.653

7 gjjrh and cash equivalents at end of 322.030.807.932 |  480.875.972.938

In the event that tax authorities or competent state agencies reguire
adjustments to indicators related to business performance or the 2024 Financial
Statements, VIMC's Board of Directors shall direct the Company to make

corresponding adjustments in compliance with legal regulations.

5. 2024 Profit Distribution Plan
Mr. Le Duy Duong- Head of VIMC's Finance & Accounting Department

presented the 2024 Profit Distribution Plan to the General Meeting.

Based on VIMC's 2024 business performance results, current regulations,
and the existing balances of its funds, the VIMC Board of Directors submits to the
Genera Meeting of Shareholders for approval the following Profit Distribution and

Fund Allocation Plan from 2024 after-tax profits

2024 Profit % of
No [tem Distribution Plan | Distributable Notes
(VND) Net Profit
1 tF;r:f't before | 1 353536.982.178
2024 Net profit
2 ofter CIT 1.353.536.982.178




Exchange rate
differences from 97 062.031.481 Per separate FS
year-end p.42
revaluation
Walved interest 377 743.630.417 Per separate FS
Income p.43
evaluation
mcqme from 468.537 405,790 Per separate FS
capital p.43
contributions
Total
g | distributable 50.418.125.000
net profit
(5)=(9+(3)-(4)
Reward and Max. 3 months
0,

3.1 Welfare Fund 57.810.750.000 12,04% average sdlary
Reward Fund 28.905.375.000 50,00% | 50% allocation
Welfare Fund 28.905.375.000 50,00% | 50% allocation
M anagement Max. 1,5 months

32 9 1.607.375.000 0,46% average
Bonus Fund .

compensation
Retained
4 |undistributed )0, 18857.178
profit
(6)=(4)+(5.5)

Regarding the remaining 2024 profit of VND 1,294,118,857,178 (Onetrillion
two hundred ninety-four billion one hundred eighteen million eight hundred fifty-
seven thousand one hundred seventy-eight Vietnamese Dong), no alocation has
been made to the devel opment investment fund and no dividends have been
distributed
6. APPROVAL OF CHANGESTO VIMC'SLEGAL REPRESENTATIVES
Mr. Do Tien Duc- Member of BOD presented the proposal for changesto VIMC's
legal representatives.

New Legal Representatives:
. Number: 02 persons
. Positions: Chairman of the Board of Directors and General Director




7. REMUNERATION FUNDS FOR BOD AND SB
Mr. Nguyen Dinh Chung - Board Member presented the 2024 actual and 2025
planned remuneration funds.
2024 Remuner ation Funds:
. BOD: 4 full-time members, 1 part-time member (concurrently General
Director)
o 3B: 3full-time members
o Total salary fund: VND 8,021.5 million (avg. VND 955
million/person/month)
BOD: VND 5,269.5 million
SB: VND 2,752.0 million
o Part-time BOD member remuneration: VND 235.44 million/year
2025 Planned Remuneration Funds:
« Tota sday fund: VND 7,849 million (avg. VND 93.44
million/person/month)
« Part-time BOD member remuneration: VND 242.2 million
All allocations follow VIMC's Regulations on Salaries, Remuneration and Bonuses
for Management and Supervisory Board Members.

8. PRESENTATION OF 2025 BUSINESS PRODUCTION AND
INVESTMENT PLAN
Mr. Nguyen Canh Tinh - Board Member and General Director of VIMC presented
the 2025 Business Production and Investment Plan.
2024 Business Performance Results:
Consolidated Results:
. Port cargo throughput: 145.3 million tons (127% of 2023, 117% of 2024
plan)
. Maritime transport volume: 19.4 million tons (94% of 2023, 122% of 2024
plan)
. Consolidated revenue: VND 19,375 billion (139% of 2023, 144% of 2024
plan)
. Consolidated pre-tax profit: VND 3,153 billion (149% of 2023, 115% of
2024 plan)
Parent Company Results:
. Maritime transport volume: 3.8 million tons (55% of 2023, 100% of 2024
plan)
. Revenue: VND 3,157 hillion (153% of 2023, 131% of 2024 plan)
. Pre-tax profit: VND 1,353 billion (379% of 2023, 145% of 2024 plan)
2025 Business Production and I nvestment Plan:
Parent Company Targets.
Port cargo throughput: 3,2 million tons
. Revenue: VND 3,849 billion
. Pre-tax profit: VND 409 hillion
Consolidated Targets:



. Port cargo throughput: 158.3 million tons

. Maritime transport volume: 21.1 million tons

. Revenue: VND 20,925 billion

. Pre-tax profit: VND 3,076 billion

2025 Investment Plan (Parent Company): VND 194,6 billion

. Carry-over investments from 2024: VND 162.7 billion

. New investmentsin 2025: VND 31,9 billion

The allocated budget for infrastructure and equipment maintenance/upgrades in
2025is 31.9 hillion VND

2025 Capital I ncrease and | nvestment Plan of the Parent Company

Tota planned investment value: 3,242.7 billion VND (excluding approximately 65
billion VND for the "Legal Benefit Vaue of Investors' payment under the Quy
Nhon Port share transfer agreement with Hop Thanh Company), including:

- Carried forward from 2024:

Capital contribution to establish the VIMC-ARIES Maritime Services Joint
Venture Company Limited.

- New investment projects:

Capital contribution to the joint venture implementing the Can Gio International
Transshipment Port Project.

Capital contribution to the joint venture for the Comprehensive Development of
Lien Chieu Container Terminal Project, pending official selection by competent
authorities.

Plan for Ownership Reduction and Divestment in Subsidiaries:

- Increase charter capital while reducing VIMC's ownership ratio at 4
enterprises.

- Full/partial divestment of VIMC's capital at 6 enterprises.

9.SELECTION OF AUDIT FIRM FOR 2025 FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Mrs. Phan Thi Nhi Ha - Member of VIMC's Supervisory Board presented the
proposal for selecting the audit firm for Vietham Maritime Corporation's 2025
Financial Statements.
Selection Criteria for Independent Audit Firm:
1. Reputable independent audit firm with strong brand recognition, trusted by
public companies, and staffed by highly qualified, experienced auditors
2. Legally operating in Vietnam and approved by the State Securities
Commission for auditing public-interest entities
3. Must be among the top qualified audit firms annually published by the
Ministry of Finance
Reasonable audit fees aligned with scope, quality and timeline requirements
5. Provision of free accounting/finance training courses for Vietnam Maritime
Corporation
Proposed Audit Firms:

A



1. AASC Auditing Firm Co., Ltd.

2. A& C Auditing and Consulting Co., Ltd.

3. UHY Auditing and Consulting Co., Ltd.
The General Meeting authorized the Board of Directors to select the 2025 audit
firm ensuring quality, efficiency and cost-effectiveness in compliance with
regulations.
10. DISCUSSION OF PRESENTED REPORTS Statement by Mr. L& Anh Son
— Chairman of VIMC’s Board of Directors:
"The Chairman requests shareholders to discuss and provide feedback on the
presented Reports and Proposals, including:
* Performance results of the Board of Directors (BOD) and Board of Supervisors
(BOS) for 2024 and the 2020-2025 term, along with operational directions for the
2025-2030 term and 2025 annual plans.*
2024 Financial Statements.
2024 Profit Distribution Plan.
VIMC’s 2025 Business Production and Investment Plan.
2024 Remuneration Funds for BOD and BOS.
Planned 2025 Remuneration Funds for BOD and BOS.
Selection of the 2025 Financia Statement Audit Firm.
Registration of changes to VIMC’s Legal Representative."
Shareholders’ Comments:
Ms. Pham Thi Thu Trang (authorized by shareholder Nguyén Thi Vui):
"Applauds the efforts of the BOD and Executive Board, expressing confidence in
VIMC’s ability to achieve high growth of 8% in 2025."
Mr. Lé Anh Son’s Response:
*" Acknowledges that VIMC’s achievements result from collective efforts, not just
leadership. Notes that growth depends on the highly volatile international maritime
market, especially in H2/2025. Reaffirms the BOD’s commitment t0 meeting
government growth targets while safeguarding shareholder interests."*
11. VOTING TO APPROVE AGENDA ITEMS
Mr. Le Anh Son - Chairman of VIMC's Board of Directors requested shareholders
to vote on al presented agendaitems.
Voting Results:
“i”. Approval of BOD's 2024 Activity Report (2020-2025 Term) and 2025-2030
Operational Direction & 2025 Work Plan
- In Favor: 1,194,343,604 shares (100% of voted shares)
- Against: 0 shares (0%)
- Abstained: 0 shares (0%)
“ii”. Approval of BOS's 2024 Supervision Report on VIMC Operations, BOD
and CEO Activities



- In Favor: 1,194,343,604 shares (100%)

- Against: 0 shares (0%)

- Abstained: 0 shares (0%)

“iii”. Approval of BOS's Self-Assessment Report for 2024 and 2025 Work Plan
- In Favor: 1,194,343,604 shares (100%)

- Against: 0 shares (0%)

- Abstained: 0 shares (0%)

“tv”” Approval of Audited 2024 Financial Statements

- In Favor: 1,194,343,604 shares (100%)

- Against: 0 shares (0%)

- Abstained: 0 shares (0%)

“y”. Approval of 2024 Profit Distribution Plan

- In Favor: 1,194,343,604 (100%)

- Against: 0 shares (0%)

- Abstained: 0 shares (0%)

“vi” Approval of 2025 Business Production & | nvestment Plan

- In Favor: 1,194,343,604 shares (100%)

- Against: 0 shares (0%)

- Abstained: 0 shares (0%)V11. Approva of Remuneration Funds
“vii”. Approval of Remuneration Funds 2024 Actual & 2025 Planned for
Board of Directors (BOD) Board of Supervisors (BOS)

- In Favor: 1,194,343,604 (100%)

- Against: 0 shares (0%)

- Abstained: 0 shares (0%)

“viii” Appointment of Audit Firm for 2025 Financial Statements

- In Favor: 1,194,343,604 (100%)

- Against: 0 shares (0%)

- Abstained: 0 shares (0%)

“ix”. Registration of Changein Legal Representative

- In Favor: 1,194,343,604 (100%)
- Against: 0 shares (0%)
- Abstained: 0 shares (0%)

12. Election Resultsfor BOD & SB Members (2025-2030 Term)
12.1 Approval of Election Regulationsfor BOD and BOS Members



Presenter: Ms. Chu Dieu Linh - Head of the Trade Union's Professional Committee
presented the draft Election Regulations for Board of Directors (BOD) and Board
of Supervisors (BOS) Members to the General Meeting.

Voting Result:

Approval: Unanimously passed with 100% of voting shares present at the General
Meeting in favor.

12.2 Candidate I ntroduction

Presenter: Ms. Chu Dieu Linh introduced the following candidates nominated for
election to the BOD and BOS (2025-2030 term)

List of Candidatesfor BOD List of Candidatesfor BOS
Mr. Nguyen Canh Tinh Mr. Luong Dinh Minh
Mr. Le Anh Son Mrs. Phan Thi Nhi Ha
Mr. Do Hung Duong Mr. Pham Cao Nhue

Mr. Nguyen Dinh Chung
Mr. Do Tien Duc

No additional shareholders nominated or proposed further candidates.

The General Meeting voted with 100% approval from all voting shares present to
ratify the proposed list of candidates for the Board of Directors (BOD) and Board
of Supervisors (BOS)

12.3 Election of BOD and BOS Members

Ms. Chu Diéu Linh guide shareholders and their representatives through the voting
process for e ecting members to the Board of Directors (BOD) and Board of
Supervisors (BOS).

13. Voting Results for 2025-2030 Term

13.1 Election of BOD Members

STT Full name Vote cast Approval rate (%)
1 | Mr.LEANH SON 1.194.847.304 100,00
2 | Mr.NGUYEN CANH TINH 1.194.847.304 100,00
3 | Mr.NGUYEN DINH CHUNG 1.194.847.204 100,00
4 | Mr. DOHUNG DUONG 1.194.846.854 99,99
5 |[Mr.DOTIEN DUC 1.194.846.854 99,99
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The General Meeting unanimously accepted the results announced by the Election
Committee.

* Pursuant to the Election Regulations, the above candidates are officially elected to
VIMC's BOD for the 2025-2030 term.*

13.2 Election of BOS Members
Total participating shareholders: 20 (representing 1,194,837,704 shares)
Results:

No Full name Vote cast Approval rate (%)
1 Mr. LUONG DINH MINH 1.194.839.004 100,00
2 | Mrs. PHAN THI NHI HA 1.194.837.304 99,99
3 | Mr. PHAM CAO NHUE 1.194.836.804 99,99

The General Meeting unanimously accepted the results announced by the Election
Committee.

Pursuant to the Election Regulations, the above candidates are officially elected to
VIMC's BOS for the 2025-2030 term

13. Remarks by Mr. Ho6 Cong Trung - Deputy Director General, Enterprise
Development Agency, Ministry of Finance

Mr. Trung congratul ated the newly elected Board of Directors (BOD) and Board of
Supervisors (BOS) on earning the absolute confidence of al shareholders.

Key Points from His Address:

2020-2025 Term Challenges:

A difficult period nationwide, with VIMC facing legacy issues from prior years
and COVID-19 supply chain disruptions.

Despite challenges, VIMC achieved rapid growth and high performance.
Expectations for 2025-2030:

While continuity (with returning members) ensures institutional knowledge, new
thinking and breakthroughs are critical .

"On behalf of the Ministry of Finance’s shareholding, I urge fresh approaches to
maximize efficiency and resources."

E. ADOPTION OF MINUTESAND RESOLUTIONS|MEETING
ADJOURNMENT

The 2025 Annual General Meeting Minutes and Resolutions were:

Read aloud to all attendees.

Unanimously approved with:

100% votes for the Meeting Minutes.

100% votes for the Resolutions.

Meeting closed a 11:00 AM on July 9, 2025.
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ON BEHALF OF THE ON BEHALF OF THE GENERAL
SECRETARIAT MEETING SHAREHODERS
HEAD CHAIRPERSON

W= AR

Nguyen Thi Ha Trang Le Anh Son
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VIETNAM MARITIME SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM
CQRPORATION-JSC I ndependence - Freedom - Happiness

Number: 294/NQ-HHVN Hanoi, 09 July, 2025

RESOLUTION

2025 ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS
OF VIETNAM MARITIME CORPORATION -JSC (VIMC)

« Pursuant to the Enterprise Law No. 59/2020/QH14 dated June 17, 2020;

« Pursuant to the Securities Law No. 54/2019/QH14 dated November 26, 2019,
and Law No. 56/2024/QH15 dated November 29, 2024;

« Pursuant to the Charter of Vietnam Maritime Corporation - JSC;

« Pursuant to the Internal Regulations on Corporate Governance of Vietnam
Maritime Corporation - JSC;

« Pursuant to the Minutes of the 2025 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders
of Vietham Maritime Corporation - JSC (VIMC) dated June 5, 2024,

RESOLVED:

Article 1.

To approve theReport of the Board of Directors (“BOD”) on the Business
Performance in 2024 (2020-2025 term), Orientation for the 2025-2030 term,
and Operating Plan for 2025 (as per Report N0.284/BC-DHDCD dated July 8, 2025,
of VIMC’s BOD).

Article 2.

To approve the Report of the Supervisory Board (“SB”) on the audited Financia
Statements, business results, and performance of the BOD and General Director of
VIMC in 2024 (as per Report No. 285//BC-DHDCD dated July 8, 2025, of VIMC’s
SB).

Article 3.To approve the Self-Assessment Report on the Performance of the SB and
Supervisors in 2024 (2020-2025 term), Orientation for the 2025-2030 term,
and Operating Plan for 2025 (as per Report No. 286/BC-DHDCD dated July 8,
2025, of VIMC’s SB).

Article 4.

To approve theConsolidated Financial Statementsand Separate Financia
Statements of Vietnam Maritime Corporation - JSC for 2024, as audited (as per
Submission No. 287/TTr-DHDCD dated July 8, 2025, of VIMC’s BOD).
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In case tax authorities or competent state agencies adjust indicators related to
business performance or the 2024 Financial Statements, VIMC’s BOD shall direct
VIMC to make necessary adjustments in compliance with legal regulations.

Articleb.

To approve the Profit Distribution Plan for 2024 of VIMC (as per Submission No.

288/TTr-DHDCD

dated

July 8,

2025,

of  VIMC’s

BOD).

The allocation and allocation of funds from VIMC’s 2024 after-tax profit shall be as

follows:
e % of Profit
I Profit Distribution
No Description Plan for 2024 (VND) After Tax Notes
Allocated
1 | Profit Before Tax 1.353.536.982.178
Profit After Corporate
2 Income Tax for 2024 1.353.536.982.178
as per the Notes to
Foreign Exchange Gain the Separate
from Year-End 27.062.031.481 Financial
Revaluation of Balances Statements, page
42
as per the Notes to
. the Separate
Income from Witten-Off 377.743.630.417 Finaneial
Loan Interest
Satements, page
43
as per the Notes to
Income from Asset the Separate
Revaluation for Capital 468.537.405.790 Financial
Contribution Satements, page
43
Total Allocated Profit
3 | After Tax (5)=(2)+(3)- 52.418.135.000
4)
capped at the
Appropriation to Bonus equivalent of 3
31 and Welfare Fund 57.810.750.000 12,04% months of average
employee salary
50% of the amount
Bonus Fund 28.905.375.000 50,00% | to beallocated to
the Bonus Fund
50% of the amount
Welfare Fund 28.905.375.000 50,00% | to beallocated to
the Welfare Fund




Allocation of the
3.2 | Management Bonus 1.607.375.000 | 0,12
Fund

Undistributed
4 | Retained Earnings (6) 1.294.118.857.178
= (4) + (5.5)

Regarding the remaining 2024 profit of VND 1,294,118,857,178 (One trillion two
hundred ninety-four billion one hundred eighteen million eight hundred fifty-seven
thousand one hundred seventy-eight Vietnamese Dong), no allocation has been
made to the development investment fund and no dividends have been distributed

Article 6To approve the 2025 Business Production and Investment Plan of VIMC
(as per Board of Directors Report No. 289/TTr-DHDCD dated July 8, 2025):

Business Production Plan of the Parent Company:

« Maritime transport output: 3.2 million tons.

« Revenue: VND 3,849 hillion.

« Pre-tax profit: VND 409 hillion.
| Consolidated Business Production Plan:
Maritime transport volume: 21.1 million tons
Port handling volume: 158.3 million tons
Revenue: VND 20,793 hillion (Twenty trillion seven hundred ninety-three billion
Vietnamese dong)
Pre-tax profit.: VND 3,076 billion (Three trillion seventy-six billion
Vietnamesenvestment Plan of the Parent Company:
The 2025 investment plan of the parent company is VND 194.6 billion, including:

. Carry-over investments from 2024 to 2025: VND 162.7 billion.

« New investmentsin 2025: VND 31.9 hillion.
The planned budget for infrastructure and equipment repair/upgrades in 2025 is:
31.9 billion VND

Article 7.
To approve the 2024 Actual Salary and Remuneration Fund and the 2025 Planned
Salary and Remuneration Fund for the Board of Directors (BOD) and Supervisory
Board (SB) (as per Submission No. 290/TTr-DHDCD dated July 8, 2025, of
VIMC’s BOD).

2024 Salary and Remuneration Fund for BOD and SB:




. BOD: 4 full-time members and 1 part-time member (BOD member
concurrently serving as General Director).
. SB: 3full-time members.

o Total sdary fund: VND 8,021.5 million; average salary: VND 98.1
million/person/month.
BOD sadary fund: VND 5,269.5 million.
SB sdary fund: VND 2,752.0 million.
o Remuneration for part-time BOD member: VND 235.44 million/year.
o Distribution follows VIMC’s Regulations on Saaries, Remuneration,
and Bonuses for Management and Supervisory Board Members.

2025 Planned Salary and Remuneration Fund for BOD and SB:

. BOD: 4 full-time members and 1 part-time member (BOD member
concurrently serving as Genera Director).
« SB: 3full-time members.

o Total salary fund: VND 7,849 million; average saary: VND 93.44
million/person/month.

o Remuneration for part-time BOD member: VND 242.2 million.

o Distribution follows VIMC’s Regulations on Saaries, Remuneration,
and Bonuses for Management and Supervisory Board Members.

Article8.
To approve the Selection of an Audit Firm for the Audit of VIMC’s 2025 Financial

Statements (as per Submission No. 291/TTr-DHDCD dated July 8, 2025, of
VIMC’s BOD).

List of Proposed Audit Firms:

1. AASC Auditing Firm Co., Ltd.
2. A& C Auditing and Consulting Co., Ltd.
3. UHY Auditing and Consulting Co., Ltd.

The General Meeting of Shareholders authorizes the BOD to select the audit firm
based on the following criteria

« (&) Anindependent, reputableaudit firm with astrong brand, trusted by public
companies, and staffed by highly qualified and experienced auditors.



« (b) Alegaly operating firm in Vietnam, approved by the State Securities
Commission for auditing public-interest entities, and listed among qualified
audit firms annually published by the Ministry of Finance.

. (c) Reasonable audit fees, aligned with the scope, quality, and timeline of
VIMC’s audit requirements.

. (d) Provision of free training courses on finance and accounting for VIMC.

The selection of the audit firm for VIMC’s 2025 Financial Statements must
ensure quality, efficiency, and cost-effectivenessin compliance with legal
regulations.

Article9.

To approvethe registration of changesto VIMC'slegal representatives (as per
Submission No. 292/TTr-DHDCD dated July 8, 2025, of VIMC's Board of
Directors).

Legal representatives of VIMC after the change:

« Number of legal representatives: 02 persons
. Positions of legal representatives. Chairman of the Board of Directors and
General Director.

Article 10.

To approve the election results for members of the Board of Directors and
Supervisory Board of Vietham Maritime Corporation - JSC for the 2025-2030
term, specifically asfollows:

1. Board of Directors members include the following individuals:

o Mr. Nguyen Canh Tinh — Chairman of BOD
o Mr.Le Anh Son— Member of BOD
o Mr. Do Hung Duong — Member of BOD
o Mr. Nguyen Dinh Chung — Member of BOD
o Mr. Do Tien Duc — Member of BOD
2. Supervisory Board members include the following individuals:
o Mr.Luong Dinh Minh — Head of the Supervisory Board
o Mrs. Phan Thi Nhi Ha— Member of the Supervisory Board
o Mr. Pham Cao Nhue — Member of the Supervisory Boarly



The 2025 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders of Vietham Maritime
Corporation - JSC assigns the Board of Directors and Supervisory Board to
implement this Resolution.

Recipients: ON BEHALF OF THE GENERAL
- VIMC shareholders (viawebsite); MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS
- HNX (for PD); TR
VIMC’s BOD, Supervisory Board (for
implementation);

- Save: Admin, General Secreatariat,
Office.
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